
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA  

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

SECOND MONTHLY MEETING 
May 22, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public.

3. Approve minutes from the April 24, 2019 meeting.

CLOSED SESSION 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Government Code Section 54957.6)

Agency designated representative:
Joe Wiley, CCCERA’s Chief Negotiator

Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer

OPEN SESSION 

5. Presentation from Segal Consulting:  Review of Actuarial Assumptions.

6. Presentation of Actuarial Audit Report by Cheiron.

7. Consider and take possible action to adopt the actuarial assumptions to be utilized in the
December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation report.

8. Consider and take possible action to adopt the Declining Employer Payroll Actuarial
Funding Policy.

9. Consider and take possible action to amend the Actuarial Funding Policy.

10. Review of total portfolio performance for period ending March 31, 2019.
a. Presentation from Verus.
b. Presentation from staff.



The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

11. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:
a. The Private Equity Exclusive, The Pension Bridge, July 22-23, 2019, Chicago, IL.
b. 2019 Public Funds Forum, ValueEdge Advisors, September 3-5, 2019, Park City,

UT.

12. Miscellaneous
a. Staff Report
b. Outside Professionals’ Report
c. Trustees’ comments



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 24, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Jerry Holcombe, Jay Kwon, Louie Kroll, David MacDonald, John 
Phillips, William Pigeon, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 

Absent: Scott Gordon and Jerry Telles 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 
Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 
Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 
Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager; and Colin 
Bishop, Member Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 
Harvey Leiderman Reed Smith LLP 
David Plecha Dimensional Fund Advisors 
Ted Simpson Dimensional Fund Advisors 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

3. Approval of Minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes from the March 27, 2019 meeting. (Yes:  Andersen, Holcombe,
Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

MacDonald recused himself from Item 4 and was not present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 

The Board moved into open session. 

4. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1).

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 
April 24, 2019 

 

 

5. Review of Report on Liquidity Sub-Portfolio 

Price reviewed the Liquidity Sub-Portfolio report. 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

Dimensional Fund Advisors - David Plecha and Ted Simpson 

Simpson provided an update on the firm, their upcoming events and reviewed the senior executive 
team. 

Plecha reviewed their investment philosophy, expected returns and credit spreads.  He also gave an 
overview of CCCERA’s portfolio.   

6. Consider and take possible action to amend the Investment Policy Statement 

Price recommended revisions to the Investment Policy Statement. 
 
It was M/S/C to amend the Investment Policy Statement as presented. (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe, 
Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

 
7. Consider and take possible action to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a Pension 

Administration System Consulting Firm 

It was M/S/C to issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a Pension Administration System Consulting 
Firm. (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

 
8. Death During Active Membership – Non-Service Connected Disability and Optional Settlement 

2 information 

Hoppe reviewed the background and historical data on the active death/non-service connected 
disability benefit.   

 
9. Discussion concerning new board room 

Strohl reported the move is currently on schedule. There was a discussion on the setup of the board 
room and the recording of board meetings. 
 

Andersen and Pigeon were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 
 

10. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. There was no action taken on this item. Annual Institutional Symposium, Dimensional Fund 
Advisors, May 6-8, 2019, Charlotte, NC 

b. There was no action taken on this item. 2019 Investor Conference & Dinner Reception, Angelo 
Gordon, May 15, 2019, New York, NY.   

c. There was no action taken on this item. Annual Meeting & Dinner, DBL Investors, June 19, 2019, 
San Francisco, CA.   

d. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 4 Board members at the Public Pension Investment 
Management Program, SACRS, July 22-24, 2019, Berkeley, CA.  (Yes: Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 



Page 3 
April 24, 2019 

11. Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report –

Dunn reported Colin Bishop, the Member Services Manager, has accepted a position at the San 
Bernardino County Employees’ Retirement Association. 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report –    

None 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

Kwon reported on The Pension Bridge Conference he recently attended. 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Holcombe, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and 
Watts) 

Todd Smithey, Chairman David MacDonald, Secretary 



C
op

yr
ig

ht
 ©

 2
01

9 
by

 T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

A
ct

ua
ria

l E
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

St
ud

y 
–

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 fo

r D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

8 
Va

lu
at

io
n

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n

P
au

l A
ng

el
o,

 F
S

A
, M

A
A

A
, F

C
A

, E
A

Jo
hn

 M
on

ro
e,

 A
S

A
, M

A
A

A
, E

A

S
eg

al
 C

on
su

lti
ng

, S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co

55
81

10
8v

3

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#5



2


M

or
ta

lit
y 

R
at

es
•

N
ew

 P
ub

-2
01

0 
ta

bl
es

 o
n 

a 
be

ne
fit

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
ba

si
s

–
U

se
d 

a 
ni

ne
-y

ea
r p

er
io

d 
to

 c
ap

tu
re

 m
or

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

–
R

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 re

fle
ct

 c
re

di
bi

lit
y 

of
 d

at
a

•
C

on
tin

ue
d 

us
e 

of
 g

en
er

at
io

na
l m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t

•
M

P-
20

18
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t s

ca
le


R

et
ire

m
en

t r
at

es
•

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

to
 u

se
 b

ot
h 

ag
e 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 3
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d

–
U

se
d 

a 
si

x-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
to

 c
ap

tu
re

 m
or

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e

–
La

te
r r

et
ire

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 u

nd
er

 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

–
Ea

rli
er

 re
tir

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 3

0+
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
–

O
ve

ra
ll 

la
te

r r
et

ire
m

en
ts

 a
re

 a
ss

um
ed

 fo
r b

ot
h 

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d



3


Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
ra

te
s

•
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 te
rm

in
at

io
n 

ra
te

s
•

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
cu

rr
en

t a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

th
at

 m
em

be
r w

ill 
ch

oo
se

 a
 re

fu
nd

 o
r 

de
fe

rr
ed

 b
en

ef
it 

ba
se

d 
on

 w
hi

ch
 o

pt
io

n 
is

 m
or

e 
va

lu
ab

le


D

is
ab

ilit
y 

in
ci

de
nc

e 
ra

te
s

•
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 in
 ra

te
s 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 1

 a
nd

 4
•

D
ec

re
as

e 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 a

nd
 5

 a
nd

 S
af

et
y


Le

av
e 

C
as

ho
ut

s
•

O
ve

ra
ll 

de
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 a
ss

um
ed

 le
av

e 
ca

sh
ou

ts


Se

rv
ic

e 
fro

m
 u

nu
se

d 
si

ck
 le

av
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
•

D
ec

re
as

es
 in

 a
ss

um
ed

 s
ic

k 
le

av
e 

co
nv

er
si

on

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d



4


Pr

ic
e 

In
fla

tio
n 

(C
PI

)
•

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n,
 S

al
ar

y 
In

cr
ea

se
s,

 C
O

LA
s


Sa

la
ry

 In
cr

ea
se

s
•

W
ag

e 
in

fla
tio

n 
(o

r p
ay

ro
ll 

gr
ow

th
)

–
In

cl
ud

es
 p

ric
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

pl
us

 “a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ar

d”
 re

al
 w

ag
e 

gr
ow

th
•

M
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n:

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e


In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

(In
ve

st
m

en
t E

ar
ni

ng
s)

•
C

om
po

ne
nt

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
pr

ic
e 

in
fla

tio
n,

 re
al

 re
tu

rn
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
•

G
en

er
al

ly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

pa
ss

iv
e 

re
tu

rn
s


Ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

Ex
pe

ns
es

•
Ex

pl
ic

it 
pe

rc
en

t o
f p

ay
 lo

ad
in

g
•

Ad
ju

st
s 

in
 e

ac
h 

va
lu

at
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 p

rio
r y

ea
r a

ct
ua

l e
xp

en
se

s 
an

d
pa

yr
ol

l

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns



5

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
R

ec
om

m
en

de
d

*
R

et
ur

n 
is

 n
et

 o
f i

nv
es

tm
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
**

 E
xc

lu
de

s 
m

er
it 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
sa

la
ry

 in
cr

ea
se

s

12
/3

1/
20

15
 V

al
ua

tio
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

R
et

ur
n

Sa
la

ry
 

G
ro

w
th

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n
2.

75
%

2.
75

%

R
ea

l W
ag

e 
G

ro
w

th
 

n/
a

0.
50

%

N
et

 R
ea

l R
et

ur
n

4.
25

%
*

n/
a

To
ta

l
7.

00
%

3.
25

%
**

12
/3

1/
20

18
 V

al
ua

tio
n

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

R
et

ur
n

Sa
la

ry
 

G
ro

w
th

2.
75

%
2.

75
%

n/
a

0.
50

%

4.
25

%
*

n/
a

7.
00

%
3.

25
%

**



6


H

is
to

ric
al

 C
on

su
m

er
 P

ric
e 

In
de

x
•

M
ed

ia
n 

15
-y

ea
r m

ov
in

g 
av

er
ag

e 
= 

3.
3%

•
M

ed
ia

n 
30

-y
ea

r m
ov

in
g 

av
er

ag
e 

= 
3.

8%
 

•
Av

er
ag

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ec

lin
in

g 
du

e 
to

 lo
w

 in
fla

tio
n 

ov
er

 p
as

t 2
0 

ye
ar

s


N

A
S

R
A

 S
ur

ve
y

•
M

ed
ia

n 
in

fla
tio

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
is

 2
.7

5%


S

oc
ia

l S
ec

ur
ity

 In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 F
or

ec
as

t =
 2

.6
%


V

er
us

an
tic

ip
at

es
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 in

fla
tio

n 
of

 1
.8

0%
 

•
Av

er
ag

e 
in

fla
tio

n 
fro

m
 s

ur
ve

y 
of

 7
 c

on
su

lta
nt

s 
= 

2.
35

%


M

ar
ke

t b
as

ed
 in

fla
tio

n 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 =

 1
.9

6%
 (M

ar
ch

 2
01

9)


R
ec

om
m

en
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

at
 2

.7
5%

•
Sa

m
e 

as
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 B
oa

rd
 in

 2
01

6
•

Se
ga

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

fo
r C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 p
ub

lic
 s

ys
te

m
 c

lie
nt

s 
si

nc
e 

20
18

•
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 in
 a

ss
um

ed
 C

O
LA

s

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n 
(C

PI
)



7

Th
re

e 
co

m
po

ne
nt

s:


Pr
ic

e 
in

fla
tio

n:
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

at
 2

.7
5%


“A

cr
os

s 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d”

 re
al

 w
ag

e 
gr

ow
th

: m
ai

nt
ai

n 
at

 0
.5

0%
•

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f L
ab

or
: A

nn
ua

l S
ta

te
 a

nd
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t r

ea
l

pr
od

uc
tiv

ity
 in

cr
ea

se
: 0

.3
%

 –
0.

7%
 o

ve
r 1

0 
–

20
 y

ea
rs


M

er
it 

an
d 

Pr
om

ot
io

n:
 fr

om
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
st

ud
y

•
Ba

se
d 

on
 y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
•

G
en

er
al

: C
ur

re
nt

ly
 1

0.
00

%
 (0

 –
1 

ye
ar

s)
 to

 0
.7

5%
 (1

5+
 y

ea
rs

)
–

D
ec

re
as

e 
f o

r G
en

er
al

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ith

 1
5+

 y
ea

rs
•

Sa
fe

ty
: C

ur
re

nt
ly

 1
0.

50
%

 (0
 –

1 
ye

ar
s)

 to
 0

.7
5%

 (1
5+

 y
ea

rs
)

–
In

cr
ea

se
 f o

r S
af

et
y 

m
em

be
rs

 fo
r m

os
t y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s

Sa
la

ry
 In

cr
ea

se
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n 



8


Ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
r p

ay
ro

ll 
ba

se
d 

on
 w

ag
e 

in
fla

tio
n

•
As

su
m

e 
co

ns
ta

nt
 fu

tu
re

 a
ct

iv
e 

he
ad

co
un

t
•

U
se

d 
to

 p
ro

je
ct

 to
ta

l p
ay

ro
ll 

fo
r U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n


In

cl
ud

e 
pr

ic
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

an
d 

“a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

bo
ar

d”
 re

al
 w

ag
e 

gr
ow

th
•

Pr
ic

e 
in

fla
tio

n:
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

at
 2

.7
5%

•
R

ea
l i

nc
re

as
es

: m
ai

nt
ai

n 
at

 0
.5

0%
•

To
ta

l i
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

at
 3

.2
5%

Pa
yr

ol
l G

ro
w

th
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n



9

Fo
ur

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s:


In

fla
tio

n:
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
nd

 C
O

LA
as

su
m

pt
io

n


R
ea

l r
et

ur
ns

 b
y 

as
se

t c
la

ss
•

W
ei

gh
te

d 
by

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

tio
n


R

ed
uc

ed
 b

y 
as

su
m

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s


R
ed

uc
ed

 b
y 

“r
is

k 
ad

ju
st

m
en

t”
•

M
ar

gi
n 

fo
r a

dv
er

se
 d

ev
ia

tio
n

•
Ex

pr
es

se
d 

as
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 le
ve

l a
bo

ve
 5

0%

Se
tti

ng
 th

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t E
ar

ni
ng

s 
A

ss
um

pt
io

n



10

Pr
ev

ie
w

: C
om

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

A
ss

um
pt

io
n

C
C

C
ER

A
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n

C
ur

re
nt

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d
As

su
m

ed
 In

fla
tio

n
2.

75
%

2.
75

%

Po
rtf

ol
io

 R
ea

l R
at

e 
of

 R
et

ur
n

5.
19

%
5.

51
%

As
su

m
ed

 E
xp

en
se

s*
(0

.6
4%

)
(0

.6
5%

)

R
is

k 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
(0

.3
0%

)
(0

.6
1%

)

As
su

m
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n
7.

00
%

7.
00

%

C
on

fid
en

ce
 le

ve
l

54
%

59
%

St
an

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
tio

n
10

.8
0%

10
.3

0%

*
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s



11


U

se
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 7
 in

ve
st

m
en

t a
dv

is
or

y 
fir

m
s 

re
ta

in
ed

 b
y

Se
ga

l p
ub

lic
 c

lie
nt

s
•

U
se

 re
su

lts
 fr

om
 V

er
us

fo
r a

ss
et

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

un
iq

ue
 to

 C
C

C
ER

A


Ex

pe
ct

ed
 re

al
 re

tu
rn

 fo
r C

C
C

ER
A

as
se

t a
llo

ca
tio

n 
is

 5
.5

1%
•

In
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 5

.1
9%

 in
 2

01
6 

st
ud

y


In

cr
ea

se
 in

 re
al

 re
tu

rn
 is

 d
ue

 to
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
:

•
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 a

ss
et

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
(+

0.
27

%
)

•
C

ha
ng

es
 in

 re
al

 re
tu

rn
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 in

 s
ur

ve
y 

(+
0.

19
%

)
•

In
te

ra
ct

io
n 

of
 th

es
e 

tw
o 

ch
an

ge
s 

(-
0.

14
%

)

R
ea

l R
et

ur
ns

 b
y 

A
ss

et
 C

la
ss



12

C
C

C
ER

A
R

ea
l R

at
e 

of
 R

et
ur

n

As
se

t C
la

ss
Ta

rg
et

 
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

R
ea

l 
R

et
ur

n
W

ei
gh

te
d 

R
et

ur
n

La
rg

e 
C

ap
 U

S
 E

qu
ity

 
5.

00
%

5.
44

%
0.

27
%

D
ev

el
op

ed
 In

t’l
 E

qu
ity

13
.0

0%
6.

54
%

0.
85

%
E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
t E

qu
ity

11
.0

0%
8.

73
%

0.
96

%
S

ho
rt-

Te
rm

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t/C

re
di

t
23

.0
0%

0.
84

%
0.

19
%

U
S

 T
re

as
ur

y
3.

00
%

1.
05

%
0.

03
%

P
riv

at
e 

E
qu

ity
8.

00
%

9.
27

%
0.

74
%

R
is

k 
D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g

7.
00

%
3.

53
%

0.
25

%
G

lo
ba

l I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

3.
00

%
7.

90
%

0.
24

%
P

riv
at

e
C

re
di

t
12

.0
0%

5.
80

%
0.

70
%

R
E

IT
1.

00
%

6.
80

%
0.

07
%

Va
lu

e 
A

dd
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
5.

00
%

8.
80

%
0.

44
%

O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e
4.

00
%

12
.0

0%
0.

48
%

R
is

k 
P

ar
ity

5.
00

%
5.

80
%

0.
29

%
To

ta
l

10
0.

00
%

5.
51

%



13


B

as
ed

 o
n 

th
is

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 in
ve

st
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 
fro

m
 0

.6
4%

 to
 0

.6
5%

.

In
ve

st
m

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

Ye
ar

 E
nd

in
g 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l V
al

ue
 o

f 
As

se
ts

 (A
VA

)
In

ve
st

m
en

t 
Ex

pe
ns

es
In

ve
st

m
en

t E
xp

en
se

s 
as

 
a 

P
er

ce
nt

 o
f A

V
A

%

20
13

$5
,4

97
,1

94
 

$3
8,

15
8 

0.
69

20
14

5,
92

2,
44

9
41

,6
00

0.
70

20
15

6,
57

2,
56

0
43

,0
59

0.
66

20
16

7,
15

1,
93

6
46

,3
28

0.
65

20
17

7,
62

2,
35

1
42

,8
65

0.
56

Fi
ve

-Y
ea

r A
ve

ra
ge

0.
65

C
ur

re
nt

0.
64

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n

0.
65

In
ve

st
m

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

as
 a

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 A

ct
ua

ria
l V

al
ue

 o
f A

ss
et

s
(A

ll 
do

lla
rs

 in
 0

00
’s

) 



14


C

om
pa

re
s 

th
e 

As
so

ci
at

io
n’

s 
ris

k 
po

si
tio

n 
ov

er
 ti

m
e


C

on
fid

en
ce

 le
ve

l i
s 

a 
re

la
tiv

e,
 n

ot
 a

bs
ol

ut
e 

m
ea

su
re

•
C

an
 b

e 
re

ev
al

ua
te

d 
an

d 
re

se
t f

or
 fu

tu
re

 c
om

pa
ris

on
s


C

on
fid

en
ce

 le
ve

l i
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
de

vi
at

io
n

•
M

ea
su

re
 o

f v
ol

at
ilit

y 
ba

se
d 

on
 p

or
tfo

lio
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns


R

es
ul

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 e
va

lu
at

ed
 fo

r r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s

R
is

k 
A

dj
us

tm
en

t M
od

el
 a

nd
 C

on
fid

en
ce

 L
ev

el



15


M

os
t u

se
fu

l f
or

 c
om

pa
rin

g 
ris

k 
po

si
tio

n 
ov

er
 ti

m
e


C

on
fid

en
ce

 le
ve

l i
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
de

vi
at

io
n

•
R

el
at

iv
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
th

at
 a

ct
ua

l a
ve

ra
ge

 1
5-

ye
ar

 re
tu

rn
 w

ill 
ex

ce
ed

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
on

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
va

lu
e 

ba
si

s

*
Th

es
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 g

ro
ss

 o
f a

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ex
pe

ns
es

.

R
is

k 
A

dj
us

tm
en

t M
od

el
 a

nd
 C

on
fid

en
ce

 L
ev

el

Ye
ar

En
di

ng
 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

R
et

ur
n 

A
ss

um
pt

io
n

R
is

k 
A

dj
us

tm
en

t
C

on
fid

en
ce

 
Le

ve
l

20
06

 –
20

08
7.

80
%

0.
86

%
60

%
20

09
 –

20
11

7.
75

%
0.

41
%

55
%

20
12

 –
20

14
7.

25
%

0.
25

%
53

%
20

15
 –

20
17

7.
00

%
*

0.
30

%
54

%
20

18
 (R

ec
om

m
en

de
d)

7.
00

%
*

0.
61

%
59

%



16

C
C

C
ER

A
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n

C
om

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

A
ss

um
pt

io
n

C
ur

re
nt

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d
As

su
m

ed
 In

fla
tio

n
2.

75
%

2.
75

%

Po
rtf

ol
io

 R
ea

l R
at

e 
of

 R
et

ur
n

5.
19

%
5.

51
%

As
su

m
ed

 E
xp

en
se

s*
(0

.6
4%

)
(0

.6
5%

)

R
is

k 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
(0

.3
0%

)
(0

.6
1%

)

As
su

m
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n
7.

00
%

7.
00

%

C
on

fid
en

ce
 le

ve
l

54
%

59
%

St
an

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
tio

n
10

.8
0%

10
.3

0%

* 
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s



17


Se

ga
l’s

 m
od

el
 fo

r r
ev

ie
w

 o
f e

ar
ni

ng
s 

as
su

m
pt

io
n

•
U

se
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
rit

hm
et

ic
 a

ve
ra

ge
 re

tu
rn

s
–

N
o 

su
rp

lu
s 

or
 a

ss
et

 s
ho

rtf
al

l o
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 v
al

ue
 b

as
is


C

om
pa

ris
on

 w
ith

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

m
od

el
 in

 c
om

m
on

 u
se

•
U

se
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

lo
ok

in
g 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 g
eo

m
et

ric
 a

ve
ra

ge
 re

tu
rn

s
–

N
o 

su
rp

lu
s 

or
 a

ss
et

 s
ho

rtf
al

l o
n 

a 
m

ed
ia

n 
va

lu
e 

ba
si

s
–

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 g
eo

m
et

ric
 re

tu
rn

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
ar

ith
m

et
ic

 re
tu

rn
s

•
H

ow
ev

er
, u

nd
er

 th
is

 m
od

el
, e

ar
ni

ng
s 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 re
du

ce
d 

fo
r

fu
tu

re
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s
–

H
en

ce
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
no

 m
at

er
ia

l d
iff

er
en

ce
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ea
rn

in
gs

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

se
t u

si
ng

 th
is

 m
od

el
 v

er
su

s 
us

in
g 

Se
ga

l’s
 m

od
el

•
Se

ga
l r

an
 C

C
C

ER
A’

s
as

se
t a

llo
ca

tio
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
is

 m
od

el
–

U
si

ng
 a

 n
at

io
na

l s
ur

ve
y 

of
 c

ap
ita

l m
ar

ke
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 (H

or
iz

on
)

»
St

oc
ha

st
ic

 s
im

ul
at

io
n 

us
in

g 
10

,0
00

 tr
ia

l o
ut

co
m

es
–

61
%

 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
of

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 7

.0
0%

 u
si

ng
 2

0-
y e

ar
 re

tu
rn

s

C
C

C
ER

A
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n



18


C

om
pa

ris
on

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 s

ys
te

m
s

•
N

at
io

na
l m

ed
ia

n 
is

 7
.5

0%
 b

ut
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 tr

en
d 

do
w

n 
na

tio
nw

id
e

–
N

at
io

na
l p

ra
ct

ic
e 

la
gs

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
!

•
7.

00
%

 is
 b

ec
om

in
g 

m
or

e 
co

m
m

on
 fo

r C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

ER
L 

sy
st

em
s 

–
Te

n 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 c
ou

nt
y 

sy
st

em
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

C
C

ER
A

) n
ow

 a
t 7

.0
0%

»
O

ne
 a

t 6
.7

5%
, b

ut
 w

ith
 2

.5
0%

 in
fla

tio
n 

co
m

po
ne

nt
•

C
al

PE
R

S 
an

d 
C

al
ST

R
S 

bo
th

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

to
 7

.0
0%

•
Sa

n 
Jo

se
 C

ity
 a

t 6
.7

5%
, S

an
 D

ie
go

 C
ity

 a
t 6

.5
0%

 

C
C

C
ER

A
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n



19

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

R
es

ul
ts

M
od

el
ed

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fo
r i

llu
st

ra
tio

n

N
ot

e:
 E

ve
n 

th
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ch

an
ge

 in
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
m

em
be

r r
at

e 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f p
ay

, 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 e
st

im
at

ed
 to

ta
l m

em
be

r c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 in
 d

ol
la

rs
. T

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
do

lla
rs

 is
 d

ue
 to

 la
rg

er
 p

ro
je

ct
ed

 p
ay

ro
ll 

un
de

r t
he

 re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
.



20

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

R
es

ul
ts

M
od

el
ed

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fo
r i

llu
st

ra
tio

n



21

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

R
es

ul
ts

M
od

el
ed

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fo
r i

llu
st

ra
tio

n

N
ot

e:
  T

he
re

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 s

m
al

l i
nc

re
as

es
 in

 m
em

be
r r

at
es

 fo
r l

eg
ac

y 
(n

on
-P

E
P

R
A

) 
tie

rs
 a

nd
 s

lig
ht

ly
 la

rg
er

 d
ec

re
as

es
 fo

r P
E

P
R

A
Ti

er
s.



22

A
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
Va

lu
at

io
n 

R
es

ul
ts

M
od

el
ed

 a
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

fo
r i

llu
st

ra
tio

n


Am

on
g 

va
rio

us
 d

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
ch

an
ge

s
•

M
or

ta
lit

y 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
ha

s 
th

e 
m

os
t s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
m

pa
ct

–
In

cr
ea

se
 o

f r
ou

gh
ly

 1
%

 o
f p

ay
 fo

r G
en

er
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s

–
D

ec
re

as
e 

of
 ro

ug
hl

y 
2%

 to
 4

%
 o

f p
ay

 fo
r S

af
et

y 
em

pl
oy

er
s

•
Fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
re

tir
em

en
t a

ss
um

pt
io

n


O

nl
y 

on
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
•

M
er

it 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 o

f t
he

 s
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

is
 th

e
on

l y
 c

ha
ng

e



23

C
C

C
ER

A
Ea

rn
in

gs
 A

ss
um

pt
io

n
In

cl
ud

in
g 

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 T

es
t f

or
 6

.7
5%

 A
ss

um
pt

io
n

C
om

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 In

ve
st

m
en

t R
et

ur
n 

A
ss

um
pt

io
n

C
ur

re
nt

R
ec

om
m

en
de

d
Se

ns
iti

vi
ty

 T
es

t
As

su
m

ed
 In

fla
tio

n
2.

75
%

2.
75

%
2.

75
%

Po
rtf

ol
io

 R
ea

l R
at

e 
of

 R
et

ur
n

5.
19

%
5.

51
%

5.
51

%

As
su

m
ed

 E
xp

en
se

s*
(0

.6
4%

)
(0

.6
5%

)
(0

.6
5%

)

R
is

k 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t
(0

.3
0%

)
(0

.6
1%

)
(0

.8
6%

)

As
su

m
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n
7.

00
%

7.
00

%
6.

75
%

C
on

fid
en

ce
 le

ve
l

54
%

59
%

62
%

St
an

da
rd

 d
ev

ia
tio

n
10

.8
0%

10
.3

0%
10

.3
0%

* 
In

cl
ud

es
 in

ve
st

m
en

t e
xp

en
se

s



24

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 T

es
t f

or
 6

.7
5%

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
A

ss
um

pt
io

n
M

od
el

ed
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
fo

r i
llu

st
ra

tio
n

N
ot

e:
Th

is
 s

en
si

tiv
ity

 te
st

 s
ho

w
s 

on
ly

 th
e 

in
cr

em
en

ta
li

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
us

in
g 

a 
6.

75
%

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n.



25

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 T

es
t f

or
 6

.7
5%

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
A

ss
um

pt
io

n 
M

od
el

ed
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
fo

r i
llu

st
ra

tio
n

N
ot

e:
Th

is
 s

en
si

tiv
ity

 te
st

 s
ho

w
s 

on
ly

 th
e 

in
cr

em
en

ta
li

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
us

in
g 

a 
6.

75
%

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n.



26

Se
ns

iti
vi

ty
 T

es
t f

or
 6

.7
5%

 In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
A

ss
um

pt
io

n
M

od
el

ed
 a

s 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
01

7 
fo

r i
llu

st
ra

tio
n

N
ot

e:
Th

is
 s

en
si

tiv
ity

 te
st

 s
ho

w
s 

on
ly

 th
e 

in
cr

em
en

ta
li

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
us

in
g 

a 
6.

75
%

 in
ve

st
m

en
t r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n.



1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969    www.cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 
Date: May 22, 2019 

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:     Presentation of Actuarial Audit Report by Cheiron. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
At the December 12, 2018 Board meeting, the Board selected Cheiron to perform actuarial audit 
services, including an audit of the triennial experience and assumptions study prepared by Segal 
Consulting. Cheiron has concluded their audit of this study and will be presenting their report. 

Recommendation 
Presentation only. No action is necessary at this time. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#6



Au
di

t o
f E

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
St

ud
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
5 

– 
D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
7 

Bi
ll 

H
al

lm
ar

k,
 A

SA
, E

A,
 F

C
A,

 M
AA

A 
An

ne
 H

ar
pe

r, 
FS

A,
 E

A,
 M

AA
A 

G
ra

ha
m

 S
ch

m
id

t, 
AS

A,
 E

A,
 F

C
A,

 M
AA

A 

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s’ 
R

et
ire

m
en

t 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#6



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ag
en

da
 

•
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 

•
Ec

on
om

ic
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

•
D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

•
C

on
cl

us
io

ns
 

•
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 

1 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 –

 P
rim

ar
y 

C
on

cl
us

io
ns

 
•

A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 p
ro

po
se

d 
by

 S
eg

al
 a

re
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

•
W

e 
m

at
ch

ed
 th

e 
ob

se
rv

ed
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
ov

er
 th

e 
la

st
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 
w

ith
in

 re
as

on
ab

le
 to

le
ra

nc
es

 
–

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

do
 n

ot
 a

ffe
ct

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
•

O
bs

er
va

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

re
po

rt 
an

d 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 
–

In
fla

tio
n 

–
In

ve
st

m
en

t r
et

ur
n 

–
R

et
ire

m
en

t 
–

M
or

ta
lit

y 
–

D
is

ab
ilit

y 

2 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 –

 P
ro

ce
ss

 
•

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
–

In
de

pe
nd

en
t a

na
ly

si
s 

–
M

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 d

iff
er

s 
fro

m
 S

eg
al

 
–

C
on

fir
m

s 
th

at
 S

eg
al

’s
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 fa

ll 
w

ith
in

 a
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 ra

ng
e 

•
D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

–
In

de
pe

nd
en

t a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
–

M
an

y 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

si
x 

or
 n

in
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

–
Su

pp
le

m
en

te
d 

da
ta

 fo
r a

na
ly

si
s 

w
ith

 a
ct

ua
l 

de
cr

em
en

t c
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

ex
po

su
re

s 
fo

r p
rio

r p
er

io
ds

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
Se

ga
l 

3 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ec
on

om
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 

In
fla

tio
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 
C

os
t-o

f-L
iv

in
g 

In
cr

ea
se

s 
W

ag
e 

In
fla

tio
n 

M
er

it 
Sa

la
ry

 In
cr

ea
se

s 
Ac

tiv
e 

M
em

be
r P

ay
ro

ll 
  

4 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n 

•
C

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
= 

2.
75

%
 

•
Se

ga
l p

ro
po

se
d 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

= 
2.

75
%

 

•
O

ur
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t a
na

ly
si

s 
fin

ds
 2

.7
5%

 to
 

be
 a

t t
he

 h
ig

h 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 ra

ng
e 

•
Se

ga
l c

ite
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
da

ta
 s

up
po

rti
ng

 a
 

hi
gh

er
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
–

M
ov

in
g 

hi
st

or
ic

al
 a

ve
ra

ge
s 

–
As

su
m

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

by
 o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 p

la
ns

 

5 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 6 

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n 
– 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t A

na
ly

si
s 

•
Fe

de
ra

l R
es

er
ve

 in
fo

rm
al

 
ta

rg
et

 =
 2

.0
%

 
•

Th
e 

Fe
de

ra
l R

es
er

ve
 s

ur
ve

y 
of

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
 

fo
re

ca
st

er
s 

sh
ow

s 
10

-y
ea

r 
fo

re
ca

st
s 

–
R

an
ge

 =
 1

.9
%

 to
 3

.2
%

 
–

M
ed

ia
n 

= 
2.

2%
 

–
75

th
 p

er
ce

nt
ile

 =
 2

.3
%

 
•

H
or

iz
on

 s
ur

ve
y 

of
 o

ve
r a

 2
0-

ye
ar

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
–

R
an

ge
 =

 2
.2

%
 to

 2
.8

%
 

–
M

ed
ia

n 
= 

2.
5%

 
•

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 p

ub
lic

 p
en

si
on

 
pl

an
s 

–
R

an
ge

 =
 2

.5
%

 to
 3

.2
5%

 
–

M
ed

ia
n 

= 
3.

0%
  

 

 

M
in

im
um

1.
90

%
2.

20
%

2.
50

%
25

th
 P

er
ce

nt
ile

2.
00

%
2.

30
%

2.
75

%
50

th
 P

er
ce

nt
ile

2.
20

%
2.

50
%

3.
00

%
75

th
 P

er
ce

nt
ile

2.
30

%
2.

60
%

3.
00

%
M

ax
im

um
3.

20
%

2.
80

%
3.

25
%

0.
0%

0.
5%

1.
0%

1.
5%

2.
0%

2.
5%

3.
0%

3.
5%

Ec
on

om
ic

Fo
re

ca
st

er
s

20
19

 Q
1

20
18

 H
or

iz
on

Su
rv

ey
20

18
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

Su
rv

ey

Su
rv

ey
 o

f C
PI

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

M
in

 to
 2

5t
h

25
th

 to
 5

0t
h

50
th

 to
 7

5t
h

75
th

 to
 M

ax



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

•
20

-y
ea

r b
re

ak
ev

en
 in

fla
tio

n 
(Y

ie
ld

 o
n 

Tr
ea

su
ry

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 

m
in

us
 T

IP
S)

 is
 1

.9
%

 
•

Ve
ru

s 
as

su
m

es
 2

.0
%

 o
ve

r 1
0 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
1.

8%
 o

ve
r 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

•
Th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

of
 2

.7
5%

 is
 re

as
on

ab
le

, b
ut

 
fo

rw
ar

d-
lo

ok
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t i
nd

ic
at

or
s 

ar
e 

lo
w

er
 a

nd
 m

os
t 

ec
on

om
ic

 fo
re

ca
st

s 
ar

e 
lo

w
er

 

7 

Pr
ic

e 
In

fla
tio

n 
– 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t A

na
ly

si
s 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

•
7.

0%
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 S
eg

al
’s

 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
•

O
ur

 in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

na
ly

si
s 

al
so

 s
up

po
rts

 7
.0

%
 

•
R

ep
re

se
nt

s 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

el
y 

th
e 

50
th

 p
er

ce
nt

ile
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
tu

rn
 

•
C

ou
ld

 re
du

ce
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
to

 
6.

75
%

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 li

ke
lih

oo
d 

of
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

re
tu

rn
 (5

5%
 

co
nf

id
en

ce
) 

–
If 

so
, r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
in

fla
tio

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
by

 2
5 

ba
si

s 
po

in
ts

, a
s 

w
el

l, 
to

 2
.5

%
 

8 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

et
ur

n 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

Av
er

ag
e 

An
nu

al
 P

as
si

ve
 R

et
ur

ns
Ve

ru
s'

 C
ap

ita
l M

ar
ke

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Ti
m

e 
H

or
iz

on
Pe

rc
en

til
e

10
 Y

ea
rs

30
 Y

ea
rs

95
th

12
.5

2%
10

.1
1%

75
th

9.
27

%
8.

26
%

60
th

7.
89

%
7.

47
%

55
th

7.
47

%
7.

23
%

50
th

7.
06

%
6.

99
%

45
th

6.
66

%
6.

76
%

40
th

6.
25

%
6.

52
%

25
th

4.
91

%
5.

74
%

5t
h

1.
88

%
3.

97
%



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

O
th

er
 E

co
no

m
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
•

C
os

t-o
f-L

iv
in

g 
In

cr
ea

se
s 

– 
Pr

op
os

ed
 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

•
W

ag
e 

In
fla

tio
n 

– 
Pr

op
os

ed
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
is

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
•

M
er

it 
Sa

la
ry

 In
cr

ea
se

s 
– 

Pr
op

os
ed

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
ar

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
•

Ac
tiv

e 
m

em
be

r p
ay

ro
ll 

gr
ow

th
 –

 P
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
is

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

9 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

Te
rm

in
at

io
n 

Le
av

e 
C

as
h 

O
ut

s 
U

nu
se

d 
Si

ck
 L

ea
ve

 

10
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
Ke

y 
St

at
is

tic
s 

•
Fo

r e
ac

h 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
st

ud
ie

d,
 S

eg
al

 ty
pi

ca
lly

 
re

po
rts

: 
–

Ac
tu

al
 ra

te
 o

bs
er

ve
d 

–
C

ur
re

nt
 a

ss
um

ed
 ra

te
 

–
Pr

op
os

ed
 a

ss
um

ed
 ra

te
 

•
O

th
er

 k
ey

 s
ta

tis
tic

s 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 re
po

rte
d 

to
 b

et
te

r e
na

bl
e 

th
e 

re
ad

er
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 
–

Ac
tu

al
 d

ec
re

m
en

ts
 

–
Ac

tu
al

 e
xp

os
ur

es
 

–
Ac

tu
al

-to
-e

xp
ec

te
d 

ra
tio

 (A
/E

 ra
tio

) 

11
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

•
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f a

ct
ua

l 
de

cr
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 
ex

po
su

re
s 

is
 c

rit
ic

al
 in

 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
ho

w
 m

uc
h 

cr
ed

ib
ilit

y 
to

 a
ss

ig
n 

to
 

th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
–

1 
ac

tu
al

 d
ec

re
m

en
t o

ut
 

of
 1

0 
ex

po
su

re
s 

im
pl

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

ra
te

 is
 

so
m

ew
he

re
 b

et
w

ee
n 

0%
 

an
d 

30
%

 
–

10
0 

ac
tu

al
 d

ec
re

m
en

ts
 

ou
t o

f 1
00

0 
ex

po
su

re
s 

im
pl

ie
s 

th
at

 th
e 

ra
te

 is
 

so
m

ew
he

re
 b

et
w

ee
n 

8.
5%

 a
nd

 1
1.

5%
 

12
 

As
se

ss
in

g 
As

su
m

pt
io

ns
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

As
se

ss
in

g 
As

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

•
A/

E 
R

at
io

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ll 

ag
es

 o
r y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

•
Id

ea
l r

at
io

 is
 1

.0
 a

nd
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ch
an

ge
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 m
ov

e 
th

e 
ra

tio
 c

lo
se

r t
o 

1.
0 

•
Se

ga
l p

ro
vi

de
s 

th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

, b
ut

 n
ot

 fo
r t

he
 o

th
er

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

•
Fo

r e
xa

m
pl

e,
 th

e 
A/

E 
R

at
io

 fo
r t

he
 re

tir
em

en
t 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
m

em
be

rs
 

w
ith

 3
0 

or
 m

or
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 im
pr

ov
es

 fr
om

: 
–

1.
12

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n,

 to
 

–
1.

00
 u

nd
er

 S
eg

al
’s

 p
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

n 

13
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

•
Se

ga
l s

ep
ar

at
ed

 re
tir

em
en

t a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

pr
im

ar
y 

tie
rs

 in
to

 tw
o 

se
rv

ic
e 

gr
ou

ps
 

–
Le

ss
 th

an
 3

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

–
30

 o
r m

or
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
•

R
es

ul
ts

 in
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

•
D

at
a 

su
gg

es
ts

 th
re

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

tte
r 

–
Le

ss
 th

an
 2

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

–
20

 to
 2

9 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

–
30

 o
r m

or
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
•

Pa
tte

rn
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 re

la
tiv

el
y 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

ac
ro

ss
 ti

er
s 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
er

e 
is

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 d

at
a 

–
Pa

tte
rn

 is
 a

ls
o 

lik
el

y 
to

 p
er

si
st

 fo
r s

m
al

le
r t

ie
rs

 th
at

 d
o 

no
t 

ha
ve

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
da

ta
 fo

r a
 fu

ll 
an

al
ys

is
 

–
C

on
si

de
r a

pp
ly

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 a
ll 

tie
rs

 

14
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
um

pt
io

n 
– 

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

ua
l-t

o-
Ex

pe
ct

ed
 R

at
io

s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 

En
ha

nc
ed

 
G

en
er

al
 T

ie
r 3

 
En

ha
nc

ed
 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ie
r A

 
En

ha
nc

ed
 

< 
20

 
0.

47
 

0.
55

 
0.

16
 

20
 –

 2
9 

0.
74

 
0.

89
 

0.
77

 
30

 +
 

1.
07

 
1.

12
 

0.
88

 

•
Th

er
e 

ar
e 

th
re

e 
di

st
in

ct
 s

er
vi

ce
 g

ro
up

in
gs

 fo
r 

re
tir

em
en

t r
at

es
 

–
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 le

ss
 th

an
 2

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 lo
w

er
 ra

te
s 

of
 re

tir
em

en
t 

–
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 m

or
e 

th
an

 3
0 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 h
av

e 
hi

gh
er

 
re

tir
em

en
t r

at
es

 
•

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
gr

ou
ps

 
va

rie
s 

by
 a

ge
 a

nd
 ti

er
 

15
 

R
et

ire
m

en
t –

 S
er

vi
ce

 G
ro

up
in

gs
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 

16
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

R
et

ire
m

en
t R

at
es

 

17
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Sa
fe

ty
 T

ie
r A

 E
nh

an
ce

d 
R

et
ire

m
en

t R
at

es
 

18
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
•

Se
ga

l m
ov

ed
 to

 a
 b

en
ef

it-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f m

or
ta

lit
y 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 b

es
t 

pr
ac

tic
e 

•
Al

l o
f t

he
 b

as
e 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 
ar

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 

•
Th

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
sc

al
e 

is
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 a

nd
 a

pp
ly

in
g 

it 
on

 a
 

ge
ne

ra
tio

na
l b

as
is

 is
 a

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 

19
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
In

ci
de

nc
e 

•
Se

ga
l’s

 a
na

ly
si

s 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
3 

ye
ar

s 
of

 d
at

a 
–

O
nl

y 
55

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
re

tir
em

en
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

al
l g

en
er

al
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
tie

rs
 d

ur
in

g 
th

is
 p

er
io

d 
–

D
at

a 
sh

ow
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 lo
w

er
 d

is
ab

ilit
y 

ra
te

s 
fo

r G
en

er
al

 T
ie

rs
 3

 a
nd

 
5 

an
d 

Sa
fe

ty
 th

an
 c

ur
re

nt
 o

r p
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

•
C

on
si

de
r u

si
ng

 6
 o

r m
or

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 d

at
a 

in
st

ea
d 

of
 3

 
–

Pr
io

r s
tu

dy
 d

at
a 

sh
ow

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 h

ig
he

r d
is

ab
ilit

y 
ra

te
s 

th
an

 th
e 

cu
rre

nt
 s

tu
dy

 
–

C
om

bi
ni

ng
 m

or
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 d
at

a 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 b
et

te
r i

nd
ic

at
io

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l 

ra
te

s 
of

 d
is

ab
ilit

y 
un

le
ss

 th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

r 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

–
M

ay
 m

in
im

iz
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
im

in
g 

de
la

ys
 w

ith
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

w
he

re
 a

ct
ua

l d
is

ab
ilit

y 
re

tir
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
tir

em
en

t o
r t

er
m

in
at

io
n 

•
Se

ga
l’s

 p
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
–

As
su

m
pt

io
ns

 fo
r G

en
er

al
 T

ie
rs

 3
 a

nd
 5

 a
re

 re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 

th
e 

la
st

 6
 y

ea
rs

 o
f d

at
a,

 s
o 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

fo
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

st
ud

y 

20
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 21
 

D
is

ab
ilit

y 
In

ci
de

nc
e 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

O
th

er
 D

em
og

ra
ph

ic
 A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 

•
Te

rm
in

at
io

n 
R

at
es

 –
 P

ro
po

se
d 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

•
Le

av
e 

C
as

h 
O

ut
 –

 P
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

ar
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

•
U

nu
se

d 
Si

ck
 L

ea
ve

 –
 P

ro
po

se
d 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

 

22
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

C
on

cl
us

io
ns

 

23
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ke
y 

C
on

cl
us

io
ns

 
A

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 p

ro
po

se
d 

by
 S

eg
al

 a
re

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

 
Po

te
nt

ia
l C

on
si

de
ra

tio
ns

 
•

R
ed

uc
in

g 
pr

ic
e 

in
fla

tio
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
n 

•
Sp

lit
tin

g 
re

tir
em

en
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 in

to
 3

 s
er

vi
ce

 g
ro

up
s 

–
Le

ss
 th

an
 2

0 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

–
20

 to
 2

9 
ye

ar
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 

–
30

 o
r m

or
e 

ye
ar

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 
•

U
si

ng
 a

t l
ea

st
 6

 y
ea

rs
 o

f d
at

a 
fo

r a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 a
ll 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 fo
r d

is
ab

ilit
y 

re
tir

em
en

ts
 

•
Fo

r e
ac

h 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

st
ud

y 
re

po
rt:

 
–

N
um

be
r o

f a
ct

ua
l d

ec
re

m
en

ts
  

–
N

um
be

r o
f e

xp
os

ur
es

  
–

Ac
tu

al
-to

-e
xp

ec
te

d 
ra

tio
s 

24
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 

25
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
•

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

is
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

is
 to

 re
vi

ew
 S

eg
al

’s
 e

co
no

m
ic

 a
nd

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

st
ud

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n 
(C

C
C

ER
A)

.  

•
In

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
ou

r 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n,
 w

e 
re

lie
d 

on
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

(s
om

e 
or

al
 a

nd
 s

om
e 

w
rit

te
n)

 s
up

pl
ie

d 
by

 
C

C
C

ER
A 

an
d 

by
 S

eg
al

. T
hi

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

es
, b

ut
 is

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, t

he
 p

la
n 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
, e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
da

ta
, a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n.

 W
e 

pe
rfo

rm
ed

 a
n 

in
fo

rm
al

 e
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ob
vi

ou
s 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 
th

e 
da

ta
 fo

r r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

an
d 

co
ns

is
te

nc
y 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
d 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

N
o.

 2
3.

  

•
Th

is
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

an
d 

its
 c

on
te

nt
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 g
en

er
al

ly
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
an

d 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 a

ct
ua

ria
l p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l C

on
du

ct
 

an
d 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

Pr
ac

tic
e 

se
t 

ou
t 

by
 t

he
 A

ct
ua

ria
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 B
oa

rd
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 l
aw

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. 
Fu

rth
er

m
or

e,
 a

s 
cr

ed
en

tia
le

d 
ac

tu
ar

ie
s,

 w
e 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
Q

ua
lif

ic
at

io
n 

St
an

da
rd

s 
of

 th
e 

Am
er

ic
an

 A
ca

de
m

y 
of

 A
ct

ua
rie

s 
to

 r
en

de
r 

th
e 

op
in

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
is

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n.
 

Th
is

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

dd
re

ss
 a

ny
 c

on
tra

ct
ua

l o
r 

le
ga

l i
ss

ue
s.

 W
e 

ar
e 

no
t a

tto
rn

ey
s 

an
d 

ou
r 

fir
m

 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ny
 le

ga
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

or
 a

dv
ic

e.
 

•
Th

is
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

w
as

 p
re

pa
re

d 
ex

cl
us

iv
el

y 
fo

r C
C

C
ER

A 
fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 h

er
ei

n.
 O

th
er

 u
se

rs
 

of
 t

hi
s 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

ar
e 

no
t 

in
te

nd
ed

 u
se

rs
 a

s 
de

fin
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

Ac
tu

ar
ia

l 
St

an
da

rd
s 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 a
nd

 
C

he
iro

n 
as

su
m

es
 n

o 
du

ty
 o

r l
ia

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 u

se
r. 

  
W

illi
am

 R
. H

al
lm

ar
k,

 A
SA

, E
A,

 F
C

A,
 M

AA
A 

 
An

ne
. D

. H
ar

pe
r, 

FS
A,

 E
A,

 M
AA

A 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 A
ct

ua
ry

  
 

 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 A
ct

ua
ry

 
 G

ra
ha

m
 A

. S
ch

m
id

t, 
AS

A,
 E

A,
 F

C
A,

 M
AA

A 
 

C
on

su
lti

ng
 A

ct
ua

ry
 

  
26

 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 27
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: R
et

ire
m

en
t –

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 1
 E

nh
an

ce
d 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 28
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: R
et

ire
m

en
t –

 G
en

er
al

 T
ie

r 3
 E

nh
an

ce
d 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 29
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: R
et

ire
m

en
t –

 S
af

et
y 

Ti
er

 A
 E

nh
an

ce
d 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: R
et

ire
m

en
t –

 O
th

er
 

•
O

th
er

 T
ie

rs
 

–
Pr

op
os

ed
 a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 re

as
on

ab
le

 
–

C
on

si
de

r a
pp

ly
in

g 
si

m
ila

r a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 

•
D

ef
er

re
d 

ve
st

ed
 –

 P
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 

ar
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

•
R

ec
ip

ro
ci

ty
 –

 P
ro

po
se

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

re
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

•
Fa

m
ily

 c
om

po
si

tio
n 

– 
Pr

op
os

ed
 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 re
as

on
ab

le
 

30
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 31
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: M
or

ta
lit

y 
– 

G
en

er
al

 R
et

ire
es

 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 32
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: M
or

ta
lit

y 
– 

Sa
fe

ty
 R

et
ire

es
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 33
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: M
or

ta
lit

y 
– 

G
en

er
al

 D
is

ab
le

d 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 34
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: M
or

ta
lit

y 
– 

Sa
fe

ty
 D

is
ab

le
d 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: M
or

ta
lit

y 
– 

C
on

tin
ge

nt
 S

ur
vi

vo
rs

 

•
Se

ga
l p

ro
po

se
d 

us
in

g 
th

e 
Pu

b-
20

10
 C

on
tin

ge
nt

 
Su

rv
iv

or
s 

Ta
bl

e 
fo

r a
ll 

be
ne

fic
ia

rie
s 

•
Ta

bl
e 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

be
ne

fic
ia

ry
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
af

te
r 

th
e 

re
tir

ee
 h

as
 d

ie
d 

an
d 

sh
ow

s 
hi

gh
er

 ra
te

s 
of

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
th

an
 fo

r g
en

er
al

 re
tir

ee
s 

•
SO

A 
de

sc
rib

es
 tw

o 
pr

ac
tic

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
to

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
ry

 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

be
fo

re
 a

nd
 a

fte
r r

et
ire

e 
di

es
 

–
U

se
 g

en
er

al
 re

tir
ee

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
if 

yo
u 

be
lie

ve
 th

e 
hi

gh
er

 c
on

tin
ge

nt
 

su
rv

iv
or

 m
or

ta
lit

y 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 th
e 

gr
ie

vi
ng

 w
id

ow
(e

r) 
ef

fe
ct

 
–

U
se

 c
on

tin
ge

nt
 s

ur
vi

vo
r m

or
ta

lit
y 

if 
yo

u 
be

lie
ve

 th
e 

hi
gh

er
 

m
or

ta
lit

y 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

“d
ue

 to
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f f
ac

to
rs

 c
or

re
la

te
d 

w
ith

 
be

ne
fic

ia
ry

 s
ta

tu
s,

 a
pa

rt 
fro

m
 a

 g
rie

vi
ng

 w
id

ow
(e

r) 
ef

fe
ct

.” 
•

U
se

 o
f t

he
 h

ig
he

r c
on

tin
ge

nt
 s

ur
vi

vo
r m

or
ta

lit
y 

ra
te

s 
m

ak
es

 jo
in

t a
nd

 s
ur

vi
vo

r a
nn

ui
tie

s 
m

ar
gi

na
lly

 le
ss

 
ex

pe
ns

iv
e 

35
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: M
or

ta
lit

y 
– 

O
pt

io
na

l F
or

m
s 

•
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 o

f g
en

er
at

io
na

l t
ab

le
s,

 S
eg

al
 h

as
 

pr
op

os
ed

 u
si

ng
 a

 s
ta

tic
 m

or
ta

lit
y 

ta
bl

e 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

20
 

ye
ar

s 
as

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
fo

r O
pt

io
na

l F
or

m
 F

ac
to

rs
 

–
Ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n 

pe
rio

d 
de

pe
nd

s 
on

 th
e 

ag
es

 o
f t

he
 

m
em

be
r a

nd
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
 

•
W

e 
ha

ve
 g

en
er

al
ly

 ta
ke

n 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
–

Fu
lly

 g
en

er
at

io
na

l t
ab

le
s 

– 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
a 

di
ffe

re
nt

 s
ta

tic
 ta

bl
e 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r o
f b

irt
h 

–
C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
fa

ct
or

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

ge
 a

tta
in

ed
 in

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 y

ea
r 

•
Ex

am
pl

e 
–

C
on

ve
rs

io
n 

fa
ct

or
s 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r 2
01

9 
– 

20
21

 
–

M
or

ta
lit

y 
ta

bl
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
at

ta
in

ed
 a

ge
 in

 2
02

0 
– 

th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l y

ea
r 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 
–

M
or

ta
lit

y 
fo

r f
ac

to
r a

t m
em

be
r’s

 a
ge

 6
0 

is
 th

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

ta
bl

e 
fo

r a
 

m
em

be
r w

ho
 a

tta
in

s 
ag

e 
60

 in
 2

02
0 

(b
or

n 
in

 1
96

0)
 

–
M

or
ta

lit
y 

fo
r f

ac
to

r a
t b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
’s

 a
ge

 5
5 

is
 th

e 
m

or
ta

lit
y 

ta
bl

e 
fo

r a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

ry
 w

ho
 a

tta
in

s 
ag

e 
55

 in
 2

02
0 

(b
or

n 
in

 1
96

5)
 

36
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 37
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
R

at
es

 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 38
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: D
is

ab
ilit

y 
R

et
ire

m
en

t R
at

es
 



M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9 39
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix

: D
is

ab
ilit

y 
R

et
ire

m
en

t R
at

es
 

 



1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969    www.cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 
Date: May 22, 2019  

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:     Consider and take possible action to adopt the actuarial assumptions to be utilized in
the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation report. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
At the May 1, 2019 Board meeting, Segal Consulting presented an actuarial experience study 
which encompassed a review of demographic and economic actuarial assumptions, utilizing 
census data from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. This study provided the proposed 
actuarial assumptions to be used in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation.  The last 
experience study covered the time period of January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014. At the May 
1, 2019 meeting, there was a request for additional information which is being presented today. 

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to adopt the actuarial assumptions to be utilized in the 
December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation report. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#7



1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969    www.cccera.org 

MEMORANDUM 
Date: May 22, 2019  

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject:     Consider and take possible action to adopt the Declining Employer Payroll Actuarial 
Funding Policy; Consider and take possible action to amend the Actuarial Funding 
Policy. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

The Declining Employer Payroll Actuarial Funding Policy provides procedures and guidelines 
for CCCERA to follow if a participating employer in CCCERA whose CCCERA-covered 
payroll is declining, or is expected to decline, materially over time. CCCERA is not currently 
aware of any such employer at this time. In light of establishing this policy, it is prudent to 
slightly amend the current Actuarial Funding Policy.  

Recommendation 
Consider and take possible action to: 

1. Adopt the Declining Employer Payroll Actuarial Funding Policy; and
2. Amend the Actuarial Funding Policy.

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#8 & #9



C
op

yr
ig

ht
 ©

 2
01

9 
by

 T
he

 S
eg

al
 G

ro
up

, I
nc

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

D
ec

lin
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 P

ay
ro

ll 
A

ct
ua

ria
l F

un
di

ng
 P

ol
ic

y

M
ay

 2
2,

 2
01

9

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’

 
R

et
ire

m
en

t A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n

P
au

l A
ng

el
o,

 F
S

A

Jo
hn

 M
on

ro
e,

 A
S

A

S
eg

al
 C

on
su

lti
ng

S
an

 F
ra

nc
is

co

55
81

52
0v

2

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#8



2

•
E

m
pl

oy
er

 s
to

ps
 c

on
tra

ct
in

g 
w

ith
 C

C
C

E
R

A
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 fu
tu

re
 b

en
ef

it
ac

cr
ua

ls
 fo

r c
ur

re
nt

 a
nd

 n
ew

em
pl

oy
ee

s
–

C
C

C
E

R
A

 re
ta

in
s 

lia
bi

lit
y 

fo
r p

as
t s

er
vi

ce
 o

nl
y 

–
ac

tiv
e 

an
d 

in
ac

tiv
e

•
Tw

o 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 fo

r c
al

cu
la

tin
g 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

lia
bi

lit
y

–
U

se
 o

ng
oi

ng
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

»
Em

pl
oy

er
 p

ay
s 

of
f a

ny
 u

nf
un

de
d 

lia
bi

lit
y 

in
 in

st
al

lm
en

ts
 (1

5 
ye

ar
s)

»
Em

pl
oy

er
 r e

m
ai

ns
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

l e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

»
In

st
al

lm
en

ts
 a

re
 re

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 e

ve
ry

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s,

 a
fte

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

st
ud

y
–

U
se

 m
ar

ke
t b

as
ed

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

»
Li

ab
ilit

y 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 m
ar

ke
t b

as
ed

 “r
is

k 
fre

e”
 e

ar
ni

ng
s 

as
su

m
pt

io
n

»
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 g

re
at

er
 li

ab
ilit

y 
th

an
 u

nd
er

 o
ng

oi
ng

 v
al

ua
tio

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
»

C
al

cu
la

te
d 

on
e-

t im
e 

at
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
on

ly
, n

o 
re

as
se

ss
m

en
t

»
Em

pl
oy

er
 p

ay
s 

as
 a

 lu
m

p 
su

m
 o

r i
n 

in
st

al
lm

en
ts

 (u
p 

to
 1

5 
ye

ar
s)

C
ur

re
nt

 C
C

C
ER

A
Po

lic
y 

fo
r T

er
m

in
at

in
g

Em
pl

oy
er

s



3


D

iff
er

en
t s

itu
at

io
n 

ca
llin

g 
fo

r n
ew

 p
ol

ic
y

•
O

ng
oi

ng
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 s
to

ps
 c

on
tra

ct
in

g 
w

ith
 C

C
C

E
R

A
fo

r n
ew

em
pl

oy
ee

s
•

C
ur

re
nt

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 a

cc
ru

e 
fu

tu
re

 s
er

vi
ce


O

th
er

 p
ot

en
tia

l e
xa

m
pl

es
 c

ou
ld

 in
cl

ud
e:

•
D

is
tri

ct
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 to

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 C
C

C
E

R
A

fo
r c

ur
re

nt
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

bu
t n

ot
 h

iri
ng

 n
ew

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s

•
D

is
tri

ct
s 

w
ith

 p
ay

ro
ll 

de
cl

in
in

g 
fo

r o
th

er
 re

as
on

s


Po

lic
y 

is
su

e:
 H

ow
 to

 a
llo

ca
te

 U
nf

un
de

d 
Ac

tu
ar

ia
l A

cc
ru

ed
Li

ab
ilit

y 
(U

AA
L)

 a
nd

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 fu
nd

 U
AA

L?
•

Is
su

e 
ar

is
es

 b
ec

au
se

 U
A

A
L 

pa
ym

en
ts

 a
re

 u
su

al
ly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
pa

yr
ol

l


C

C
C

ER
A

is
 n

ot
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 a
ny

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 d

ec
lin

in
g 

em
pl

oy
er

s
•

P
ol

ic
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
re

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e

D
ec

lin
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 P

ay
ro

ll 



4


Fo

r o
ng

oi
ng

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s,

 U
AA

L
pa

ym
en

ts
 in

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n
sp

re
ad

 o
ve

r f
ut

ur
e 

pa
yr

ol
l, 

as
su

m
in

g 
co

ns
ta

nt
 a

ct
iv

e 
co

un
t

•
To

ta
l p

ay
ro

ll 
as

su
m

ed
 to

 g
ro

w
 a

t 3
.2

5%
 (p

ro
po

se
d 

as
su

m
pt

io
n)

–
U

A
A

L
pa

y m
en

ts
 a

ls
o 

st
ru

ct
ur

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 a
t 3

.2
5%

•
In

 e
ffe

ct
, U

A
A

L
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

in
 p

ro
po

rti
on

 to
 “o

pe
n”

 p
ay

ro
ll

–
In

cl
ud

in
g 

pa
y 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
ac

tiv
es

 a
ss

um
ed

 to
 re

pl
ac

e 
cu

rr
en

t a
ct

iv
es


Fo

r e
m

pl
oy

er
 w

ith
 d

ec
lin

in
g 

ac
tiv

e 
he

ad
co

un
t, 

pa
yr

ol
l u

se
d 

to
as

se
ss

 U
AA

L
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 re

du
ce

s 
ov

er
 ti

m
e

•
N

o 
lo

ng
er

 m
ee

ts
 3

.2
5%

 p
ay

ro
ll 

gr
ow

th
 a

ss
um

pt
io

n 
us

ed
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 le
ve

l
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f U

AA
L

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

 fo
r C

C
C

ER
A

as
 a

 w
ho

le
•

Em
pl

oy
er

’s
 U

AA
L 

pa
ym

en
ts

 d
ec

lin
e 

w
ith

 p
ay

ro
ll

–
Ev

en
tu

al
ly

 e
m

pl
oy

er
 w

ill 
ha

ve
 n

o 
ac

tiv
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
r p

ay
ro

ll,
 a

nd
 s

o 
w

ill
m

ak
e 

no
 U

AA
L 

pa
ym

en
ts


N

ew
 p

ol
ic

y 
m

ea
nt

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

es
e 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
w

ill 
co

nt
in

ue
to

 p
ay

 th
ei

r f
ai

r s
ha

re
 o

f t
he

 U
AA

L

D
ec

lin
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 P

ay
ro

ll 



5


Pr

op
os

ed
 C

C
C

ER
A

de
cl

in
in

g 
em

pl
oy

er
 p

ay
ro

ll 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l 

fu
nd

in
g 

po
lic

y 
in

cl
ud

es
:

•
H

ow
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

su
ch

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

(“
tri

gg
er

in
g 

ev
en

t”)
–

E
m

pl
oy

er
 s

to
ps

 c
on

tra
ct

in
g 

w
ith

 C
C

C
E

R
A

fo
r n

ew
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s,
 o

r
–

P
ay

ro
ll 

de
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

nd
 n

ot
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 re

co
ve

r
•

H
ow

 to
 re

-a
llo

ca
te

 U
A

A
L 

an
d 

ca
lc

ul
at

e 
U

A
A

L 
pa

ym
en

ts
 a

fte
r 

tri
gg

er
in

g 
ev

en
t

–
U

si
ng

 s
om

e 
ba

si
s 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
pa

yr
ol

l


O

th
er

 1
93

7 
Ac

t C
ou

nt
y 

re
tir

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s 
ha

ve
 a

do
pt

ed
 

de
cl

in
in

g 
em

pl
oy

er
 p

ay
ro

ll 
po

lic
ie

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e 
si

tu
at

io
ns

•
O

ra
ng

e,
 K

er
n 

an
d 

A
la

m
ed

a

D
ec

lin
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 P

ay
ro

ll 



6

D
ec

lin
in

g 
Em

pl
oy

er
 P

ay
ro

ll 
 –

Tr
ig

ge
rin

g 
Ev

en
ts


W

ha
t “

tri
gg

er
in

g 
ev

en
ts

” s
ho

ul
d 

C
C

C
ER

A
co

ns
id

er
 a

s
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
 D

ec
lin

in
g 

Em
pl

oy
er

 P
ay

ro
ll 

si
tu

at
io

n?
•

E
m

pl
oy

er
 c

ea
se

s 
to

 e
nr

ol
l n

ew
 h

ire
s 

in
 C

C
C

E
R

A
•

E
m

pl
oy

er
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 a

 m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
lo

ng
-la

st
in

g
r e

du
ct

io
n 

in
 C

C
C

E
R

A
-c

ov
er

ed
 p

ay
ro

ll
–

M
ay

 b
e 

su
dd

en
 o

r m
or

e 
gr

ad
ua

l (
ov

er
 a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 y

ea
rs

)
–

N
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

m
or

e 
su

bj
ec

tiv
e 

th
an

 c
ea

si
ng

 to
 e

nr
ol

l f
ut

ur
e 

hi
re

s


C

C
C

ER
A

w
or

ks
 w

ith
 a

ct
ua

ry
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
la

te
d 

to
em

pl
oy

er
 (a

ct
iv

e 
m

em
be

r a
nd

 p
ay

ro
ll 

hi
st

or
y)

•
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 B
oa

rd
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if 
tri

gg
er

in
g 

ev
en

t h
as

 o
cc

ur
re

d


If 

a 
tri

gg
er

in
g 

ev
en

t o
cc

ur
s 

th
en

 g
en

er
al

ly
:

•
G

o 
ba

ck
 to

 la
st

 a
ct

ua
ria

l v
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
•

A
llo

ca
te

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
to

 e
m

pl
oy

er
•

S
eg

re
ga

te
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

in
to

 a
 n

ew
 c

os
t g

ro
up



7


O

nc
e 

tri
gg

er
in

g 
ev

en
t o

cc
ur

s,
 tw

o 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t p
ol

ic
y 

de
ci

si
on

s:
•

H
ow

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 U

A
A

L
–

B
y 

pa
yr

ol
l (

cu
rr

en
t) 

or
 b

y 
A

ct
ua

ria
l A

cc
ru

ed
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

(A
A

L)
–

P
ol

ic
y 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

is
 to

 a
llo

ca
te

 U
A

A
L

ba
se

d 
on

 A
A

L
»

In
 e

ffe
ct

, a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
to

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
er

 s
o 

th
at

 a
ll 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
in

 
th

e 
co

st
 g

ro
up

 h
av

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

fu
nd

ed
 ra

tio
•

H
ow

 to
 s

tru
ct

ur
e 

U
A

A
L 

pa
ym

en
ts

–
A

s 
pe

rc
en

t o
f a

ct
ua

l p
ay

ro
ll 

th
at

 is
 a

ss
um

ed
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 (c
ur

re
nt

)
–

A
s 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 b
ut

 fi
xe

d 
do

lla
r a

m
ou

nt
s

–
A

s 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 le
ve

lf
ix

ed
 d

ol
la

r a
m

ou
nt

s
»

R
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n 

–
le

ve
l f

ix
ed

 d
ol

la
r p

ay
m

en
ts

 o
ve

r 1
8 

ye
ar

 la
ye

rs
»

U
AA

L 
pa

ym
en

t a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

t o
f p

ay
ro

ll
w

ill 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

ve
r t

im
e 

as
 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 p

ay
ro

ll 
de

cr
ea

se
s

C
C

C
ER

A
D

ec
lin

in
g 

Em
pl

oy
er

 P
ay

ro
ll 

Po
lic

y



8


To

ta
l e

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

st
ill 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 in

 e
ac

h
ac

tu
ar

ia
l v

al
ua

tio
n

•
E

m
pl

oy
er

 m
us

t b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 a

s 
a 

fin
an

ci
al

ly
 v

ia
bl

e 
en

tit
y


Em

pl
oy

er
 w

ill 
st

ill 
ha

ve
 n

ew
 U

AA
L 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n 

la
ye

rs
•

D
ue

 to
 g

ai
ns

 / 
lo

ss
es

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
n 

ch
an

ge
s

•
B

as
ed

 o
nl

y 
on

 th
is

 e
m

pl
oy

er
’s

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
e

•
N

ew
 U

A
A

L 
la

ye
rs

 a
re

 a
m

or
tiz

ed
 a

s 
le

ve
l f

ix
ed

 d
ol

la
r p

ay
m

en
ts

in
st

ea
d 

of
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
er

ce
nt

-o
f-p

ay
ro

ll 
pa

ym
en

ts

C
C

C
ER

A
D

ec
lin

in
g 

Em
pl

oy
er

 P
ay

ro
ll 

Po
lic

y



CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
BOARD OF RETIREMENT  

DECLINING EMPLOYER PAYROLL ACTUARIAL FUNDING POLICY 

I. PURPOSE 

A participating employer in the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 
(CCCERA) may experience an actual or expected material decline in the payroll attributable to its 
CCCERA’s active members (CCCERA-covered payroll).  The Declining Employer Payroll 
Actuarial Funding Policy is intended to establish guidelines by which CCCERA intends to assure 
that such employer will continue to satisfy its obligation to timely pay all unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) attributable to the employer’s active, retired and deferred employees and 
their beneficiaries by reason of their prior and future service as CCCERA’s members.  

II. BACKGROUND

Under CCCERA’s practice in place prior to the adoption of this Policy, CCCERA generally 
determined employers’ contribution obligations for UAAL by applying a contribution rate 
determined by CCCERA’s actuary to the employer’s CCCERA-covered payroll (the percentage-
of-payroll methodology).  For employers whose payrolls are generally consistent with CCCERA’s 
actuarial assumptions regarding payroll growth, the percentage-of-payroll methodology continues 
to be appropriate.   

However, for employers whose CCCERA-covered payroll is declining, or is expected to decline, 
materially over time, the Board of Retirement has determined that the percentage-of-payroll 
methodology is not the appropriate means of collecting employer contributions owed to CCCERA.  
The objectives of this Declining Employer Payroll Policy are to (i) ensure equitable and adequate 
funding of UAAL in cases involving employers with declining payrolls, (ii) approve procedures 
for identifying employers who should be subject to this Policy, and (iii) approve a different 
methodology for determining any UAAL attributable to such employers and setting the amount 
and schedule of the contributions needed to fund such UAAL.   

This policy does not change the methodology regarding how contributions for “normal cost” are 
determined for participating employers.  

Generally, the objectives of this Policy also are to ensure compliance with County Employees 
Retirement Law of 1937 (California Government Code sections 31450 et seq., as amended) the 
Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (Gov’t. Code sections 7522-7522.74) and other 
applicable provisions of law.  Pursuant to Gov’t. Code sections 7522.52, 31453, 31453.5, 31581, 
31582, 31584, 31585, 31586, 31611 and other applicable provisions of law, a participating 
employer remains liable, and must make the required appropriations and transfers, to CCCERA 
for the participating employer’s share of liabilities attributable to its officers and employees who 
are and may be entitled to receive retirement, disability and related benefits from CCCERA. 

It is the Board of Retirement’s intent to allow an employer covered by this Policy to satisfy its 
funding obligation in a manner which provides the employer reasonable flexibility; however, 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#8



2 

primary consideration will be given to ensuring the adequacy of the assets attributable to the 
employer to satisfy the employer’s funding obligations.  This will generally require 
redetermination of the funding obligations of the employer for several years. 

III. PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES

Absent any exigent circumstances and unless expressly approved by the Board of Retirement at a 
duly-noticed public meeting, the procedures and guidelines for implementing this Policy are set 
forth below.  

A.     Commencement of Coverage – Triggering Events 

This Policy covers only those employers for whom the Board determines, based on a 
recommendation from CCCERA’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO), that a triggering event as 
described in this section III.A. has occurred and who are not excluded from coverage under this 
Policy as described in section III.B. below.  The fact that a triggering event may have occurred in 
the past does not prevent CCCERA from applying this policy to that employer.  The Board hereby 
directs the CEO to work with CCCERA’s actuary to obtain the information (e.g., CCCERA-
covered payroll history) needed for the Board to make determinations regarding triggering events. 
The CEO is further directed to report to the Board, at least annually, regarding these activities.   

As provided in Section IV.3. of the Board’s Regulations: 

Whenever the employer’s reportable payroll drops to a level which is lower than 
70% of its payroll during the same period in the preceding year, the Board may 
investigate the cause.  Whenever the employer’s reportable payroll drops to a level 
which is lower than 50% of its payroll during the same period in the preceding year, 
the Board shall investigate the cause.  If the Board determines that the cause is other 
than temporary it shall determine the amount of contributions due from the 
employer to continue paying its share of any unfunded liability [emphasis added].  
This amount shall then be due from the employer in addition to any contributions 
made on the reduced payroll. 

One of the purposes of this policy is to provide a basis for applying this provision of the 
Board’s Regulations. 

(i) Triggering event resulting from ceasing to enroll new hires.  This provision applies in the 
event that a CCCERA participating employer ceases to enroll new hires with CCCERA 
but, for a period of time, continues to have at least some previously-enrolled employees 
maintaining their status as active CCCERA members.  The employer’s CCCERA-covered 
payroll will eventually diminish to zero as their active employees retire or otherwise 
terminate employment.  Examples of employers in this category may include an employer 
that is acquired by another entity that is not a CCCERA participating employer, or a 
CCCERA employer that is taken over by a state agency whose employees are covered by 
another pension system such as CalPERS.  There may be other examples as well.   

(ii) Triggering event resulting from a material and expected long-lasting reduction in 
CCCERA-covered payroll.  This provision applies in the event that a CCCERA 



3 

participating employer experiences a material reduction in their CCCERA-covered payroll, 
but nevertheless continue to enroll their new hires with CCCERA.  The reduction may be 
sudden (e.g., due to a discrete event such as a partial loss of funding, or partial outsourcing), 
or it may be more gradual, over a period of years, and may not be tied to a discreet event. 
Generally, the Board would determine that this type of triggering event has occurred only 
if the Board expects that the reduction in employers’ CCCERA-covered payroll is expected 
to be permanent, long-lasting or for an indefinite period of time that is greater than a cycle 
that the employer may typically experience, or a cycle similarly experienced by the other 
employers, if any, in the same CCCERA cost group.  

Generally, a situation described in the Board’s Regulations above would likely constitute 
a triggering event under this subsection.  However, this subsection also applies to 
reductions in CCCERA-covered payroll that occur more gradually over time. 

B.     Exclusions from Coverage; Terminations of Coverage 

This policy does not cover any other situation, including, without limitation, an employer going 
out of business by reason of dissolution, loss of funding, consolidation or merger (unless there is 
a surviving financially-viable entity that is acceptable to the Board that will make the ongoing 
payments under the Policy).  This Policy also does not cover a “withdrawing employer” who ceases 
to provide CCCERA membership for all of the employer’s active CCCERA members (i.e., as of 
a date certain, withdraws both new hires and existing actives from membership with CCCERA).  
Such withdrawing employer is covered under a separate policy, the CCCERA Employer 
Termination Policy. 

The Board of Retirement also recognizes that participating employers covered by this Policy will 
have UAAL funding obligations for several years.  Therefore, if concerns arise during that period 
of time regarding the employer’s ongoing existence as a financially-viable entity, the Board may 
remove the employer from coverage under this Policy and/or take any other measures that may be 
available and necessary to ensure the actuarial soundness of CCCERA including, without 
limitation, assessing the projected entire amount of the employer’s UAAL (as recommended by 
the fund’s actuary and approved by the Board) using a lower discount rate and payable in a single 
sum immediately due.   

C.     Procedures 

The CEO or the CEO’s designee will work with CCCERA’s actuary and CCCERA’s participating 
employers to obtain the information (e.g., CCCERA-covered payroll history, financial reports) 
needed for the Board to make determinations regarding triggering events and exclusions from, or 
terminations of, coverage and report to the Board, at least annually, regarding these activities.  

Upon a recommendation from the CEO and notice to the affected participating employer, the 
Board will make a determination at a duly-noticed public meeting regarding (i) whether a 
triggering event has occurred for the employer, (ii) whether the employer should be excluded from 
coverage under this Policy, and (iii) for those employers that the Board has previously determined 
to be covered under the Policy, whether their coverage should be terminated under section III.B. 



4 

above.  Employers may be required to provide CCCERA with updated employee census and 
payroll data and financial reports.  See Gov’t Code section 31543. 

If the Board determines that a triggering event has occurred and the employer is not excluded from 
coverage under the Policy, then, solely for purposes of determining the covered employer’s UAAL 
contribution obligation, CCCERA will segregate on its books all assets and liabilities attributable 
to the employer (to the extent not already segregated under de-pooling), based upon the 
recommendation of CCCERA’s actuary, and shall maintain such separate accounting for the 
employer until all of the participating employer’s obligations to CCCERA have been fully 
satisfied.  The employer will be placed in its own cost group for purposes of determining employer 
and employee contributions. Consistent with section 2 above, the employer’s Normal Cost will 
continue to be based on the active members of the covered employer. 

CCCERA’s actuary will determine, and certify to the Board of Retirement, the covered employer’s 
funding obligation for its initial UAAL, which obligation shall be pro-rata based not on payroll, 
but rather based on the employer’s actuarial accrued liability (AAL) including inactives and 
deferred members.  The Board will generally require the employer’s contributions to be paid in 
level, fixed-dollar amounts over a period not to exceed eighteen (18) years, beginning on July 1 of 
the calendar year immediately after the year in which the triggering event occurs.  In appropriate 
circumstances, the Board may determine, consistent with its fiduciaries duties, it is appropriate to 
collect the necessary contributions in a different manner. 

The actuary will use the actuarial valuation performed for CCCERA as of the end of the calendar 
year immediately prior to the calendar year in which the triggering event occurs (and based on all 
of CCCERA’s then current actuarial assumptions and methodologies) to determine the initial AAL 
of the covered employer. The initial valuation value of assets (VVA), a smoothed value, will be 
determined using a pro-rata allocation based on the ratio of the employer’s initial AAL to the AAL 
of all employers in the same cost group.  As a result of this methodology, the initial UAAL (i.e., 
the initial AAL minus the initial VVA) will also be allocated pro-rata based on the covered 
employer’s AAL in proportion to that of the other employers in the same cost group.  Later values 
of the VVA (i.e., those used in the future valuations described below) shall be determined by 
rolling forward the initial VVA, adding contributions, deducting benefit payments, and crediting 
earnings at the actual smoothed (VVA) earnings rate on total CCCERA assets. 

Annually, after the determination of the covered employer’s initial funding obligation, as part of 
the regular annual actuarial valuation of the plan, CCCERA’s actuary will measure any change in 
the UAAL of the participating employer due to the actuarial experience or changes in actuarial 
assumptions.  In addition to the amortized payments for the covered employer’s initial UAAL 
funding obligation determined as of the initial valuation, the employer will be liable for, and must 
contribute to CCCERA, any such new UAAL determined as of subsequent valuations, based upon 
an amortization schedule recommended by the actuary and adopted by the Board of Retirement. 
CCCERA will hold any negative UAAL (Surplus) to be applied against any future UAAL of the 
covered employer. 

If any Surplus remains after the covered employer has satisfied all of its UAAL obligations (Final 
Surplus), CCCERA will distribute the Final Surplus in accordance with the terms of applicable 
law.   



5 

IV. POLICY REVIEW

The Board of Retirement will review this Policy at least every three (3) years to ensure that it 
remains relevant and appropriate.  

V. HISTORY 

Adopted: [date] 

Amended: [date] 



1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ACTUARIAL FUNDING POLICY 

INTRODUCTION: 

The purpose of this Actuarial Funding Policy is to record the funding objectives and policies set 
by the Board of Retirement (Board) for the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 
Association (CCCERA). The Board establishes this Actuarial Funding Policy to help ensure the 
systematic funding of future benefit payments for members of CCCERA. In addition, this 
document records certain guidelines established by the Board to assist in administering 
CCCERA in a consistent and efficient manner.  

This Actuarial Funding Policy supersedes any previous Actuarial Funding Policies. It is a 
working document and may be modified as the Board deems necessary. 

GOALS OF ACTUARIAL FUNDING POLICY: 

1. To determine future contributions that, together with current plan assets, are expected to
be sufficient to provide for all benefits provided by CCCERA;

2. To seek reasonable and equitable allocation of the cost of benefits over time including the
goal that annual contributions should, to the extent reasonably possible, maintain a close
relationship to both the expected cost of each year of service and to variations around that
expected cost;

3. To manage and control future contribution volatility to the extent reasonably possible,
consistent with other policy goals; and,

4. To support the general public policy goals of accountability and transparency by being
clear as to both intent and effect, allowing for an assessment of whether, how and when
the plan sponsors will meet the funding requirements of the plan.

FUNDING REQUIREMENT AND POLICY COMPONENTS: 

CCCERA’s annual funding requirement is comprised of a payment of the Normal Cost and a 
payment on the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). The Normal Cost and the 
amount of payment on UAAL are determined by the following three components of this funding 
policy: 

I. Actuarial Cost Method:  Allocates the total present value of future benefits to each year 
(Normal Cost), including all past years (Actuarial Accrued Liability or AAL); 

II. Asset Smoothing Method:  Spreads the recognition of investment gains or losses over a
period of time for the purposes of determining the Actuarial Value of Assets used in the
actuarial valuation process. This reduces the effect of short-term market volatility while
still tracking the overall movement of the market value of plan assets; and,

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#9



2 

III. Amortization Policy:  Determines the length of time and the structure of the increase or
decrease in contributions required to systemically (1) fund any Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability or UAAL, or (2) recognize any surplus, i.e., any assets in excess of the
AAL.

I. Actuarial Cost Method: 

The Entry Age method shall be applied to the projected benefits in determining the Normal Cost 
and the AAL. The Normal Cost shall be determined as a level percent of payroll on an individual 
basis for each active member. 

II. Asset Smoothing Method:

The investment gains or losses of each valuation period, as a result of comparing the actual 
market return to the expected market return, shall be recognized in level amounts over 5 years in 
calculating the Actuarial Value of Assets. 

This policy anticipates that future circumstances may warrant adjustments to change the pattern 
of the recognition of the net deferred investment gains or losses after a period of significant 
market change followed by a period of market correction, upon receiving an analysis from 
CCCERA’s actuary. Such adjustments would be appropriate when the net deferred investment 
gains or losses are relatively small (i.e., the actuarial and market values are very close together), 
but the recognition of that net deferred amount is markedly non-level. Any such adjustment 
would be made subject to the following conditions: 

 The net deferred investment gains or losses are unchanged as of the date of the
adjustment; and,

 The period over which the net deferred investment gains and losses are fully recognized
is unchanged as of the date of the adjustment.

III. Amortization Policy:

 The UAAL (i.e., the difference between the AAL and the Valuation Value of Assets) as
of December 31, 2012 shall continue to be amortized over separate amortization layers
based on the valuations during which each separate layer was previously established.

 Any new UAAL as a result of actuarial gains or losses identified in the annual valuation
as of December 31 will be amortized over a period of 18 years.

 Any new UAAL as a result of change in actuarial assumptions or methods will be
amortized over a period of 18 years.



 
 

3 
 

 Unless the Board adopts an alternative amortization period after receiving an actuarial 
analysis1: 

a. with the exception noted in b., below, the increase in UAAL as a result of any plan 
amendments will be amortized over a period of 10 years; 

b. the entire increase in UAAL resulting from a temporary retirement incentive will be 
funded in full upon adoption of the incentive. If the increase in UAAL is due to the 
impact of benefits resulting from additional service permitted in Section 31641.04 of 
the 1937 CERL (Golden Handshake), the entire increase in UAAL will be funded in 
full upon adoption of the Golden Handshake. 

 UAAL shall be amortized over “closed” amortization periods so that the amortization 
period for each layer decreases by one year with each actuarial valuation. 

 UAAL shall be amortized as a level percentage of payroll so that the amortization amount 
in each year during the amortization period shall be expected to be a level percentage of 
covered payroll, taking into consideration the current assumption for general payroll 
increase. 

 If an overfunding or “surplus” exists (i.e., the Valuation Value of Assets exceeds the 
AAL, so that the total of all UAAL amortization layers become negative), any prior 
UAAL amortization layers will be considered fully amortized, and any subsequent 
UAAL will be amortized as the first of a new series of amortization layers, using the 
above amortization periods.  

If the surplus exceeds 20% of the AAL per Section 7522.52 of the Government Code, 
then the amount of such surplus in excess of 20% of the AAL (and any subsequent 
surpluses in excess of that amount) will be amortized over an “open” amortization period 
of 30 years, but only if the other conditions of Section 7522.52 have also been met. If 
those conditions are not met, then the surplus will not be amortized and the full Normal 
Cost will be contributed. 

 These amortization policy components will generally apply separately to each of 
CCCERA’s UAAL cost groups with the exception that the conditions of Section 7522.52 
apply to the total plan. 

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 

Adjustment for 18-Month Delay in Rate Implementation 
 

                                                           
1 In particular, the Board may want to incorporate into the amortization period demographic 

matching specific to the plan amendment. This could entail using the remaining active future 
service for plan changes that affect actives. For plan changes that affect retirees, this could 
entail using the remaining life expectancy for retirees or the period over which the increased 
cash flow to retirees is expected to be paid. 



4 

In order to allow employers to more accurately budget for pension contributions and other 
practical considerations, the contribution rates determined in each valuation (as of December 31) 
will apply to the 12-month period beginning 18 months after the valuation date. Any shortfall or 
excess contributions as a result of the implementation lag will be amortized as part of 
CCCERA’s UAAL in the following valuation. 

Implementation of Contribution Rate Change Due to Plan Amendment 

Any change in contribution rate requirement that results from a plan amendment is generally 
implemented on the effective date of the plan amendment or as soon as administratively feasible. 

Cost Sharing Arrangements 

Starting with the December 31, 2009 Actuarial Valuation, the Board took action to depool 
CCCERA’s assets, liabilities and Normal Cost by employer when determining employer 
contribution rates. The Board action included a review of experience back to December 31, 
2002. This did not involve recalculation of any employer rates prior to December 31, 2009. 
However, it did involve establishing the depooled assets so as to reflect the separate experience 
of the employers in each individual cost group from December 31, 2002 through December 31, 
2009. In addition, the Board took action to discontinue certain cost sharing adjustments for both 
member and employer contribution rates for General Tier 1 and Safety Tier A. 

Even under the depooling structure, there are a few remaining cost sharing arrangements. Here is 
a summary of the ongoing cost sharing arrangements: 

 Smaller employers (less than 50 active members) were pooled with the applicable County
tier. Safety members from the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District were pooled with
Safety members of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District.

 Due to a statutory requirement, the Superior Court is pooled with the County regardless of
how many members the Court has.

 UAAL costs are pooled between Cost Group 1 and Cost Group 2 which represent General
County and Small Districts for Tiers 1 and 3. UAAL costs are also pooled for Cost Groups
7 and 9 which are Safety County Tiers A and C.

This was done because Cost Group 1 and Cost Group 7 had active members but were
generally closed to new members. If the UAAL for these two cost groups is not pooled
with another cost group that is open to new active members then the UAAL rate for these
generally closed cost groups would increase substantially in future years. This is due to the
fact that the UAAL for CCCERA is amortized as a level percent of payroll and the payroll
growth for the generally closed cost group would be less than the payroll growth
assumption. This will help stabilize the employer contribution rates for the mostly closed
Cost Group 1 and Cost Group 7. Normal Cost rates for those cost groups are not pooled.

There are some substantial differences between the Safety Tier A Enhanced and Safety Tier
C Enhanced benefits, such as the period over which final average salaries are determined



5 

and the COLA. However, since the County is the only employer in these two cost groups, 
they will be the only employer affected by this particular pooling. 

Employer/Member Cost Sharing 

The Cost Impact of Leave Cashouts 

CCCERA’s Basic and COLA member rates for members with membership dates before 
January 1, 2013 are increased to anticipate leave cashouts in the final year of employment 
using the same leave cashout assumptions adopted by the Board for the actuarial valuation 
for projecting benefit payments.  

The Cost Impact of Service from Unused Sick Leave Conversion 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 31641.01, for members with membership dates 
before January 1, 2013, the cost of this benefit will be charged only to employers and will 
not affect member contribution rates. 

Employer/Member cost sharing arrangements are subject to modification under Government 
Code Section 31631.5, and any such modifications would be incorporated into the determination 
of the employer and member contribution rates. 

Additional Employer UAAL Payments 

Absent any specific action by the Board, any additional employer payments towards the UAAL 
(including those from Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) will be accepted by CCCERA in 
exchange for a corresponding reduction in the employer’s UAAL contribution rate over period(s) 
and in a manner consistent with that employer’s outstanding UAAL amortization layers and 
payments. 

The outstanding balance of the additional UAAL payment is tracked separately in a manner 
consistent with the procedure used to track the UAAL amortization layers. It will be credited 
with earnings at CCCERA’s investment return assumption in effect at each valuation date and 
reduced by the dollar amount of the annual reduction in the employer’s UAAL contributions due 
to the prepayment. 

Unless otherwise directed by the Board, the dollar amount of the annual reduction in the 
employer’s UAAL contributions due to the additional UAAL payment will be based on 
amortizing (as a level percentage of payroll) the outstanding balance of the additional UAAL 
payment amount over the same period as used for actuarial gains and losses, using CCCERA’s 
investment return and payroll growth assumptions in effect at each valuation date. 

The reduction in the UAAL contribution rate will then equal the dollar amount of reduction in 
the employer’s UAAL contributions divided by the employer’s expected payroll for the year 
following the valuation date. Rate reductions will apply starting on July 1 following receipt of 
the payment. The additional UAAL payment amount will be discounted back to the valuation 
date for which the contribution rates from that valuation become effective on that July 1. 



6 

The separate tracking of the outstanding balance applies only to employers that are in a cost 
group with more than one employer. For employers that are in their own cost group, the 
additional UAAL payment amount is directly added to the assets of their cost group. Separate 
tracking of the outstanding balance of the additional UAAL payment is not needed in this 
situation as the additional UAAL payment will automatically reduce the employer’s UAAL 
contributions. 

Employers with Declining Covered Payrolls 

Refer to the Declining Employer Payroll Actuarial Funding Policy for more information. 

POLICY REVIEW 

The Board of Retirement will review this Policy at least every three (3) years to ensure that it 
remains relevant and appropriate.  

HISTORY 

Adopted: 2/26/2014 

Amended: 8/13/2014, _____/2019 



 
 

7 
 

GLOSSARY OF FUNDING POLICY TERMS: 

• Present Value of Benefits (PVB) or total cost: the “value” at a particular point in time 
of all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. The “future benefit 
payments” and the “value” of those payments are determined using actuarial assumptions 
as to future events. Examples of these assumptions are estimates of retirement patterns, 
salary increases, investment returns, etc. Another way to think of the PVB is that if the 
plan has assets equal to the PVB and all actuarial assumptions are met, then no future 
contributions would be needed to provide all future service benefits for all members, 
including future service and salary increases for active members. 

• Actuarial Cost Method: allocates a portion of the total cost (PVB) to each year of 
service, both past service and future service. 

• Normal Cost (NC): the cost allocated under the Actuarial Cost Method to each year of 
active member service. 

• Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method: A funding method that calculates the Normal Cost 
as a level percentage of pay over the expected working lifetime of the plan’s members. 

• Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL): the value at a particular point in time of all past 
Normal Costs. This is the amount of assets the plan would have today if the current plan 
provisions, actuarial assumptions and participant data had always been in effect, 
contributions equal to the Normal Cost had been made and all actuarial assumptions 
came true. Note that for inactive members the AAL equals the entire PVB. 

• Market Value of Assets: the fair value of assets of the plan as reported in the plan’s 
audited financial statements. 

• Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) or smoothed value: a market-related value of the 
plan assets for determining contribution requirements. The AVA tracks the market value 
of assets over time, smoothes out short term fluctuations in market values and produces a 
smoother pattern of UAALs and contributions than would result from using market value.  

• Valuation Value of Assets (VVA): the value of assets used in the actuarial valuation to 
determine contribution rate requirements. It is equal to the Actuarial Value of Assets 
reduced by the value of any non-valuation reserves. 

• Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL): the positive difference, if any, 
between the AAL and the VVA. 

• Surplus: the positive difference, if any, between the VVA and the AAL. 

• Actuarial Value Funded Ratio: the ratio of the VVA to the AAL. 

• Market Value Funded Ratio: the ratio of the MVA to the AAL. 



8 

• Actuarial Gains and Losses: changes in UAAL or surplus due to actual experience
different from what is assumed in the actuarial valuation. For example, if during a given
year the assets earn more than the investment return assumption, the amount of earnings
above the assumption will cause an unexpected reduction in UAAL, or “actuarial gain” as
of the next valuation. These include contribution gains and losses that result from actual
contributions made being greater or less than the level determined under the policy.

• Valuation Date: December 31 of every year.



1 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

ACTUARIAL FUNDING POLICY 

Adopted: 2/26/2014 
Amended: 8/13/2014 

INTRODUCTION: 

The purpose of this Actuarial Funding Policy is to record the funding objectives and policies set 
by the Board of Retirement (Board) for the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement 
Association (CCCERA). The Board establishes this Actuarial Funding Policy to help ensure the 
systematic funding of future benefit payments for members of CCCERA. In addition, this 
document records certain guidelines established by the Board to assist in administering 
CCCERA in a consistent and efficient manner.  

This Actuarial Funding Policy supersedes any previous Actuarial Funding Policies. It is a 
working document and may be modified as the Board deems necessary. 

GOALS OF ACTUARIAL FUNDING POLICY: 

1. To determine future contributions that, together with current plan assets, are expected to
be sufficient to provide for all benefits provided by CCCERA;

2. To seek reasonable and equitable allocation of the cost of benefits over time including the
goal that annual contributions should, to the extent reasonably possible, maintain a close
relationship to both the expected cost of each year of service and to variations around that
expected cost;

3. To manage and control future contribution volatility to the extent reasonably possible,
consistent with other policy goals; and,

4. To support the general public policy goals of accountability and transparency by being
clear as to both intent and effect, allowing for an assessment of whether, how and when
the plan sponsors will meet the funding requirements of the plan.

FUNDING REQUIREMENT AND POLICY COMPONENTS: 

CCCERA’s annual funding requirement is comprised of a payment of the Normal Cost and a 
payment on the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). The Normal Cost and the 
amount of payment on UAAL are determined by the following three components of this funding 
policy: 

I. Actuarial Cost Method:  Allocates the total present value of future benefits to each year 
(Normal Cost), including all past years (Actuarial Accrued Liability or AAL); 

II. Asset Smoothing Method:  Spreads the recognition of investment gains or losses over a
period of time for the purposes of determining the Actuarial Value of Assets used in the

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#9



2 

actuarial valuation process. This reduces the effect of short-term market volatility while 
still tracking the overall movement of the market value of plan assets; and, 

III. Amortization Policy:  Determines the length of time and the structure of the increase or
decrease in contributions required to systemically (1) fund any Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability or UAAL, or (2) recognize any surplus, i.e., any assets in excess of the
AAL.

I. Actuarial Cost Method: 

The Entry Age method shall be applied to the projected benefits in determining the Normal Cost 
and the AAL. The Normal Cost shall be determined as a level percent of payroll on an individual 
basis for each active member. 

II. Asset Smoothing Method:

The investment gains or losses of each valuation period, as a result of comparing the actual 
market return to the expected market return, shall be recognized in level amounts over 5 years in 
calculating the Actuarial Value of Assets. 

This policy anticipates that future circumstances may warrant adjustments to change the pattern 
of the recognition of the net deferred investment gains or losses after a period of significant 
market change followed by a period of market correction, upon receiving an analysis from 
CCCERA’s actuary. Such adjustments would be appropriate when the net deferred investment 
gains or losses are relatively small (i.e., the actuarial and market values are very close together), 
but the recognition of that net deferred amount is markedly non-level. Any such adjustment 
would be made subject to the  and the following conditions are met: 

 The net deferred investment gains or losses are unchanged as of the date of the
adjustment; and,

 The period over which the net deferred investment gains and losses are fully recognized
is unchanged as of the date of the adjustment.

III. Amortization Policy:

 The UAAL (i.e., the difference between the AAL and the Valuation Value of Assets) as
of December 31, 2012 shall continue to be amortized over separate amortization layers
based on the valuations during which each separate layer was previously established.

 Any new UAAL as a result of actuarial gains or losses identified in the annual valuation
as of December 31 will be amortized over a period of 18 years.

 Any new UAAL as a result of change in actuarial assumptions or methods will be
amortized over a period of 18 years.



3 

 Unless the Board adopts an alternative amortization period after receiving an actuarial
analysis1:

a. with the exception noted in b., below, the increase in UAAL as a result of any plan
amendments will be amortized over a period of 10 years;

b. the entire increase in UAAL resulting from a temporary retirement incentive will be
funded in full upon adoption of the incentive. If the increase in UAAL is due to the
impact of benefits resulting from additional service permitted in Section 31641.04 of
the 1937 CERL (Golden Handshake), the entire increase in UAAL will be funded in
full upon adoption of the Golden Handshake.

 UAAL shall be amortized over “closed” amortization periods so that the amortization
period for each layer decreases by one year with each actuarial valuation.

 UAAL shall be amortized as a level percentage of payroll so that the amortization amount
in each year during the amortization period shall be expected to be a level percentage of
covered payroll, taking into consideration the current assumption for general payroll
increase.

 If an overfunding or “surplus” exists (i.e., the Valuation Value of Assets exceeds the
AAL, so that the total of all UAAL amortization layers become negative),  any prior
UAAL amortization layers will be considered fully amortized, and any subsequent
UAAL will be amortized as the first of a new series of amortization layers, using the
above amortization periods.

If the surplus exceeds 20% of the AAL per Section 7522.52 of the Government Code,
then the amount of such surplus in excess of 20% of the AAL (and any subsequent
surpluses in excess of that amount) will be amortized over an “open” amortization period
of 30 years, but only if the other conditions of Section 7522.52 have also been met. If
those conditions are not met, then the surplus will not be amortized and the full Normal
Cost will be contributed.

 These amortization policy components will generally apply separately to each of
CCCERA’s UAAL cost groups with the exception that the conditions of Section
7522.532 apply to the total plan.

OTHER POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 

1 In particular, the Board may want to incorporate into the amortization period demographic 
matching specific to the plan amendment. This could entail using the remaining active future 
service for plan changes that affect actives. For plan changes that affect retirees, this could 
entail using the remaining life expectancy for retirees or the period over which the increased 
cash flow to retirees is expected to be paid. 



4 

Adjustment for 18-Month Delay in Rate Implementation 

In order to allow employers to more accurately budget for pension contributions and other 
practical considerations, the contribution rates determined in each valuation (as of December 31) 
will apply to the 12-month period beginning 18 months after the valuation date. Any shortfall or 
excess contributions as a result of the implementation lag will be amortized as part of 
CCCERA’s UAAL in the following valuation. 

Implementation of Contribution Rate Change Due to Plan Amendment 

Any change in contribution rate requirement that results from a plan amendment is generally 
implemented on the effective date of the plan amendment or as soon as administratively feasible. 

Cost Sharing Arrangements 

Starting with the December 31, 2009 Actuarial Valuation, the Board took action to depool 
CCCERA’s assets, liabilities and Normal Cost by employer when determining employer 
contribution rates. The Board action included a review of experience back to December 31, 
2002. This did not involve recalculation of any employer rates prior to December 31, 2009. 
However, it did involve establishing the depooled assets so as to reflect the separate experience 
of the employers in each individual cost group from December 31, 2002 through December 31, 
2009. In addition, the Board took action to discontinue certain cost sharing adjustments for both 
member and employer contribution rates for General Tier 1 and Safety Tier A. 

Even under the depooling structure, there are a few remaining cost sharing arrangements. Here is 
a summary of the ongoing cost sharing arrangements: 

 Smaller employers (less than 50 active members) were pooled with the applicable County
tier. Safety members from the East Contra Costa Fire Protection District were pooled with
Safety members of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District.

 Due to a statutory requirement, the Superior Court is pooled with the County regardless of
how many members the Court has.

 UAAL costs are pooled between Cost Group 1 and Cost Group 2 which represent General
County and Small Districts for Tiers 1 and 3. UAAL costs are also pooled for Cost Groups
7 and 9 which are Safety County Tiers A and C.

This was done because Cost Group 1 and Cost Group 7 had active members but were
generally closed to new members. If the UAAL for these two cost groups is not pooled
with another cost group that is open to new active members then the UAAL rate for these
generally closed cost groups would increase substantially in future years. This is due to the
fact that the UAAL for CCCERA is amortized as a level percent of payroll and the payroll
growth for the generally closed cost group would be less than the payroll growth
assumption (currently 4.00%). This will help stabilize the employer contribution rates for
the mostly closed Cost Group 1 and Cost Group 7. Normal Cost rates for those cost groups
are not pooled.



5 

There are some substantial differences between the Safety Tier A Enhanced and Safety Tier 
C Enhanced benefits, such as the period over which final average salaries are determined 
and the COLA. However, since the County is the only employer in these two cost groups, 
they will be the only employer affected by this particular pooling. 

Employer/Member Cost Sharing 

The Cost Impact of Leave Cashouts 

CCCERA’s Basic and COLA member rates for members with membership dates before 
January 1, 2013 are increased to anticipate leave cashouts in the final year of employment 
using the same leave cashout assumptions adopted by the Board for the actuarial valuation 
for projecting benefit payments.  

The Cost Impact of Service from Unused Sick Leave Conversion 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 31641.01, for members with membership dates 
before January 1, 2013, the cost of this benefit will be charged only to employers and will 
not affect member contribution rates. 

Employer/Member cost sharing arrangements are subject to modification under Government 
Code Section 31631.5, and any such modifications would be incorporated into the determination 
of the employer and member contribution rates. 

Additional Employer UAAL Payments 

Absent any specific action by the Board, any additional employer payments towards the UAAL 
(including those from Pension Obligation Bonds (POBs) will be accepted by CCCERA in 
exchange for a corresponding reduction in the employer’s UAAL contribution rate over period(s) 
and in a manner consistent with that employer’s outstanding UAAL amortization layers and 
payments. 

The outstanding balance of the additional UAAL payment is tracked separately in a manner 
consistent with the procedure used to track the UAAL amortization layers. It will be credited 
with earnings at CCCERA’s investment return assumption in effect at each valuation date and 
reduced by the dollar amount of the annual reduction in the employer’s UAAL contributions due 
to the prepayment. 

Unless otherwise directed by the Board, the dollar amount of the annual reduction in the 
employer’s UAAL contributions due to the additional UAAL payment will be based on 
amortizing (as a level percentage of payroll) the outstanding balance of the additional UAAL 
payment amount over the same period as used for actuarial gains and losses, using CCCERA’s 
investment return and payroll growth assumptions in effect at each valuation date. 

The reduction in the UAAL contribution rate will then equal the dollar amount of reduction in 
the employer’s UAAL contributions divided by the employer’s expected payroll for the year 



6 

following the valuation date. Rate reductions will apply starting on July 1 following receipt of 
the payment. The additional UAAL payment amount will be discounted back to the valuation 
date for which the contribution rates from that valuation become effective on that July 1. 

The separate tracking of the outstanding balance applies only to employers that are in a cost 
group with more than one employer. For employers that are in their own cost group, the 
additional UAAL payment amount is directly added to the assets of their cost group. Separate 
tracking of the outstanding balance of the additional UAAL payment is not needed in this 
situation as the additional UAAL payment will automatically reduce the employer’s UAAL 
contributions. 

Employers with Declining Covered Payrolls 

Refer to the Declining Employer Payroll Actuarial Funding Policy for more information. 

POLICY REVIEW 

The Board of Retirement will review this Policy at least every three (3) years to ensure that it 
remains relevant and appropriate.  

HISTORY 

Adopted: 2/26/2014 

Amended: 8/13/2014, _____/2019 



7 

GLOSSARY OF FUNDING POLICY TERMS: 

• Present Value of Benefits (PVB) or total cost: the “value” at a particular point in time
of all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. The “future benefit
payments” and the “value” of those payments are determined using actuarial assumptions
as to future events. Examples of these assumptions are estimates of retirement patterns,
salary increases, investment returns, etc. Another way to think of the PVB is that if the
plan has assets equal to the PVB and all actuarial assumptions are met, then no future
contributions would be needed to provide all future service benefits for all members,
including future service and salary increases for active members.

• Actuarial Cost Method: allocates a portion of the total cost (PVB) to each year of
service, both past service and future service.

• Normal Cost (NC): the cost allocated under the Actuarial Cost Method to each year of
active member service.

• Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method: A funding method that calculates the Normal Cost
as a level percentage of pay over the expected working lifetime of the plan’s members.

• Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL): the value at a particular point in time of all past
Normal Costs. This is the amount of assets the plan would have today if the current plan
provisions, actuarial assumptions and participant data had always been in effect,
contributions equal to the Normal Cost had been made and all actuarial assumptions
came true. Note that for inactive members the AAL equals the entire PVB.

• Market Value of Assets: the fair value of assets of the plan as reported in the plan’s
audited financial statements.

• Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA) or smoothed value: a market-related value of the
plan assets for determining contribution requirements. The AVA tracks the market value
of assets over time, smoothes out short term fluctuations in market values and produces a
smoother pattern of UAALs and contributions than would result from using market value.

• Valuation Value of Assets (VVA): the value of assets used in the actuarial valuation to
determine contribution rate requirements. It is equal to the Actuarial Value of Assets
reduced by the value of any non-valuation reserves.

• Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL): the positive difference, if any,
between the AAL and the VVA.

• Surplus: the positive difference, if any, between the VVA and the AAL.

• Actuarial Value Funded Ratio: the ratio of the VVA to the AAL.

• Market Value Funded Ratio: the ratio of the MVA to the AAL.



8 

• Actuarial Gains and Losses: changes in UAAL or surplus due to actual experience
different from what is assumed in the actuarial valuation. For example, if during a given
year the assets earn more than the investment return assumption, the amount of earnings
above the assumption will cause an unexpected reduction in UAAL, or “actuarial gain” as
of the next valuation. These include contribution gains and losses that result from actual
contributions made being greater or less than the level determined under the policy.

• Valuation Date: December 31 of every year.



PE
R
IO

D
 E
N
D
IN

G
: 
M
A
R
CH

 3
1,
 2
01

9

In
ve
st
m
en

t P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 R
ev
ie
w
 fo

r

Co
nt
ra
 C
os
ta
 C
ou

nt
y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s’
 R
et
ire

m
en

t A
ss
oc
ia
tio

n

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#10a.



VE
RU

SI
N
VE

ST
M
EN

TS
.C
O
M

SE
A
TT

LE
  2

06
‐6
22

‐3
70

0
LO

S 
A
N
G
EL
ES

  3
00

‐2
97

‐1
77

7
SA

N
 F
RA

N
CI
SC

O
  4

15
‐3
62

‐3
48

4

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s

In
ve

st
m

en
t L

an
ds

ca
pe

TA
B
 I

In
ve

st
m

en
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

R
ev

ie
w

TA
B
 I
I



2N
D
Q
U
A
RT

ER
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe



FO
U
R
 R
U
LE

S 
O
F 
O
U
TS

O
U
R
CI
N
G

CA
PI
TA

L 
M
A
R
KE

T 
A
SS

U
M
PT

IO
N
S

A
CT

IV
E 
M
A
N
A
G
EM

EN
T 
EN

V
IR

O
N
M
EN

T

Re
ce

nt
 V

er
us

 re
se

ar
ch

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

2

Th
e 
ch
oi
ce
 to

 u
se
 th

e 
se
rv
ic
es
 o
f a

n 
O
ut
so
ur
ce
d 
Ch

ie
f I
nv

es
tm

en
t O

ffi
ce
r (
O
CI
O
) 

pr
ov

id
er
 is
 o
ne

 o
f t
he

 m
os
t s
ig
ni
fic
an

t 
de

ci
sio

ns
 th

at
 a
 b
oa

rd
 is
 li
ke
ly
 to

 m
ak
e.
 T
hi
s 

pi
ec
e 
is 
fo
cu
se
d 
on

 th
e 
fo
ur
 m

os
t i
m
po

rt
an

t 
ru
le
s t
ha

t V
er
us
 b
el
ie
ve
s i
nv

es
to
rs
 sh

ou
ld
 

un
de

rs
ta
nd

, a
nd

 O
CI
O
 p
ro
vi
de

rs
 sh

ou
ld
 

de
liv
er
 u
po

n.

Ve
ru
s h

el
d 
th
e 
fir
st
 C
ap

ita
l M

ar
ke
t 

As
su
m
pt
io
ns
 W

eb
in
ar
. O

n 
th
e 
ca
ll,
 w
e 

di
sc
us
se
d:

―
Ho

w
 m

ar
ke
t s
hi
ft
s o

f 2
01

8 
ha

ve
 a
ffe

ct
ed

 
ou

r l
on

g‐
te
rm

 o
ut
lo
ok

―
W
hy

 th
e 
cu
rr
en

t e
nv

iro
nm

en
t c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 in
di
ca
te
 m

od
es
t l
on

g‐
te
rm

 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 a
cr
os
s m

os
t a

ss
et
 c
la
ss
es

―
Th

e 
im

po
rt
an

t d
iff
er
en

ce
s 
be

tw
ee

n 
sh
or
te
r‐
te
rm

 a
nd

 lo
ng

er
‐t
er
m
 

fo
re
ca
st
in
g 
ex
er
ci
se
s

O
ur
 w
or
k 
on

 a
ct
iv
e 
m
an

ag
em

en
t a

dd
re
ss
es
 

so
m
e 
sh
or
tf
al
ls 
of
 th

e 
tr
ad

iti
on

al
 a
na

ly
sis

, 
w
hi
ch
 u
se
s t
he

 m
ed

ia
n 
pr
od

uc
t t
o 
de

sc
rib

e 
th
e 
ac
tiv

e 
m
an

ag
em

en
t u

ni
ve
rs
e 
as
 a
 

w
ho

le
. T
he

se
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a
nd

 in
sig

ht
s 

ha
ve
 a
llo

w
ed

 u
s t
o 
be

tt
er
 u
nd

er
st
an

d 
pr
od

uc
t b

eh
av
io
r a

nd
 m

ay
 a
llo

w
 fo

r m
or
e 

in
fo
rm

ed
 se

le
ct
io
n 
in
 th

e 
fu
tu
re
.

V
is

it:
 h

tt
ps

://
w

w
w

.v
er

us
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
.c

om
/in

si
gh

ts
/

So
un

d 
th

in
ki

ng
A

nn
ua

l o
ut

lo
ok

s

Co
ns
ul
tin

g 
| 
O
ut
so
ur
ce
d 
CI
O
 (O

CI
O
) |

 R
isk

 A
dv
iso

ry
 |
 P
riv

at
e 
M
ar
ke
ts



VE
RU

SI
N
VE

ST
M
EN

TS
.C
O
M

SE
A
TT

LE
  2

06
‐6
22

‐3
70

0
LO

S 
A
N
G
EL
ES

  3
10

‐2
97

‐1
77

7
SA

N
 F
RA

N
CI
SC

O
  4

15
‐3
62

‐3
48

4

Ta
bl

e 
of

 C
on

te
nt

s

3

E
co

no
m

ic
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t

6

Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
ra

te
s 

&
 c

re
di

t
18

E
qu

ity
27

O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s
39

A
pp

en
di

x
42



1s
t
qu

ar
te

r s
um

m
ar

y
TH

E 
EC

O
N
O
M
IC
 C
LI
M
A
TE

—
Re

al
 G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
at
 3
.0
%
 Y
oY

 ‐
on

 p
ac
e 
w
ith

 th
e 

th
ird

 q
ua

rt
er
 (2

.2
%
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 ra
te
). 
Fo
re
ca
st
s 
fo
r 

20
19

 U
.S
. g
ro
w
th
 h
av
e 
w
ea
ke
ne

d.
 T
he

 U
.S
. e

co
no

m
y 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 g
ro
w
 a
t a

 2
.4
%
 p
ac
e 
in
 2
01

9,
 a
cc
or
di
ng

 to
 th

e 
Su

rv
ey
 o
f P

ro
fe
ss
io
na

l F
or
ec
as
te
rs
, w

hi
le
 th

e 
Fe
de

ra
l 

Re
se
rv
e 
ex
pe

ct
s 
2.
1%

 g
ro
w
th
 th

is 
ye
ar
. p

. 8

—
In
 M

ar
ch
, n

eg
ot
ia
tio

ns
 re

su
m
ed

 b
et
w
ee

n 
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
ne

se
 

tr
ad

e 
de

le
ga
tio

ns
. T
he

 d
ia
lo
gu

e 
w
as
 v
ie
w
ed

 a
s 

co
ns
tr
uc
tiv

e,
 a
nd

 o
pt
im

ism
 p
ic
ke
d 
up

 fo
r a

 tr
ad

e 
re
so
lu
tio

n 
be

in
g 
re
ac
he

d 
in
 th

e 
ne

ar
‐t
o‐
in
te
rm

ed
ia
te
 fu

tu
re
. T
he

 tw
o 

sid
es
 h
av
e 
ye
t t
o 
ag
re
e 
on

 a
 fo

rm
al
 ti
m
el
in
e.
 p
. 1

6

PO
R
TF

O
LI
O
 I
M
PA

CT
S

—
Th

e 
Fe
de

ra
l O

pe
n 
M
ar
ke
t C

om
m
itt
ee

 re
ite

ra
te
d 
its
 

“p
at
ie
nt
” 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 p
ol
ic
y,
 le
av
in
g 
ra
te
s u

nc
ha

ng
ed

, 
he

lp
in
g 
to
 p
us
h 
as
se
t p

ric
es
 u
pw

ar
d.
 C
ha

irm
an

 P
ow

el
l 

an
no

un
ce
d 
th
at
 st
ar
tin

g 
in
 M

ay
 th

e 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

t r
un

of
f 

w
ou

ld
 sl
ow

 fr
om

 $
50

 to
 $
30

 b
ill
io
n 
a 
m
on

th
, a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 

en
d 
in
 S
ep

te
m
be

r. 
p.
 1
9

—
Ri
sk
 a
ss
et
s 
ex
hi
bi
te
d 
st
ro
ng

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
. 

U.
S.
 e
qu

iti
es
 d
el
iv
er
ed

 th
e 
gr
ea
te
st
 g
ai
ns
 (S

&
P 
50

0 
+1

3.
6%

, 
M
SC

I A
CW

I +
12

.2
%
), 
re
ve
rs
in
g 
U.
S.
 u
nd

er
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 in
 

Q
4 
20

18
 (S

&
P 
50

0 
‐1
3.
5%

, M
SC

I A
CW

I ‐
12

.8
%
). 
Th

is 
w
as
 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 
ris
ki
er
 c
re
di
t w

ith
 h
ig
h 
sin

gl
e‐
di
gi
t r
et
ur
ns
, a
nd

 
sa
fe
r c

re
di
t a

nd
 g
ov
er
nm

en
t b

on
ds
 w
ith

 lo
w
 s
in
gl
e‐
di
gi
t 

re
tu
rn
s.
p.
 4
6

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

TH
E
IN

V
ES

TM
EN

T
CL

IM
A
TE

—
Th

e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
 w
as
 n
ea

rly
 a
 m

irr
or
 im

ag
e 
of
 2
01

8 
Q
4,
 a
s 

m
an

y 
as
se
ts
 re

tr
ac
ed

 lo
ss
es
 o
f t
he

 p
rio

r q
ua

rt
er
. p

. 3
8

—
De

cl
in
in
g 
lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 T
re
as
ur
y 
yi
el
ds
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
Fe
d 

m
ee

tin
g 
in
 M

ar
ch
 b
rie

fly
 c
au

se
d 
th
e 
yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e 
to
 in
ve
rt
, 

m
ea

ni
ng

 th
at
 sh

or
t‐
te
rm

 y
ie
ld
s (
3‐
m
on

th
) w

er
e 
hi
gh

er
 th

an
 

lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 y
ie
ld
s (
10

‐y
ea

r)
. I
nv
es
to
rs
 h
av
e 
ex
pr
es
se
d 

co
nc
er
ns
 th

at
 th

is 
m
ay
 si
gn

al
 a
 n
ea

r t
er
m
 re

ce
ss
io
n.
 W

e 
be

lie
ve
 th

es
e 
co
nc
er
ns
 a
re
 o
ve
rb
lo
w
n.

p.
 2
1

—
Th

e 
Ho

us
e 
of
 C
om

m
on

s 
in
 th

e 
Br
iti
sh
 P
ar
lia
m
en

t b
rie

fly
 

to
ok

 c
on

tr
ol
 o
f t
he

ir 
go

ve
rn
m
en

t’s
 le
gi
sla

tiv
e 
ag
en

da
, b

ut
 

fa
ile
d 
to
 re

ac
h 
a 
m
aj
or
ity

 v
ot
e 
on

 a
 p
at
h 
fo
rw

ar
d.
 O
n 
Ap

ril
 

10
th
, B

rit
ish

 P
rim

e 
M
in
ist
er
 T
he

re
sa
 M

ay
 a
nd

 th
e 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 

Co
un

ci
l a
gr
ee

d 
to
 e
xt
en

d 
th
e 
Br
ex
it 
de

ad
lin

e 
fr
om

 A
pr
il 

12
th
 to

 O
ct
ob

er
 3
1s
t. 
p.
 1
7

A
SS

ET
A
LL

O
CA

TI
O
N

IS
SU

ES

—
Al
l m

aj
or
 a
ss
et
 c
la
ss
es
 d
el
iv
er
ed

 p
os
iti
ve
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
 

Q
1,
 a
 re

fr
es
hi
ng

 c
ha

ng
e 
of
 p
ac
e 
fr
om

 b
ro
ad

‐b
as
ed

 lo
ss
es
 

ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 in
 2
01

8.
p.
 4
6

—
Ec
on

om
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 
w
or
ld
 h
av
e 
ex
hi
bi
te
d 
a 

w
ea

ke
ni
ng

 tr
en

d,
 le
ad

in
g 
to
 th

e 
qu

es
tio

n 
of
 w
he

th
er
 a
 tu

rn
 

in
 th

e 
ec
on

om
ic
 c
yc
le
 is
 n
ea

r. 
Th

e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
 w
as
 m

or
e 

m
ix
ed

 w
ith

 st
re
ng

th
 in
 p
la
ce
s,
 e
as
in
g 
so
m
e 
co
nc
er
n.
 W

e 
re
m
ai
n 
w
at
ch
fu
l o
f t
hi
s w

ea
ke
ni
ng

 tr
en

d,
 b
ut
 b
el
ie
ve
 th

e 
ec
on

om
y 
an

d 
m
ar
ke
t m

ay
 h
av
e 
m
or
e 
ro
om

 to
 ru

n.
 p
. 1

7

4

A
 n

eu
tr

al
 r

is
k 

st
an

ce
 m

ay
 b

e 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
in

 
to

da
y’

s 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t



W
ha

t d
ro

ve
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t i
n 

Q
1?

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

10
‐Y

EA
R
 M

IN
U
S 
3‐
M
O
N
TH

 T
R
EA

SU
R
Y 
YI
EL

D
 S
PR

EA
D

S&
P 
50

0 
IN

D
EX

 1
2‐
M
O
N
TH

 F
O
R
W

A
R
D
 E
PS

 E
ST

IM
A
TE

5

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a

s o
f 3

/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a

s o
f 4

/2
/1
9

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a

s o
f 3

/3
1/
19

“C
en

tr
al
 b
an

ks
 ta

ke
 to

 st
ag
e 
as
 d
ov

is
h 
ou

tlo
ok

s s
pr
ea

d”

M
AR

KE
T 
EX

PE
CT

AT
IO
N
S 
FO

R 
1‐
YE

AR
 C
H
AN

G
E 
IN
 F
ED

 F
U
N
D
S 
RA

TE
 (B

PS
)

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

62
48

10
‐1
0

‐5
‐3
1

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, F
eb

ru
ar
y 
16

th
, 2
01

9

M
A
R
KE

T 
EX

PE
CT

A
TI
O
N
S 
FO

R
 C
H
A
N
G
ES

 I
N
 S
H
O
R
T‐
TE

R
M
 R
A
TE

S

“S
lo
w
in
g 
ea

rn
in
gs
 g
ro
w
th
, g
lo
om

y 
fo
re
ca
st
s 
ad

d 
to
 st
oc
k 
m
ar
ke

t’s
 

w
oe

s”
S&

P 
50

0 
IN
D
EX

 1
2‐
M
O
N
TH

 F
O
RW

AR
D
 E
PS

 E
ST
IM

AT
E 
($
)

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

17
5

17
5

17
4

17
1

17
1

17
2

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 W

al
l S
tr
ee
t J
ou

rn
al
, J
an

ua
ry
 1
3t

h , 
20

19

“P
ar
t o

f t
he

 y
ie
ld
 c
ur
ve

 in
ve

rt
s 
as
 3
‐m

on
th
 y
ie
ld
 to

ps
 1
0‐
ye

ar
 ra

te
”

10
‐Y
EA

R 
M
IN
U
S 
3‐
M
O
N
TH

 T
RE

AS
U
RY

 Y
IE
LD

 S
PR

EA
D
 (B

PS
)

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

82
65

33
25

28
2

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 C
N
BC

, M
ar
ch
 2
2n

d , 
20

19

“W
or
ld
 m

ar
ke

ts
 h
it 
20

19
 h
ig
h 
am

id
 tr
ad

e 
w
ar
 o
pt
im

is
m
”

N
U
M
BE

R 
O
F 
G
O
O
G
LE
 N
EW

S 
AR

TI
CL
ES
 W

IT
H
 ‘T
RA

D
E 
O
PT

IM
IS
M
’ I
N
 T
IT
LE

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

5
24

31
92

11
6

96

Ar
tic

le
 S
ou

rc
e:
 T
he

 G
ua

rd
ia
n,
 F
eb

ru
ar
y 
18

th
, 2
01

9

‐0
.3
1%

0.
00

%

‐0
.0
4%

‐0
.0
2%

‐0
.4
3%

0.
10

%

‐0
.0
6%

0.
08

%

‐0
.6
%

‐0
.4
%

‐0
.2
%

0.
0%

0.
2%

U
S

Eu
ro
zo
ne

Ja
pa

n
U
K

1‐
Ye

ar
 F
or
w
ar
d

2‐
Ye

ar
 F
or
w
ar
d

16
0

16
5

17
0

17
5 Ap

r‐
18

Ju
l‐1

8
O
ct
‐1
8

Ja
n‐
19

‐1
%0%1%2%3%

Ap
r‐
14

Ap
r‐
15

Ap
r‐
16

Ap
r‐
17

Ap
r‐
18



Ec
on

om
ic

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

6



U
.S

. e
co

no
m

ic
s s

um
m

ar
y

—
Re

al
 G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
at
 3
.0
%
 

Yo
Y, 
on

 p
ac
e 
w
ith

 th
e 
th
ird

 q
ua

rt
er
 

(2
.2
%
 o
n 
a 
qu

ar
te
rly

 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 
ra
te
). 

—
Fo
re
ca
st
s 
fo
r 2

01
9 
U.
S.
 g
ro
w
th
 

ha
ve
 w
ea

ke
ne

d.
 T
he

 U
.S
. e

co
no

m
y 

is 
ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 g
ro
w
 a
t a

 2
.4
%
 p
ac
e 

in
 2
01

9,
 a
cc
or
di
ng

 to
 th

e 
Su

rv
ey
 o
f 

Pr
of
es
sio

na
l F
or
ec
as
te
rs
, w

hi
le
 th

e 
Fe
de

ra
l R
es
er
ve
 e
xp
ec
ts
 2
.1
%
 

gr
ow

th
 th

is 
ye
ar
. 

—
In
 M

ar
ch
, n

eg
ot
ia
tio

ns
 re

su
m
ed

 
be

tw
ee

n 
U.
S.
 a
nd

 C
hi
ne

se
 tr
ad

e 
de

le
ga
tio

ns
. T
he

 d
ia
lo
gu

e 
w
as
 

vi
ew

ed
 a
s 
co
ns
tr
uc
tiv

e,
 a
nd

 
op

tim
ism

 p
ic
ke
d 
up

 fo
r a

 fo
rm

al
 

tr
ad

e 
re
so
lu
tio

n 
be

in
g 
re
ac
he

d 
in
 

th
e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re
. 

—
U.
S.
 in

fla
tio

n 
re
m
ai
ne

d 
ne

ar
 th

e 
2.
0%

 F
ed

 ta
rg
et
. A

ft
er
 d
ip
pi
ng

 to
 

1.
5%

 Y
oY

 in
 F
eb

ru
ar
y,
 h
ea

dl
in
e 

in
fla

tio
n 
re
co
ve
re
d 
to
 1
.9
%
 in

 
M
ar
ch
, r
es
ul
tin

g 
in
 n
o 
ch
an

ge
 o
ve
r 

th
e 
qu

ar
te
r. 

—
Av

er
ag
e 
ho

ur
ly
 e
ar
ni
ng

s g
re
w
 3
.2
%
 

Yo
Y 
in
 M

ar
ch
, m

iss
in
g 
ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 

of
 3
.3
%
. A

 sl
ig
ht
 ti
ck
 u
p 
in
 th

e 
av
er
ag
e 
no

n‐
fa
rm

 p
riv

at
e 

w
or
kw

ee
k 
fr
om

 3
4.
4 
to
 3
4.
5 
ho

ur
s 

lik
el
y 
co
nt
rib

ut
ed

 to
 th

e 
co
ol
er
 

w
ag
e 
da

ta
.

—
Th

e 
la
bo

r m
ar
ke
t r
em

ai
ne

d 
st
ro
ng

 
in
 Q
1.
 U
‐3
 u
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t f
el
l t
o 

3.
8%

 fr
om

 3
.9
%
 in

 D
ec
em

be
r, 

th
ou

gh
 th

e 
la
bo

r f
or
ce
 

pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
ra
te
 w
ea

ke
ne

d 
fr
om

 
63

.1
%
 to

 6
3.
0%

 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
pe

rio
d.

—
Th

e 
Fe
de

ra
l O

pe
n 
M
ar
ke
t 

Co
m
m
itt
ee

 re
ite

ra
te
d 
its
 “
pa

tie
nt
” 

ap
pr
oa

ch
 to

 p
ol
ic
y,
 le
av
in
g 
ra
te
s 

un
ch
an

ge
d.
 E
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 fo

r 2
01

9 
G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 a
nd

 ra
te
 h
ik
es
 w
er
e 

cu
t, 
an

d 
m
ar
ke
ts
 ra

lli
ed

. C
ha

irm
an

 
Po

w
el
l a
nn

ou
nc
ed

 th
at
 st
ar
tin

g 
in
 

M
ay
 th

e 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

t r
un

of
f 

w
ou

ld
 sl
ow

 fr
om

 $
50

 b
ill
io
n 
pe

r 
m
on

th
 to

 $
30

 b
ill
io
n,
 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 

en
d 
in
 S
ep

te
m
be

r. 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

7

M
os
t R

ec
en

t
12

 M
on

th
s P

rio
r

G
DP

 (Y
oY

)
3.
0%

12
/3
1/
18

2.
5%

12
/3
1/
17

In
fla

tio
n

(C
PI
 Y
oY
, C

or
e)

2.
0%

3/
31

/1
9

2.
1%

3/
31

/1
8

Ex
pe

ct
ed

In
fla

tio
n 

(5
yr
‐5
yr
 fo

rw
ar
d)

2.
0%

3/
31

/1
9

2.
2%

3/
31

/1
8

Fe
d 
Fu

nd
s T

ar
ge
t 

Ra
ng

e
2.
25

 –
2.
50

%
3/
31

/1
9

1.
50

 –
1.
75

%
3/
31

/1
8

10
Ye
ar
 R
at
e

2.
4%

3/
31

/1
9

2.
7%

3/
31

/1
8

U
‐3
 U
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t
3.
8%

3/
31

/1
9

4.
0%

3/
31

/1
8

U
‐6
 U
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t
7.
3%

3/
31

/1
9

7.
9%

3/
31

/1
8



G
D

P 
gr

ow
th

Re
al
 G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
at
 3
.0
%
 Y
oY
, o

n 
pa

ce
 w
ith

 g
ro
w
th
 

in
 th

e 
th
ird

 q
ua

rt
er
 (2

.2
%
 o
n 
a 
qu

ar
te
rly

 a
nn

ua
liz
ed

 ra
te
). 
 

Co
ns
um

pt
io
n 
w
as
 th

e 
gr
ea
te
st
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
or
 to

 re
al
 G
DP

 
gr
ow

th
.

Th
e 
U.
S.
 e
co
no

m
y 
fa
ce
s m

ul
tip

le
 h
ea

dw
in
ds
, i
nc
lu
di
ng

 th
e 

br
oa

d 
im

pa
ct
s o

f s
lo
w
in
g 
gl
ob

al
 g
ro
w
th
, f
ad

in
g 
of
 2
01

8 
fis
ca
l 

st
im

ul
us
, a
nd

 a
 ti
gh

t l
ab

or
 m

ar
ke
t w

hi
ch
 c
on

st
ra
in
s 
fu
rt
he

r 
up

sid
e 
fr
om

 e
m
pl
oy
m
en

t g
ai
ns
. W

hi
le
 th

e 
U.
S.
 is
 in

 a
 st
ro
ng

 
po

sit
io
n 
re
la
tiv

e 
to
 o
th
er
 d
ev
el
op

ed
 n
at
io
ns
, t
he

 e
co
no

m
y 
is 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 to
 g
ro
w
 a
t a

 2
.4
%
 p
ac
e 
in
 2
01

9 
ac
co
rd
in
g 
to
 a
 

su
rv
ey
 o
f p

ro
fe
ss
io
na

l f
or
ec
as
te
rs
. T
he

 F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
 

ex
pe

ct
s 
2.
1%

 g
ro
w
th
 th

is 
ye
ar
. 

Th
e 
Tr
um

p 
ad

m
in
ist
ra
tio

n 
ap

pe
ar
s t
o 
ha

ve
 su

cc
ee

de
d 
in
 

re
ac
hi
ng

 it
s 
3%

 U
.S
. g
ro
w
th
 ta

rg
et
 d
ur
in
g 
20

18
. T
he

 T
ax
 C
ut
s 

&
 Jo

bs
 A
ct
 h
el
pe

d 
st
im

ul
at
e 
th
e 
ec
on

om
y 
in
 th

e 
fo
rm

 o
f 

re
du

ce
d 
ta
xe
s f
or
 in

di
vi
du

al
s,
 w
hi
ch
 in

cr
ea

se
d 
af
te
r‐
ta
x 

in
co
m
es
 a
nd

 g
re
at
ly
 re

du
ce
d 
co
rp
or
at
e 
ta
x 
bu

rd
en

s.
 T
he

se
 

ch
an

ge
s l
ik
el
y 
ha

d 
po

sit
iv
e 
im

pa
ct
s 
on

 w
or
ke
r w

ag
es
 a
nd

 
sp
ur
re
d 
re
ce
nt
 c
ap

ita
l i
nv
es
tm

en
t. 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
8 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

So
ur
ce
: B

EA
, a

nn
ua

liz
ed

 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 ra

te
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
8

8

U
.S
. 
R
EA

L 
G
D
P 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
U
.S
. 
G
D
P 
G
R
O
W

TH
 A

TT
R
IB

U
TI
O
N
 

‐6
%

‐3
%0%3%6%9%12
% De

c‐
55

De
c‐
65

De
c‐
75

De
c‐
85

De
c‐
95

De
c‐
05

De
c‐
15

1.
8%

1.
2%

3.
1%

3.
2%

2.
9%

2.
2%

4.
2%

3.
4%

2.
2%

‐3
%

‐2
%

‐1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%

Q
4 
16

Q
1 
17

Q
2 
17

Q
3 
17

Q
4 
17

Q
1 
18

Q
2 
18

Q
3 
18

Q
4 
18

Co
ns
um

pt
io
n

In
ve
st
m
en

t
G
ov

er
nm

en
t

Ex
po

rt
s

Im
po

rt
s

In
ve
nt
or
ie
s



A 
lo

ng
 b

ut
 m

od
er

at
e 

ex
pa

ns
io

n

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

ec
on

om
ic

 cy
cl

e 
is

 ju
st

 th
re

e 
qu

ar
te

rs
 s

hy
 o

f 
m

at
ch

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ng

es
t 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
on

 
re

co
rd

 

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 V
er
us
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
8 
–
ea

ch
 e
xp
an

sio
n 
is 
la
be

le
d 
w
ith

 th
e 
st
ar
tin

g 
ye
ar
 o
f e

xp
an

sio
n

9

19
49

19
49

19
58

19
61

19
70

19
75

19
80

19
82

20
01

20
07

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

0
5

10
15

20
25

30
35

40
45

Cumulative Real GDP Growth (%)

Q
ua

rt
er
s

19
90



U.
S.
 in

fla
tio

n 
re
m
ai
ne

d 
ne

ar
 th

e 
Fe
de

ra
l R
es
er
ve
’s 
2.
0%

 
ta
rg
et
. A

ft
er
 d
ip
pi
ng

 to
 1
.5
%
 Y
oY

 in
 F
eb

ru
ar
y,
 h
ea
dl
in
e 
CP

I 
re
co
ve
re
d 
to
 1
.9
%
 in

 M
ar
ch
, u

nc
ha

ng
ed

 o
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
. 

Co
re
 C
PI
, w

hi
ch
 re

m
ov
es
 th

e 
im

pa
ct
 o
f e

ne
rg
y 
an

d 
fo
od

 
pr
ic
es
, c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 e
as
e,
 fa

lli
ng

 to
 2
.0
%
 Y
oY

 a
t q

ua
rt
er
‐e
nd

. 
M
od

er
at
e 
in
fla

tio
n 
ar
ou

nd
 2
%
 h
as
 h
el
pe

d 
ju
st
ify

 th
e 
Fe
d’
s 

re
ce
nt
 p
au

se
 in

 m
on

et
ar
y 
tig

ht
en

in
g 
an

d 
ha

s a
llo

w
ed

 fo
r a

 
pa

tie
nt
 a
pp

ro
ac
h.
 A
 m

at
er
ia
l s
hi
ft
 in

 e
ith

er
 d
ire

ct
io
n 
m
ig
ht
 

pl
ac
e 
Fe
d 
of
fic
ia
ls 
in
 a
 d
iff
ic
ul
t p

os
iti
on

, a
nd

 sh
ou

ld
 b
e 

w
at
ch
ed

 c
lo
se
ly.
 

In
fla

tio
n 
in
 se

rv
ic
es
 w
as
 th

e 
so
le
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
or
 to

 th
e 
ye
ar
‐

ov
er
‐y
ea

r g
ro
w
th
 in
 C
PI
 a
s 
go

od
s 
pr
ic
es
 w
er
e 
un

ch
an

ge
d 

du
rin

g 
th
e 
pe

rio
d.
 W

ith
in
 se

rv
ic
es
, s
he

lte
r p

ric
es
 (+

3.
4%

 Y
oY

) 
co
nt
in
ue

d 
to
 b
e 
th
e 
m
ai
n 
dr
iv
er
 o
f i
nf
la
tio

n.
 

M
ar
ke
t p

ar
tic

ip
an

ts
’ e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 fo

r f
ut
ur
e 
in
fla

tio
n 

re
co
ve
re
d 
fr
om

 d
ep

re
ss
ed

 le
ve
ls 
af
te
r f
al
lin

g 
sh
ar
pl
y 
la
st
 

qu
ar
te
r. 
Th

e 
10

‐y
ea

r T
IP
S 
br
ea

ke
ve
n 
in
fla

tio
n 
ra
te
 ro

se
 2
2 

bp
s t
o 
1.
93

%
. M

ea
nw

hi
le
, c
on

su
m
er
s’
 v
ie
w
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 

in
fla

tio
n 
m
od

er
at
ed

 fr
om

 2
.7
%
 to

 2
.5
%
 a
s i
nd

ic
at
ed

 b
y 
th
e 

U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga
n 
su
rv
ey
. 

‐4
%0%4%8%12
%

16
% De

c‐
70

N
ov

‐7
7

Se
p‐
84

Ju
l‐9

1
M
ay
‐9
8
M
ar
‐0
5

Ja
n‐
12

N
ov

‐1
8

U
S 
CP

I E
x 
Fo

od
 &
 E
ne

rg
y

U
S 
CP

I

U
.S
. 
CP

I 
(Y

O
Y)

B
R
EA

K
EV

EN
 I
N
FL

A
TI
O
N
 R
A
TE

S
IN

FL
A
TI
O
N
 E
X
PE

CT
A
TI
O
N
S

In
fla

tio
n

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

10

0%2%4%

M
ar
‐1
8

Se
p‐
18

M
ar
‐1
9

0%1%2%3%4%5%6%

Ju
n‐
01

De
c‐
03

Ju
n‐
06

N
ov

‐0
8
M
ay
‐1
1

O
ct
‐1
3

Ap
r‐
16

Se
p‐
18

U
S 
Br
ea
ke
ve
n 
10

 Y
ea

r
U
M
ic
h 
Ex
pe

ct
ed

 C
ha

ng
e 
in
 P
ric

e

2.
0%

2.
0%

1.
8%

2.
1%

2.
1%

1.
9%

0.
0%

0.
6%

1.
2%

1.
8%

2.
4%

12
 M

on
th
s P

rio
r

6 
M
on

th
s P

rio
r

M
ar
‐1
9

5‐
Ye

ar
 B
re
ak
ev
en

10
‐Y
ea

r B
re
ak
ev
en



Re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

–
in

fla
tio

n 
&

 g
ro

w
th

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

H
is

to
ry

 
su

gg
es

ts
 

in
fla

tio
n 

ri
sk

s 
ar

e 
st

ill
 

pr
es

en
t a

t t
he

 
la

te
r 

st
ag

e 
of

 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 

cy
cl

e

In
fla

tio
n 

ri
sk

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

or
e 

ac
ut

e 
du

ri
ng

 la
te

 cy
cl

e 
&

 r
ec

es
si

on

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 V
er
us

11

‐4
%

‐2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

14
%

16
%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

U.S. Inflation (YoY)

U
.S
. R

ea
l G

DP
 (Y

oY
)

In
fla

tio
n
of
te
n 
ris
es
 th

ro
ug

h 
ec
on

om
ic
 p
ea

ks
 &

re
ce
ss
io
ns

‐4
%

‐2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

14
%

16
% Ja

n‐
68

Ja
n‐
78

Ja
n‐
88

Ja
n‐
98

Ja
n‐
08

Ja
n‐
18

U
.S
. C

PI
 Y
oY

U
.S
. R

ea
l G

DP
 G
ro
w
th
 Y
oY

In
fla

tio
n 
of
te
n 
ris
es
 th

ro
ug

h 
ec
on

om
ic
 p
ea

ks
 &
 re

ce
ss
io
ns



U
N
EM

PL
O
YM

EN
T 
R
A
TE

LO
N
G
‐T
ER

M
 E
M
PL

O
YM

EN
T 
&
 W

A
G
E 
G
R
O
W

TH
N
FI
B
: 
JO

B
S 
H
A
R
D
 T
O
 F
IL
L 
(3
‐M

O
N
TH

 A
V
G
)

La
bo

r m
ar

ke
t

Al
th
ou

gh
 th

er
e 
w
as
 s
om

e 
m
on

th
‐t
o‐
m
on

th
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 in
 jo

b 
gr
ow

th
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
qu

ar
te
r, 
ne

t a
dd

iti
on

s t
o 
no

n‐
fa
rm

 p
ay
ro
lls
 

av
er
ag
ed

 1
80

,0
00

 p
er
 m

on
th
. M

ea
nw

hi
le
, t
he

 U
‐3
 

un
em

pl
oy
m
en

t r
at
e 
fe
ll 
sli
gh

tly
 fr
om

 3
.9
%
 to

 3
.8
%
, j
us
t 

ab
ov
e 
th
e 
cy
cl
e 
lo
w
 o
f 3

.7
%
. T

he
 U
‐6
 u
ne

m
pl
oy
m
en

t r
at
e,
 

w
hi
ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 u
nd

er
em

pl
oy
ed

 a
nd

 d
isc

ou
ra
ge
d 
w
or
ke
rs
, f
el
l 

to
 a
 c
yc
le
 lo
w
 o
f 7

.3
%
. T

he
 sp

re
ad

 b
et
w
ee

n 
th
e 
U
‐6
 a
nd

 U
‐3
 

un
em

pl
oy
m
en

t r
at
es
 c
om

pr
es
se
d 
fr
om

 3
.7
%
 to

 3
.5
%
, t
he

 
sm

al
le
st
 d
iff
er
en

ce
 si
nc
e 
20

06
. T

he
 d
ec
lin

e 
in
 

un
de

re
m
pl
oy
ed

 a
nd

 d
isc

ou
ra
ge
d 
w
or
ke
rs
 in

di
ca
te
s a

 fu
rt
he

r 
tig

ht
en

in
g 
of
 th

e 
la
bo

r m
ar
ke
t. 

W
ag
es
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 g
ro
w
 a
t a

 m
od

es
t p

ac
e,
 b
ut
 n
ot
 fa

st
 

en
ou

gh
 to

 w
ar
ra
nt
 c
on

ce
rn
 o
ve
r c

or
po

ra
te
 m

ar
gi
n 

de
te
rio

ra
tio

n 
or
 a
 fl
ow

 th
ro
ug

h 
to
 g
en

er
al
 p
ric

e 
in
fla

tio
n.
 In

 
M
ar
ch
, a
ve
ra
ge
 h
ou

rly
 e
ar
ni
ng

s r
os
e 
3.
2%

 fr
om

 1
2 
m
on

th
s 

ag
o.
 

G
iv
en

 th
e 
re
la
tiv

el
y 
fe
w
 n
um

be
r o

f u
ne

m
pl
oy
ed

 p
er
so
ns
 a
nd

 
hi
gh

 p
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
of
 c
om

pa
ni
es
 re

po
rt
in
g 
th
at
 jo

bs
 a
re
 h
ar
d 
to
 

fil
l, 
w
e 
be

lie
ve
 it
 m

ay
 b
e 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
fo
r j
ob

 g
ro
w
th
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 
at
 it
s r
ec
en

t s
tr
on

g 
ra
te
.  

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s 3

/3
1/
19

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 S
ou

rc
e:
 N
FI
B,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

, n
et
 %
 o
f s
m
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s r
ep

or
tin

g 
th
at
 o
pe

n 
po

sit
io
ns
 a
re
 h
ar
d 
to
 fi
ll

12

3%7%

Se
p‐
16

Se
p‐
18

0%4%8%12
%

16
%

20
% Ju

n‐
05

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
09

M
ay
‐1
1
M
ay
‐1
3
M
ay
‐1
5

Ap
r‐
17

U
3

U
6

0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
% Ja

n‐
65

Ja
n‐
75

Ja
n‐
85

Ja
n‐
95

Ja
n‐
05

Ja
n‐
15

U
3 
U
ne

m
pl
oy

m
en

t
U
.S
. H

ou
rly

 W
ag
e 
G
ro
w
th
 (Y

oY
)

0510152025303540

Ja
n‐
86

Ja
n‐
91

Ja
n‐
96

Ja
n‐
01

Ja
n‐
06

Ja
n‐
11

Ja
n‐
16



R
EA

L 
CO

N
SU

M
ER

 S
PE

N
D
IN

G
 &

 R
ET

A
IL
 S
A
LE

S 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
A
U
TO

 S
A
LE

S
CO

N
SU

M
ER

 C
R
ED

IT
 O

U
TS

TA
N
D
IN

G
 (
YO

Y)

Th
e 

co
ns

um
er

Fe
br
ua

ry
 re

ta
il 
sa
le
s 
gr
ew

 2
.2
%
 y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐y
ea

r, 
re
bo

un
di
ng

 
fr
om

 a
 sh

ar
p 
slo

w
do

w
n 
in
 th

e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
. R

ea
l c
on

su
m
er
 

sp
en

di
ng

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
al
on

g 
at
 a
 m

od
es
t 1

.8
%
 p
ac
e 
fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev
io
us
 y
ea
r.

Fu
rt
he

r l
ab

or
 m

ar
ke
t s
tr
en

gt
h,
 w
ag
e 
ga
in
s,
 a
nd

 lo
w
 in

te
re
st
 

ra
te
s w

ou
ld
 li
ke
ly
 p
ro
vi
de

 su
pp

or
t f
or
 sp

en
di
ng

. C
on

su
m
er
 

be
ha

vi
or
 re

m
ai
ns
 c
on

se
rv
at
iv
e 
re
la
tiv

e 
to
 p
as
t c

yc
le
s,
 a
s 

in
di
ca
te
d 
by

 b
ro
ad

 sp
en

di
ng

 a
nd

 b
or
ro
w
in
g 
pa

tt
er
ns
. W

hi
le
 

co
ns
um

er
 c
re
di
t g

ro
w
th
 h
as
 b
ee

n 
fa
irl
y 
m
ut
ed

, o
th
er
 sp

ec
ifi
c 

sp
en

di
ng

 a
re
as
 su

ch
 a
s 
au

to
 sa

le
s 
w
er
e 
ve
ry
 st
ro
ng

 in
 re

ce
nt
 

ye
ar
s –

pe
rh
ap

s a
s 
co
ns
um

er
s 
pl
ay
ed

 c
at
ch
‐u
p 
fr
om

 
re
st
ra
in
ed

 p
ur
ch
as
es
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
gl
ob

al
 fi
na

nc
ia
l c
ris
is.

In
 2
01

8,
 th

er
e 
w
er
e 
ris
in
g 
co
nc
er
ns
 th

at
 h
ig
he

r i
nt
er
es
t r
at
es
 

w
ou

ld
 sq

ue
ez
e 
bu

dg
et
s a

nd
 le
ad

 to
 a
 sl
ow

do
w
n 
in
 sp

en
di
ng

 
an

d 
bu

sin
es
s 
ac
tiv

ity
. T
he

se
 fe

ar
s h

av
e 
su
bs
id
ed

 a
s 
in
te
re
st
 

ra
te
s h

av
e 
fa
lle
n 
ba

ck
 to

 p
re
vi
ou

s l
ev
el
s 
an

d 
th
e 
Fe
de

ra
l 

Re
se
rv
e 
is 
no

t e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 ra

ise
 ra

te
s i
n 
th
e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re
.

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
, a
s o

f 2
/2
8/
19

13

Av
er
ag

e

‐1
5%

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
% Ap

r‐
03

Ap
r‐
06

Ap
r‐
09

Ap
r‐
12

Ap
r‐
15

Ap
r‐
18

Co
ns
um

er
 S
pe

nd
in
g

Re
ta
il 
Sa
le
s

81012141618202224 Fe
b‐
82

Fe
b‐
92

Fe
b‐
02

Fe
b‐
12

Millions (annual)

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
% Fe

b‐
82

Ju
n‐
90

O
ct
‐9
8

Fe
b‐
07

Ju
n‐
15



203040506070

Ju
l‐9

2
Ju
l‐9

7
Ju
l‐0

2
Ju
l‐0

7
Ju
l‐1

2
Ju
l‐1

7

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
W
ee

kl
y 
Co

ns
um

er
 C
om

fo
rt
 In

de
x

CO
N
SU

M
ER

 C
O
M
FO

R
T 
IN

D
EX

CO
N
SU

M
ER

 S
EN

TI
M
EN

T
N
FI
B
 S
M
A
LL

 B
U
SI
N
ES

S 
O
PT

IM
IS
M
 I
N
D
EX

Se
nt

im
en

t
Co

ns
um

er
 s
en

tim
en

t i
nd

ic
at
or
s 
fe
ll 
sh
ar
pl
y 
in
 Ja

nu
ar
y 

be
fo
re
 re

bo
un

di
ng

 in
 F
eb

ru
ar
y 
an

d 
M
ar
ch
. T
he

 fa
ll 
in
 

se
nt
im

en
t e

ar
ly
 in

 th
e 
ye
ar
 w
as
 d
riv

en
 b
y 
m
or
e 
m
ut
ed

 
co
ns
um

er
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
gr
ow

th
, i
nf
lu
en

ce
d 
by
 

th
e 
se
ll‐
of
f i
n 
gl
ob

al
 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
ts
 a
nd

 th
e 
ex
te
nd

ed
 U
.S
. 

go
ve
rn
m
en

t s
hu

td
ow

n.
 H
ow

ev
er
, t
he

 U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f 

M
ic
hi
ga
n 
Co

ns
um

er
 S
en

tim
en

t I
nd

ex
 fi
ni
sh
ed

 th
e 
qu

ar
te
r 

at
 9
8.
4,
 s
lig
ht
ly
 a
bo

ve
 it
s D

ec
em

be
r r
ea

di
ng

 a
nd

 th
e 

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 C
on

su
m
er
 C
om

fo
rt
 In

de
x 
w
as
 a
t a

 c
yc
le
 h
ig
h.
 

Sm
al
l b

us
in
es
s 
se
nt
im

en
t c

on
tin

ue
d 
to
 tr
en

d 
lo
w
er
 fr
om

 
hi
st
or
ic
al
ly
 st
ro
ng

 le
ve
ls.
 T
he

 N
FI
B 
Sm

al
l B

us
in
es
s 

O
pt
im

ism
 In

de
x 
di
pp

ed
 fr
om

 1
04

.4
 in

 D
ec
em

be
r t
o 
10

1.
8 

in
 M

ar
ch
. T
he

 M
ar
ch
 re

ad
in
g 
of
 1
01

.8
 ra

nk
ed

 in
 th

e 
79

th

pe
rc
en

til
e 
ba

se
d 
on

 4
5 
ye
ar
s o

f h
ist
or
y.
 S
m
al
l b

us
in
es
s 

ow
ne

rs
’ e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 o
f f
ut
ur
e 
ec
on

om
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 

m
od

er
at
ed

 fu
rt
he

r i
n 
th
e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
. A

 n
et
 1
1%

 o
f s
m
al
l 

bu
sin

es
se
s 
ex
pe

ct
ed

 th
e 
ec
on

om
y 
to
 im

pr
ov
e,
 d
ow

n 
fr
om

 
16

%
 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f l
as
t y

ea
r a

nd
 5
0%

 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 2

01
6.
 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/2
4/
19

 (s
ee
 A
pp

en
di
x)

So
ur
ce
: U

ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 (s
ee
 A
pp

en
di
x)

So
ur
ce
: N

FI
B,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 (s
ee
 A
pp

en
di
x)

14

 4
0

 6
0

 8
0

 1
00

 1
20

 1
40

Ju
n‐
92

Ju
n‐
97

Ju
n‐
02

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
12

Ju
n‐
17

U
 o
f M

ic
hi
ga
n 
Co

ns
um

er
 S
en

tim
en

t S
ur
ve
y

8085909510
0

10
5

11
0 Ju
n‐
92

Ju
n‐
97

Ju
n‐
02

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
12

Ju
n‐
17

 9
0

 9
5

 1
0010
5 M

ar
‐1
8

Se
p‐
18

M
ar
‐1
9



01020304050607080 M
ay
‐0
5

M
ay
‐0
8

M
ay
‐1
1

M
ay
‐1
4

M
ay
‐1
7

N
A
H
B
 H

O
U
SI
N
G
 M

A
R
KE

T 
IN

D
EX

30
‐Y

EA
R
 F
IX
ED

 M
O
R
TG

A
G
E 
R
A
TE

M
ED

IA
N
 U

.S
. 
H
O
M
E 
SA

LE
S 
PR

IC
E

H
ou

si
ng

 
Th

e 
U.
S.
 h
ou

sin
g 
m
ar
ke
t r
em

ai
ns
 st
ro
ng

, t
ho

ug
h 
hi
gh

er
 

pr
ic
es
 h
av
e 
da

m
pe

ne
d 
af
fo
rd
ab

ili
ty
 a
nd

 le
d 
to
 le
ss
 d
em

an
d.
 

Ri
sin

g 
in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s i
n 
th
e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
 g
en

er
at
ed

 fe
ar
 o
f a

 
ho

us
in
g 
slo

w
do

w
n,
 a
s 
bo

rr
ow

in
g 
co
st
s 
ha

ve
 a
 la
rg
e 
im

pa
ct
 

on
 h
om

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 a
ct
iv
ity
. H

ow
ev
er
, a
 re

ve
rs
al
 o
f m

on
et
ar
y 

po
lic
y 
fr
om

 e
xp
ec
te
d 
tig

ht
en

in
g 
to
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
ne

ut
ra
lit
y 
(o
r 

ea
sin

g)
 h
as
 p
la
ce
d 
do

w
nw

ar
d 
pr
es
su
re
 o
n 
th
e 
30

‐y
ea

r f
ix
ed

 
m
or
tg
ag
e 
ra
te
. G

iv
en

 th
e 
im

po
rt
an

ce
 o
f b

or
ro
w
in
g 
co
st
s 
on

 
ho

us
in
g 
de

m
an

d,
 th

e 
m
ov
e 
fr
om

 4
.9
5%

 b
or
ro
w
in
g 
ra
te
s 

(p
ea

k 
re
ac
he

d 
in
 Q
4)
 to

 4
.0
5%

 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f Q

1 
sh
ou

ld
 e
as
e 

co
nc
er
ns
 o
f a

 sl
ow

do
w
n 
an

d 
bo

lst
er
 b
uy

in
g 
ac
tiv

ity
. 

Th
e 
N
at
io
na

l A
ss
oc
ia
tio

n 
of
 H
om

eb
ui
ld
er
s (
N
AH

B)
 H
ou

sin
g 

M
ar
ke
t I
nd

ex
, b

as
ed

 o
n 
a 
m
on

th
ly
 su

rv
ey
 o
f N

AH
B 
m
em

be
rs
 

de
sig

ne
d 
to
 ta

ke
 th

e 
pu

lse
 o
f t
he

 si
ng

le
‐fa

m
ily
 h
ou

sin
g 

m
ar
ke
t, 
im

pr
ov
ed

 fr
om

 5
6 
to
 6
2 
–
ab

ov
e 
th
e 
ne

ut
ra
l l
ev
el
 o
f 

50
. 

Ho
m
e 
pr
ic
es
 h
av
e 
fa
lte

re
d 
a 
bi
t, 
w
ith

 th
e 
m
ed

ia
n 
U.
S.
 h
om

e 
sa
le
s 
pr
ic
e 
fa
lli
ng

 ‐6
.1
%
 y
ea

r‐
ov
er
‐y
ea

r i
n 
Q
4.
 A
s 
is 
of
te
n 
th
e 

ca
se
, h

om
e 
pr
ic
e 
tr
en

ds
 c
an

 v
ar
y 
sig

ni
fic
an

tly
 fr
om

 c
ity

 to
 

ci
ty
, w

hi
ch
 m

ak
es
 a
nn

ua
l s
um

m
ar
y 
st
at
ist
ic
s 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 

in
te
rp
re
t o

n 
a 
lo
ca
l l
ev
el
.

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, N

AH
B,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 (s
ee
 a
pp

en
di
x)

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

So
ur
ce
: F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
8

15

Po
sit
iv
e 
pe

rc
ei
ve
d 
ho

us
in
g 

m
ar
ke
t c

on
di
tio

ns

N
eg
at
iv
e 
pe

rc
ei
ve
d 

ho
us
in
g 
m
ar
ke
t c
on

di
tio

ns

3.
0

3.
5

4.
0

4.
5

5.
0

5.
5

6.
0

6.
5

7.
0

7.
5 M
ay
‐0
5

M
ay
‐0
8

M
ay
‐1
1

M
ay
‐1
4

M
ay
‐1
7

4.
0

4.
5

5.
0 M
ay
‐1
8

Fe
b‐
19

$2
00

$2
20

$2
40

$2
60

$2
80

$3
00

$3
20

$3
40

$3
60 Ja

n‐
09

Ja
n‐
11

Ja
n‐
13

Ja
n‐
15

Ja
n‐
17

Thousands

U
.S
. M

ed
ia
n 
H
om

e 
Sa
le
s P

ric
e

M
ed

ia
n 
U
.S
. h

om
e 
sa
le
s 

pr
ic
e 
do

w
n 
‐6
%
 Y
oY



In
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
s s

um
m

ar
y

—
G
lo
ba

l g
ro
w
th
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 
ne

xt
 tw

o 
ye
ar
s w

er
e 
re
vi
se
d 

m
at
er
ia
lly
 lo
w
er
 in

 Q
1.
 T
he

 O
EC

D’
s 

gl
ob

al
 G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 fo

re
ca
st
 fo

r 
20

19
 a
nd

 2
02

0 
fe
ll 
fr
om

 3
.5
%
 to

 
3.
3%

, a
nd

 fr
om

 3
.5
%
 to

 3
.4
%
, 

re
sp
ec
tiv

el
y.
 

—
In
 M

ar
ch
, n

eg
ot
ia
tio

ns
 re

su
m
ed

 
be

tw
ee

n 
hi
gh

‐le
ve
l U

.S
. a
nd

 
Ch

in
es
e 
tr
ad

e 
de

le
ga
tio

ns
. T
he

 
di
al
og

ue
 w
as
 v
ie
w
ed

 a
s 

co
ns
tr
uc
tiv

e,
 a
nd

 o
pt
im

ism
 p
ic
ke
d 

up
 fo

r s
om

e 
so
rt
 o
f f
or
m
al
 tr
ad

e 
re
so
lu
tio

n 
be

in
g 
re
ac
he

d 
in
 th

e 
ne

ar
‐t
o‐
in
te
rm

ed
ia
te
 fu

tu
re
, 

al
th
ou

gh
 th

e 
tw

o 
sid

es
 h
av
e 
ye
t t
o 

ag
re
e 
on

 a
 fo

rm
al
 ti
m
el
in
e.
 

—
Th

e 
G
er
m
an

 M
an

uf
ac
tu
rin

g 
PM

I f
el
l 

fr
om

 4
7.
6 
to
 4
4.
1 
in
 M

ar
ch
, f
al
lin

g 
fu
rt
he

r i
nt
o 
th
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
io
na

ry
 

te
rr
ito

ry
 b
el
ow

 5
0.
 N
ew

 o
rd
er
s a

nd
 

ex
po

rt
 sa

le
s 
da

ta
 c
am

e 
in
 w
ea

ke
r 

th
an

 e
xp
ec
te
d 
w
hi
ch
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
ed

 to
 

a 
m
or
e 
pe

ss
im

ist
ic
 o
ut
lo
ok

 fo
r 

G
er
m
an

 m
an

uf
ac
tu
rin

g 
ac
tiv

ity
.

—
Th

e 
Ho

us
e 
of
 C
om

m
on

s 
in
 th

e 
Br
iti
sh
 P
ar
lia
m
en

t b
rie

fly
 to

ok
 

co
nt
ro
l o

f t
he

ir 
go

ve
rn
m
en

t’s
 

le
gi
sla

tiv
e 
ag
en

da
, b

ut
 fa

ile
d 
to
 

re
ac
h 
a 
m
aj
or
ity

 v
ot
e 
on

 a
 p
at
h 

fo
rw

ar
d.
 O
n 
Ap

ril
 1
0t
h,
 B
rit
ish

 
Pr
im

e 
M
in
ist
er
 T
he

re
sa
 M

ay
 a
nd

 
th
e 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 C
ou

nc
il 
ag
re
ed

 to
 

ex
te
nd

 th
e 
Br
ex
it 
de

ad
lin

e 
fr
om

 
Ap

ril
 1
2t
h 
to
 O
ct
ob

er
 3
1s
t. 

—
Th

e 
sp
re
ad

 b
et
w
ee

n 
th
e 
JP
 M

or
ga
n 

G
lo
ba

l S
er
vi
ce
s a

nd
 M

an
uf
ac
tu
rin

g 
PM

Is
 ro

se
 to

 3
.1
 in

 M
ar
ch
. L
as
t 

M
ar
ch
, t
he

 sp
re
ad

 w
as
 a
t 0

.0
, 

in
di
ca
tin

g 
th
at
 o
ve
r t
he

 p
as
t y

ea
r 

th
e 
ou

tlo
ok

 fo
r g

lo
ba

l 
m
an

uf
ac
tu
rin

g 
ac
tiv

ity
 h
as
 

w
ea

ke
ne

d 
re
la
tiv

e 
to
 th

e 
ou

tlo
ok

 
fo
r g

lo
ba

l s
er
vi
ce
s a

ct
iv
ity
. T
yp

ic
al
ly,
 

se
rv
ic
es
 a
ct
iv
ity

 is
 m

or
e 
re
sil
ie
nt
 to

 
a 
w
or
se
ni
ng

 e
co
no

m
ic
 b
ac
kd
ro
p.

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

16

Ar
ea

G
D
P 

(R
ea

l, 
Yo

Y)
In
fla

tio
n 

(C
PI
, Y

oY
) 

U
ne

m
pl
oy

m
en

t

U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es

3.
0%

12
/3
1/
18

1.
5%

2/
28

/1
9

3.
8%

3/
31

/1
9

Eu
ro
zo
ne

1.
1%

12
/3
1/
18

1.
4%

3/
31

/1
9

7.
8%

2/
28

/1
9

Ja
pa

n
0.
3%

12
/3
1/
18

0.
2%

2/
28

/1
9

2.
3%

2/
28

/1
9

BR
IC
S 

N
at
io
ns

5.
8%

12
/3
1/
18

2.
4%

3/
31

/1
9

5.
3%

12
/3
1/
18

Br
az
il

1.
1%

12
/3
1/
18

3.
9%

2/
28

/1
9

12
.2
%

3/
31

/1
9

Ru
ss
ia

2.
7%

12
/3
1/
18

5.
3%

3/
31

/1
9

4.
9%

2/
28

/1
9

In
di
a

7.
2%

12
/3
1/
18

2.
6%

2/
28

/1
9

8.
5%

12
/3
1/
17

Ch
in
a

6.
4%

12
/3
1/
18

1.
5%

2/
28

/1
9

3.
8%

12
/3
1/
18



R
EA

L 
G
D
P 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
IN

FL
A
TI
O
N
 (
CP

I 
YO

Y)
U
N
EM

PL
O
YM

EN
T 
R
A
TE

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l e
co

no
m

ic
s

G
lo
ba

l e
co
no

m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 tr
en

de
d 
lo
w
er
 o
ve
r t
he

 p
as
t 

qu
ar
te
r. 
M
os
t o

f t
he

 w
or
ld
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed

 a
 d
ec
el
er
at
io
n 
in
 

in
fla

tio
n,
 w
hi
le
 la
bo

r m
ar
ke
ts
 sh

ow
ed

 m
od

er
at
e 

im
pr
ov
em

en
t. 
G
lo
ba

l c
en

tr
al
 b
an

ks
 to

ok
 a
 m

or
e 
do

vi
sh
 

st
an

ce
 in

 re
sp
on

se
 to

 th
es
e 
co
nd

iti
on

s,
 w
hi
ch
 c
on

tr
ib
ut
ed

 to
 

a 
sh
ar
p 
de

cl
in
e 
in
 g
lo
ba

l s
ov
er
ei
gn

 y
ie
ld
s i
n 
M
ar
ch
.

Re
al
 G
DP

 in
 th

e 
Eu

ro
zo
ne

 d
ec
el
er
at
ed

 in
 Q
4 
fr
om

 1
.6
%
 to

 
1.
1%

 Y
oY

 a
s 
th
e 
re
gi
on

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 sh

ow
 w
ea

kn
es
s.
 

U
nc
er
ta
in
ty
 su

rr
ou

nd
in
g 
Br
ex
it,
 a
nd

 th
e 
de

pe
nd

en
ce
 o
f 

Eu
ro
pe

an
 e
co
no

m
ie
s 
on

 C
hi
na

 li
ke
ly
 fa

ct
or
ed

 in
to
 th

e 
re
gi
on

al
 o
ut
lo
ok

. A
dd

iti
on

al
ly,
 E
ur
op

e 
fa
ce
s 
sig

ni
fic
an

t 

st
ru
ct
ur
al
 is
su
es
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
 im

po
rt
an

t t
o 
m
on

ito
r, 
th
ou

gh
 

pe
rh
ap

s n
ot
 im

m
ed

ia
te
 in

 n
at
ur
e.
 A
s 
th
e 
EC

B 
be

gi
ns
 to

 
di
sc
us
s 
a 
tie

re
d,
 su

b‐
ze
ro
 in
te
re
st
 ra

te
 re

gi
m
e,
 th

e 
in
ab

ili
ty
 o
f 

EU
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 p
ur
su
e 
th
ei
r o

w
n 
fis
ca
l a
nd

 m
on

et
ar
y 

po
lic
ie
s 
co
ul
d 
pr
ol
on

g 
ec
on

om
ic
 s
lo
w
do

w
ns
 a
nd

 u
nd

er
m
in
e 

su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 re

co
ve
rie

s.

Fo
llo

w
in
g 
th
e 
fa
ilu

re
 o
f t
he

 H
ou

se
 o
f C

om
m
on

s 
in
 B
rit
ish

 
Pa
rli
am

en
t t
o 
ag
re
e 
on

 a
 B
re
xi
t s
tr
at
eg
y 
th
ro
ug

h 
“i
nd

ic
at
iv
e 

vo
te
s”
, P

rim
e 
M
in
ist
er
 T
he

re
sa
 M

ay
 n
eg
ot
ia
te
d 
an

 e
xt
en

sio
n 

of
 th

e 
Br
ex
it 
de

ad
lin

e 
fr
om

 A
pr
il 
12

th
to
 O
ct
ob

er
 3
1s

t .

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

G
lo

ba
l g

ro
w

th
 

fo
re

ca
st

s 
w

er
e 

re
vi

se
d 

lo
w

er

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
8

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 2
/2
8/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 2
/2
8/
19

 o
r m

os
t r
ec
en

t r
el
ea

se

17

‐6
%

‐3
%0%3%6%9%12
% De

c‐
03

Se
p‐
06

Ju
n‐
09

M
ar
‐1
2

De
c‐
14

Se
p‐
17

U
.S
.

Ja
pa

n
Eu

ro
zo
ne

BR
IC
S

‐4
%

‐2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
% Ju

n‐
00

Ap
r‐
04

Fe
b‐
08

De
c‐
11

O
ct
‐1
5

U
.S
.

Ja
pa

n
Ch

in
a

U
.K
.

Eu
ro
zo
ne

0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

14
% De

c‐
03

Se
p‐
06

Ju
n‐
09

M
ar
‐1
2

De
c‐
14

Se
p‐
17

U
.S
.

Eu
ro
zo
ne

Ja
pa

n
BR

IC
S

0%2%4%

De
c‐
17

De
c‐
18



Fi
xe

d 
in

co
m

e 
ra

te
s &

 cr
ed

it

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

18



In
te

re
st

 ra
te

 e
nv

ir
on

m
en

t
—

Th
e 
Fe
de

ra
l R
es
er
ve
 h
el
d 
th
e 
fe
d 

fu
nd

s r
at
e 
un

ch
an

ge
d 
ov
er
 th

e 
qu

ar
te
r, 
an

d 
co
m
m
un

ic
at
ed

 a
 m

uc
h 

m
or
e 
do

vi
sh
 st
an

ce
 o
n 
m
on

et
ar
y 

po
lic
y 
am

id
 sl
ow

er
 g
ro
w
th
 

ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 a
nd

 st
ab

le
 in

fla
tio

n 
ne

ar
 2
%
. 

—
Fe
d 
of
fic
ia
ls 
lo
w
er
ed

 th
ei
r c

ol
le
ct
iv
e 

ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 fo

r r
at
e 
hi
ke
s 
in
 2
01

9 
fr
om

 tw
o 
to
 ze

ro
, a
nd

 a
nn

ou
nc
ed

 
th
at
 th

e 
ba

la
nc
e 
sh
ee

t u
nw

in
d 

w
ou

ld
 c
on

cl
ud

e 
in
 S
ep

te
m
be

r, 
m
uc
h 

ea
rli
er
 th

an
 p
re
vi
ou

sly
 a
nt
ic
ip
at
ed

. 

—
M
or
e 
do

vi
sh
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 fo

r 
m
on

et
ar
y 
po

lic
y 
an

d 
co
nc
er
ns
 o
ve
r 

ec
on

om
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 li
ke
ly
 h
el
pe

d 
pu

sh
 

lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 T
re
as
ur
y 
yi
el
ds
 lo
w
er
. T
he

 
10

‐y
ea

r y
ie
ld
 fe

ll 
28

 b
ps
 to

 ju
st
 

ab
ov
e 
2.
4%

. 

—
Fa
lli
ng

 lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 y
ie
ld
s a

nd
 st
ab

le
 

sh
or
t‐
te
rm

 y
ie
ld
s l
ed

 to
 a
 b
rie

f 
in
ve
rs
io
n 
of
 th

e 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 c
ur
ve
 

be
tw

ee
n 
th
e 
10

‐y
ea

r a
nd

 3
‐m

on
th
 

yi
el
ds
. 

—
W
hi
le
 w
id
el
y 
co
ns
id
er
ed

 a
 b
ea

ris
h 

sig
na

l f
or
 th

e 
ec
on

om
y 
an

d 
ris
k 

m
ar
ke
ts
, t
he

 ti
m
in
g 
be

tw
ee

n 
cu
rv
e 

in
ve
rs
io
n 
an

d 
be

ar
ish

 e
co
no

m
ic
 a
nd

 
m
ar
ke
t e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts
 h
as
 v
ar
ie
d 

w
id
el
y.
 A
dd

iti
on

al
ly,
 F
ed

 a
ss
et
 

pu
rc
ha

se
s o

f l
on

g‐
te
rm

 T
re
as
ur
ie
s 

ha
s a

rt
ifi
ci
al
ly
 lo
w
er
ed

 y
ie
ld
s a

nd
 

m
ud

di
ed

 th
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
co
nv
ey
ed

 
by
 th

e 
yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e.

—
Th

e 
EC

B 
al
so
 p
iv
ot
ed

 to
 a
 m

or
e 

do
vi
sh
 st
an

ce
 a
s o

ffi
ci
al
s 
an

no
un

ce
d 

th
at
 d
ep

os
it 
ra
te
s w

ill
 b
e 
on

 h
ol
d 

th
ro
ug

h 
at
 le
as
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t
he

 y
ea

r. 

—
Th

e 
10

‐y
ea

r G
er
m
an

 b
un

d 
yi
el
d 

di
pp

ed
 b
ac
k 
in
to
 n
eg
at
iv
e 
te
rr
ito

ry
 

fo
r t
he

 fi
rs
t t
im

e 
sin

ce
 la
te
 2
01

6.
 

—
Em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t l
oc
al
 b
on

ds
 o
ffe

r 
at
tr
ac
tiv

e 
yi
el
ds
 re

la
tiv

e 
to
 

de
ve
lo
pe

d 
m
ar
ke
ts
, e
ve
n 
af
te
r 

ad
ju
st
in
g 
fo
r i
nf
la
tio

n.
 T
he

 JP
M
 G
BI
‐

EM
 In

de
x 
yi
el
de

d 
7%

 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

M
ar
ch
. 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

19

Ar
ea

Sh
or
tT

er
m
 (3

M
)

10
‐Y
ea

r

U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es

2.
39

%
2.
41

%

G
er
m
an

y
(0
.5
3%

)
(0
.0
7%

)

Fr
an

ce
(0
.5
4%

)
0.
32

%

Sp
ai
n

(0
.4
0%

)
1.
10

%

Ita
ly

(0
.2
0%

)
2.
49

%

G
re
ec
e

0.
87

%
3.
73

%

U.
K.

0.
80

%
1.
00

%

Ja
pa

n
(0
.1
7%

)
0.
08

%

Au
st
ra
lia

1.
68

%
1.
77

%

Ch
in
a

2.
08

%
3.
07

%

Br
az
il

6.
31

%
8.
97

%

Ru
ss
ia

7.
35

%
8.
41

%



Yi
el

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

20

YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
E 
CH

A
N
G
ES

 O
V
ER

 L
A
ST

 F
IV

E 
YE

A
R
S

IM
PL

IE
D
 C
H
A
N
G
ES

 O
V
ER

 N
EX

T 
YE

A
R
 

U
.S
. 
YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
E

G
LO

B
A
L 
G
O
V
ER

N
M
EN

T 
YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
ES

‐1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%

1M
2M

3M
6M

1Y
2Y

3Y
5Y

7Y
10

Y
12

Y
15

Y
20

Y
30

Y

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 3
/3
1/
19

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
7

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
6

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/1
0

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 1
2/
31

/0
5

‐1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

4Y
5Y

7Y
9Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry
 C
ur
ve
 3
/3
1/
19

Ja
pa

n 
Cu

rv
e 
3/
31

/1
9

Ca
na

da
 C
ur
ve
 3
/3
1/
19

G
er
m
an

y 
Cu

rv
e 
3/
31

/1
9

U
ni
te
d 
Ki
ng

do
m
 C
ur
ve
 3
/3
1/
19

Fr
an

ce
 C
ur
ve
 3
/3
1/
19

Ita
ly
 C
ur
ve
 3
/3
1/
19

Ch
in
a 
Cu

rv
e 
3/
31

/1
9

‐0
.3

‐0
.10.
1

0.
3

0.
5

0.
7

0.
9

1.
1

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

4Y
5Y

7Y
9Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

Yield Change (%)

U
S 
Tr
ea

su
ry

U
K 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Ja
pa

n 
Tr
ea

su
ry

G
er
m
an

y 
Tr
ea

su
ry

Ca
na

da
 T
re
as
ur
y

Fr
an

ce
 T
re
as
ur
y

Ita
ly
 T
re
as
ur
y

‐3
%

‐2
%

‐1
%0%1%2%3%

1M
3M

6M
1Y

2Y
3Y

4Y
5Y

7Y
9Y

10
Y

12
Y

15
Y

20
Y

30
Y

U
S

Ja
pa

n
Ca

na
da

G
er
m
an

y

U
ni
te
d 
Ki
ng

do
m

Fr
an

ce
Ita

ly
Ch

in
a



Th
e 
dr
op

 in
 lo

ng
‐t
er
m
 T
re
as
ur
y 
yi
el
ds
 fo

llo
w
in
g 
th
e 
Fe
d 

m
ee

tin
g 
in
 M

ar
ch
 b
rie

fly
 c
au

se
d 
th
e 
yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e 
to
 

in
ve
rt
, m

ea
ni
ng

 th
at
 sh

or
t‐
te
rm

 y
ie
ld
s (
3‐
m
on

th
) w

er
e 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 y
ie
ld
s (
10

‐y
ea

r)
. I
nv
es
to
rs
 h
av
e 

w
id
el
y 
co
ns
id
er
ed

 y
ie
ld
 c
ur
ve
 in
ve
rs
io
n 
as
 a
 si
gn

 th
at
 

th
e 
ec
on

om
ic
 c
yc
le
 is
 c
om

in
g 
to
 a
n 
en

d.
 A
t a

 h
ig
h 
le
ve
l, 

th
e 
sh
ap

e 
of
 th

e 
yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e 
te
lls
 in
ve
st
or
s s

om
et
hi
ng

 
ab

ou
t w

ha
t t
he

 m
ar
ke
t i
s 
ex
pe

ct
in
g.
 A
ll 
el
se
 e
qu

al
, w

he
n 

th
e 
cu
rv
e 
is 
st
ee

p,
 m

ar
ke
ts
 a
re
 e
xp
ec
tin

g 
a 
po

sit
iv
e 

gr
ow

th
 e
nv
iro

nm
en

t a
nd

 w
he

n 
th
e 
cu
rv
e 
is 
fla

t o
r 

in
ve
rt
ed

, m
ar
ke
ts
 a
re
 e
xp
ec
tin

g 
a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
gr
ow

th
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
t.

W
hi
le
 w
e 
ha

ve
 p
re
vi
ou

sly
 n
ot
ed

 th
at
 th

e 
w
id
e 
ra
ng

e 
of
 

tim
in
g 
be

tw
ee

n 
cu
rv
e 
in
ve
rs
io
n 
an

d 
re
ce
ss
io
n 
ha

s m
ad

e 
th
e 
sig

na
l l
es
s 
us
ef
ul
, i
t i
s 
al
so
 im

po
rt
an

t t
o 
no

te
 th

at
 

th
e 
Fe
d’
s p

ur
ch
as
es
 o
f T
re
as
ur
ie
s h

as
 a
rt
ifi
ci
al
ly
 lo
w
er
ed

 
lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 y
ie
ld
s.
 T
he

re
fo
re
, F
ed

 p
ol
ic
y 
ha

s o
bs
cu
re
d 
th
e 

m
ar
ke
t’s
 e
xp
ec
ta
tio

n 
of
 fu

tu
re
 g
ro
w
th
 th

at
 is
 e
m
be

dd
ed

 
in
 th

e 
sh
ap

e 
of
 th

e 
yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e.
 A
lth

ou
gh

 w
e 
ar
e 
al
w
ay
s 

w
ar
y 
of
 “
th
is 
tim

e 
is 
di
ffe

re
nt
” 
ar
gu

m
en

ts
, w

e 
be

lie
ve
 

th
at
 th

e 
re
ce
nt
 y
ie
ld
 c
ur
ve
 in
ve
rs
io
n 
is 
no

t s
ig
na

lin
g 
an

 
im

m
in
en

t r
ec
es
sio

n.
 

‐6
%

‐4
%

‐2
%0%2%4%6%

Ja
n‐
62

Ja
n‐
72

Ja
n‐
82

Ja
n‐
92

Ja
n‐
02

Ja
n‐
12

10
‐Y

EA
R
 M

IN
U
S 
3‐
M
O
N
TH

 T
R
EA

SU
R
Y 
YI
EL

D
 C
U
R
V
E

TI
M
E 
FR

O
M
 C
U
R
V
E 
IN

V
ER

SI
O
N
 T
O
 T
H
E 
N
EX

T 
R
EC

ES
SI
O
N

Yi
el

d 
cu

rv
e 

in
ve

rs
io

n

St
ar
t o

f C
ur
ve
 

In
ve

rs
io
n

Be
gi
nn

in
g 
of
 N
ex
t 

Re
ce
ss
io
n

M
on

th
s F

ro
m
 

In
ve

rs
io
n 
to
 R
ec
es
si
on

Ja
n‐
66

De
c‐
69

23
De

c‐
68

De
c‐
69

12
Ju
n‐
73

N
ov

‐7
3

5
N
ov

‐7
8

Ja
n‐
80

14
O
ct
‐8
0

Ju
l‐8

1
9

M
ar
‐8
9

Ju
l‐9

0
15

Ju
l‐0

0
M
ar
‐0
1

8
Ja
n‐
06

De
c‐
07

23
Av

er
ag
e

13
.6

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nv

ey
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

sh
ap

e 
of

 th
e 

yi
el

d 
cu

rv
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
ob

sc
ur

ed
 b

y 
Fe

d 
as

se
t p

ur
ch

as
es

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

, r
ec
es
sio

ns
 a
re
 sh

ad
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 
da

te
s d

ef
in
ed

 b
y 
N
BE

R 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, r
ec
es
sio

n 
da

te
s d

ef
in
ed

 b
y 
N
BE

R

21



Eu
ro

zo
ne

 m
on

et
ar

y 
po

lic
y

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 1
/3
1/
19

 

22

TL
TR

O
 I

TL
TR

O
 II

—
Th

e 
Eu

ro
pe

an
 C
en

tr
al
 B
an

k 
(E
CB

) f
ol
lo
w
ed

 th
e 
Fe
d 
by

 
pi
vo
tin

g 
to
 a
 m

or
e 
do

vi
sh
 m

on
et
ar
y 
po

lic
y 
st
an

ce
 a
m
id
 

ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 o
f s
lo
w
er
 e
co
no

m
ic
 g
ro
w
th
 a
nd

 m
ut
ed

 
in
fla

tio
n.
 E
CB

 o
ffi
ci
al
s’
 la
te
st
 g
ro
w
th
 fo

re
ca
st
s 
sh
ow

 th
ey
 

ex
pe

ct
 o
nl
y 
1.
1%

 re
al
 G
DP

 g
ro
w
th
 in

 2
01

9.
 

—
To
 c
ou

nt
er
ac
t a

 p
ot
en

tia
l g
ro
w
th
 sl
ow

do
w
n,
 th

e 
EC

B 
an

no
un

ce
d 
a 
th
ird

 ro
un

d 
of
 ta

rg
et
ed

 lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 

re
fin

an
ci
ng

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 (T

LT
RO

) a
nd

 th
at
 it
 w
ill
 k
ee

p 
de

po
sit
 ra

te
s o

n 
ho

ld
 th

ro
ug

h 
at
 le
as
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t
he

 y
ea

r. 
In
 th

e 
TL
TR

O
 p
ro
gr
am

, t
he

 E
CB

 g
iv
es
 o
ut
 c
he

ap
 sh

or
t‐

te
rm

 fi
na

nc
in
g 
to
 b
an

ks
 w
ith

 in
ce
nt
iv
es
 fo

r t
he

m
 to

 le
nd

 
th
is 
m
on

ey
 o
ut
 to

 c
or
po

ra
tio

ns
 a
nd

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s.
 

—
A 
to
ta
l o

f €
73

9 
bi
lli
on

 w
er
e 
le
nt
 o
ut
 in

 th
e 
fir
st
 tw

o 
ro
un

ds
 o
f T

LT
RO

s,
 w
hi
ch
 h
el
pe

d 
le
ad

 to
 a
 m

od
es
t p

ic
k 
up

 
in
 b
an

k 
le
nd

in
g 
gr
ow

th
. W

hi
le
 th

is 
ro
un

d 
of
 T
LT
RO

s 
m
ay
 

le
ad

 to
 b
an

ks
 ro

lli
ng

 o
ve
r p

re
vi
ou

s l
oa

ns
, i
t i
s n

ot
 li
ke
ly
 to

 
re
su
lt 
in
 a
 si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 le
nd

in
g 
as
 th

e 
Eu

ro
zo
ne

 
al
re
ad

y 
ha

s a
m
pl
e 
liq

ui
di
ty
 a
nd

 c
re
di
t d

em
an

d 
re
m
ai
ns
 

w
ea

k.
 

—
De

sp
ite

 th
es
e 
re
ce
nt
 st
ep

s,
 th

e 
EC

B 
ha

s l
im

ite
d 
ab

ili
ty
 to

 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
ea

se
. T
hi
s 
pu

ts
 th

e 
re
gi
on

 a
t r
isk

 o
f a

 se
lf‐

re
in
fo
rc
in
g 
do

w
nt
ur
n 
if 
co
nd

iti
on

s w
er
e 
to
 w
or
se
n,
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
 si
nc
e 
co
un

tr
ie
s a

lso
 h
av
e 
lit
tle

 ro
om

 to
 

pr
ov
id
e 
fis
ca
l s
tim

ul
us
.  

‐4
%

‐2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

14
% M

ar
‐0
4

Se
p‐
05

M
ar
‐0
7

Se
p‐
08

M
ar
‐1
0

Se
p‐
11

M
ar
‐1
3

Se
p‐
14

M
ar
‐1
6

Se
p‐
17

Lending growth (YoY)

TL
TR

O
 I TL
TR

O
 II

EU
R
O
ZO

N
E 
B
A
N
K 
LE

N
D
IN

G
 T
O
 H

O
U
SE

H
O
LD

S 
&
 C
O
R
PO

R
A
TE

S



M
ar
ke

t

Cr
ed

it 
Sp

re
ad

 (O
AS

)

3/
31

/1
9

3/
31

/1
8

Lo
ng

 U
.S
. C

or
p

1.
7%

1.
5%

U
.S
. A

gg
 C
or
p

1.
2%

1.
1%

U
.S
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

3.
9%

3.
5%

U
.S
. B

an
k 
Lo
an

s*
4.
4%

3.
9%

SP
R
EA

D
S

H
IG

H
 Y
IE
LD

 S
EC

TO
R
 S
PR

EA
D
S 
(B

PS
)

Cr
ed

it 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

C
re

di
t s

pr
ea

ds
 

w
id

en
ed

 d
ue

 to
 

co
nc

er
ns

 o
ve

r 
sl

ow
in

g 
gl

ob
al

 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 
br

oa
de

r 
ri

sk
-

of
f b

eh
av

io
r

So
ur
ce
: B

ar
cl
ay
s,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

ar
cl
ay
s,
 C
re
di
t S

ui
ss
e,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

*D
isc

ou
nt
 m

ar
gi
n 
(4
‐y
ea

r l
ife

)

23

Hi
gh

 y
ie
ld
 b
on

d 
yi
el
ds
 fe

ll 
in
 M

ar
ch
, i
m
pa

ct
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
Fe
d’
s 

pa
us
e 
in
 th

e 
hi
ki
ng

 c
yc
le
. A

nt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
of
 a
n 
ea

sie
r p

ol
ic
y,
 w
hi
ch
 

co
ul
d 
po

te
nt
ia
lly
 le
ng

th
en

 th
e 
cr
ed

it 
cy
cl
e,
 h
as
 st
re
ng

th
en

ed
 

se
nt
im

en
t f
or
 ri
sk
 a
ss
et
s.
 B
B‐
ra
te
d 
bo

nd
s o

ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 b
ot
h 

CC
C‐

an
d 
B‐
ra
te
d 
bo

nd
s i
n 
M
ar
ch
. H

ig
h 
yi
el
d 
bo

nd
s r
et
ur
ne

d 
7.
3%

 Y
TD

 w
hi
ch
 is
 th

e 
st
ro
ng

es
t s
ta
rt
 to

 a
 c
al
en

da
r y

ea
r o

n 
re
co
rd
 fo

r t
he

 a
ss
et
 c
la
ss
 s
in
ce
 2
00

3.
 

Le
ve
ra
ge
d 
lo
an

 p
ric

es
 d
ec
lin

ed
 d
ur
in
g 
M
ar
ch
 a
s 
th
e 
as
se
t c

la
ss
 

de
al
s w

ith
 o
ut
flo

w
s 
an

d 
a 
pa

us
e 
in
 th

e 
Fe
d’
s h

ik
in
g 
cy
cl
e.
 T
he

 
ou

tf
lo
w
s 
ha

ve
 e
xc
ee

de
d 
$3

0 
bi
lli
on

 o
ve
r t
he

 p
as
t t
w
o 
qu

ar
te
rs
 

w
hi
ch
 re

pr
es
en

ts
 2
0%

 o
f a

ss
et
s 
un

de
r m

an
ag
em

en
t, 
ac
co
rd
in
g 

to
 J.
P.
 M

or
ga
n.
 L
ev
er
ag
ed

 lo
an

s h
av
e 
re
tu
rn
ed

 3
.8
%
 Y
TD

, 
un

de
rp
er
fo
rm

in
g 
bo

th
 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
an

d 
in
ve
st
m
en

t g
ra
de

 b
on

ds
.  

Ba
se
d 
on

 c
on

ce
rn
s o

ve
r l
at
e‐
cy
cl
e 
be

ha
vi
or
 in
 c
re
di
t m

ar
ke
ts
, 

w
e 
do

 n
ot
 b
el
ie
ve
 in
ve
st
or
s a

re
 b
ei
ng

 a
de

qu
at
el
y 
co
m
pe

ns
at
ed

 
fo
r c

re
di
t r
isk

. L
at
e‐
cy
cl
e 
vo
la
til
ity

 te
nd

s t
o 
co
in
ci
de

 w
ith

 a
 ju

m
p 

in
 c
re
di
t s
pr
ea

ds
 a
nd

 st
ee

p 
cr
ed

it 
lo
ss
es
. A

n 
un

de
rw

ei
gh

t t
o 

U.
S.
 in
ve
st
m
en

t g
ra
de

, h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
cr
ed

it,
 a
nd

 b
an

k 
lo
an

s 
m
ay
 b
e 

w
ar
ra
nt
ed

. W
ith

in
 c
re
di
t, 
hi
gh

er
 q
ua

lit
y 
an

d 
m
or
e 
liq

ui
d 
as
se
ts
 

ap
pe

ar
 m

os
t a

tt
ra
ct
iv
e.
  

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
% De

c‐
99

De
c‐
03

De
c‐
07

De
c‐
11

De
c‐
15

Ba
rc
la
ys
 L
on

g 
U
S 
Co

rp
.

Ba
rc
la
ys
 U
S 
Ag

g.
Ba

rc
la
ys
 U
S 
H
Y

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
HY

 E
ne

rg
y

IG
 E
ne

rg
y

20
0

50
0

80
0

11
00

14
00 De

c‐
14

M
ay
‐1
6

Se
p‐
17

Fe
b‐
19

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
HY

 E
ne

rg
y

U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

ns
Di
sc
. O

AS
U
SD

 H
Y 
Fi
na

nc
ia
ls 
Sn

r O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

m
m
. O

AS
U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

m
m
. O

AS
U
SD

 H
Y 
M
at
er
ia
ls 
O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
Te
ch
no

lo
gy
 O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
In
du

st
ria

l O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
He

al
th
Ca

re
 O
AS

U
SD

 H
Y 
Co

ns
St
ap

le
 O
AS

0%5%

M
ay
‐1
8

N
ov

‐1
8



Cr
ed

it 
is

 se
ns

iti
ve

 to
 e

qu
ity

 v
ol

at
ili

ty

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

W
he

n 
vo

la
til

ity
 

ri
se

s,
 h

ig
he

r 
ri

sk
 c

re
di

t 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
s 

lo
ss

es

So
ur
ce
: C

bo
e,
 F
RE

D,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

24

010203040506070

0510152025

Ja
n‐
97

Ja
n‐
00

Ja
n‐
03

Ja
n‐
06

Ja
n‐
09

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
15

Ja
n‐
18

VI
X 
(R
HS

)
HY

 S
pr
ea
d 
(L
HS

)

H
IG

H
 Y
IE
LD

 B
O
N
D
 S
PR

EA
D
S 
&
 V
O
LA

TI
LI
TY



De
fa
ul
t a

ct
iv
ity

 h
as
 b
ee

n 
lo
w
 a
nd

 st
ab

le
 in

 th
e 
U.
S.
 c
re
di
t 

m
ar
ke
t, 
de

sp
ite

 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 in
 sp

re
ad

s.
 T
he

 p
ar
‐w

ei
gh

te
d 
de

fa
ul
t 

ra
te
 d
ec
lin

ed
 to

 0
.9
%
 a
nd

 re
m
ai
ns
 b
el
ow

 it
s 
lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 a
ve
ra
ge
 

ra
ng

e 
of
 3
.0
‐3
.5
%
. F
or
 lo

an
s,
 th

e 
pa

r‐
w
ei
gh

te
d 
de

fa
ul
t r
at
e 
at
 

th
e 
en

d 
of
 M

ar
ch
 w
as
 1
.0
%
, i
ts
 lo

w
es
t l
ev
el
 si
nc
e 
Ap

ril
 2
01

2 
(0
.8
%
), 
ac
co
rd
in
g 
to
 d
at
a 
fr
om

 JP
M
or
ga
n.
 S
ec
to
rs
 th

at
 h
av
e 

be
en

 m
or
e 
pr
on

e 
to
 d
ef
au

lts
 in
cl
ud

e:
 c
on

su
m
er
, r
et
ai
l, 

te
le
co
m
, a
nd

 a
ut
om

ot
iv
e.
 T
he

 2
01

8 
lo
an

 p
ar
‐w

ei
gh

te
d 
de

fa
ul
t 

ra
te
 w
as
 1
.6
%
. 

Se
ni
or
 lo

an
 a
nd

 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
m
ar
ke
ts
ha

ve
 e
ss
en

tia
lly
 

re
co
ve
re
d
fr
om

 a
 w
av
e 
of
 d
ef
au

lts
 se

en
 in

 2
01

5‐
20

16
 th

at
 w
er
e 

ge
ne

ra
te
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
en

er
gy
 a
nd

 m
et
al
s/
m
in
in
g 
se
ct
or
s.
 H
ig
h 

yi
el
d 
bo

nd
 re

co
ve
ry
 ra

te
s h

av
e 
im

pr
ov
ed

 si
gn

ifi
ca
nt
ly
 si
nc
e 
th
at
 

tim
e.

G
ro
ss
 h
ig
h 
yi
el
d 
iss

ue
 a
ct
iv
ity

 in
cr
ea

se
d 
in
 M

ar
ch
 to

 th
e 
hi
gh

es
t 

le
ve
l s
ee

n 
sin

ce
 M

ar
ch
 o
f 2

01
8.
 L
oa

n 
m
ar
ke
t i
ss
ua

nc
e 
is 

sig
ni
fic
an

tly
 b
eh

in
d 
la
st
 y
ea

r’s
 p
ac
e,
 li
ke
ly
 in
flu

en
ce
d 
by
 a
 lo
w
er
 

de
m
an

d 
fo
r f
lo
at
in
g 
ra
te
 se

cu
rit
ie
s n

ow
 th

at
 th

e 
Fe
d 
ha

s 
pa

us
ed

 m
on

et
ar
y 
tig

ht
en

in
g.
 

H
Y 
D
EF

A
U
LT

 R
A
TE

 (
R
O
LL

IN
G
 1
‐Y

EA
R
)

U
.S
. 
H
Y 
SE

CT
O
R
 D

EF
A
U
LT

S 
(L
A
ST

 1
2 
M
O
N
TH

S)
G
LO

B
A
L 
IS
SU

A
N
CE

 (
$ 
B
IL
LI
O
N
S)

D
ef

au
lt 

&
 is

su
an

ce

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

of
A
M
er
ril
l L
yn
ch
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

of
A
M
er
ril
l L
yn
ch
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 –
pa

r w
ei
gh

te
d

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, B

of
A
M
er
ril
l L
yn
ch
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 

25

0

10
0

20
0

30
0

40
0

50
0

60
0

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$ Billion

G
lo
ba

l B
an

k 
Lo
an

 Is
su
an

ce
G
lo
ba

l H
Y 
Is
su
an

ce

0%5%10
%

15
% Ja

n‐
01

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
07

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
13

Ja
n‐
16

Ja
n‐
19

De
ve
lo
pe

d 
M
ar
ke
t H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

U
S 
Hi
gh

 Y
ie
ld

U
S 
Ex
 C
om

m
od

iti
es

0%
1%

2%
3%

4%
5%

6%

Ca
pi
ta
l G

oo
ds

Co
m
m
er
ci
al
 S
er
vi
ce
s

Fi
na

nc
ia
ls

Fo
od

G
am

in
g

He
al
th
 C
ar
e

Ho
te
ls
 &
 L
ei
su
re

M
at
er
ia
ls

Re
al
 E
st
at
e

Te
ch
no

lo
gy

Tr
an

sp
or
ta
tio

n
U
til
iti
es

En
er
gy

M
ed

ia
Te

le
co
m
m
un

ic
at
io
ns

Re
ta
il

Au
to
m
ot
iv
e

Co
ns
um

er
 P
ro
du

ct
s

0%2%4%

Ja
n‐
18

Ja
n‐
19



Pr
iv

at
e 

cr
ed

it
Fu

nd
ra
isi
ng

 in
 th

e 
pr
iv
at
e 
cr
ed

it 
m
ar
ke
t s
lo
w
ed

 th
ro
ug

h 
ye
ar
‐e
nd

 2
01

8.
  A

 to
ta
l o

f 1
63

 fu
nd

s 
cl
os
ed

 o
n 
$1

10
 

bi
lli
on

 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
, w

hi
ch
 w
as
 d
ow

n 
fr
om

 1
89

 fu
nd

s 
an

d 
$1

29
 b
ill
io
n 
in
 2
01

7.
  D

ire
ct
 le
nd

in
g,
 m

ez
za
ni
ne

, a
nd

 
di
st
re
ss
ed

 d
eb

t w
er
e 
th
e 
m
os
t a

ct
iv
e 
st
ra
te
gi
es
, r
ai
sin

g 
$4

5 
bi
lli
on

, $
31

 b
ill
io
n,
 a
nd

 $
21

 b
ill
io
n,
 re

sp
ec
tiv

el
y.
  E
ve
n 

w
ith

 sl
ow

er
 fu

nd
ra
isi
ng

, d
ry
 p
ow

de
r i
n 
pr
iv
at
e 
cr
ed

it 
is 
at
 

re
co
rd
 le
ve
ls.
  P
riv

at
e 
de

bt
 d
ry
 p
ow

de
r a

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 2

01
8 

w
as
 $
28

0 
bi
lli
on

, w
hi
ch
 b
ea
t t
he

 2
01

7 
re
co
rd
 o
f $

24
6 

bi
lli
on

.  

Yi
el
ds
 fo

r l
oa

ns
 m

ad
e 
by

 d
ire

ct
 le
nd

in
g 
fu
nd

s 
fin

ish
ed

 
M
ar
ch
 a
t 8

.5
%
. W

hi
le
 y
ie
ld
s 
ha

ve
 b
ee

n 
ai
de

d 
by
 s
lig
ht
ly
 

hi
gh

er
 L
IB
O
R 
ra
te
s,
 w
hi
ch
 g
re
w
 fr
om

 2
.3
%
 to

 2
.6
%
 y
ea

r‐
to
‐d
at
e,
 sp

re
ad

s 
in
cr
ea

se
d 
fr
om

 4
.3
%
 to

 5
.9
%
 y
ea

r‐
to
‐

da
te
.

Cr
ed

it 
sp
re
ad

s 
ex
pa

nd
ed

 in
 th

e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
, a
lo
ng

 w
ith

 
th
e 
de

bt
 m

ul
tip

le
s 
fo
r b

or
ro
w
er
s.
  B

or
ro
w
er
s n

ow
 a
ve
ra
ge
 

de
bt
 to

ta
lin

g 
5.
9x
 E
BI
TD

A 
at
 th

e 
en

d 
of
 M

ar
ch
, a
 0
.4
x 

in
cr
ea

se
 fr
om

 o
ne

 y
ea

r p
rio

r. 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

Fu
nd

ra
is

in
g 

sl
ow

ed
 in

 
pr

iv
at

e 
cr

ed
it 

la
st

 y
ea

r 

So
ur
ce
: T
he

 L
ea

d 
Le
ft
, M

id
dl
e 
M
ar
ke
t, 
EB

IT
DA

 <
 $
50

M
M
; S
&
P 
LS
TA

 U
S 
Le
ve
ra
ge

d 
Lo
an

 In
de

x;
 IC

E 
Bo

fA
M
L
U
S 
Hi
gh

 Y
ie
ld
 M

as
te
r I
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

26

4%5%6%7%8%9%10
% Ja

n‐
18

Ap
r‐
18

Ju
l‐1

8
O
ct
‐1
8

Ja
n‐
19

Di
re
ct
 L
en

di
ng

Ba
nk

 L
oa

ns
Hi
gh

 Y
ie
ld

4.
0

4.
5

5.
0

5.
5

6.
0

6.
5 Ja
n‐
17

Ap
r‐
17

Ju
l‐1

7
O
ct
‐1
7

Ja
n‐
18

Ap
r‐
18

Ju
l‐1

8
O
ct
‐1
8

Ja
n‐
19

De
bt
 / 
EB

IT
DA

Sp
re
ad

YI
EL

D
S 
FO

R
 D

IR
EC

T 
LE

N
D
IN

G
, 
B
A
N
K
 L
O
A
N
S 
&
 H

IG
H
 Y
IE
LD

D
IR

EC
T 
LE

N
D
IN

G
 L
EV

ER
A
G
E 
M
U
LT

IP
LE

S 
(D

EB
T 
/ 
EB

IT
D
A
) 
&
 S
PR

EA
D

So
ur
ce
: T
he

 L
ea

d 
Le
ft
, M

id
dl
e 
M
ar
ke
t C

re
di
t S

ta
ts
, a

s o
f 3

/3
1/
19



Eq
ui

ty

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

27



Eq
ui

ty
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
t

Q
TD

 T
O
TA

L 
RE

TU
RN

1 
YE

AR
 T
O
TA

L 
RE

TU
RN

(u
nh

ed
ge
d)

(h
ed

ge
d)

(u
nh

ed
ge
d)

(h
ed

ge
d)

U
S 
La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
   
   
  

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
)

13
.8
%

8.
7%

U
S 
Sm

al
l C

ap
   
   
   

(R
us
se
ll 
20

00
)

14
.6
%

2.
1%

U
S 
La
rg
e 
Va

lu
e

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

)
11

.7
%

4.
9%

U
S 
La
rg
e 
G
ro
w
th

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th
)

16
.0
%

12
.3
%

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l L
ar
ge

(M
SC

I E
AF

E)
10

.0
%

11
.3
%

(3
.7
%
)

5.
2%

Eu
ro
zo
ne

   
   
   
   
 

(E
ur
o 
St
ox
x 
50

)
10

.6
%

12
.9
%

(6
.3
%
)

5.
8%

U
.K
.  
   
   
   
   
   
 

(F
TS
E 
10

0)
9.
5%

10
.1
%

(0
.2
%
)

9.
6%

Ja
pa

n 
   
   
   
   
   
  

(N
IK
KE

I 2
25

)
6.
8%

7.
6%

(3
.4
%
)

2.
9%

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts

(M
SC

I E
m
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts
)

9.
9%

9.
8%

(7
.4
%
)

(2
.1
%
)

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: R

us
se
ll 
In
ve
st
m
en

ts
, M

SC
I, 
ST
O
XX

, F
TS
E,
 N
ik
ke
i, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

—
U.
S.
 e
qu

iti
es
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed

 a
 1
3.
6%

 
to
ta
l r
et
ur
n 
(S
&
P 
50

0 
In
de

x)
 in

 
Q
1,
 n
ea

rly
 a
 m

irr
or
 im

ag
e 
of
 Q
4 

20
18

. T
he

 fi
rs
t q

ua
rt
er
 h
as
 in

de
ed

 
be

en
 o
ne

 o
f t
he

 st
ro
ng

es
t 

qu
ar
te
rs
 re

ce
nt
ly,
 b
ut
 w
as
 si
m
pl
y 

a 
bo

un
ce
 b
ac
k 
in
 lo

st
 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 fr
om

 th
e 
pr
io
r 

qu
ar
te
r. 
At
 th

e 
en

d 
of
 M

ar
ch
, t
he

 
S&

P 
50

0 
pr
ic
e 
in
de

x 
w
as
 ju

st
 3
.2
%
 

be
lo
w
 it
s 
hi
gh

 w
at
er
m
ar
k 
th
at
 

w
as
 re

ac
he

d 
in
 S
ep

te
m
be

r. 

—
Cu

rr
en

cy
 m

ov
em

en
t h

ad
 li
tt
le
 

im
pa

ct
 o
n 
un

he
dg

ed
 in
te
rn
at
io
na

l 
eq

ui
ty
 o
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
, t
ho

ug
h 

cu
rr
en

ci
es
 o
n 
a 
1‐
ye
ar
 b
as
is 
ha

ve
 

ha
d 
a 
su
bs
ta
nt
ia
lly
 n
eg
at
iv
e 

ef
fe
ct
. A

n 
un

he
dg

ed
 in
ve
st
m
en

t i
n 

in
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 e
qu

iti
es
 

(M
SC

I E
AF

E)
 lo

st
 8
.9
%
 o
f p

or
tfo

lio
 

va
lu
e 
du

e 
to
 c
ur
re
nc
y 
m
ov
em

en
t.

—
Fi
rs
t q

ua
rt
er
 e
ar
ni
ng

s g
ro
w
th
 fo

r 
S&

P 
50

0 
co
m
pa

ni
es
 is
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 

be
 n
eg
at
iv
e 
fo
r t
he

 fi
rs
t t
im

e 
sin

ce
 

Q
2 
20

16
. I
f c
or
po

ra
te
 e
ar
ni
ng

s 

ex
pe

ct
at
io
ns
 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b
e 

do
w
ng

ra
de

d,
 th

is 
w
ill
 li
ke
ly
 h
ol
d 

ba
ck
 m

ar
ke
ts
 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 
w
or
ld
. 

Th
e 
gr
ea
te
st
 d
et
er
m
in
an

t o
f 

m
ed

iu
m
 a
nd

 lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 e
qu

ity
 

pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 is
 ty

pi
ca
lly
 th

e 
un

de
rly

in
g 
tr
en

d 
of
 c
or
po

ra
te
 

ea
rn
in
gs
.

—
Th

e 
ris
k‐
on

 q
ua

rt
er
 d
ro
ve
 sm

al
l 

ca
p 
eq

ui
tie

s f
or
w
ar
d.
 T
he

 R
us
se
ll 

20
00

 In
de

x 
po

st
ed

 a
 1
4.
6%

 re
tu
rn
, 

co
m
pa

re
d 
to
 th

e 
13

.8
%
 re

tu
rn
 o
f 

th
e 
Ru

ss
el
l 1
00

0 
In
de

x.
 

—
Va

lu
e 
eq

ui
tie

s u
nd

er
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 
gr
ow

th
 e
qu

iti
es
 o
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
 

(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 +
11

.7
%
, 

Ru
ss
el
l 1
00

0 
G
ro
w
th
 +
16

.0
%
). 

Pe
rf
or
m
an

ce
 o
ve
r t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
 

re
ve
rs
ed

 v
al
ue

’s 
ga
in
s f
ro
m
 Q
4 

20
18

.

—
Af
te
r s
pi
ki
ng

 in
 th

e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
, 

U.
S.
 e
qu

ity
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 re

tu
rn
ed

 to
 

m
ut
ed

 le
ve
ls.
 

28



8085909510
0

10
5 M
ar
‐1
8

Ju
n‐
18

Se
p‐
18

De
c‐
18

Pr
ic
e

EP
S

P/
E 
Ra

tio

U
.S
. e
qu

iti
es
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed

 a
 1
3.
6%

 to
ta
l r
et
ur
n 
(S
&
P 
50

0 
In
de

x)
 

in
 th

e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
, r
eb

ou
nd

in
g 
fr
om

 th
e 
sh
ar
p 
se
ll‐
of
f i
n 
th
e 

pr
io
r q

ua
rt
er
. A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f M

ar
ch
, t
he

 S
&
P 
50

0 
pr
ic
e 
in
de

x 
w
as
 

ju
st
 3
.2
%
 b
el
ow

 it
s h

ig
h 
w
at
er
m
ar
k 
th
at
 w
as
 re

ac
he

d 
in
 

Se
pt
em

be
r. 
Th

e 
bo

un
ce
 b
ac
k 
in
 e
qu

ity
 p
ric

es
 w
as
 d
riv

en
 b
y 

be
tt
er
 th

an
 e
xp
ec
te
d/
fe
ar
ed

 Q
1 
co
rp
or
at
e 
ea

rn
in
gs
, i
m
pr
ov

in
g 

se
nt
im

en
t t
ow

ar
d 
a 
U
.S
.‐C

hi
na

 tr
ad

e 
de

al
, a
nd

 th
e 
Fe
d’
s p

iv
ot
 

to
 a
 m

or
e 
pa

tie
nt
 a
pp

ro
ac
h 
to
 m

on
et
ar
y 
po

lic
y.
 T
he

 fa
ll 
an

d 
su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 ri
se
 in

 e
qu

iti
es
 w
as
 p
rim

ar
ily
 re

fle
ct
ed

 in
 v
al
ua

tio
n 

ch
an

ge
s.
 A
ft
er
 d
ro
pp

in
g 
to
 a
 lo

w
 o
f 1

3.
6 
in
 D
ec
em

be
r, 
th
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 
12

‐m
on

th
 P
/E
 ra

tio
 o
n 
th
e 
S&

P 
50

0 
fin

ish
ed

 th
e 

qu
ar
te
r a

t 1
6.
7,
 e
ss
en

tia
lly
 u
nc
ha

ng
ed

 o
ve
r t
he

 p
as
t s
ix
 

m
on

th
s.
 

N
ow

 1
0 
ye
ar
s r
em

ov
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 
bo

tt
om

 o
f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia
l c
ris
is,
 

it 
is 
w
or
th
 n
ot
in
g 
th
at
 U
.S
. e

qu
iti
es
 h
av
e 
ex
pe

rie
nc
ed

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
ei
r b

es
t d

ec
ad

es
 o
f p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 e
ve
r. 
Th

e 
S&

P 
50

0 
ha

d 
a 

co
m
po

un
d 
pr
ic
e 
re
tu
rn
 o
f 1

4.
2%

 p
er
 y
ea

r, 
an

d 
ov

er
 7
5%

 o
f t
hi
s 

w
as
 d
ue

 to
 p
ro
fit
 m

ar
gi
n 
an

d 
va
lu
at
io
n 
ex
pa

ns
io
n.
 W

ith
 b
ot
h 
of
 

th
es
e 
m
ea

su
re
s a

t a
bo

ve
 a
ve
ra
ge
 le
ve
ls,
 w
e 
do

 n
ot
 th

in
k 
th
at
 it
 

is 
re
as
on

ab
le
 to

 e
xp
ec
t t
hi
s l
ev
el
 o
f p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 to

 c
on

tin
ue

 
m
ov

in
g 
fo
rw

ar
d.
 

U
.S
. 
EQ

U
IT
IE
S

S&
P 
50

0 
PR

IC
E 
M
O
V
EM

EN
T 
A
TT

R
IB

U
TI
O
N

S&
P 
50

0 
10

‐Y
R
 P
R
IC
E 
R
ET

U
R
N
 A

TT
R
IB

U
TI
O
N

D
om

es
tic

 e
qu

ity

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

W
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

ne
ut

ra
l v

ie
w

 o
n 

U
.S

. e
qu

iti
es

So
ur
ce
: R

us
se
ll 
In
ve
st
m
en

ts
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: V

er
us
, B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

29

40
00

50
00

60
00

70
00

80
00

90
00

10
00

0 Ju
l‐1

3
Ju
l‐1

4
Ju
l‐1

5
Ju
l‐1

6
Ju
l‐1

7
Ju
l‐1

8

Ru
ss
el
l 3
00

0

In
de

xe
d 
to
 9
/3
0/
18

Cy
cl
ic
al
s o

ut
pe

rf
or
m
in
g

4.
3%

2.
6%

6.
5%

0.
8%

14
.2
%

0%3%6%9%12
%

15
%

S&
P 
50

0
Va

lu
at
io
n 
Ex
pa

ns
io
n

Sa
le
s G

ro
w
th

Pr
of
it 
M
ar
gi
n 
Ex
pa

ns
io
n

N
et
 C
ha

ng
e 
in
 S
ha

re
 C
ou

nt
To

ta
l P
ric

e 
Ch

an
ge



Eq
ui

ty
 m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 y

ie
ld

 cu
rv

e 
in

ve
rs

io
ns

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, V

er
us
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 –
eq

ui
tie

s a
re
 re

pr
es
en

te
d 
by
 th

e 
S&

P 
50

0 
In
de

x 
an

d 
th
e 
yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e 
is 
de

fin
ed

 a
s t
he

 d
iff
er
en

ce
 b
et
w
ee
n 
th
e 
10

‐y
ea

r a
nd

 3
‐m

on
th
 T
re
as
ur
y 
yi
el
d;
 se

e 
pa

ge
 2
3 
fo
r t
he

 d
at
es
 o
f 

yi
el
d 
cu
rv
e 
in
ve
rs
io
n

E
qu

ity
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
ha

s 
va

ri
ed

 
w

id
el

y 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

yi
el

d 
cu

rv
e 

in
ve

rs
io

n 30

6070809010
0

11
0

12
0

13
0 ‐2

50
‐2
00

‐1
50

‐1
00

‐5
0

0
50

10
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

Tr
ad

in
g 
Da

ys
 R
el
at
iv
e 
to
 C
ur
ve
 In

ve
rs
io
n

In
de

xe
d 
to
 th

e 
fir
st
 d
ay
 

of
 y
ie
ld
 c
ur
ve
 in

ve
rs
io
n

Cu
rr
en

t

Av
er
ag
e

EQ
U
IT
Y 
PE

R
FO

R
M
A
N
CE

 A
R
O
U
N
D
 C
U
R
V
E 
IN

V
ER

SI
O
N
S



U
.S

. e
qu

ity
 &

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 cy
cl

e

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

A
 m

at
er

ia
l 

sh
or

t-
te

rm
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

ex
is

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

eq
ui

ty
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
an

d 
ec

on
om

ic
 

gr
ow

th

A
n 

in
ve

st
or

’s 
vi

ew
s 

on
 th

e 
ec

on
om

y 
cy

cl
e 

sh
ou

ld
 

th
er

ef
or

e 
im

pa
ct

 e
qu

ity
 

po
si

tio
ni

ng

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, d
at
a 
sin

ce
 1
94

8

31

R²
 =
 0
.2
3

‐6
0%

‐4
0%

‐2
0%0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

‐6
%

‐4
%

‐2
%

0%
2%

4%
6%

8%
10

%
12

%
14

%
16

%

S&P 500 after‐inflation performance (YoY)

U
.S
. R

ea
l G

DP
 (Y

oY
)



‐2
0

‐1
5

‐1
0‐505101520 Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
12

Ja
n‐
14

Ja
n‐
16

Ja
n‐
18

Return Difference (%)

R3
00

0 
Va

lu
e 
m
in
us
 R
30

00
 G
ro
w
th

SM
A
LL

 C
A
P 
V
S 
LA

R
G
E 
CA

P 
(Y

O
Y)

V
A
LU

E 
V
S 
G
R
O
W

TH
 (
YO

Y)
Q
1 
S&

P 
50

0 
SE

CT
O
R
 R
ET

U
R
N
S

D
om

es
tic

 e
qu

ity
 si

ze
 &

 st
yl

e
Sm

al
l c
ap

 e
qu

iti
es
 (R

us
se
ll 
20

00
 +
14

.6
%
) s
lig
ht
ly
 

ou
tp
er
fo
rm

ed
 la
rg
e 
ca
p 
eq

ui
tie

s (
Ru

ss
el
l 1
00

0 
+1

4.
0%

) 
du

rin
g 
th
e 
qu

ar
te
r. 
M
ea

nw
hi
le
, g
ro
w
th
 st
oc
ks
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 
va
lu
e 
st
oc
ks
 b
y 
a 
w
id
e 
m
ar
gi
n 
(R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th
 +
16

.1
%
 

vs
. R

us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 +
11

.9
%
). 

Th
e 
im

pa
ct
 o
f s
ec
to
r p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
n 
th
e 
va
lu
e 
pr
em

iu
m
 w
as
 

m
or
e 
nu

an
ce
d 
in
 Q
1,
 a
s M

at
er
ia
ls 
(+
10

.3
%
) a

nd
 F
in
an

ci
al
s 

(+
8.
6%

) u
nd

er
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 th
e 
ov
er
al
l i
nd

ex
 (S

&
P 
50

0 
+1

3.
6%

), 
bu

t E
ne

rg
y 
(+
16

.4
%
) o

ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

. I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
Te
ch
no

lo
gy
, 

th
e 
to
p 
pe

rf
or
m
in
g 
se
ct
or
, c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 o
ut
siz

ed
 

re
tu
rn
s (
+1

9.
9%

). 

Bo
th
 th

e 
sm

al
l c
ap

 p
re
m
iu
m
 a
nd

 v
al
ue

 p
re
m
iu
m
 h
av
e 

st
ru
gg
le
d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 p
os
iti
ve
 ri
sk
 p
re
m
iu
m
s o

ve
r t
he

 p
as
t 1

0 
ye
ar
s.
 It
 c
an

 b
e 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 e
nd

ur
e 
lo
ng

er
 p
er
io
ds
 o
f f
ac
to
r 

un
de

rp
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, b

ut
 si
m
ila
r t
o 
th
e 
eq

ui
ty
 p
re
m
iu
m
 in
 

ge
ne

ra
l, 
th
es
e 
pe

rio
ds
 d
o 
ex
ist
 a
nd

 in
ve
st
or
s s

ho
ul
d 
ex
pe

ct
 

th
is 
on

 o
cc
as
io
n.
 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: F
TS
E,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: F
TS
E,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

 
So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

32

‐2
0

‐1
5

‐1
0‐505101520 Ja
n‐
01

Ja
n‐
04

Ja
n‐
07

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
13

Ja
n‐
16

Return Difference (%) ‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
%

20
% M

ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
1

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
7

M
ar
‐1
9

R3
00

0 
Va

lu
e 
m
in
us
 R
30

00
 G
ro
w
th

‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
%

20
% M

ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
1

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
7

M
ar
‐1
9

Ru
ss
el
l 2
00

0 
m
in
us
 R
us
se
ll 
10

00

‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
% De

c‐
16

Ju
n‐
18

‐1
0%0%10
% M

ar
‐1
8

De
c‐
18

6.
6%8.

6%10
.3
%

10
.8
%

12
.0
%

13
.6
%

14
.0
%

15
.7
%

16
.4
%

17
.2
%

17
.5
%19
.9
%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

 H
ea

lth
 C
ar
e

 F
in
an

ci
al
s

 M
at
er
ia
ls

 U
til
iti
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 S
ta
pl
es

 S
&
P 
50

0
 T
el
ec
om

 C
on

su
m
er
 D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

 E
ne

rg
y

 In
du

st
ria

ls
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e

 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy



Li
ke
 U
.S
. e

qu
iti
es
, i
nt
er
na

tio
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 e
qu

iti
es
 e
ra
se
d 

m
os
t o

f t
he

 lo
ss
es
 th

ey
 su

ffe
re
d 
in
 th

e 
pr
io
r q

ua
rt
er
. A

ft
er
 

po
st
in
g 
a 
re
tu
rn
 o
f ‐
12

.5
%
 in

 Q
4,
 th

e 
M
SC

I E
AF

E 
In
de

x 
re
tu
rn
ed

 +
10

.2
%
 in

 Q
1.
 C
ur
re
nc
y 
lo
ss
es
 w
er
e 
a 
m
ild

 
de

tr
ac
to
r f
ro
m
 u
nh

ed
ge
d 
U.
S.
 d
ol
la
r p

er
fo
rm

an
ce
. O

n 
a 

cu
rr
en

cy
 h
ed

ge
d 
ba

sis
, E
AF

E 
eq

ui
tie

s r
et
ur
ne

d 
11

.3
%
. F
ro
m
 a
 

co
un

tr
y 
pe

rs
pe

ct
iv
e,
 S
w
iss

, F
re
nc
h 
an

d 
U
K 
eq

ui
tie

s 
ou

tp
er
fo
rm

ed
, w

hi
le
 Ja

pa
ne

se
 a
nd

 G
er
m
an

 e
qu

iti
es
 la
gg
ed

 
th
e 
ov
er
al
l i
nd

ex
. W

hi
le
 m

os
t m

ar
ke
ts
 a
re
 b
ac
k 
ne

ar
 re

co
rd
 

hi
gh

s,
 G
er
m
an

 e
qu

iti
es
 (M

SC
I G

er
m
an

y)
 fi
ni
sh
ed

 th
e 
qu

ar
te
r 

17
%
 b
el
ow

 th
e 
pr
ev
io
us
 h
ig
h 
w
at
er
m
ar
k.
 U
nd

er
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 

in
 G
er
m
an

 e
qu

iti
es
 h
as
 li
ke
ly
 b
ee

n 
in
flu

en
ce
d 
by
 a
 g
re
at
er

se
ns
iti
vi
ty
 to

 g
lo
ba

l g
ro
w
th
 a
nd

 tr
ad

e 
as
 w
el
l a
s 
co
nc
er
ns
 

ov
er
 a
 sl
ow

in
g 
do

m
es
tic

 e
co
no

m
y.
 

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
ts
 a
re
 st
ill
 c
he

ap
 o
n 

bo
th
 a
n 
ab

so
lu
te
 a
nd

 re
la
tiv

e 
ba

sis
 a
t 1

3.
3x
 fo

rw
ar
d 

ea
rn
in
gs
, b

ut
 w
e 
be

lie
ve
 th

er
e 
ar
e 
go

od
 re

as
on

s 
fo
r t
hi
s 

pr
ic
in
g 
in
 c
er
ta
in
 m

ar
ke
ts
. W

ith
in
 e
qu

ity
 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
, w

e 
ar
e 

pe
ss
im

ist
ic
 o
n 
EA

FE
 e
qu

iti
es
 p
rim

ar
ily
 d
ue

 to
 a
 n
eg
at
iv
e 
vi
ew

 
on

 th
e 
Eu

ro
zo
ne

. W
e 
be

lie
ve
 sl
ow

in
g 
ec
on

om
ic
 g
ro
w
th
, 

ris
in
g 
po

lit
ic
al
 ri
sk
s,
 a
nd

 th
e 
la
ck
in
g 
ab

ili
ty
 o
f t
he

 E
CB

 to
 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
lly
 e
as
e 
po

lic
y 
pr
es
en

ts
 m

at
er
ia
l h
ea

dw
in
ds
 to

 
eq

ui
ty
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
. 

EF
FE

CT
 O

F 
CU

R
R
EN

CY
 (
1‐
YE

A
R
 R
O
LL

IN
G
)

IN
TE

R
N
A
TI
O
N
A
L 
D
EV

EL
O
PE

D
 E
Q
U
IT
IE
S

Q
1 
CO

U
N
TR

Y 
PE

R
FO

R
M
A
N
CE

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
ev

el
op

ed
 e

qu
ity

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
la
rg
es
t f
iv
e 
co
un

tr
y 
ex
po

su
re
s s
ho

w
n 
ab

ov
e 

33

13
.4
%

11
.9
%

11
.8
%

7.
3%

6.
8%

‐4
%

‐2
%0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
%

14
%

16
%

Sw
itz
er
la
nd

Fr
an

ce
U
K

Ja
pa

n
G
er
m
an

y

Eq
ui
ty

Cu
rr
en

cy
To

ta
l R

et
ur
n 
U
SD

62
5

12
50

25
00 Ja

n‐
90

Ja
n‐
95

Ja
n‐
00

Ja
n‐
05

Ja
n‐
10

Ja
n‐
15

M
SC

I E
AF

E

‐2
0%

‐1
5%

‐1
0%‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
% M

ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
1

M
ar
‐1
3

Fe
b‐
15

Fe
b‐
17

Fe
b‐
19

M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x 
U
SA

M
SC

I E
M



EQ
U
IT
Y 
PE

R
FO

R
M
A
N
CE

 (
3‐
YR

 R
O
LL

IN
G
)

FO
R
W

A
R
D
 P
/E

PU
R
CH

A
SI
N
G
 M

A
N
G
ER

S’
 I
N
D
EX

 (
PM

I)

Em
er

gi
ng

 m
ar

ke
t e

qu
ity

Em
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t e

qu
ity

 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 w
as
 in

‐li
ne

 w
ith

 
in
te
rn
at
io
na

l d
ev
el
op

ed
 m

ar
ke
ts
 in

 th
e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
, w

hi
le
 

U.
S.
 e
qu

iti
es
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

. C
ur
re
nc
ie
s i
n 
th
es
e 
m
ar
ke
ts
 

co
nt
in
ue

d 
to
 sh

ow
 st
ab

ili
ty
 (M

SC
I E
M
 +
9.
9%

, M
SC

I E
M
 

He
dg

ed
 +
9.
8%

). 
Bu

sin
es
s 
se
nt
im

en
t a

cr
os
s 
em

er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t 

ec
on

om
ie
s 
in
di
ca
te
s e

xp
an

di
ng

 co
nd

iti
on

s,
 a
nd

 fe
ar
s o

f a
 

sh
ar
p 
Ch

in
a 
slo

w
do

w
n 
ha

ve
 su

bs
id
ed

. M
od

er
at
in
g 
co
nd

iti
on

s 
m
ay
 b
ol
st
er
 e
m
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t r
et
ur
ns
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut
 th

e 
ye
ar
. 

Eq
ui
ty
 m

ul
tip

le
s r
eb

ou
nd

ed
 in

 th
e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
 a
nd

 a
re
 n
ea

r 

th
e 
lo
ng

‐t
er
m
 a
ve
ra
ge
. T
he

 d
iv
id
e 
be

tw
ee

n 
do

m
es
tic

 a
nd

 
em

er
gi
ng

 e
qu

iti
es
 re

m
ai
ns
 w
id
e.
 

De
ce
le
ra
tin

g 
gl
ob

al
 g
ro
w
th
 a
nd

 ri
sin

g 
pr
ob

ab
ili
ty
 o
f r
ec
es
sio

n 
do

 p
re
se
nt
 u
ni
qu

e 
ris
ks
 to

 e
m
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
ts
, a
s 
th
es
e 

m
ar
ke
ts
 ty

pi
ca
lly
 e
xh
ib
it 
a 
hi
gh

er
 b
et
a 
du

rin
g 
m
ar
ke
t 

do
w
ns
id
e 
an

d 
up

sid
e 
m
ov
es
. H

ow
ev
er
, e

m
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
ts
 

ca
n 
al
so
 d
el
iv
er
 ro

bu
st
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 in
 ti
m
es
 o
f m

od
er
at
e 

gr
ow

th
 a
nd

 e
as
y 
m
on

et
ar
y 
po

lic
y 
w
he

n 
in
ve
st
or
s s

ee
k 

gr
ow

th
 a
nd

 h
ig
he

r y
ie
ld
s.

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: S
ta
nd

ar
d 
&
 P
oo

r’s
, M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: M

ar
ki
t, 
In
st
itu

te
 fo

r S
up

pl
y 
M
an

ag
em

en
t (
IS
M
)

34

EM
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 a
cc
el
er
at
e 

w
hi
le
 D
M
 e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 sl
ow

IM
F 
Fo

re
ca
st
s

‐2
0%

‐1
0%0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
% M

ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
1

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
7

M
ar
‐1
9

U
S 
La
rg
e

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l D
ev
el
op

ed
Em

er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts

Ro
w
 L
ab

el
s

18
‐D
ec

19
‐J
an

19
‐F
eb

19
‐M

ar

M
an

uf
ac
tu
rin

g

G
lo
ba

l
51

.4
 

50
.8
 

50
.6
 

50
.6
 

De
ve
lo
pe

d
52

.3
 

51
.8
 

50
.4
 

50
.0
 

U
S

54
.3
 

56
.6
 

54
.2
 

55
.3
 

EM
50

.3
 

49
.5
 

50
.6
 

51
.0
 

Se
rv
ic
es

G
lo
ba

l
53

.0
 

52
.6
 

53
.3
 

53
.7
 

De
ve
lo
pe

d
52

.8
 

52
.5
 

53
.7
 

53
.7
 

U
S

58
.0
 

56
.7
 

59
.7
 

56
.1
 

EM
53

.6
 

52
.9
 

52
.1
 

53
.6
 

68101214161820

Ju
n‐
07

Ju
n‐
09

Ju
n‐
11

Ju
n‐
13

Ju
n‐
15

Ju
n‐
17

U
.S
.

EA
FE

EM



FO
R
W

A
R
D
 P
/E

 R
A
TI
O
S

P/
E 
M
U
LT

IP
LE

S 
R
EL

A
TI
V
E 
TO

 U
.S
. 
EQ

U
IT
IE
S

Eq
ui

ty
 v

al
ua

tio
ns

Th
e 
fa
ll 
an

d 
su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 ri
se
 in

 g
lo
ba

l e
qu

ity
 p
ric

es
 w
as
 

pr
im

ar
ily
 d
riv

en
 b
y 
ch
an

ge
s i
n 
va
lu
at
io
ns
. T
he

 re
co
ve
ry
 in
 Q
1 

br
ou

gh
t m

os
t b

ro
ad

 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
t v

al
ua

tio
ns
 b
ac
k 
to
 

Se
pt
em

be
r 2

01
8 
le
ve
ls,
 b
ut
 b
el
ow

 re
ce
nt
 c
yc
le
 h
ig
hs
. I
n 
th
e 

U.
S.
, e

qu
iti
es
 c
om

m
an

de
d 
a 
fo
rw

ar
d 
P/
E 
m
ul
tip

le
 o
f 1

6.
7x
 

af
te
r h

itt
in
g 
a 
m
ul
ti‐
ye
ar
 lo
w
 in

 D
ec
em

be
r a

t 1
4.
6x
. 

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l e
qu

ity
 v
al
ua

tio
ns
 a
lso

 re
co
ve
re
d,
 b
ut
 a
re
 st
ill
 

ch
ea

p 
on

 a
 re

la
tiv

e 
ba

sis
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar
ly
 w
he

n 
co
m
pa

re
d 
to
 th

e 
U.
S.
 A
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f M

ar
ch
, t
he

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
an

d 
EM

 In
de

xe
s h

ad
 

fo
rw

ar
d 
P/
E 
m
ul
tip

le
s o

f 1
3.
3x
 a
nd

 1
1.
8x
, r
es
pe

ct
iv
el
y.
 U
.S
. 

eq
ui
tie

s c
ur
re
nt
ly
 tr
ad

e 
at
 a
 2
5%

 fo
rw

ar
d 
pr
em

iu
m
 to

 E
AF

E 

eq
ui
tie

s,
 w
hi
ch
 is
 th

e 
la
rg
es
t g

ap
 o
ve
r t
he

 p
as
t 1

5 
ye
ar
s.
 W

hi
le
 

w
e 
be

lie
ve
 th

er
e 
ar
e 
re
as
on

s 
th
at
 E
AF

E 
eq

ui
ty
 m

ar
ke
ts
 

co
m
m
an

d 
ch
ea

p 
va
lu
at
io
ns
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar
ly
 in

 E
ur
op

e,
 it
 is
 w
or
th
 

no
tin

g 
th
at
 b
ar
rin

g 
a 
sig

ni
fic
an

t c
ha

ng
e 
in
 th

e 
ea

rn
in
gs
 

en
vi
ro
nm

en
t, 
th
es
e 
m
ar
ke
ts
 sh

ou
ld
 h
av
e 
a 
st
ro
ng

 v
al
ua

tio
n 

su
pp

or
t. 

O
ve
r t
he

 lo
ng

‐t
er
m
, v
al
ua

tio
ns
 h
av
e 
ha

d 
a 
m
at
er
ia
l 

re
la
tio

ns
hi
p 
w
ith

 fo
rw

ar
d 
eq

ui
ty
 re

tu
rn
s.
 G
iv
en

 th
is 

re
la
tio

ns
hi
p,
 w
e 
ar
e 
w
ar
y 
of
 e
xt
ra
po

la
tin

g 
ou

t t
he

 re
ce
nt
 

st
ro
ng

 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 in
 U
.S
. e

qu
iti
es
. 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

 
So
ur
ce
: V

er
us
, M

SC
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, M

SC
I a

s o
f 3

/3
1/
19

 ‐
tr
ai
lin
g 
P/
E

35

V
A
LU

A
TI
O
N
 M

ET
R
IC
S 
(3

‐M
O
N
TH

 A
V
ER

A
G
E)

468101214161820

Ju
n‐
06

Ju
n‐
09

Ju
n‐
12

Ju
n‐
15

Ju
n‐
18

U
.S
.

EA
FE

EM

0.
6

0.
7

0.
8

0.
9

1.
0

1.
1

1.
2 Ju

n‐
03

Ju
n‐
08

Ju
n‐
13

Ju
n‐
18

EA
FE

EM

3.
3

18
.6

18
.9

2.
0

5.
4

1.
5

15
.2

14
.8

3.
6

6.
6

1.
6

12
.8

17
.4

2.
8

7.
8

02468101214161820

P/
B

P/
E

P/
FC

F
Di
vi
de

nd
Yi
el
d 
(%

)
Ea
rn
in
gs

Yi
el
d 
(%

)

U
ni
te
d 
St
at
es

EA
FE

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts



Eq
ui
ty
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 sp

ik
ed

 in
 th

e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
 o
f 2

01
8 
bu

t 
re
tu
rn
ed

 to
 lo
w
 le
ve
ls 
in
 Q
1.
 T
he

 V
IX
 In

de
x 
en

de
d 
M
ar
ch
 a
t 

13
.7
, w

hi
ch
 ra

nk
ed

 in
 th

e 
26

th
pe

rc
en

til
e 
da

tin
g 
ba

ck
 to

 1
99

0 
(v
ol
at
ili
ty
 w
as
 th

is 
lo
w
 2
6%

 o
f t
he

 ti
m
e)
. L
ow

 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 is
 

so
m
ew

ha
t n

or
m
al
 d
ur
in
g 
la
te
r s
ta
ge
s 
of
 th

e 
m
ar
ke
t c

yc
le
 a
s 

th
e 
ec
on

om
y 
ex
pa

nd
s a

nd
 b
us
in
es
s 
co
nd

iti
on

s 
ho

ld
 st
ea

dy
. 

Ho
w
ev
er
, s
om

e 
in
ve
st
or
s h

av
e 
qu

es
tio

ne
d 
th
e 
la
ck
 o
f p

ric
e 

m
ov
em

en
t, 
gi
ve
n 
se
em

in
gl
y 
he

ig
ht
en

ed
 g
eo

po
lit
ic
al
 a
nd

 
ec
on

om
ic
 ri
sk
s 
pr
es
en

t a
ro
un

d 
th
e 
w
or
ld
 to

da
y.
 

O
ne

‐y
ea

r v
ol
at
ili
ty
 p
ic
ke
d 
up

 a
ft
er
 a
 tu

m
ul
tu
ou

s f
ou

rt
h 

qu
ar
te
r. 
U.
S.
 m

ar
ke
ts
 h
av
e 
sh
ow

n 
hi
gh

er
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 th

an
 

in
te
rn
at
io
na

l m
ar
ke
ts
 fo

r t
he

 fi
rs
t t
im

e 
sin

ce
 2
00

8,
 w
ith

 a
 

tr
ai
lin

g 
1 
ye
ar
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 o
f 1

6%
. 

Eq
ui
ty
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 a
ro
un

d 
th
e 
w
or
ld
 in

 Q
1 
w
as
 n
ea

rly
 a
 

m
irr
or
 im

ag
e 
of
 2
01

8 
Q
4.
 T
he

 fi
rs
t q

ua
rt
er
 h
as
 in

de
ed

 b
ee

n 
on

e 
of
 th

e 
st
ro
ng

es
t q

ua
rt
er
s o

f r
ec
en

t d
ec
ad

es
, b

ut
 th

is 
w
as
 

m
os
tly

 a
 b
ou

nc
eb

ac
k
in
 lo

st
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 fr
om

 th
e 
pr
io
r 

qu
ar
te
r.

U
.S
. 
IM

PL
IE
D
 V
O
LA

TI
LI
TY

 (
V
IX

)
R
EA

LI
ZE

D
 1
‐Y

EA
R
 R
O
LL

IN
G
 V
O
LA

TI
LI
TY

 
20

19
 Q

1 
PE

R
FO

R
M
A
N
CE

 B
O
U
N
CE

 B
A
CK

Eq
ui

ty
 v

ol
at

ili
ty

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: C

BO
E,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

36

10203040 Se
p‐
18

De
c‐
18

0102030405060708090 Ju
n‐
90

M
ay
‐9
5

M
ay
‐0
0

Ap
r‐
05

M
ar
‐1
0

Fe
b‐
15

1030 Ju
n‐
18

De
c‐
18

70
%

75
%

80
%

85
%

90
%

95
%

10
0%

O
ct
‐1
8

N
ov

‐1
8

De
c‐
18

Ja
n‐
19

Fe
b‐
19

M
ar
‐1
9

S&
P 
50

0
Ru

ss
el
l 2
00

0

Q
4

Q
1

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%

35
%

40
%

45
% De

c‐
01

De
c‐
04

De
c‐
07

De
c‐
10

De
c‐
13

De
c‐
16

U
.S
.

EA
FE

EM



0x2x4x6x8x10
x

12
x

14
x

De
bt
/E
BI
TD

A
Eq

ui
ty
/E
BI
TD

A

0102030405060

$0$2
0

$4
0

$6
0

$8
0

$1
00

$1
20

$1
40

De
al
 V
al
ue

 ($
B)

Ca
pi
ta
l R

ai
se
d 
($
B)

TR
A
N
SA

CT
IO

N
 M

U
LT

IP
LE

S
V
EN

TU
R
E 
D
EA

L 
V
O
LU

M
E 
&
 F
U
N
D
R
A
IS
IN

G
B
U
YO

U
TS

 D
EA

L 
V
O
LU

M
E 
&
 C
A
PI
TA

L 
R
A
IS
ED

Pr
iv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
Ve

nt
ur
e 
ca
pi
ta
l f
un

dr
ai
sin

g 
an

d 
de

al
 v
ol
um

es
 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 

se
t r
ec
or
ds
. $

55
 b
ill
io
n 
of
 v
en

tu
re
 c
ap

ita
l w

as
 ra

ise
d 
in
 th

e 
U.
S.
 in

 2
01

8,
 a
n 
in
cr
ea
se
 o
f 6

3%
 o
ve
r t
he

 p
re
vi
ou

s y
ea
r. 

Si
m
ila
rly
, t
he

 a
m
ou

nt
 o
f v

en
tu
re
 d
ea

ls 
w
er
e 
up

 5
8%

. V
en

tu
re
 

de
al
 v
ol
um

e 
in
 2
01

8 
of
 $
13

1 
bi
lli
on

 e
xc
ee

de
d 
th
e 
re
co
rd
 o
f 

$8
2 
bi
lli
on

 th
at
 w
as
 s
et
 in

 2
01

7.

Bu
yo
ut
 a
ct
iv
ity

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
to
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 2
01

8.
 T
hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
, b

uy
ou

ts
 w
er
e 
up

 2
9%

 a
nd

 5
%
 w
he

n 
m
ea

su
re
d 
by

 d
ol
la
r v

al
ue

 a
nd

 n
um

be
r o

f t
ra
ns
ac
tio

ns
, 

re
sp
ec
tiv

el
y.
 T
he

 si
ze
 o
f t
he

 a
ve
ra
ge
 b
uy
ou

t, 
$1

55
 m

ill
io
n,
 

in
cr
ea

se
d 
fr
om

 $
13

3 
m
ill
io
n 
in
 2
01

7.
 U
nl
ik
e 
de

al
 fl
ow

, f
un

d 
ca
pi
ta
l r
ai
sin

g 
ha

s s
lo
w
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 
pe

ak
s 
of
 2
01

7.
 O
nl
y 
18

6 

bu
yo
ut
 fu

nd
s r
ep

re
se
nt
in
g 
$1

66
 b
ill
io
n 
cl
os
ed

 in
 2
01

8,
 d
ow

n 
fr
om

 2
35

 fu
nd

s r
ep

re
se
nt
in
g 
a 
re
co
rd
 $
22

5 
bi
lli
on

 in
 2
01

7.

Bu
yo
ut
 m

ul
tip

le
s d

ec
re
as
ed

 sl
ig
ht
ly
 fr
om

 2
01

7.
 A
ve
ra
ge
 

EV
/E
BI
TD

A 
w
as
 1
1.
6x
 th

ro
ug

h 
De

ce
m
be

r 3
1,
 2
01

8 
(d
ow

n 
fr
om

 1
1.
9x
 in

 2
01

7)
 w
ith

 d
eb

t m
ul
tip

le
s a

ve
ra
gi
ng

 6
.2
x 

th
ro
ug

h 
th
e 
fo
ur
th
 q
ua

rt
er
. D

eb
t a

s 
a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge
 o
f 

tr
an

sa
ct
io
n 
va
lu
e 
ho

ve
re
d 
ar
ou

nd
 5
4%

.

Ba
la
nc
in
g 
hi
gh

 d
ea

l m
ul
tip

le
s a

nd
 a
 g
ro
w
in
g 
nu

m
be

r o
f d

ea
ls 

ag
ai
ns
t a

 sl
ow

do
w
n 
in
 fu

nd
ra
isi
ng

, w
e 
ad

vo
ca
te
 se

le
ct
iv
ity

 in
 

fu
nd

 in
ve
st
m
en

ts
.

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

D
ea

ls
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
 b

uy
ou

ts
 a

nd
 

ve
nt

ur
e;

 
m

ul
tip

le
s 

ar
e 

st
ea

dy
; b

uy
ou

t 
fu

nd
ra

is
in

g 
ha

s 
sl

ow
ed

So
ur
ce
: P

itc
hB

oo
k,
 a
s o

f 1
2/
31

/1
8

So
ur
ce
: P

itc
hB

oo
k
, a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
8 

So
ur
ce
: P

itc
hB

oo
k
, a

s o
f 1

2/
31

/1
8

*2
01

8 
fig

ur
es
 a
re
 e
st
im

at
es
 a
nd

 a
re
 su

bj
ec
t t
o 
ch
an

ge

37

05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

$0

$1
00

$2
00

$3
00

$4
00

$5
00

$6
00

$7
00

$8
00

Bu
yo

ut
 D
ea
l V

al
ue

 ($
B)

Bu
yo

ut
 C
ap

ita
l R

ai
se
d 
($
B)



Lo
ng

-te
rm

 e
qu

ity
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

38

50
0

10
00

15
00

20
00

25
00

30
00

35
00

40
00

45
00

50
00

M
ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
1

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
7

M
ar
‐1
9

Growth of $1,000

S&
P 
50

0
Ru

ss
el
l 2
00

0
M
SC

I E
AF

E
M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C

ap
M
SC

I E
M

M
SC

I A
CW

I



O
th

er
 a

ss
et

s

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

39



Th
e 
U.
S.
 d
ol
la
r f
ai
le
d 
to
 g
ai
n 
tr
ac
tio

n 
in
 e
ith

er
 d
ire

ct
io
n 

du
rin

g 
th
e 
fir
st
 q
ua

rt
er
, a
nd

 re
m
ai
ne

d 
ne

ar
 c
yc
le
 h
ig
hs
. T
he

 
M
aj
or
 T
ra
de

 W
ei
gh

te
d 
U.
S.
 D
ol
la
r I
nd

ex
 fe

ll 
0.
3%

 o
ve
r t
he

 
pe

rio
d,
 b
ut
 w
as
 1
2.
5%

 a
bo

ve
 it
s l
on

g‐
te
rm

 a
ve
ra
ge
 d
at
in
g 

ba
ck
 to

 1
97

4 
at
 th

e 
en

d 
of
 M

ar
ch
. E
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 fo

r a
 m

or
e 

ac
co
m
m
od

at
iv
e 
Fe
d 
an

d 
w
ea

ke
r r
el
at
iv
e 
U.
S.
 e
co
no

m
ic
 

gr
ow

th
 (f
ro
m
 st
ro
ng

 le
ve
ls 
in
 2
01

8)
 h
as
 le
d 
m
an

y 
in
ve
st
or
s t
o 

ca
ll 
fo
r U

.S
. d

ol
la
r d

ep
re
ci
at
io
n,
 b
ut
 th

is 
ha

s n
ot
 o
cc
ur
re
d 

th
us
 fa

r. 
Th

is 
m
ay
 in

 p
ar
t b

e 
be

ca
us
e 
ot
he

r d
ev
el
op

ed
 c
en

tr
al
 

ba
nk
s h

av
e 
fo
llo

w
ed

 th
e 
Fe
d’
s l
ea

d 
in
 m

ov
in
g 
aw

ay
 fr
om

 
m
on

et
ar
y 
tig

ht
en

in
g.
 

Em
er
gi
ng

 m
ar
ke
t c

ur
re
nc
ie
s w

er
e 
re
la
tiv

el
y 
st
ab

le
 v
er
su
s t
he

 
do

lla
r f
or
 a
 se

co
nd

 c
on

se
cu
tiv

e 
qu

ar
te
r. 
Th

e 
JP
M
or
ga
n 

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
t C

ur
re
nc
y 
In
de

x 
ga
in
ed

 0
.4
%
. E

M
 c
ur
re
nc
ie
s 

ha
ve
 y
et
 to

 st
ag
e 
a 
m
aj
or
 c
om

eb
ac
k 
af
te
r f
al
lin

g 
m
or
e 
th
an

 
15

%
 in

 th
e 
m
id
dl
e 
of
 la
st
 y
ea

r. 

De
sp
ite

 so
m
e 
hi
gh

‐p
ro
fil
e 
Br
ex
it 
re
la
te
d 
vo
la
til
ity

 in
 th

e 
Br
iti
sh
 p
ou

nd
, t
he

 g
lo
ba

l F
X 
m
ar
ke
t h

as
 b
ee

n 
re
la
tiv

el
y 
qu

ie
t. 

Th
e 
tr
ai
lin

g 
1‐
ye
ar
 v
ol
at
ili
ty
 o
f t
he

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 D
ol
la
r S

po
t 

In
de

x 
w
as
 5
.2
%
 a
t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t
he

 q
ua

rt
er
, t
he

 lo
w
es
t l
ev
el
 

sin
ce
 2
01

4.

U
.S
. 
D
O
LL

A
R
 T
R
A
D
E 
W

EI
G
H
TE

D
 I
N
D
EX

JP
M
 E
M
ER

G
IN

G
 M

A
R
KE

T 
CU

R
R
EN

CY
 I
N
D
EX

B
LO

O
M
B
ER

G
 D

O
LL

A
R
 S
PO

T 
IN

D
EX

 V
O
LA

TI
LI
TY

Cu
rr

en
cy

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

Th
e 

U
.S

. d
ol

la
r 

re
m

ai
ne

d 
ne

ar
 a

 
cy

cl
e 

hi
gh

So
ur
ce
: F
ed

er
al
 R
es
er
ve
, V

er
us
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, J
PM

or
ga

n,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: B

lo
om

be
rg
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

, t
ra
ili
ng

 1
2‐
m
on

th
 v
ol
 sh

ow
n

40

U
nd

er
va
lu
ed

O
ve

rv
al
ue

d

0%2%4%6%8%10
%

12
% M

ar
‐0
6

M
ar
‐0
9

M
ar
‐1
2

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
8

506070809010
0

11
0

12
0 Ju

l‐1
0

Ju
l‐1

2
Ju
l‐1

4
Ju
l‐1

6
Ju
l‐1

8

‐6
%

‐4
%

‐2
%

0%2%4%6%

608010
0

12
0

14
0 Se

p‐
74

Se
p‐
88

Se
p‐
02

Se
p‐
16

U
S 
M
aj
or
 C
ur
re
nc
y 
In
de

x 
(r
ea
l)

Av
er
ag
e 
Cu

rr
en

cy
 In

de
x 
Va

lu
e

Su
bs
eq

ue
nt
 1
0 
Ye

ar
 R
et
ur
n



H
ed

ge
 fu

nd
s

He
dg

e 
fu
nd

s c
on

sis
te
nt
ly
 a
dv

an
ce
d 
al
on

gs
id
e 
th
e 
br
oa

d 
m
ar
ke
ts
 a
nd

 e
nj
oy

ed
 th

e 
be

st
 fi
rs
t c

al
en

da
r q

ua
rt
er
 re

su
lt 
sin

ce
 

20
06

 (H
ed

ge
 F
un

d 
W
ei
gh

te
d 
Co

m
po

sit
e 
(F
W
C)
 +
5.
9%

 in
 

20
19

Q
1;
 +
0.
9%

 tr
ai
lin

g 
12

‐m
on

th
s)
. W

hi
le
 g
ai
ns
 w
er
e 
br
oa

d 
ba

se
d 
ac
ro
ss
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
ty
pe

s,
 fu

nd
s w

ith
 g
re
at
er
 e
qu

ity
 m

ar
ke
t 

se
ns
iti
vi
ty
 e
ar
ne

d 
th
e 
hi
gh

es
t r
es
ul
ts
. W

ith
in
 th

e 
eq

ui
ty
 h
ed

ge
 

st
ra
te
gy
 se

t, 
fu
nd

s w
ith

 h
ig
he

r b
et
a 
ex
po

su
re
 ra

lli
ed

 st
ro
ng

ly
. 

Ac
co
rd
in
g 
to
 H
ed

ge
 F
un

d 
Re

se
ar
ch
, g
ro
w
th
‐o
rie

nt
ed

 m
an

ag
er
s 

(+
9.
3%

) n
ar
ro
w
ly
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
ed

 v
al
ue

‐o
rie

nt
ed

 (9
%
) p

ee
rs
. 

He
al
th
ca
re
 fo

cu
se
d 
fu
nd

s (
+1

3.
2%

) a
lso

 st
oo

d 
ou

t a
s w

in
ne

rs
. 

Ac
tiv

ist
s (
+8

.3
%
) l
ar
ge
ly
 re

bo
un

de
d 
fr
om

 a
 d
ism

al
 Q
4 
la
st
 y
ea
r. 

Fo
r m

an
ag
er
s t
ra
di
ng

 fi
xe
d 
in
co
m
e 
se
cu
rit
ie
s,
 fu

nd
s f
oc
us
ed

 o
n 

co
nv

er
tib

le
 a
rb
itr
ag
e 
(+
5.
5%

) a
nd

 c
re
di
t a

rb
itr
ag
e 
(+
5.
1%

) f
ar
ed

 
w
el
l a
s t
ho

se
 m

ar
ke
ts
 b
ou

nc
ed

 b
ac
k 
th
is 
qu

ar
te
r. 
As
se
t b

ac
ke
d 

(+
1.
7%

) a
nd

 fi
xe
d 
in
co
m
e 
m
ul
ti‐
st
ra
te
gy
 m

an
ag
er
s (
+2

%
) 

po
st
ed

 m
or
e 
m
ut
ed

 g
ai
ns
.  

He
dg

e 
fu
nd

s r
es
po

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 
Q
4 
se
ll‐
of
f l
as
t y

ea
r b

y 
cu
tt
in
g 

gr
os
s a

nd
 n
et
 e
xp
os
ur
e 
le
ve
ls 
to
 re

la
tiv

el
y 
lo
w
 le
ve
ls 
by

 y
ea

r 
en

d.
 G
ro
ss
 le
ve
ra
ge
 h
as
 si
nc
e 
la
rg
el
y 
re
bo

un
de

d 
w
hi
le
 n
et
 

ex
po

su
re
, w

ith
 th

e 
ex
ce
pt
io
n 
of
 A
sia

, r
em

ai
ns
 b
el
ow

 p
re
‐s
el
l o
ff 

le
ve
ls.
 

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: H

FR
I, 
as
 o
f 3

/3
1/
19

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ga

n 
St
an

le
y,
 a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

41

H
FR

I 
H
ED

G
E 
FU

N
D
 S
TY

LE
 P
ER

FO
R
M
A
N
CE

H
ED

G
E 
FU

N
D
 L
EV

ER
A
G
E 
LE

V
EL

S 
B
Y 
R
EG

IO
N

Va
lu
e 
bi
as
 o
ut
pe

rf
or
m
in
g

G
ro
w
th
 b
ia
s o

ut
pe

rf
or
m
in
g

5.
9%

7.
9%

4.
3%

2.
9%

3.
8%

0.
9%

‐0
.1
%

1.
9%

0.
3%

2.
9%

5.
1%

6.
8%

6.
9%

0.
1%

5.
5%

‐1
%0%1%2%3%4%5%6%7%8%9%

Fu
nd

 W
ei
gh

te
d

Co
m
po

si
te

Eq
ui
ty
 H
ed

ge
Ev
en

t D
riv

en
M
ac
ro

Re
la
tiv

e 
Va

lu
e

Q
4

1‐
Ye

ar
3‐
Ye

ar

68
%

99
%

59
%

14
%

16
%

57
%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

U
S

Eu
ro
pe

As
ia

G
ro
ss

N
et



Ap
pe

nd
ix

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

42



Pe
ri

od
ic

 ta
bl

e 
of

 re
tu

rn
s

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
 D
at
a:
 M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, I
nc
., 
He

dg
e 
Fu
nd

 R
es
ea

rc
h,
 In
c.
 (H

FR
), 
N
at
io
na

l C
ou

nc
il 
of
 R
ea

l E
st
at
e 
In
ve
st
m
en

t F
id
uc
ia
rie

s (
N
CR

EI
F)
.  
In
di
ce
s u

se
d:
 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
, R

us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

, R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th
, R

us
se
ll 
20

00
, 

Ru
ss
el
l 2
00

0 
Va

lu
e,
 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th
, M

SC
I E
AF

E,
 M

SC
I E
M
, B

Bg
Ba

rc
U
S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e,
 T
‐B
ill
 9
0 
Da

y,
 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity
, N

CR
EI
F 
Pr
op

er
ty
, H

FR
I F
O
F,
 M

SC
I A

CW
I, 
BB

gB
ar
cG

lo
ba

l B
on

d.
 N
CR

EI
F 
Pr
op

er
ty
 In
de

x 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 d
at
a 
as
 o
f 1

2/
31

/1
8.

43

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
Eq

ui
ty

Sm
al
l C

ap
 G
ro
w
th

Co
m
m
od

it
ie
s

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
Va

lu
e

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l E
qu

it
y

Re
al
 E
st
at
e

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
G
ro
w
th

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke

ts
 E
qu

it
y

H
ed

ge
 F
un

ds
 o
f F
un

ds

Sm
al
l C

a p
 E
qu

it
y

U
S 
Bo

nd
s

60
%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I/
40

%
 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 G
lo
ba

l B
on

d

Sm
al
l C

ap
 V
al
ue

Ca
sh

BEST WORST

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

YT
D

5‐
Ye

ar
10

‐Y
ea

r

Sm
al
l C
ap

 G
ro
w
th

38
.7

66
.4

31
.8

14
.0

25
.9

56
.3

26
.0

34
.5

32
.6

39
.8

5.
2

79
.0

29
.1

14
.3

18
.6

43
.3

13
.5

13
.3

31
.7

37
.3

6.
7

17
.1

13
.5

17
.5

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
G
ro
w
th

27
.0

43
.1

22
.8

8.
4

10
.3

48
.5

22
.2

21
.4

26
.9

16
.2

1.
4

37
.2

26
.9

7.
8

18
.1

38
.8

13
.2

5.
7

21
.3

30
.2

1.
9

16
.1

10
.6

16
.5

Sm
al
l C
ap

 E
qu

ity
20

.3
33

.2
12

.2
7.
3

6.
7

47
.3

20
.7

20
.1

23
.5

15
.8

‐6
.5

34
.5

24
.5

2.
6

17
.9

34
.5

13
.0

0.
9

17
.3

25
.0

0.
0

14
.6

8.
7

16
.0

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
Eq

ui
ty

19
.3

27
.3

11
.6

3.
3

1.
6

46
.0

18
.3

14
.0

22
.2

11
.8

‐2
1.
4

32
.5

19
.2

1.
5

17
.5

33
.5

11
.8

0.
6

12
.1

22
.2

‐1
.5

14
.0

8.
4

15
.4

La
rg
e 
Ca

p 
Va

lu
e

16
.2

26
.5

7.
0

2.
8

1.
0

39
.2

16
.5

7.
5

18
.4

11
.6

‐2
5.
9

28
.4

16
.8

0.
4

16
.4

33
.1

6.
0

0.
0

11
.8

21
.7

‐3
.5

11
.9

7.
7

14
.5

Sm
al
l C
ap

 V
al
ue

15
.6

24
.3

6.
0

2.
5

‐5
.9

30
.0

14
.5

7.
1

16
.6

10
.9

‐2
8.
9

27
.2

16
.7

0.
1

16
.3

32
.5

5.
6

‐0
.4

11
.3

17
.1

‐4
.8

11
.9

7.
1

14
.1

In
te
rn
at
io
na

l E
qu

ity
8.
7

21
.3

4.
1

‐2
.4

‐6
.0

29
.9

14
.3

6.
3

15
.5

10
.3

‐3
3.
8

23
.3

16
.1

‐2
.1

15
.3

23
.3

4.
9

‐0
.8

11
.2

14
.6

‐6
.0

10
.0

5.
6

9.
0

Em
er
gi
ng

 M
ar
ke
ts
 E
qu

ity
4.
9

20
.9

‐3
.0

‐5
.6

‐1
1.
4

29
.7

12
.9

5.
3

15
.1

7.
0

‐3
5.
6

20
.6

15
.5

‐2
.9

14
.6

12
.1

4.
2

‐1
.4

8.
0

13
.7

‐8
.3

9.
9

4.
4

8.
9

60
/4
0 
G
lo
ba

l P
or
tf
ol
io

1.
2

13
.2

‐7
.3

‐9
.1

‐1
5.
5

25
.2

11
.4

4.
7

13
.3

7.
0

‐3
6.
8

19
.7

13
.1

‐4
.2

11
.5

11
.0

3.
4

‐2
.5

7.
1

7.
8

‐9
.3

8.
1

3.
7

8.
5

Co
m
m
od

iti
es

‐2
.5

11
.4

‐7
.8

‐9
.2

‐1
5.
7

23
.9

9.
1

4.
6

10
.4

5.
8

‐3
7.
6

18
.9

10
.2

‐5
.5

10
.5

9.
0

2.
8

‐3
.8

5.
7

7.
7

‐1
1.
0

6.
3

2.
7

8.
3

H
ed

ge
 F
un

ds
 o
f F

un
ds

‐5
.1

7.
3

‐1
4.
0

‐1
2.
4

‐2
0.
5

11
.6

6.
9

4.
6

9.
1

4.
4

‐3
8.
4

11
.5

8.
2

‐5
.7

4.
8

0.
1

0.
0

‐4
.4

2.
6

7.
0

‐1
1.
2

5.
0

2.
3

3.
8

U
S 
Bo

nd
s

‐6
.5

4.
8

‐2
2.
4

‐1
9.
5

‐2
1.
7

9.
0

6.
3

4.
2

4.
8

‐0
.2

‐3
8.
5

5.
9

6.
5

‐1
1.
7

4.
2

‐2
.0

‐1
.8

‐7
.5

1.
0

3.
5

‐1
2.
9

2.
9

2.
3

3.
6

Ca
sh

‐2
5.
3

‐0
.8

‐2
2.
4

‐2
0.
4

‐2
7.
9

4.
1

4.
3

3.
2

4.
3

‐1
.6

‐4
3.
1

0.
2

5.
7

‐1
3.
3

0.
1

‐2
.3

‐4
.5

‐1
4.
9

0.
5

1.
7

‐1
3.
8

0.
6

0.
8

0.
4

Re
al
 E
st
at
e

‐2
7.
0

‐1
.5

‐3
0.
6

‐2
1.
2

‐3
0.
3

1.
0

1.
4

2.
4

2.
1

‐9
.8

‐5
3.
2

‐1
6.
9

0.
1

‐1
8.
2

‐1
.1

‐9
.5

‐1
7.
0

‐2
4.
7

0.
3

0.
9

‐1
4.
6

0.
0

‐8
.9

‐2
.6



O
N
E 
YE

A
R
 E
N
D
IN

G
 M

A
R
CH

M
aj

or
 a

ss
et

 cl
as

s r
et

ur
ns

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

44

TE
N
 Y
EA

R
S 
EN

D
IN

G
 M

A
R
CH

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

‐7
.4
%‐5
.3
%

‐3
.7
%

0.
2%2.
0%3.
4%3.
9%4.
2%4.
5%4.
9%5.
7%

5.
9%

9.
5%

12
.7
%

19
.3
%

‐1
5%

‐5
%

5%
15

%
25

%

 M
SC

I E
M

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity

 M
SC

I E
AF

E

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

en
cy
 In

te
rm

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

g 
Bo

nd

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Cr
ed

it

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Co

rp
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

 S
&
P 
50

0

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th

 W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT

‐2
.6
%

1.
9%2.
4%3.
8%

6.
2%

8.
9%

9.
0%

11
.3
%14
.1
%

14
.5
%

15
.4
%

15
.9
%

16
.5
%

17
.5
%

18
.7
%

‐1
0%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

en
cy
 In

te
rm

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

g 
Bo

nd

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Cr
ed

it

 M
SC

I E
M

 M
SC

I E
AF

E

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Co

rp
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00

 S
&
P 
50

0

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th

 W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT



Q
TDS&

P 
50

0 
se

ct
or

 re
tu

rn
s

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, a
s o

f 3
/3
1/
19

45

O
N
E 
YE

A
R
 E
N
D
IN

G
 M

A
R
CH

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

6.
6%

8.
6%

10
.3
%

10
.8
%

12
.0
%13
.6
%

14
.0
%15
.7
%

16
.4
%17
.2
%

17
.5
%19

.9
%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

 H
ea
lth

 C
ar
e

 F
in
an

ci
al
s

 M
at
er
ia
ls

 U
til
iti
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 S
ta
pl
es

 S
&
P 
50

0

 T
el
ec
om

 C
on

su
m
er
 D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

 E
ne

rg
y

 In
du

st
ria

ls

 R
ea
l E
st
at
e

 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

‐4
.7
%

‐0
.4
%

1.
3%3.

2%

7.
8%9.

5%10
.5
%13
.2
%

14
.9
%

15
.4
%

19
.3
%

21
.0
%

‐1
0%

‐5
%

0%
5%

10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

 F
in
an

ci
al
s

 M
at
er
ia
ls

 E
ne

rg
y

 In
du

st
ria

ls

 T
el
ec
om

 S
&
P 
50

0

 C
on

su
m
er
 S
ta
pl
es

 C
on

su
m
er
 D
isc

re
tio

na
ry

 H
ea
lth

 C
ar
e

 In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
til
iti
es

 R
ea
l E
st
at
e



D
et

ai
le

d 
in

de
x 

re
tu

rn
s

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

So
ur
ce
: M

or
ni
ng

st
ar
, H

FR
, a

s o
f 3

/3
1/
19

46
2n

d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

DO
M
ES
TI
C 
EQ

U
IT
Y

FI
XE

D 
IN
CO

M
E

M
on

th
Q
TD

YT
D

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
M
on

th
Q
TD

YT
D

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r

 C
or
e 
In
de

x
 B
ro
ad

 In
de

x

 S
&
P 
50

0
1.
9 

13
.6
 

13
.6
 

9.
5 

13
.5
 

10
.9
 

15
.9
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
   U
S   
TI
PS

1.
8 

3.
2 

3.
2 

2.
7 

1.
7 

1.
9 

3.
4 

 S
&
P 
50

0 
Eq

ua
l W

ei
gh

te
d

0.
9 

14
.9
 

14
.9
 

7.
2 

12
.0
 

9.
5 

17
.8
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 B
ill
s

0.
2 

0.
6 

0.
6 

2.
2 

1.
2 

0.
8 

0.
5 

 D
J I
nd

us
tr
ia
l A

ve
ra
ge

0.
2 

11
.8
 

11
.8
 

10
.1
 

16
.4
 

12
.2
 

16
.0
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

g 
Bo

nd
1.
9 

2.
9 

2.
9 

4.
5 

2.
0 

2.
7 

3.
8 

 R
us
se
ll 
To

p 
20

0
2.
1 

13
.1
 

13
.1
 

10
.4
 

14
.2
 

11
.4
 

15
.7
 

 D
ur
at
io
n

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
1.
7 

14
.0
 

14
.0
 

9.
3 

13
.5
 

10
.6
 

16
.0
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 1
‐3
 Y
r

0.
6 

1.
0 

1.
0 

2.
7 

1.
0 

1.
0 

1.
0 

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
(2
.1
)

14
.6
 

14
.6
 

2.
0 

12
.9
 

7.
1 

15
.4
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry
 L
on

g
5.
3 

4.
7 

4.
7 

6.
2 

1.
5 

5.
4 

5.
1 

 R
us
se
ll 
30

00
1.
5 

14
.0
 

14
.0
 

8.
8 

13
.5
 

10
.4
 

16
.0
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Tr
ea
su
ry

1.
9 

2.
1 

2.
1 

4.
2 

1.
0 

2.
2 

2.
4 

 R
us
se
ll 
M
id
 C
ap

0.
9 

16
.5
 

16
.5
 

6.
5 

11
.8
 

8.
8 

16
.9
 

 Is
su
er

 S
ty
le
 In

de
x

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
M
BS

1.
5 

2.
2 

2.
2 

4.
4 

1.
8 

2.
6 

3.
1 

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 G
ro
w
th

2.
8 

16
.1
 

16
.1
 

12
.7
 

16
.5
 

13
.5
 

17
.5
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Co

rp
. H

ig
h 
Yi
el
d

0.
9 

7.
3 

7.
3 

5.
9 

8.
6 

4.
7 

11
.3
 

 R
us
se
ll 
10

00
 V
al
ue

0.
6 

11
.9
 

11
.9
 

5.
7 

10
.5
 

7.
7 

14
.5
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Ag

en
cy
 In

te
rm

0.
9 

1.
4 

1.
4 

3.
4 

1.
2 

1.
6 

1.
9 

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 G
ro
w
th

(1
.4
)

17
.1
 

17
.1
 

3.
9 

14
.9
 

8.
4 

16
.5
 

 B
Bg

Ba
rc
 U
S 
Cr
ed

it
2.
4 

4.
9 

4.
9 

4.
9 

3.
5 

3.
6 

6.
2 

 R
us
se
ll 
20

00
 V
al
ue

(2
.9
)

11
.9
 

11
.9
 

0.
2 

10
.9
 

5.
6 

14
.1
 

IN
TE
RN

AT
IO
N
AL

 E
Q
U
IT
Y

O
TH

ER
 B
ro
ad

 In
de

x
 In

de
x

 M
SC

I A
CW

I
1.
3 

12
.2
 

12
.2
 

2.
6 

10
.7
 

6.
5 

12
.0
 

 B
lo
om

be
rg
 C
om

m
od

ity
(0
.2
)

6.
3 

6.
3 

(5
.3
)

2.
2 

(8
.9
)

(2
.6
)

 M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x 
U
S

0.
6 

10
.3
 

10
.3
 

(4
.2
)

8.
1 

2.
6 

8.
8 

 W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT
3.
2 

16
.0
 

16
.0
 

19
.3
 

5.
5 

9.
0 

18
.7
 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E
0.
6 

10
.0
 

10
.0
 

(3
.7
)

7.
3 

2.
3 

9.
0 

 C
S 
Le
ve
ra
ge
d 
Lo
an

s
(0
.1
)

3.
8 

3.
8 

3.
3 

5.
9 

3.
8 

8.
0 

 M
SC

I E
M

0.
8 

9.
9 

9.
9 

(7
.4
)

10
.7
 

3.
7 

8.
9 

 A
le
ria

n 
M
LP

3.
8 

17
.4
 

17
.4
 

16
.8
 

5.
9 

(4
.2
)

11
.1
 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Sm

al
l C
ap

 
0.
2 

10
.7
 

10
.7
 

(9
.4
)

7.
5 

4.
5 

12
.8
 

 R
eg

io
na

l I
nd

ex

 S
ty
le
 In

de
x

 JP
M
 E
M
BI
 G
lo
ba

l D
iv

1.
4 

7.
0 

7.
0 

4.
2 

5.
8 

5.
4 

8.
5 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
G
ro
w
th

1.
8 

12
.0
 

12
.0
 

(1
.3
)

7.
6 

3.
9 

9.
7 

 JP
M
 G
BI
‐E
M
 G
lo
ba

l D
iv

(1
.3
)

2.
9 

2.
9 

(7
.6
)

3.
3 

(0
.8
)

4.
4 

 M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Va

lu
e

(0
.5
)

7.
9 

7.
9 

(6
.1
)

6.
9 

0.
7 

8.
1 

 H
ed

ge
 F
un

ds

 R
eg

io
na

l I
nd

ex
 H
FR

I C
om

po
si
te

1.
0 

5.
9 

5.
9 

0.
9 

5.
1 

3.
1 

5.
5 

 M
SC

I U
K

1.
1 

11
.9
 

11
.9
 

(0
.1
)

6.
3 

0.
7 

9.
3 

 H
FR

I F
O
F 
Co

m
po

si
te

1.
3 

5.
0 

5.
0 

0.
5 

4.
1 

2.
3 

3.
6 

 M
SC

I J
ap

an
0.
6 

6.
7 

6.
7 

(7
.8
)

8.
1 

5.
6 

8.
0 

 C
ur
re
nc
y 
(S
po

t)

 M
SC

I E
ur
o

0.
0 

9.
8 

9.
8 

(7
.8
)

6.
5 

0.
6 

7.
5 

 E
ur
o

(1
.4
)

(1
.8
)

(1
.8
)

(8
.7
)

(0
.5
)

(4
.0
)

(1
.7
)

 M
SC

I E
M
 A
si
a

1.
8 

11
.1
 

11
.1
 

(6
.8
)

11
.8
 

6.
2 

10
.8
 

 P
ou

nd
(2
.0
)

2.
3 

2.
3 

(7
.1
)

(3
.2
)

(4
.8
)

(0
.9
)

 M
SC

I E
M
 L
at
in
 A
m
er
ic
an

(2
.5
)

7.
9 

7.
9 

(6
.7
)

11
.1
 

(0
.3
)

5.
3 

 Y
en

0.
6 

(0
.9
)

(0
.9
)

(3
.9
)

0.
5 

(1
.4
)

(1
.1
)



Pr
iv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
 v

s. 
pu

bl
ic

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

47

0%5%10
%

15
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r
U
.S
. R

ea
l E
st
at
e

W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT

‐3
.3
%

7.
8%

1.
7%

4.
6%

‐1
.3
%

Pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

t 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
(P

M
E

) a
na

ly
si

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 
di

re
ct

 p
ri

va
te

 
eq

ui
ty

 h
as

 
ou

tp
er

fo
rm

ed
 

pu
bl

ic
 e

qu
ity

 
ov

er
 m

os
t 

pe
ri

od
s

Fu
nd

-o
f-f

un
d 

&
 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
pr

iv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

ha
ve

 la
gg

ed
 

pu
bl

ic
 e

qu
iti

es
0%5%10
%

15
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r
U
.S
. R

ea
l E
st
at
e

N
CR

EI
F 
Pr
op

er
ty
 In

de
x

4.
3%

1.
9%

3.
7%

0.
5%

‐0
.6
%

So
ur
ce
s:
 T
ho

m
so
n 
Re

ut
er
s C

am
br
id
ge

 U
ni
ve
rs
e’
s P

M
E 
M
od

ul
e:
 U
.S
. P

riv
at
e 
Eq

ui
ty
 F
un

ds
 su

b 
as
se
t c
la
ss
es
 a
s o

f S
ep

te
m
be

r 3
0,
 2
01

8.
 P
ub

lic
 M

ar
ke
t E

qu
iv
al
en

t r
et
ur
ns
 re

su
lte

d 
fr
om

 “
To

ta
l P
as
siv

e”
 a
nd

 T
ot
al
 D
ire

ct
’s

id
en

tic
al
 c
as
h 
flo

w
s i
nv
es
te
d 
in
to
 a
nd

 d
ist
rib

ut
ed

 fr
om

 re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
tr
ad

iti
on

al
 a
ss
et
 co

m
pa

ra
bl
e.

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

PU
B
LI
C 
M
A
R
KE

T 
EQ

U
IV

A
LE

N
T 
(P

M
E)
 A

N
A
LY

SI
S 
‐
D
IR

EC
T 
PR

IV
A
TE

 E
Q
U
IT
Y

PU
B
LI
C 
M
A
R
K
ET

 E
Q
U
IV

A
LE

N
T 
(P

M
E)
 A

N
A
LY

SI
S 
–
“P

A
SS

IV
E”

 P
R
IV

A
TE

 E
Q
U
IT
Y 

A
s 

of
 9

/3
0/

20
18

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r

VC
/G

r
Bu

yo
ut
s

De
bt
/S
S

To
ta
l D

ire
ct

To
ta
l D

ire
ct
 P
M
E 
(R
us
se
ll 
30

00
)

0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r

Fo
F

Se
co
nd

ar
ie
s

To
ta
l "
Pa

ss
iv
e"

Ru
ss
el
l 3
00

0

0.
9%

‐7
.4
%

‐1
.0
%

‐2
.5
%

‐1
.2
%

1.
1%

‐3
.4
%

1.
3%

0.
1%

4.
8%



0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r

G
lo
ba

l N
at
ur
al
 R
es
ou

rc
es

M
SC

I W
or
ld
 N
at
ur
al
 R
es
ou

rc
es

1.
5%

0.
2%

‐6
.3
%

Pr
iv

at
ev

s.
liq

ui
d

re
al

as
se

ts
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce

So
ur
ce
s:
 T
ho

m
so
n 
Re

ut
er
s C

|A
 P
M
E:
 G
lo
ba

l N
at
ur
al
 R
es
ou

rc
es
 (v
in
ta
ge

 1
99

6 
an

d 
la
te
r, 
in
ce
pt
io
n 
of
 M

SC
I A

CW
I E
ne

rg
y 
be

nc
hm

ar
k)
 a
nd

G
lo
ba

l I
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
(v
in
ta
ge

 2
00

2 
an

d 
la
te
r, 
in
ce
pt
io
n 
of
 S
&
P 
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
 

be
nc
hm

ar
k)
 u
ni
ve
rs
es
 a
s o

f S
ep

te
m
be

r 3
0,
 2
01

8.
 P
ub

lic
 M

ar
ke
t E

qu
iv
al
en

t r
et
ur
ns
 re

su
lte

d 
fr
om

 id
en

tic
al
 c
as
h 
flo

w
s i
nv
es
te
d 
in
to

an
d 
di
st
rib

ut
ed

 fr
om

 re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
liq
ui
d 
re
al
 a
ss
et
s u

ni
ve
rs
es
. 

48

Pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

t 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
(P

M
E

) a
na

ly
si

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 
pr

iv
at

e 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
ha

s 
re

ce
nt

ly
 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

ed
 

pu
bl

ic
ly

 li
st

ed
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re

Pr
iv

at
e 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

ha
s 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
ed

 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 li

st
ed

 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

0%5%10
%

15
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
G
lo
ba

l I
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e

S&
P 
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

10
.8
%

6.
2%

1.
6%

3.
1%

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

PU
B
LI
C 
M
A
R
K
ET

 E
Q
U
IV

A
LE

N
T 
(P

M
E)
 A

N
A
LY

SI
S 
‐
G
LO

B
A
L 
N
A
TU

R
A
L 
R
ES

O
U
R
CE

S 
FU

N
D
S

PU
B
LI
C 
M
A
R
K
ET

 E
Q
U
IV

A
LE

N
T 
(P

M
E)
 A

N
A
LY

SI
S 
‐
G
LO

B
A
L 
IN

FR
A
ST

R
U
CT

U
R
E 
FU

N
D
S

‐5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r

G
lo
ba

l I
nf
ra
st
ru
ct
ur
e

S&
P 
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

11
.9
%

4.
6%

1.
5%

4.
7%

A
s 

of
 9

/3
0/

20
18

‐2
.4
%



0%5%10
%

15
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r

U
.S
. R

ea
l E
st
at
e

N
CR

EI
F 
Pr
op

er
ty
 In

de
x

4.
5%

2.
2%

3.
8%

0.
5%

0.
2%

0%5%10
%

15
%

1 
Ye

ar
3 
Ye

ar
5 
Ye

ar
10

 Y
ea

r
20

 Y
ea

r

U
.S
. R

ea
l E
st
at
e

W
ils
hi
re
 U
S 
RE

IT

‐2
.1
%

7.
9%

2.
3%

3.
1%

‐1
.6
%

Pr
iv

at
e 

vs
. l

iq
ui

d 
&

 co
re

 re
al

 e
st

at
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

49

Pu
bl

ic
 m

ar
ke

t 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
(P

M
E

) a
na

ly
si

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 U
.S

. 
pr

iv
at

e 
R

.E
. h

as
 

un
de

rp
er

fo
rm

ed
 

liq
ui

d 
re

al
 

es
ta

te
 o

ve
r t

he
 

lo
ng

-t
er

m

U
.S

. p
ri

va
te

 
R

.E
. h

as
 

ou
tp

er
fo

rm
ed

 
th

e 
N

C
R

E
IF

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 In

de
x 

ov
er

 e
ac

h 
tim

e 
pe

ri
od

So
ur
ce
s:
 T
ho

m
so
n 
Re

ut
er
s C

|A
 P
M
E:
 G
lo
ba

l a
nd

 U
.S
. R

ea
l E
st
at
e 
un

iv
er
se
s a

s o
f S

ep
te
m
be

r 3
0,
 2
01

8.
 P
ub

lic
 M

ar
ke
t E

qu
iv
al
en

t r
et
ur
ns
 re

su
lte

d 
fr
om

 id
en

tic
al
 c
as
h 
flo

w
s i
nv
es
te
d 
in
to
 a
nd

 d
ist
rib

ut
ed

 fr
om

 
re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
liq
ui
d 
re
al
 e
st
at
e 
un

iv
er
se
s.

In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9

PU
B
LI
C 
M
A
R
K
ET

 E
Q
U
IV

A
LE

N
T 
(P

M
E)
 A

N
A
LY

SI
S 
‐
U
.S
 P
R
IV

A
TE

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 V
S.
 L
IQ

U
ID

 U
N
IV

ER
SE

PU
B
LI
C 
M
A
R
K
ET

 E
Q
U
IV

A
LE

N
T 
(P

M
E)
 A

N
A
LY

SI
S 
‐
U
.S
. 
PR

IV
A
TE

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 F
U
N
D
S 
V
S.
 C
O
R
E 
FU

N
D
S

A
s 

of
 9

/3
0/

20
18



D
ef

in
iti

on
s

2n
d 
Q
ua

rt
er
 2
01

9
In
ve
st
m
en

t L
an

ds
ca
pe

50

Bl
oo

m
be

rg
 U
S 
W
ee

kl
y 
Co

ns
um

er
 C
om

fo
rt
 In

de
x
‐t
ra
ck
s t
he

 p
ub

lic
’s
 e
co
no

m
ic
 a
tt
itu

de
s e

ac
h 
w
ee
k,
 p
ro
vi
di
ng

 a
 h
ig
h‐
fr
eq

ue
nc
y 
re
ad

 o
n 
co
ns
um

er
 s
en

tim
en

t. 
Th

e 
in
de

x,
 b
as
ed

 o
n 
ce
ll 
an

d 
la
nd

lin
e 
te
le
ph

on
e 
in
te
rv
ie
w
s 
w
ith

 a
 

ra
nd

om
, r
ep

re
se
nt
at
iv
e 
na

tio
na

l s
am

pl
e 
of
 U
.S
. a

du
lts
, t
ra
ck
s A

m
er
ic
an

s' 
ra
tin

gs
 o
f t
he

 n
at
io
na

l e
co
no

m
y,
 th

ei
r p

er
so
na

l f
in
an

ce
s 
an

d 
th
e 
bu

yi
ng

 c
lim

at
e 
on

 a
 w
ee
kl
y 
ba

sis
, w

ith
 v
ie
w
s 
of
 th

e 
ec
on

om
y’
s 
di
re
ct
io
n 
m
ea

su
re
d 

se
pa

ra
te
ly
 e
ac
h 
m
on

th
. (
w
w
w
.la

ng
er
re
se
ar
ch
.c
om

) 

U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n 
Co

ns
um

er
 S
en

tim
en

t I
nd

ex
‐A

 su
rv
ey
 o
f c
on

su
m
er
 a
tt
itu

de
s c

on
ce
rn
in
g 
bo

th
 th

e 
pr
es
en

t s
itu

at
io
n 
as
 w
el
l a

s e
xp
ec
ta
tio

ns
 re

ga
rd
in
g 
ec
on

om
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 c
on

du
ct
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
U
ni
ve
rs
ity

 o
f M

ic
hi
ga

n.
 F
or
 

th
e 
pr
el
im

in
ar
y 
re
le
as
e 
ap

pr
ox
im

at
el
y 
th
re
e 
hu

nd
re
d 
co
ns
um

er
s 
ar
e 
su
rv
ey
ed

 w
hi
le
 fi
ve
 h
un

dr
ed

 a
re
 in

te
rv
ie
w
ed

 fo
r t
he

 fi
na

l f
ig
ur
e.
 T
he

 le
ve
l o

f c
on

su
m
er
 s
en

tim
en

t i
s r
el
at
ed

 to
 th

e 
st
re
ng

th
 o
f c
on

su
m
er
 s
pe

nd
in
g.
 

(w
w
w
.B
lo
om

be
rg
.c
om

) 

N
FI
B 
Sm

al
l B

us
in
es
s 
O
ut
lo
ok

 ‐
Sm

al
l B

us
in
es
s 
Ec
on

om
ic
 T
re
nd

s (
SB

ET
) i
s a

 m
on

th
ly
 a
ss
es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 U
.S
. s
m
al
l‐b

us
in
es
s 
ec
on

om
y 
an

d 
its
 n
ea

r‐
te
rm

 p
ro
sp
ec
ts
. I
ts
 d
at
a 
ar
e 
co
lle
ct
ed

 th
ro
ug

h 
m
ai
l s
ur
ve
ys
 to

 ra
nd

om
 s
am

pl
es
 

of
 th

e 
N
at
io
na

l F
ed

er
al
 o
f I
nd

ep
en

de
nt
 B
us
in
es
s 
(N
FI
B)
 m

em
be

rs
hi
p.
 T
he

 su
rv
ey
 c
on

ta
in
s 
th
re
e 
br
oa

d 
qu

es
tio

n 
ty
pe

s:
  r
ec
en

t p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, n

ea
r‐
te
rm

 fo
re
ca
st
s,
 a
nd

 d
em

og
ra
ph

ic
s.
  T
he

 to
pi
cs
 a
dd

re
ss
ed

 in
cl
ud

e:
  o

ut
lo
ok
, 

sa
le
s,
 e
ar
ni
ng

s,
 e
m
pl
oy
m
en

t, 
em

pl
oy
ee
 c
om

pe
ns
at
io
n,
 in

ve
st
m
en

t, 
in
ve
nt
or
ie
s,
 c
re
di
t c

on
di
tio

ns
, a

nd
 s
in
gl
e 
m
os
t i
m
po

rt
an

t p
ro
bl
em

. (
ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.n
fib

‐s
be

t.o
rg
/a
bo

ut
/)

N
AH

B 
H
ou

si
ng

 M
ar
ke
t I
nd

ex
 –
th
e 
ho

us
in
g 
m
ar
ke
t i
nd

ex
 is
 a
 w
ei
gh

te
d 
av
er
ag

e 
of
 se

pa
ra
te
 d
iff
us
io
n 
in
du

ce
s 
fo
r t
hr
ee
 k
ey
 si
ng

le
‐fa

m
ily
 in

di
ce
s:
 m

ar
ke
t c

on
di
tio

ns
 fo

r t
he

 sa
le
 o
f n

ew
 h
om

es
 a
t t
he

 p
re
se
nt
 ti
m
e,
 m

ar
ke
t 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
fo
r t
he

 sa
le
 o
f n

ew
 h
om

es
 in

 th
e 
ne

xt
 si
x 
m
on

th
s,
 a
nd

 th
e 
tr
af
fic
 o
f p

ro
sp
ec
tiv

e 
bu

ye
rs
 o
f n

ew
 h
om

es
. T

he
 fi
rs
t t
w
o 
se
rie

s a
re
 ra

te
d 
on

 a
 sc

al
e 
of
 G
oo

d,
 F
ai
r, 
an

d 
Po

or
 a
nd

 th
e 
la
st
 is
 ra

te
d 
on

 a
 sc

al
e 
of
 H
ig
h/
Ve

ry
 

Hi
gh

, A
ve
ra
ge

, a
nd

 L
ow

/V
er
y 
Lo
w
. A

 d
iff
us
io
n 
in
de

x 
is 
ca
lc
ul
at
ed

 fo
r e

ac
h 
se
rie

s b
y 
ap

pl
yi
ng

 th
e 
fo
rm

ul
a 
“(
G
oo

d‐
Po

or
 +
 1
00

)/
2”
 to

 th
e 
pr
es
en

t a
nd

 fu
tu
re
 sa

le
s s

er
ie
s a

nd
 “
(H
ig
h/
Ve

ry
 H
ig
h‐
Lo
w
/V
er
y 
Lo
w
 +
 1
00

)/
2”
 to

 th
e 

tr
af
fic
 se

rie
s.
 E
ac
h 
re
su
lti
ng

 in
de

x 
is 
th
en

 se
as
on

al
ly
 a
dj
us
te
d 
an

d 
w
ei
gh

te
d 
to
 p
ro
du

ce
 th

e 
HM

I. 
Ba

se
d 
on

 th
is 
ca
lc
ul
at
io
n,
 th

e
HM

I c
an

 ra
ng

e 
be

tw
ee
n 
0 
an

d 
10

0.
 

N
ot

ic
es

 &
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
Pa

st
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 is
 n
o 
gu

ar
an

te
e 
of
 fu

tu
re
 re

su
lts

. T
hi
s r
ep

or
t o

r p
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
is 
pr
ov
id
ed

 fo
r i
nf
or
m
at
io
na

l p
ur
po

se
s 
on

ly
 a
nd

 is
 d
ire

ct
ed

 to
 in
st
itu

tio
na

l c
lie
nt
s a

nd
 e
lig
ib
le
in
st
itu

tio
na

l c
ou

nt
er
pa

rt
ie
s 
on

ly
 a
nd

 s
ho

ul
d 
no

t 
be

 re
lie
d 
up

on
 b
y 
re
ta
il 
in
ve
st
or
s.
 N
ot
hi
ng

 h
er
ei
n 
co
ns
tit
ut
es
 in
ve
st
m
en

t, 
le
ga

l, 
ac
co
un

tin
g 
or
 ta

x 
ad

vi
ce
, o

r a
 re

co
m
m
en

da
tio

n 
to
 b
uy
, s
el
l o
r h

ol
d 
a 
se
cu
rit
y 
or
 p
ur
su
e 
a 
pa

rt
ic
ul
ar
 in

ve
st
m
en

t v
eh

ic
le
 o
r a

ny
 tr
ad

in
g 
st
ra
te
gy
. 

Th
e 
op

in
io
ns
 a
nd

 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ex
pr
es
se
d 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en

t a
s o

f t
he

 d
at
e 
pr
ov
id
ed

 o
r c

ite
d 
on

ly
 a
nd

 a
re
 su

bj
ec
t t
o 
ch
an

ge
 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic
e.
 T
hi
s i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
is 
ob

ta
in
ed

 fr
om

 s
ou

rc
es
 d
ee
m
ed

 re
lia

bl
e,
 b
ut
 th

er
e 
is 
no

 re
pr
es
en

ta
tio

n 
or
 w
ar
ra
nt
y 
as
 to

 it
s a

cc
ur
ac
y,
 c
om

pl
et
en

es
s 
or
 re

lia
bi
lit
y.
 V
er
us
 A
dv
iso

ry
 In

c.
 e
xp
re
ss
ly
 d
isc

la
im

 a
ny
 a
nd

 a
ll 
im

pl
ie
d 
w
ar
ra
nt
ie
s 
or
 o
rig

in
al
ity

, a
cc
ur
ac
y,
 c
om

pl
et
en

es
s,
 n
on

‐in
fr
in
ge

m
en

t, 
m
er
ch
an

ta
bi
lit
y 
an

d 
fit
ne

ss
 fo

r a
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 p
ur
po

se
.  
Th

is 
re
po

rt
 o
r p

re
se
nt
at
io
n 
ca
nn

ot
 b
e 
us
ed

 b
y 
th
e 
re
ci
pi
en

t f
or
 a
dv
er
tis
in
g 
or
 sa

le
s p

ro
m
ot
io
n 
pu

rp
os
es
.

Th
e 
m
at
er
ia
l m

ay
 in

cl
ud

e 
es
tim

at
es
, o

ut
lo
ok
s,
 p
ro
je
ct
io
ns
 a
nd

 o
th
er
 “
fo
rw

ar
d‐
lo
ok
in
g 
st
at
em

en
ts
.”
 S
uc
h 
st
at
em

en
ts
 c
an

 b
e 
id
en

tif
ie
d 
by
 th

e 
us
e 
of
 te

rm
in
ol
og

y 
su
ch
 a
s “

be
lie
ve
s,
” 
“e
xp
ec
ts
,”
 “
m
ay
,”
 “
w
ill
,”
 “
sh
ou

ld
,”
 

“a
nt
ic
ip
at
es
,”
 o
r t
he

 n
eg

at
iv
e 
of
 a
ny
 o
f t
he

 fo
re
go

in
g 
 o
r c

om
pa

ra
bl
e 
te
rm

in
ol
og

y,
 o
r b

y 
di
sc
us
sio

n 
of
 st
ra
te
gy
, o

r a
ss
um

pt
io
ns
 s
uc
h 
as
 e
co
no

m
ic
 c
on

di
tio

ns
 u
nd

er
ly
in
g 
ot
he

r s
ta
te
m
en

ts
. N

o 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
ca
n 
be

 g
iv
en

 th
at
 

fu
tu
re
 re

su
lts
 d
es
cr
ib
ed

 o
r i
m
pl
ie
d 
by
 a
ny
 fo

rw
ar
d 
lo
ok
in
g 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
w
ill
 b
e 
ac
hi
ev
ed

. A
ct
ua

l e
ve
nt
s m

ay
 d
iff
er
 s
ig
ni
fic
an

tly
 fr
om

 th
os
e 
pr
es
en

te
d.
 In

ve
st
in
g 
en

ta
ils
 ri
sk
s,
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
po

ss
ib
le
 lo

ss
 o
f p

rin
ci
pa

l. 
Ri
sk
 c
on

tr
ol
s 

an
d 
m
od

el
s 
do

 n
ot
 p
ro
m
ise

 a
ny
 le
ve
l o

f p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 o
r g

ua
ra
nt
ee
 a
ga

in
st
 lo

ss
 o
f p

rin
ci
pa

l. 
 

“V
ER

U
S 
AD

VI
SO

RY
™
 a
nd

 a
ny
 a
ss
oc
ia
te
d 
de

sig
ns
 a
re
 th

e 
re
sp
ec
tiv

e 
tr
ad

em
ar
ks
 o
f V

er
us
 A
dv
iso

ry
, I
nc
. 
Ad

di
tio

na
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
is 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
up

on
 re

qu
es
t. 



In
ve

st
m

en
t P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
Pe

rio
d 

En
di

ng
:  

Ma
rc

h 
31

, 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n



Po
rtf

ol
io

 R
ec

on
ci

lia
tio

n

  
La

st
 T

hr
ee

Mo
nt

hs
Ye

ar
-T

o-
Da

te

_

Be
gin

nin
g 

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

$8
,2

55
,8

73
,3

07
$8

,2
55

,8
73

,3
07

Ne
t C

as
h 

Flo
w

-$
94

,4
28

,7
69

-$
94

,4
28

,7
69

Ne
t I

nv
es

tm
en

t C
ha

ng
e

$5
41

,7
06

,0
43

$5
41

,7
06

,0
43

En
din

g 
Ma

rke
t V

alu
e

$8
,7

03
,1

50
,5

80
$8

,7
03

,1
50

,5
80

_

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

an
d
w
ith

dr
aw

al
s
m
ay

in
cl
ud

e
in
tra

-a
cc

ou
nt

tra
ns

fe
rs

be
tw

ee
n
m
an

ag
er
s/
fu
nd

s.

To
ta

l F
un

d
Po

rt
fo

lio
 R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
2



To
ta

l F
un

d
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
H

is
to

ry
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

P
ol
ic
y
re
fle

ct
s
FF

P
4-
Y
ra

llo
ca

tio
ns

ap
pr
ov

ed
in

M
ar
ch

20
18

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
3



Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
vs

. C
ur

re
nt

 T
ar

ge
ts

Cu
rre

nt
Ba

lan
ce

Cu
rre

nt
Al

loc
at

ion
Cu

rre
nt

Ta
rg

et
Di

ffe
re

nc
e

_

Gr
ow

th
$6

,1
92

,0
23

,0
62

71
.1

%
69

.0
%

$1
86

,8
49

,1
62

Liq
uid

ity
$1

,7
21

,5
60

,4
70

19
.8

%
23

.0
%

-$
28

0,
16

4,
16

3
Di

ve
rsi

fyi
ng

$7
07

,5
38

,6
80

8.
1%

8.
0%

$1
1,

28
6,

63
4

Ca
sh

 &
 O

ve
rla

y
$8

2,
02

8,
36

8
0.

9%
--

$8
2,

02
8,

36
8

To
ta

l
$8

,7
03

,1
50

,5
80

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

XX
XX

X

To
ta

l F
un

d
A

ss
et

 A
llo

ca
tio

n 
vs

. L
on

g 
Te

rm
 T

ar
ge

t P
ol

ic
y

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Al
lo

ca
tio

n 
vs

. L
on

g 
Te

rm
 T

ar
ge

t
Cu

rre
nt

Ba
lan

ce
Cu

rre
nt

Al
loc

at
ion

Lo
ng

 T
er

m
Ta

rg
et

Di
ffe

re
nc

e
_

Gr
ow

th
$6

,1
92

,0
23

,0
62

71
.1

%
67

.0
%

$3
60

,9
12

,1
73

Liq
uid

ity
$1

,7
21

,5
60

,4
70

19
.8

%
23

.0
%

-$
28

0,
16

4,
16

3
Di

ve
rsi

fyi
ng

$7
07

,5
38

,6
80

8.
1%

10
.0

%
-$

16
2,

77
6,

37
8

Ca
sh

 &
 O

ve
rla

y
$8

2,
02

8,
36

8
0.

9%
--

$8
2,

02
8,

36
8

To
ta

l
$8

,7
03

,1
50

,5
80

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

XX
XX

X

Lo
ng

Te
rm

Ta
rg
et
s
re
fle

ct
FF

P
4-
Y
ra

llo
ca

tio
ns

ap
pr
ov

ed
in

M
ar
ch

20
18

.
C
ur
re
nt

Ta
rg
et
s
re
fle

ct
P
ha

se
3
Ta

rg
et
s
ap

pr
ov

ed
in

Ju
ne

20
18

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
4



To
ta

l F
un

d
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
(N

et
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(7
/1
/2
01

8-
P
re
se
nt
):
11
%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

9%
M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
11
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
23

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
5%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,2

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,4

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
r

II
+2

%
,2

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.8
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
7.
2%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E
In
de

x,
2.
0%

C
P
I+

4%
,1

0%
S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,2

.5
%

H
FR

IE
H
E
qu

ity
M
ar
ke
tN

eu
tra

l. 
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(1
0/
1/
20

17
-6
/3
0/
20

18
):
16

.3
%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

8.
8%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
8.
6%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
5%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,1

.9
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I+

2%
,4

.3
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h

Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.6
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
6.
4%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E
In
de

x,
2.
5%

C
P
I+

4%
,1

0.
1%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
.P

ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(1
/1
/2
01

7-
9/
30

/2
01

7)
:2

2.
9%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1
1%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
10

.9
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
22

.4
%

B
B
gB

ar
c
1-
3
Y
rG

ov
/C
re
di
t,
3.
2%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
S
A
gg

re
ga

te
,1

.7
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I+

2%
,5

.1
%

IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
1%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,1

.7
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
6.
8%

N
C
R
E
IF

O
D
C
E

In
de

x,
3.
6%

C
P
I+

4%
,8

.1
%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,1

.6
%

90
-d
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(4
/1
/2
01

2-
12

/3
1/
16

):
27

.7
%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
6%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
Ie

x-
U
S
(G

ro
ss
),
12

.3
%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
19

.6
%

B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,5

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L

H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,5

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,6

.7
5%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
1.
35

%
FT

S
E
/E
P
R
A
N
A
R
E
IT

D
ev
el
op

ed
ex
U
S
,6

.8
%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(4
/1
/2
01
1-
3/
31

/2
01

2)
:

31
%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
4%

M
S
C
IE

A
FE

(G
ro
ss
),
9.
6%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,3

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,8

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,3

.1
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
5%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
P
ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(4
/1
/2
01

0-
3/
31

/2
01
1)
:3

5.
6%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
4%

M
S
C
IE

A
FE

(G
ro
ss
),
5%

M
S
C
IA

C
W
I(
N
et
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,3

%
IC
E
B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

l
A
gg

re
ga

te
,8

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,3

.1
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
5%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.
 P

ol
ic
y
In
de

x
(7
/1
/2
00

9-
3/
31

/2
01

0)
:4

0.
6%

R
us
se
ll
30

00
,1

0.
4%

M
S
C
IE

A
FE

(G
ro
ss
),
25

%
B
B
gB

ar
c
U
.S
.A

gg
re
ga

te
,3

%
IC
E

B
of
A
M
L
H
ig
h
Yi
el
d
M
as
te
rI
I,
4%

B
B
gB

ar
c
G
lo
ba

lA
gg

re
ga

te
,8

.4
%

W
ils
hi
re

R
E
IT
,3

.1
%

N
C
R
E
IF

P
ro
pe

rty
In
de

x,
5%

S
&
P
50

0
+4

%
(L
ag

ge
d)
,0

.5
%

91
-D
ay

T-
B
ill
s.

       

%
 o

f P
or

tfo
lio

QT
D

1 
Yr

3 
Yr

s
5 

Yr
s

10
 Y

rs
20

18
20

17
20

16
20

15
20

14
_

To
ta

l F
un

d
10

0.
0

6.
5

3.
6

7.
6

6.
3

10
.6

-2
.7

13
.9

6.
9

2.
1

7.
7

Po
lic

y I
nd

ex
 

4.
7

3.
3

7.
8

6.
5

--
-0

.9
13

.7
8.

9
0.

6
9.

0

Gr
ow

th
71

.1
8.

3
3.

9
9.

5
7.

5
--

-3
.9

18
.7

7.
6

2.
3

8.
1

Cu
sto

m
 G

ro
wt

h 
Be

nc
hm

ar
k

 
6.

2
3.

3
10

.0
7.

7
--

-2
.1

19
.3

10
.1

0.
3

8.
4

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

8.
1

2.
5

1.
0

1.
7

0.
3

2.
3

-2
.3

2.
6

0.
8

-1
.8

1.
7

Cu
sto

m
 D

ive
rs

ify
ing

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

 
2.

3
3.

6
3.

3
3.

6
4.

3
1.

4
4.

7
4.

1
2.

5
5.

4

Li
qu

id
ity

19
.8

1.
7

3.
7

--
--

--
1.

7
1.

4
--

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt/
Cr

ed
it 1

-3
 Y

r. 
TR

 
1.

2
3.

0
--

--
--

1.
6

0.
8

--
--

--
XX

XX
X

*C
or
re
la
tio

n
be

tw
ee

n
th
e
G
ro
w
th

an
d
D
iv
er
si
fy
in
g
co

m
po

si
te
s
is
.4
8,

.3
2

an
d
.3
3
ov

er
th
e
pr
ev

io
us

1,
3
an

d
5
ye

ar
pe

rio
ds

re
sp

ec
tiv
el
y.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
5



To
ta

l F
un

d
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
(N

et
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

n 
Ex

ce
ss

BM
 R

et
ur

n

An
lzd

St
an

da
rd

De
via

tio
n

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g 
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
rm

at
ion

Ra
tio

Up
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
_

To
ta

l F
un

d
7.

64
%

-0
.2

0%
4.

91
%

-0
.7

2%
1.

07
1.

56
%

0.
90

1.
31

-0
.1

3
10

1.
62

%
11

0.
41

%
XX

XX
X

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

n 
Ex

ce
ss

BM
 R

et
ur

n

An
lzd

St
an

da
rd

De
via

tio
n

An
lzd

 A
lph

a
Be

ta
Tr

ac
kin

g 
Er

ro
r

R-
Sq

ua
re

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
In

fo
rm

at
ion

Ra
tio

Up
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
Do

wn
 M

kt
Ca

pt
ur

e 
Ra

tio
_

To
ta

l F
un

d
6.

26
%

-0
.2

4%
5.

32
%

0.
42

%
0.

90
1.

74
%

0.
90

1.
03

-0
.1

4
90

.2
3%

88
.2

4%

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
6



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

To
ta

l F
un

d
8,

70
3,

15
0,

58
0

10
0.

0
6.

6
3.

9
8.

0
6.

7
11

.2
-2

.5
14

.2
7.

4
2.

7
8.

4
Po

lic
y I

nd
ex

4.
7

3.
3

7.
8

6.
5

--
-0

.9
13

.7
8.

9
0.

6
9.

0
In

ve
sto

rF
or

ce
 P

ub
lic

 D
B 

> 
$1

B 
Gr

os
s R

an
k

79
37

87
22

14
25

83
74

5
6

To
ta

l F
un

d 
ex

 O
ve

rla
y 

& 
Ca

sh
8,

62
1,

12
2,

21
2

99
.1

6.
4

4.
1

8.
1

6.
8

11
.2

-2
.1

14
.1

7.
4

2.
7

8.
4

Po
lic

y I
nd

ex
4.

7
3.

3
7.

8
6.

5
--

-0
.9

13
.7

8.
9

0.
6

9.
0

In
ve

sto
rF

or
ce

 P
ub

lic
 D

B 
> 

$1
B 

Gr
os

s R
an

k
82

31
80

21
13

20
84

74
5

6
Gr

ow
th

6,
19

2,
02

3,
06

2
71

.1
8.

4
4.

2
9.

9
8.

0
--

-3
.6

19
.1

8.
1

3.
0

8.
8

6.
2

3.
3

10
.0

7.
7

--
-2

.1
19

.3
10

.1
0.

3
8.

4
Cu

sto
m

 G
ro

wt
h 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
To

ta
l D

om
es

tic
 E

qu
ity

1,0
42

,04
9,0

87
12

.0
13

.2
6.1

13
.4

9.9
16

.3
-7

.2
23

.9
11

.5
1.1

11
.4

Ru
ss

ell
 3

00
0

14
.0

8.
8

13
.5

10
.4

16
.0

-5
.2

21
.1

12
.7

0.
5

12
.6

In
ve

sto
rF

or
ce

 P
ub

lic
 D

B 
US

 E
q 

Gr
os

s R
an

k
91

86
40

51
21

78
6

77
21

50
Bl

ac
kR

oc
k R

us
se

ll 1
00

0 
In

de
x

13
0,

25
5,

25
5

1.
5

14
.0

9.
3

--
--

--
-4

.8
--

--
--

--
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0
14

.0
9.

3
--

--
--

-4
.8

--
--

--
--

eV
 U

S 
La

rg
e 

Ca
p 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

36
40

--
--

--
47

--
--

--
--

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

26
7,

46
7,

20
6

3.
1

11
.9

8.
0

13
.0

10
.3

16
.6

-2
.0

29
.3

-4
.4

6.
1

13
.9

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
16

.1
12

.7
16

.5
13

.5
17

.5
-1

.5
30

.2
7.

1
5.

7
13

.0
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
95

85
89

87
60

59
47

98
37

31
Bo

sto
n 

Pa
rtn

er
s

25
9,

19
2,

53
2

3.
0

9.
6

1.
6

11
.4

7.
6

15
.2

-8
.7

20
.1

15
.1

-3
.9

12
.0

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Va
lue

11
.9

5.
7

10
.5

7.
7

14
.5

-8
.3

13
.7

17
.3

-3
.8

13
.5

eV
 U

S 
La

rg
e 

Ca
p 

Va
lue

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
93

77
39

63
39

55
23

50
65

55
Em

er
ald

 A
dv

ise
rs

21
4,

99
1,

46
7

2.
5

21
.3

10
.8

18
.1

10
.8

19
.2

-1
0.

1
28

.8
10

.1
4.

1
7.

3
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

17
.1

3.
9

14
.9

8.
4

16
.5

-9
.3

22
.2

11
.3

-1
.4

5.
6

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 G

ro
wt

h 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
23

46
47

36
27

85
26

54
19

21
Ce

re
de

x
17

0,
14

2,
62

7
2.

0
11

.4
2.

5
9.

7
6.

9
--

-1
1.

3
11

.4
29

.8
-4

.4
3.

3
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Va

lue
11

.9
0.

2
10

.9
5.

6
--

-1
2.

9
7.

8
31

.7
-7

.5
4.

2
eV

 U
S 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 V
alu

e 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
79

22
51

33
--

25
48

32
52

74

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
7



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.
 A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

To
ta

l In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
1,5

99
,61

9,9
55

18
.4

10
.9

-5
.4

6.5
3.7

8.6
-1

4.3
25

.5
1.2

-1
.2

0.3
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

ss
10

.4
-3

.7
8.

6
3.

0
9.

3
-1

3.
8

27
.8

5.
0

-5
.3

-3
.4

M
SC

I E
AF

E 
Gr

os
s

10
.1

-3
.2

7.
8

2.
8

9.
5

-1
3.

4
25

.6
1.

5
-0

.4
-4

.5
In

ve
sto

rF
or

ce
 P

ub
lic

 D
B 

ex
-U

S 
Eq

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

35
53

94
33

78
44

90
89

28
5

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l E
qu

ity
92

4,3
09

,39
2

10
.6

11
.7

-2
.8

7.0
3.9

8.8
-1

3.6
25

.3
1.2

-1
.2

0.3
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

ss
10

.4
-3

.7
8.

6
3.

0
9.

3
-1

3.
8

27
.8

5.
0

-5
.3

-3
.4

In
ve

sto
rF

or
ce

 P
ub

lic
 D

B 
ex

-U
S 

Eq
 G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
17

13
87

23
75

21
93

89
28

5
Py

rfo
rd

45
4,

78
7,

19
8

5.
2

9.
5

0.
3

5.
9

--
--

-1
0.

1
19

.8
3.

4
-2

.9
--

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 V

alu
e

8.
3

-5
.4

7.
7

--
--

-1
4.

0
22

.7
8.

9
-1

0.
1

--
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-

US
 V

alu
e 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

35
1

68
--

--
5

84
74

59
--

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

46
9,

52
2,

19
4

5.
4

13
.9

-5
.6

8.
0

4.
0

--
-1

6.
8

30
.9

-1
.4

0.
5

-1
.2

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
wt

h
12

.3
-3

.0
8.

4
4.

0
--

-1
4.

4
32

.0
0.

1
-1

.3
-2

.6
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-

US
 G

ro
wt

h 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
43

60
77

77
--

69
81

55
69

37
Em

er
gi

ng
 M

ar
ke

ts
 E

qu
ity

67
5,3

10
,56

3
7.8

10
.0

-8
.8

--
--

--
-1

5.3
--

--
--

--
M

SC
I E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

9.
9

-7
.4

--
--

--
-1

4.
6

--
--

--
--

In
ve

sto
rF

or
ce

 P
ub

lic
 D

B 
Em

g 
M

kt 
Eq

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

44
60

--
--

--
51

--
--

--
--

PI
MC

O 
RA

E 
Em

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
34

3,
87

4,
28

6
4.

0
6.

3
-9

.7
--

--
--

-1
2.

3
--

--
--

--
M

SC
I E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

9.
9

-7
.4

--
--

--
-1

4.
6

--
--

--
--

eV
 E

m
g 

M
kts

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
96

75
--

--
--

19
--

--
--

--
TT

 E
me

rg
ing

 M
ar

ke
ts

33
1,

43
6,

27
7

3.
8

14
.0

-7
.9

--
--

--
-1

8.
4

--
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
9.

9
-7

.4
--

--
--

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

--
12

52
--

--
--

83
--

--
--

--
eV

 E
m

g 
M

kts
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k 

To
ta

l G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

72
9,0

10
,47

4
8.4

13
.3

3.4
11

.5
8.2

10
.5

-7
.8

23
.7

7.6
2.2

5.2
M

SC
I A

CW
I

12
.2

2.
6

10
.7

6.
5

12
.0

-9
.4

24
.0

7.
9

-2
.4

4.
2

In
ve

sto
rF

or
ce

 P
ub

lic
 D

B 
Gl

bl 
Eq

 G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

3
49

30
43

13
60

79
40

16
41

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

36
4,

32
9,

83
2

4.
2

16
.6

4.
0

14
.8

11
.3

--
-7

.9
32

.9
5.

6
9.

2
3.

9
M

SC
I A

CW
I

12
.2

2.
6

10
.7

6.
5

--
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
4.

2
eV

 A
ll G

lob
al 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

9
43

11
8

--
40

11
61

4
56

Fir
st 

Ea
gle

36
4,

52
5,

43
2

4.
2

10
.0

2.
9

8.
0

5.
8

--
-7

.6
15

.1
11

.7
0.

2
4.

5
M

SC
I A

CW
I

12
.2

2.
6

10
.7

6.
5

--
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
4.

2
eV

 A
ll G

lob
al 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

85
52

81
73

--
38

89
19

49
51

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
8



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

Pr
iva

te
 C

re
di

t
33

2,1
87

,98
2

3.8
-0

.4
4.6

8.5
10

.3
16

.2
8.3

10
.4

8.2
12

.9
15

.4
7.

9
8.

1
10

.9
6.

8
13

.4
-0

.3
9.

6
19

.8
-2

.7
4.

5
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I +
2%

To
ta

l H
ig

h 
Yi

eld
35

0,8
87

,17
6

4.0
8.4

6.3
7.8

4.0
10

.0
-3

.2
6.5

14
.3

-3
.5

1.2
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I
7.

4
5.

9
8.

7
4.

7
11

.2
-2

.3
7.

5
17

.5
-4

.6
2.

5
eV

 U
S 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
Fi

xe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
2

25
53

77
64

88
74

47
68

83
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
35

0,
88

7,
17

6
4.

0
8.

4
6.

3
7.

8
4.

0
10

.0
-3

.2
6.

5
14

.3
-3

.5
1.

2
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I
7.

4
5.

9
8.

7
4.

7
11

.2
-2

.3
7.

5
17

.5
-4

.6
2.

5
2

25
53

77
64

88
74

47
68

83
eV

 U
S 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
Fi

xe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k 
To

ta
l R

ea
l E

st
at

e
75

8,5
03

,76
3

8.7
4.3

9.9
8.8

10
.8

14
.6

7.4
11

.1
5.5

13
.5

20
.6

Re
al 

Es
ta

te
 B

en
ch

m
ar

k
3.

1
8.

8
6.

6
9.

0
11

.4
6.

7
7.

1
6.

7
8.

3
18

.8
NC

RE
IF

-O
DC

E
1.

4
7.

5
8.

0
10

.2
8.

7
8.

3
7.

6
8.

8
15

.0
12

.5
NC

RE
IF

 P
ro

pe
rty

 In
de

x
1.

8
6.

8
7.

1
9.

1
8.

5
6.

7
7.

0
8.

0
13

.3
11

.8
Ad

ela
nt

e
73

,5
18

,1
75

0.
8

17
.5

19
.4

6.
5

9.
8

19
.1

-5
.0

7.
8

4.
1

5.
1

33
.4

16
.0

19
.3

5.
4

9.
0

18
.7

-4
.8

4.
2

7.
2

4.
2

31
.8

W
ils

hir
e 

RE
IT

 
Pr

iva
te

 E
qu

ity
96

2,5
22

,74
8

11
.1

1.5
13

.5
10

.8
11

.3
11

.8
12

.1
11

.9
9.4

11
.6

17
.3

-1
2.

6
-0

.5
13

.6
12

.8
17

.6
22

.6
23

.3
20

.0
3.

4
24

.5
S&

P 
50

0 
In

de
x +

4%
 (L

ag
ge

d)
 

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
41

7,2
41

,87
7

4.8
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
60

%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I N

et
/4

0%
 B

Bg
Ba

rc
 G

lob
al 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
AQ

R 
Gl

ob
al 

Ri
sk

 P
re

m
ium

-E
L

21
3,

62
5,

42
5

2.
5

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

Pa
nA

go
ra

 R
isk

 P
ar

ity
 M

ult
i A

ss
et

20
3,

61
6,

45
2

2.
3

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
9



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
3/
1/
20

19
th
e
cu

st
od

ia
n
of

re
co

rd
sw

itc
he

d
fro

m
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
to

N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us

t. 
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
C
as

h/
Ta

x
R
ec

la
im

s
re
fle

ct
s
$2

14
,7
80

in
ca

sh
an

d
$4

52
,4
09

in
po

te
nt
ia
lt
ax

re
cl
ai
m
s
at

S
ta
te

S
tre

et
af
te
ra

ss
et
s
w
er
e
tra

ns
fe
rr
ed

to
N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us

t.
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,

pu
bl
ic
fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.
 E

ffe
ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

70
7,

53
8,

68
0

8.
1

2.
5

1.
2

2.
1

0.
7

2.
7

-2
.0

2.
8

1.
3

-1
.4

2.
2

Cu
sto

m
 D

ive
rs

ify
ing

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

2.
3

3.
6

3.
3

3.
6

4.
3

1.
4

4.
7

4.
1

2.
5

5.
4

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
50

7,9
21

,46
4

5.8
3.2

2.2
1.4

2.6
3.6

-1
.7

2.8
2.8

1.6
6.6

eV
 U

S 
Co

re
 F

ixe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
56

99
99

96
95

99
96

72
15

25
AF

L-
CI

O
32

4,
59

0,
94

0
3.

7
2.

8
4.

6
2.

2
3.

1
3.

9
0.

6
3.

6
2.

4
1.

6
6.

6
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e 
TR

2.
9

4.
5

2.
0

2.
7

3.
8

0.
0

3.
5

2.
6

0.
6

6.
0

eV
 U

S 
Co

re
 F

ixe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
88

61
81

45
89

16
76

87
15

25
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

18
3,

33
0,

52
4

2.
1

4.
0

-1
.7

2.
5

-1
.8

--
-5

.6
1.

9
-0

.1
-4

.9
-2

.5
CP

I +
 4

%
2.

2
5.

9
6.

3
5.

5
--

6.
0

6.
2

6.
2

4.
8

4.
8

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Eq
ui

ty
19

9,6
17

,21
6

2.3
0.8

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
Pa

ra
m

et
ric

 D
ef

en
siv

e 
Eq

uit
y

19
9,

61
7,

21
6

2.
3

0.
8

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ill 
+4

%
1.

6
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

Li
qu

id
ity

1,
72

1,
56

0,
47

0
19

.8
1.

7
3.

8
--

--
--

1.
8

1.
5

--
--

--
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Go
vt/

Cr
ed

it 1
-3

 Y
r. 

TR
1.

2
3.

0
--

--
--

1.
6

0.
8

--
--

--
eV

 U
S 

Sh
or

t D
ur

at
ion

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

25
19

--
--

--
24

50
--

--
--

DF
A 

Sh
or

t C
re

dit
37

5,
05

5,
64

3
4.

3
2.

0
4.

0
--

--
--

1.
2

1.
9

--
--

--
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
1-

5 
Yr

s U
S 

Co
rp

 &
 G

ov
t T

R
1.

6
3.

6
--

--
--

1.
4

1.
3

--
--

--
eV

 U
S 

Sh
or

t D
ur

at
ion

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

11
8

--
--

--
93

26
--

--
--

In
sig

ht
 S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

81
1,

55
4,

86
4

9.
3

1.
5

3.
4

--
--

--
1.

7
1.

5
--

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt/
Cr

ed
it 1

-3
 Y

r. 
TR

1.
2

3.
0

--
--

--
1.

6
0.

8
--

--
--

eV
 U

S 
Sh

or
t D

ur
at

ion
 F

ixe
d 

In
c G

ro
ss

 R
an

k
50

49
--

--
--

38
50

--
--

--
Si

t S
ho

rt 
Du

ra
tio

n
53

4,
94

9,
96

3
6.

1
1.

9
4.

4
--

--
--

2.
5

1.
3

--
--

--
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Go
vt 

1-
3 

Yr
 T

R
1.

0
2.

7
--

--
--

1.
6

0.
4

--
--

--
eV

 U
S 

Sh
or

t D
ur

at
ion

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 R

an
k

16
2

--
--

--
1

68
--

--
--

To
ta

l C
as

h
61

,3
35

,2
01

0.
7

0.
7

2.
1

1.
4

0.
1

--
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
-3

.0
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ills
0.

6
2.

1
1.

2
0.

8
--

1.
9

0.
9

0.
3

0.
0

0.
0

Ca
sh

60
,3

08
,4

65
0.

7
0.

7
2.

1
1.

3
1.

0
3.

1
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
1.

4
St

at
e 

St
re

et
 C

as
h/

Ta
x R

ec
lai

m
s

66
7,

18
9

0.
0

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

No
rth

er
n 

Tr
us

t T
ra

ns
itio

n
35

9,
54

7
0.

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
10



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

To
ta

l F
un

d
8,

70
3,

15
0,

58
0

10
0.

0
6.

5
3.

6
7.

6
6.

3
10

.6
-2

.7
13

.9
6.

9
2.

1
7.

7
Po

lic
y I

nd
ex

4.
7

3.
3

7.
8

6.
5

--
-0

.9
13

.7
8.

9
0.

6
9.

0
To

ta
l F

un
d 

ex
 O

ve
rla

y 
& 

Ca
sh

8,
62

1,
12

2,
21

2
99

.1
6.

4
3.

8
7.

7
6.

3
10

.6
-2

.4
13

.8
6.

9
2.

1
7.

7
Po

lic
y I

nd
ex

4.
7

3.
3

7.
8

6.
5

--
-0

.9
13

.7
8.

9
0.

6
9.

0
Gr

ow
th

6,
19

2,
02

3,
06

2
71

.1
8.

3
3.

9
9.

5
7.

5
--

-3
.9

18
.7

7.
6

2.
3

8.
1

6.
2

3.
3

10
.0

7.
7

--
-2

.1
19

.3
10

.1
0.

3
8.

4
Cu

sto
m

 G
ro

wt
h 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
To

ta
l D

om
es

tic
 E

qu
ity

1,0
42

,04
9,0

87
12

.0
13

.1
5.7

12
.9

9.5
15

.9
-7

.6
23

.5
11

.1
0.6

11
.0

Ru
ss

ell
 3

00
0

14
.0

8.
8

13
.5

10
.4

16
.0

-5
.2

21
.1

12
.7

0.
5

12
.6

Bl
ac

kR
oc

k R
us

se
ll 1

00
0 

In
de

x
13

0,
25

5,
25

5
1.

5
14

.0
9.

3
--

--
--

-4
.8

--
--

--
--

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0

14
.0

9.
3

--
--

--
-4

.8
--

--
--

--
Ja

ck
so

n 
Sq

ua
re

 P
ar

tn
er

s
26

7,
46

7,
20

6
3.

1
11

.8
7.

5
12

.5
9.

8
16

.2
-2

.4
28

.7
-4

.8
5.

6
13

.4
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

16
.1

12
.7

16
.5

13
.5

17
.5

-1
.5

30
.2

7.
1

5.
7

13
.0

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
25

9,
19

2,
53

2
3.

0
9.

5
1.

3
11

.1
7.

3
14

.8
-8

.9
19

.7
14

.7
-4

.2
11

.6
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0 
Va

lue
11

.9
5.

7
10

.5
7.

7
14

.5
-8

.3
13

.7
17

.3
-3

.8
13

.5
Em

er
ald

 A
dv

ise
rs

21
4,

99
1,

46
7

2.
5

21
.2

10
.1

17
.4

10
.1

18
.5

-1
0.

7
28

.0
9.

4
3.

5
6.

6
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

17
.1

3.
9

14
.9

8.
4

16
.5

-9
.3

22
.2

11
.3

-1
.4

5.
6

Ce
re

de
x

17
0,

14
2,

62
7

2.
0

11
.2

1.
9

9.
1

6.
3

--
-1

1.
8

10
.7

29
.1

-5
.0

2.
7

11
.9

0.
2

10
.9

5.
6

--
-1

2.
9

7.
8

31
.7

-7
.5

4.
2

Ru
ss

ell
 2

00
0 

Va
lue

 
To

ta
l In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

1,5
99

,61
9,9

55
18

.4
10

.8
-5

.9
6.0

3.2
8.2

-1
4.7

25
.0

0.8
-1

.6
0.0

10
.4

-3
.7

8.
6

3.
0

9.
3

-1
3.

8
27

.8
5.

0
-5

.3
-3

.4
10

.1
-3

.2
7.

8
2.

8
9.

5
-1

3.
4

25
.6

1.
5

-0
.4

-4
.5

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
ss

 
M

SC
I E

AF
E 

Gr
os

s 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l E

qu
ity

92
4,3

09
,39

2
10

.6
11

.6
-3

.2
6.5

3.5
8.4

-1
3.9

24
.8

0.8
-1

.6
0.0

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 G

ro
ss

10
.4

-3
.7

8.
6

3.
0

9.
3

-1
3.

8
27

.8
5.

0
-5

.3
-3

.4
Py

rfo
rd

45
4,

78
7,

19
8

5.
2

9.
3

-0
.1

5.
5

--
--

-1
0.

5
19

.3
3.

0
-3

.3
--

M
SC

I A
CW

I e
x U

SA
 V

alu
e

8.
3

-5
.4

7.
7

--
--

-1
4.

0
22

.7
8.

9
-1

0.
1

--
W

illi
am

 B
lai

r
46

9,
52

2,
19

4
5.

4
13

.8
-6

.0
7.

6
3.

6
--

-1
7.

1
30

.4
-1

.8
0.

0
-1

.7
12

.3
-3

.0
8.

4
4.

0
--

-1
4.

4
32

.0
0.

1
-1

.3
-2

.6
M

SC
I A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

wt
h 

Em
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

 E
qu

ity
67

5,3
10

,56
3

7.8
9.8

-9
.3

--
--

--
-1

5.7
--

--
--

--
M

SC
I E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

9.
9

-7
.4

--
--

--
-1

4.
6

--
--

--
--

PI
MC

O 
RA

E 
Em

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
34

3,
87

4,
28

6
4.

0
6.

2
-1

0.
2

--
--

--
-1

2.
6

--
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
9.

9
-7

.4
--

--
--

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

--
TT

 E
me

rg
ing

 M
ar

ke
ts

33
1,

43
6,

27
7

3.
8

13
.9

-8
.5

--
--

--
-1

8.
9

--
--

--
--

M
SC

I E
m

er
gin

g 
M

ar
ke

ts
9.

9
-7

.4
--

--
--

-1
4.

6
--

--
--

--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
11



In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
su

m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv

at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov

id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

To
ta

l G
lo

ba
l E

qu
ity

72
9,0

10
,47

4
8.4

13
.1

2.7
10

.7
7.4

9.9
-8

.5
22

.8
6.9

1.6
4.5

M
SC

I A
CW

I
12

.2
2.

6
10

.7
6.

5
12

.0
-9

.4
24

.0
7.

9
-2

.4
4.

2
Ar

tis
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
36

4,
32

9,
83

2
4.

2
16

.4
3.

3
14

.0
10

.4
--

-8
.6

31
.9

4.
8

8.
4

3.
1

M
SC

I A
CW

I
12

.2
2.

6
10

.7
6.

5
--

-9
.4

24
.0

7.
9

-2
.4

4.
2

Fir
st 

Ea
gle

36
4,

52
5,

43
2

4.
2

9.
8

2.
1

7.
2

5.
0

--
-8

.3
14

.3
10

.9
-0

.6
3.

7
12

.2
2.

6
10

.7
6.

5
--

-9
.4

24
.0

7.
9

-2
.4

4.
2

M
SC

I A
CW

I 
Pr

iva
te

 C
re

di
t

33
2,1

87
,98

2
3.8

-0
.4

4.6
8.1

9.4
14

.0
8.3

10
.4

6.9
11

.6
12

.3
7.

9
8.

1
10

.9
6.

8
13

.4
-0

.3
9.

6
19

.8
-2

.7
4.

5
IC

E 
Bo

fA
M

L 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

M
as

te
r I

I +
2%

To
ta

l H
ig

h 
Yi

eld
35

0,8
87

,17
6

4.0
8.3

5.9
7.4

3.6
9.7

-3
.6

6.1
13

.9
-3

.9
0.8

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
M

as
te

r I
I

7.
4

5.
9

8.
7

4.
7

11
.2

-2
.3

7.
5

17
.5

-4
.6

2.
5

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

35
0,

88
7,

17
6

4.
0

8.
3

5.
9

7.
4

3.
6

9.
5

-3
.6

6.
1

13
.9

-3
.9

0.
8

7.
4

5.
9

8.
7

4.
7

11
.2

-2
.3

7.
5

17
.5

-4
.6

2.
5

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

Hi
gh

 Y
iel

d 
M

as
te

r I
I 

To
ta

l R
ea

l E
st

at
e

75
8,5

03
,76

3
8.7

4.3
9.8

8.6
10

.3
13

.7
7.4

11
.0

4.8
12

.4
19

.1
Re

al 
Es

ta
te

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

3.
1

8.
8

6.
6

9.
0

11
.4

6.
7

7.
1

6.
7

8.
3

18
.8

NC
RE

IF
-O

DC
E

1.
4

7.
5

8.
0

10
.2

8.
7

8.
3

7.
6

8.
8

15
.0

12
.5

NC
RE

IF
 P

ro
pe

rty
 In

de
x

1.
8

6.
8

7.
1

9.
1

8.
5

6.
7

7.
0

8.
0

13
.3

11
.8

Ad
ela

nt
e

73
,5

18
,1

75
0.

8
17

.4
18

.8
5.

9
9.

2
18

.6
-5

.5
7.

2
3.

6
4.

6
32

.7
16

.0
19

.3
5.

4
9.

0
18

.7
-4

.8
4.

2
7.

2
4.

2
31

.8
W

ils
hir

e 
RE

IT
 

Pr
iva

te
 E

qu
ity

96
2,5

22
,74

8
11

.1
1.5

13
.5

10
.7

10
.5

10
.1

12
.1

11
.9

8.9
9.9

15
.2

-1
2.

6
-0

.5
13

.6
12

.8
17

.6
22

.6
23

.3
20

.0
3.

4
24

.5
S&

P 
50

0 
In

de
x +

4%
 (L

ag
ge

d)
 

Ri
sk

 P
ar

ity
41

7,2
41

,87
7

4.8
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
60

%
 M

SC
I A

CW
I N

et
/4

0%
 B

Bg
Ba

rc
 G

lob
al 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
AQ

R 
Gl

ob
al 

Ri
sk

 P
re

m
ium

-E
L

21
3,

62
5,

42
5

2.
5

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

Pa
nA

go
ra

 R
isk

 P
ar

ity
 M

ult
i A

ss
et

20
3,

61
6,

45
2

2.
3

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

60
%

 M
SC

I A
CW

I N
et

/4
0%

 B
Bg

Ba
rc

 G
lob

al 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
12



Ma
rk

et
 V

alu
e

%
 o

f
Po

rtf
oli

o
3 

Mo
1 

Yr
3 

Yr
s

5 
Yr

s
10

 Y
rs

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g

70
7,

53
8,

68
0

8.
1

2.
5

1.
0

1.
7

0.
3

2.
3

-2
.3

2.
6

0.
8

-1
.8

1.
7

Cu
sto

m
 D

ive
rs

ify
ing

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k

2.
3

3.
6

3.
3

3.
6

4.
3

1.
4

4.
7

4.
1

2.
5

5.
4

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
50

7,9
21

,46
4

5.8
3.1

2.0
1.1

2.3
3.2

-2
.0

2.6
2.3

1.1
6.1

AF
L-

CI
O

32
4,

59
0,

94
0

3.
7

2.
7

4.
2

1.
7

2.
7

3.
4

0.
2

3.
2

1.
9

1.
1

6.
1

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

TR
2.

9
4.

5
2.

0
2.

7
3.

8
0.

0
3.

5
2.

6
0.

6
6.

0
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

18
3,

33
0,

52
4

2.
1

4.
0

-1
.7

2.
3

-2
.1

--
-5

.6
1.

9
-0

.6
-5

.4
-3

.1
CP

I +
 4

%
2.

2
5.

9
6.

3
5.

5
--

6.
0

6.
2

6.
2

4.
8

4.
8

Di
ve

rs
ify

in
g 

Eq
ui

ty
19

9,6
17

,21
6

2.3
0.8

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
Pa

ra
m

et
ric

 D
ef

en
siv

e 
Eq

uit
y

19
9,

61
7,

21
6

2.
3

0.
8

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ill 
+4

%
1.

6
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

Li
qu

id
ity

1,
72

1,
56

0,
47

0
19

.8
1.

7
3.

7
--

--
--

1.
7

1.
4

--
--

--
BB

gB
ar

c U
S 

Go
vt/

Cr
ed

it 1
-3

 Y
r. 

TR
1.

2
3.

0
--

--
--

1.
6

0.
8

--
--

--
DF

A 
Sh

or
t C

re
dit

37
5,

05
5,

64
3

4.
3

2.
0

3.
9

--
--

--
1.

1
1.

8
--

--
--

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5 

Yr
s U

S 
Co

rp
 &

 G
ov

t T
R

1.
6

3.
6

--
--

--
1.

4
1.

3
--

--
--

In
sig

ht
 S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

81
1,

55
4,

86
4

9.
3

1.
5

3.
4

--
--

--
1.

7
1.

5
--

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt/
Cr

ed
it 1

-3
 Y

r. 
TR

1.
2

3.
0

--
--

--
1.

6
0.

8
--

--
--

Si
t S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

53
4,

94
9,

96
3

6.
1

1.
9

4.
3

--
--

--
2.

3
1.

1
--

--
--

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Go

vt 
1-

3 
Yr

 T
R

1.
0

2.
7

--
--

--
1.

6
0.

4
--

--
--

To
ta

l C
as

h
61

,3
35

,2
01

0.
7

0.
7

2.
1

1.
4

0.
1

--
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
-3

.0
91

 D
ay

 T
-B

ills
0.

6
2.

1
1.

2
0.

8
--

1.
9

0.
9

0.
3

0.
0

0.
0

Ca
sh

60
,3

08
,4

65
0.

7
0.

7
2.

1
1.

3
1.

0
2.

9
1.

7
0.

9
0.

9
0.

1
1.

4
St

at
e 

St
re

et
 C

as
h/

Ta
x R

ec
lai

m
s

66
7,

18
9

0.
0

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

No
rth

er
n 

Tr
us

t T
ra

ns
itio

n
35

9,
54

7
0.

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 S

um
m

ar
y 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

In
di
vi
du

al
cl
os
ed

en
d
fu
nd

s
ar
e
no

ts
ho

w
n
in
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

su
m
m
ar
y
ta
bl
e.

A
Q
R
G
lo
ba

lR
is
k
P
re
m
iu
m

fu
nd

ed
1/
18

/2
01

9.
 P

an
A
go

ra
R
is
k
P
ar
ity

fu
nd

ed
 3

/1
5/
20

19
. 
E
ffe

ct
iv
e
3/
1/
20

19
th
e
cu
st
od

ia
n
of

re
co
rd

sw
itc
he

d
fro

m
S
ta
te

S
tre

et
to

N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us
t. 

S
ta
te

S
tre

et
C
as
h/
Ta

x
R
ec
la
im
s
re
fle
ct
s
$2

14
,7
80

in
ca
sh

an
d
$4

52
,4
09

in
po

te
nt
ia
lt
ax

re
cl
ai
m
s
at

S
ta
te

S
tre

et
af
te
ra

ss
et
s
w
er
e
tra

ns
fe
rr
ed

to
N
or
th
er
n
Tr
us
t. 

E
ffe

ct
iv
e
7/
1/
20

18
,P

riv
at
e
C
re
di
ta

nd
P
riv
at
e
E
qu

ity
da

ta
pr
ov
id
ed

by
S
te
pS

to
ne

G
ro
up

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
13



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
um

m
ar

y
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
14



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
um

m
ar

y
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
15



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
um

m
ar

y
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
16



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
IR

R
 S

um
m

ar
y

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
17



To
ta

l F
un

d
C

lo
se

d 
E

nd
 F

un
ds

 - 
IR

R
 S

um
m

ar
y

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
18



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

- 3
 Y

ea
rs

 (N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

A
na

ly
si
s
ex

cl
ud

es
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
an

d
th
os

e
fu
nd

s
w
ith

ou
t3

ye
ar
s
of

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
An

n 
Ex

ce
ss

BM
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

td
De

v
An

lzd
 A

lph
a

Be
ta

Tr
ac

kin
g

Er
ro

r
R-

Sq
ua

re
d

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

In
fo

 R
at

io
Up

 M
kt 

Ca
p

Ra
tio

Do
wn

 M
kt

Ca
p 

Ra
tio

_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

12
.5

5%
-3

.9
9%

12
.6

3%
-3

.2
9%

0.
96

4.
83

%
0.

86
0.

90
-0

.8
2

87
.0

6%
11

0.
33

%
Bo

sto
n 

Pa
rtn

er
s

11
.0

8%
0.

63
%

11
.8

4%
-0

.1
6%

1.
08

3.
18

%
0.

93
0.

83
0.

20
10

2.
59

%
97

.9
6%

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
17

.3
7%

2.
50

%
17

.5
6%

1.
81

%
1.

05
4.

33
%

0.
94

0.
92

0.
58

10
2.

99
%

90
.1

4%
Ce

re
de

x
9.

13
%

-1
.7

3%
14

.1
6%

0.
14

%
0.

83
5.

47
%

0.
89

0.
56

-0
.3

2
81

.2
6%

89
.4

3%
Py

rfo
rd

5.
47

%
-2

.2
6%

8.
75

%
0.

13
%

0.
69

5.
60

%
0.

74
0.

48
-0

.4
0

59
.0

0%
66

.0
4%

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

7.
58

%
-0

.8
4%

11
.7

2%
-1

.0
6%

1.
03

2.
88

%
0.

94
0.

54
-0

.2
9

95
.6

7%
10

1.
09

%
Ar

tis
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
13

.9
9%

3.
32

%
12

.5
6%

2.
02

%
1.

12
5.

76
%

0.
80

1.
02

0.
58

13
2.

54
%

11
4.

19
%

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
7.

22
%

-3
.4

5%
7.

44
%

-0
.3

2%
0.

71
3.

74
%

0.
90

0.
81

-0
.9

2
60

.6
2%

67
.2

3%
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
7.

37
%

-1
.3

1%
4.

44
%

-0
.6

4%
0.

92
1.

33
%

0.
92

1.
38

-0
.9

9
88

.6
5%

10
6.

17
%

Ad
ela

nt
e

5.
93

%
0.

48
%

13
.0

8%
0.

81
%

0.
94

1.
92

%
0.

98
0.

36
0.

25
91

.1
1%

90
.4

4%
AF

L-
CI

O
1.

71
%

-0
.3

2%
2.

63
%

-0
.0

2%
0.

85
0.

80
%

0.
93

0.
18

-0
.4

0
81

.5
4%

81
.9

2%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

2.
32

%
-3

.9
6%

4.
10

%
-1

.5
3%

0.
61

4.
08

%
0.

02
0.

27
-0

.9
7

44
.9

9%
23

,2
04

.4
1%

XX
XX

X

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
19



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
An

n 
Ex

ce
ss

BM
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

td
De

v
An

lzd
 A

lph
a

Be
ta

Tr
ac

kin
g

Er
ro

r
R-

Sq
ua

re
d

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

In
fo

 R
at

io
Up

 M
kt 

Ca
p

Ra
tio

Do
wn

 M
kt

Ca
p 

Ra
tio

_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

9.
84

%
-3

.6
6%

12
.5

2%
-2

.8
5%

0.
94

4.
90

%
0.

85
0.

73
-0

.7
5

84
.1

3%
10

6.
79

%
Bo

sto
n 

Pa
rtn

er
s

7.
31

%
-0

.4
1%

12
.2

8%
-1

.0
0%

1.
08

3.
10

%
0.

94
0.

53
-0

.1
3

10
1.

34
%

10
3.

72
%

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
10

.1
3%

1.
72

%
18

.3
3%

1.
43

%
1.

03
5.

03
%

0.
93

0.
51

0.
34

10
9.

59
%

99
.3

4%
Ce

re
de

x
6.

33
%

0.
74

%
14

.3
2%

1.
58

%
0.

85
5.

49
%

0.
88

0.
39

0.
13

84
.6

7%
89

.2
9%

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

3.
61

%
-0

.4
0%

11
.7

8%
-0

.2
6%

0.
96

2.
76

%
0.

95
0.

24
-0

.1
5

90
.2

2%
95

.9
3%

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

10
.4

3%
3.

98
%

12
.7

6%
3.

66
%

1.
05

5.
32

%
0.

83
0.

76
0.

75
12

3.
78

%
92

.8
7%

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
4.

97
%

-1
.4

8%
8.

07
%

0.
55

%
0.

69
4.

44
%

0.
88

0.
52

-0
.3

3
56

.4
4%

67
.1

2%
Al

lia
nz

 G
lob

al 
In

ve
sto

rs
3.

58
%

-1
.1

2%
5.

26
%

-0
.8

4%
0.

94
1.

18
%

0.
95

0.
54

-0
.9

5
87

.1
1%

10
0.

75
%

Ad
ela

nt
e

9.
23

%
0.

23
%

14
.0

2%
0.

70
%

0.
95

1.
81

%
0.

99
0.

60
0.

13
91

.7
2%

93
.8

8%
AF

L-
CI

O
2.

66
%

-0
.0

8%
2.

57
%

0.
27

%
0.

87
0.

74
%

0.
94

0.
74

-0
.1

1
87

.4
2%

81
.0

8%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

-2
.1

2%
-7

.6
5%

5.
49

%
-9

.9
8%

1.
42

5.
32

%
0.

07
-0

.5
2

-1
.4

4
-1

1.
89

%
1,

08
0.

85
%

XX
XX

X

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

A
na

ly
si
s
ex

cl
ud

es
cl
os

ed
en

d
fu
nd

s
an

d
th
os

e
fu
nd

s
w
ith

ou
t5

ye
ar
s
of

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
.

To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 A

na
ly

si
s 

- 5
 Y

ea
rs

 (N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
20



To
ta

l F
un

d
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d 
Fe

e 
A

na
ly

si
s

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

M
ut
ua

lf
un

d
fe
es

sh
ow

n
ar
e
so

ur
ce

d
fro

m
M
or
ni
ng

st
ar

an
d
ar
e
as

of
th
e
m
os

tc
ur
re
nt

pr
os

pe
ct
us

.

Na
me

As
se

t C
las

s
Fe

e 
Sc

he
du

le
M

ar
ke

t V
alu

e
Es

tim
at

ed
 F

ee
 V

alu
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 F
ee

 

Bl
ac

kR
oc

k R
us

se
ll 1

00
0 

In
de

x
Gr

ow
th

0.
03

%
 o

f A
ss

et
s

$1
30

,2
55

,2
55

$3
9,

07
7

0.
03

%

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

Gr
ow

th
0.

50
%

 o
f F

irs
t 1

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
40

%
 o

f N
ex

t 1
50

.0
 M

il,
0.

35
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$2
67

,4
67

,2
06

$1
,1

61
,1

35
0.

43
%

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
Gr

ow
th

0.
50

%
 o

f F
irs

t 2
5.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

30
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$2
59

,1
92

,5
32

$8
27

,5
78

0.
32

%

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
Gr

ow
th

0.
75

%
 o

f F
irs

t 1
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

60
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$2
14

,9
91

,4
67

$1
,3

04
,9

49
0.

61
%

Ce
re

de
x

Gr
ow

th
0.

85
%

 o
f F

irs
t 1

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
68

%
 o

f N
ex

t 4
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

51
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$1
70

,1
42

,6
27

$9
69

,7
27

0.
57

%

Py
rfo

rd
Gr

ow
th

0.
70

%
 o

f F
irs

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

50
%

 o
f N

ex
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
35

%
 T

he
re

af
te

r
$4

54
,7

87
,1

98
$1

,8
41

,7
55

0.
40

%

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

Gr
ow

th

0.
80

%
 o

f F
irs

t 2
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

60
%

 o
f N

ex
t 3

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
50

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

45
%

 o
f N

ex
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
40

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

30
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$4
69

,5
22

,1
94

$1
,8

23
,5

67
0.

39
%

PI
MC

O 
RA

E 
Em

er
gin

g 
Ma

rk
et

s
Gr

ow
th

0.
75

%
 o

f F
irs

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

68
%

 o
f N

ex
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
50

%
 o

f N
ex

t 1
00

.0
 M

il,
0.

45
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$3
43

,8
74

,2
86

$1
,8

59
,9

34
0.

54
%

TT
 E

m
er

gin
g 

M
ar

ke
ts

Gr
ow

th
0.

70
%

 o
f F

irs
t 1

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
65

%
 o

f N
ex

t 1
00

.0
 M

il,
0.

60
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$3
31

,4
36

,2
77

$2
,1

38
,6

18
0.

65
%

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

Gr
ow

th
0.

75
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$3

64
,3

29
,8

32
$2

,7
32

,4
74

0.
75

%
Fi

rst
 E

ag
le

Gr
ow

th
0.

75
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$3

64
,5

25
,4

32
$2

,7
33

,9
41

0.
75

%

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

Gr
ow

th
0.

50
%

 o
f F

irs
t 5

0.
0 

Mi
l,

0.
40

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
0.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

35
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$3
50

,8
87

,1
76

$1
,3

28
,1

05
0.

38
%

AQ
R 

Gl
ob

al 
Ri

sk
 P

re
mi

um
-E

L
Gr

ow
th

0.
38

%
 o

f A
ss

et
s

$2
13

,6
25

,4
25

$8
11

,7
77

0.
38

%

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
21



Na
me

As
se

t C
las

s
Fe

e 
Sc

he
du

le
M

ar
ke

t V
alu

e
Es

tim
at

ed
 F

ee
 V

alu
e

Es
tim

at
ed

 F
ee

 

Pa
nA

go
ra

 R
isk

 P
ar

ity
 M

ult
i A

ss
et

Gr
ow

th
0.

35
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$2

03
,6

16
,4

52
$7

12
,6

58
0.

35
%

AF
L-

CI
O

Di
ve

rsi
fyi

ng
0.

43
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$3

24
,5

90
,9

40
$1

,3
95

,7
41

0.
43

%
W

ell
ing

to
n 

Re
al 

To
ta

l R
et

ur
n

Di
ve

rsi
fyi

ng
0.

35
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$1

83
,3

30
,5

24
$6

41
,6

57
0.

35
%

Pa
ra

me
tri

c D
ef

en
siv

e 
Eq

uit
y

Di
ve

rsi
fyi

ng
0.

42
%

 o
f F

irs
t 2

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
39

%
 T

he
re

af
te

r
$1

99
,6

17
,2

16
$8

38
,3

92
0.

42
%

DF
A 

Sh
or

t C
re

dit
Liq

uid
ity

0.
20

%
 o

f F
irs

t 2
5.

0 
Mi

l,
0.

10
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$3
75

,0
55

,6
43

$4
00

,0
56

0.
11

%

In
sig

ht
 S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

Liq
uid

ity
0.

06
%

 o
f F

irs
t 5

00
.0

 M
il,

0.
05

%
 o

f N
ex

t 5
00

.0
 M

il,
0.

04
%

 T
he

re
af

te
r

$8
11

,5
54

,8
64

$4
55

,7
77

0.
06

%

Si
t S

ho
rt 

Du
ra

tio
n

Liq
uid

ity
0.

15
%

 o
f A

ss
et

s
$5

34
,9

49
,9

63
$8

02
,4

25
0.

15
%

M
ut
ua

lf
un

d
fe
es

sh
ow

n
ar
e
so

ur
ce

d
fro

m
M
or
ni
ng

st
ar

an
d
ar
e
as

of
th
e
m
os

tc
ur
re
nt

pr
os

pe
ct
us

.

To
ta

l F
un

d
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d 
Fe

e 
A

na
ly

si
s

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
22



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
23



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

Pe
ri

od
s 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

E
ffe

ct
iv
e
1/
01

/2
01

7,
on

ly
tra

di
tio

na
la

ss
et

cl
as

s
(p
ub

lic
eq

ui
ty
,p

ub
lic

fix
ed

in
co

m
e,

R
E
IT
s)

in
ve

st
m
en

tm
an

ag
em

en
tf
ee

s
w
ill
be

in
cl
ud

ed
in

th
e
gr
os

s
of

fe
e
re
tu
rn

ca
lc
ul
at
io
n.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
24



To
ta

l F
un

d
Pe

er
 U

ni
ve

rs
e 

C
om

pa
ri

so
n:

 C
on

se
cu

tiv
e 

Pe
ri

od
s 

(N
et

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
25



To
ta

l F
un

d
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
 R

an
ki

ng
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
26



   
  D

om
es

tic
 E

qu
ity

 M
an

ag
er

s



La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
M

IC
RO

SO
FT

9.
93

16
.6

2
IQ

VI
A 

HO
LD

IN
GS

6.
16

23
.8

3
KK

R 
AN

D 
A

5.
09

20
.3

1
DO

LL
AR

 T
RE

E
4.

62
16

.3
0

DO
LL

AR
 G

EN
ER

AL
4.

39
10

.6
6

PA
YP

AL
 H

OL
DI

NG
S

4.
19

23
.4

9
HA

SB
RO

4.
13

5.
37

M
AS

TE
RC

AR
D

4.
08

25
.0

2
AU

TO
DE

SK
4.

06
21

.1
6

VI
SA

 'A
'

3.
95

18
.5

9

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
10

00
Gr

ow
th

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

29
54

5

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

16
9.

68
26

2.
28

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
46

.0
8

11
.7

0

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

25
.8

4
24

.2
6

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

4.
74

6.
92

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

2.
87

2.
84

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

22
.1

0
38

.8
5

Yi
eld

 (%
)

0.
91

1.
28

Be
ta

0.
85

1.
00

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

BI
OG

EN
3.

84
-2

1.
45

-0
.8

2
CM

E 
GR

OU
P

2.
67

-1
2.

13
-0

.3
2

TA
KE

 T
W

O 
IN

TA
CT

.S
FT

W
.

3.
53

-8
.3

3
-0

.2
9

TR
IP

AD
VI

SO
R 

'A
'

3.
75

-4
.6

2
-0

.1
7

UN
IT

ED
HE

AL
TH

 G
RO

UP
3.

92
-0

.3
7

-0
.0

1
IN

TE
RC

ON
TI

NE
NT

AL
 E

X.
2.

46
1.

45
0.

04
IL

LU
MI

NA
2.

59
3.

59
0.

09
LI

BE
RT

Y 
GL

OB
AL

 C
L.

A
0.

61
16

.7
8

0.
10

CH
AR

LE
S 

SC
HW

AB
3.

38
3.

34
0.

11
AL

PH
AB

ET
 'C

'
0.

92
13

.3
0

0.
12

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
MI

CR
OS

OF
T

9.
07

16
.6

2
1.

51
AR

IS
TA

 N
ET

W
OR

KS
2.

85
49

.2
5

1.
41

IQ
VI

A 
HO

LD
IN

GS
5.

56
23

.8
3

1.
32

KK
R 

AN
D 

A
4.

68
20

.3
1

0.
95

MA
ST

ER
CA

RD
3.

57
25

.0
2

0.
89

PA
YP

AL
 H

OL
DI

NG
S

3.
78

23
.4

9
0.

89
AU

TO
DE

SK
3.

83
21

.1
6

0.
81

AP
PL

IE
D 

MA
TS

.
3.

33
21

.7
6

0.
72

VI
SA

 'A
'

3.
55

18
.5

9
0.

66
DO

LL
AR

 T
RE

E
3.

90
16

.3
0

0.
64

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
yl
ar
ge

ca
p
gr
ow

th
po

rtf
oli
o
co

nc
en

tra
te
d
in

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
su

sta
ina

ble
lon

g-
te
rm

gr
ow

th
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s.

Pr
im

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Je

ffr
ey

Va
n
Ha

rte
,

Ch
ris

to
ph

er
Bo

na
vic

o,
Ch

ris
to
ph

er
Er
ick

se
n,

an
d
Da

nie
lP

ris
lin
.

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
28



Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
29



Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
30



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

10
.3

%
12

.5
%

0.
8

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
13

.5
%

12
.3

%
1.

0
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
12

.9
%

12
.4

%
1.

0

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

13
.0

%
12

.6
%

0.
9

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Gr
ow

th
16

.5
%

12
.2

%
1.

3
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
16

.4
%

12
.2

%
1.

2

Ja
ck

so
n 

Sq
ua

re
 P

ar
tn

er
s

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
31



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
10

00
 V

alu
e

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

75
72

2

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

14
8.

36
11

9.
91

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
37

.4
4

8.
86

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

16
.0

7
17

.3
3

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
21

2.
21

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
46

1.
53

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

16
.2

3
14

.1
9

Yi
eld

 (%
)

2.
46

2.
63

Be
ta

1.
04

1.
00

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
JO

HN
SO

N 
& 

JO
HN

SO
N

4.
67

9.
04

CI
SC

O 
SY

ST
EM

S
4.

48
25

.6
0

BE
RK

SH
IR

E 
HA

TH
AW

AY
 'B

'
4.

25
-1

.6
1

BA
NK

 O
F 

AM
ER

IC
A

3.
49

12
.5

5
CO

MC
AS

T 
A

3.
48

17
.4

2
JP

 M
OR

GA
N 

CH
AS

E 
& 

CO
.

3.
08

4.
55

PR
OC

TE
R 

& 
GA

MB
LE

3.
05

14
.0

9
CH

EV
RO

N
2.

91
14

.3
7

CI
TI

GR
OU

P
2.

77
20

.3
6

BO
EI

NG
2.

41
18

.8
7

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
yl
ar
ge

ca
p
va

lue
po

rtf
oli
o
ex

hib
itin

g
low

tu
rn
ov

er
in

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
low

va
lua

tio
ns

re
lat

ive
to

int
rin

sic
va

lue
.P

rim
ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
M
ar
kD

on
ov

an
an

d
Da

vid
Py

le.
  U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
CI

SC
O 

SY
ST

EM
S

3.
74

25
.6

0
0.

96
CI

TI
GR

OU
P

2.
68

20
.3

6
0.

55
CO

MC
AS

T 
A

3.
11

17
.4

2
0.

54
BO

EI
NG

2.
44

18
.8

7
0.

46
BA

NK
 O

F 
AM

ER
IC

A
3.

25
12

.5
5

0.
41

UN
IT

ED
 T

EC
HN

OL
OG

IE
S

1.
84

21
.7

6
0.

40
JO

HN
SO

N 
& 

JO
HN

SO
N

4.
43

9.
04

0.
40

PR
OC

TE
R 

& 
GA

MB
LE

2.
80

14
.0

9
0.

39
CH

EV
RO

N
2.

70
14

.3
7

0.
39

DX
C 

TE
CH

NO
LO

GY
1.

40
21

.3
1

0.
30

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

CV
S 

HE
AL

TH
1.

91
-1

7.
06

-0
.3

3
CI

GN
A

1.
91

-1
5.

30
-0

.2
9

HP
1.

66
-4

.2
4

-0
.0

7
BE

RK
SH

IR
E 

HA
TH

AW
AY

'B
'

4.
31

-1
.6

1
-0

.0
7

W
AL

GR
EE

NS
 B

OO
TS

AL
LI

AN
CE

0.
92

-6
.8

4
-0

.0
6

PF
IZ

ER
2.

61
-1

.8
8

-0
.0

5
MO

SA
IC

0.
49

-6
.4

2
-0

.0
3

CE
ME

X 
AD

R 
1:

10
0.

36
-3

.7
3

-0
.0

1
NO

RD
ST

RO
M

0.
09

-3
.9

8
0.

00
UN

IT
ED

HE
AL

TH
 G

RO
UP

0.
61

-0
.3

7
0.

00

B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
32



B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
33



B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
34



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
7.

6%
12

.3
%

0.
6

Ru
ss

ell
 1

00
0 

Va
lue

7.
7%

11
.1

%
0.

6
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Va

lue
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

8.
2%

11
.4

%
0.

6

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Bo
sto

n 
Pa

rtn
er

s
11

.4
%

11
.8

%
0.

9
Ru

ss
ell

 1
00

0 
Va

lue
10

.5
%

10
.6

%
0.

9
eV

 U
S 

La
rg

e 
Ca

p 
Va

lue
 E

qu
ity

 G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

11
.0

%
10

.9
%

0.
9

B
os

to
n 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
35



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
20

00
Gr

ow
th

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

12
2

1,
23

9

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

2.
96

2.
62

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
2.

09
0.

87

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

25
.6

3
22

.7
0

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

4.
55

4.
00

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

2.
30

1.
53

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

-1
6.

86
0.

05

Yi
eld

 (%
)

0.
51

0.
70

Be
ta

1.
11

1.
00

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

GR
EE

N 
DO

T 
CL

AS
S 

A
1.

02
-2

3.
73

-0
.2

4
VO

CE
RA

CO
MM

UN
IC

AT
IO

NS
1.

13
-1

9.
62

-0
.2

2

KA
RY

OP
HA

RM
TH

ER
AP

EU
TI

CS
0.

51
-3

7.
67

-0
.1

9

DY
CO

M 
IN

DS
.

0.
71

-1
4.

99
-0

.1
1

AT
RI

CU
RE

0.
71

-1
2.

45
-0

.0
9

HA
EM

ON
ET

IC
S

0.
63

-1
2.

56
-0

.0
8

IN
OG

EN
0.

34
-2

3.
19

-0
.0

8
AI

MM
UN

E
TH

ER
AP

EU
TI

CS
0.

94
-6

.5
6

-0
.0

6

AD
AM

AS
PH

AR
MA

CE
UT

IC
AL

S
0.

35
-1

6.
74

-0
.0

6

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
TA

ND
EM

 D
IA

BE
TE

S 
CA

RE
1.

65
67

.2
4

1.
11

CH
EG

G
3.

07
34

.1
3

1.
05

RA
PI

D7
1.

57
62

.4
2

0.
98

IN
SM

ED
0.

80
12

1.
57

0.
97

FO
RE

SC
OU

T
TE

CH
NO

LO
GI

ES
1.

52
61

.2
5

0.
93

NE
OG

EN
OM

IC
S

1.
44

62
.2

5
0.

89
LE

ND
IN

GT
RE

E
1.

40
60

.1
1

0.
84

EP
AM

 S
YS

TE
MS

1.
77

45
.7

9
0.

81
RE

AT
A 

PH
AR

MS
.C

L.
A

1.
37

52
.3

5
0.

72
PR

OO
FP

OI
NT

1.
35

44
.8

9
0.

60

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
CH

EG
G

3.
02

34
.1

3
PL

AN
ET

 F
IT

NE
SS

 C
L.

A
2.

34
28

.1
6

FI
VE

 B
EL

OW
2.

21
21

.4
3

TA
ND

EM
 D

IA
BE

TE
S 

CA
RE

2.
12

67
.2

4
FO

RE
SC

OU
T 

TE
CH

NO
LO

GI
ES

1.
92

61
.2

5
RA

PI
D7

1.
92

62
.4

2
TR

EX
1.

86
3.

64
CI

EN
A

1.
78

10
.1

2
LE

ND
IN

GT
RE

E
1.

73
60

.1
1

NE
OG

EN
OM

IC
S

1.
68

62
.2

5

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
ys

m
all

ca
p
gr
ow

th
po

rtf
oli
o
of

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
sig

nif
ica

nt
ly
hig

h
gr
ow

th
ra
te
s.

Pr
im
ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Ke

nn
et
h
M
er
tz,

Jo
se

ph
Ga

rn
er
,a

nd
St
ac

ey
Se

ar
s.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
36



E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
37



E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
38



3 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
De

via
tio

n
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
_

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
18

.1
%

17
.6

%
1.

0
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

14
.9

%
16

.3
%

0.
8

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 G

ro
wt

h 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
17

.7
%

16
.3

%
1.

0

5 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
De

via
tio

n
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
_

Em
er

ald
 A

dv
ise

rs
10

.8
%

18
.3

%
0.

5
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Gr

ow
th

8.
4%

17
.0

%
0.

4
eV

 U
S 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 G
ro

wt
h 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

9.
8%

16
.6

%
0.

6

E
m

er
al

d 
A

dv
is

er
s

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
39



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

Ru
ss

ell
20

00
 V

alu
e

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

83
1,

36
6

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

2.
52

2.
06

Me
dia

n 
M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
1.

97
0.

68

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

18
.8

5
15

.6
0

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
32

1.
61

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
05

0.
92

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

17
.3

9
6.

04

Yi
eld

 (%
)

2.
68

2.
22

Be
ta

0.
82

1.
00

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
OU

TF
RO

NT
 M

ED
IA

2.
93

31
.2

2
0.

91
US

 S
IL

IC
A 

HO
LD

IN
GS

1.
09

71
.2

2
0.

78
EV

ER
CO

RE
 A

2.
78

27
.8

6
0.

77
PO

W
ER

 IN
TE

GR
AT

IO
NS

4.
90

14
.9

6
0.

73
PH

YS
IC

IA
NS

 R
EA

LT
Y

TS
T.

3.
35

19
.0

7
0.

64

KE
MP

ER
4.

17
15

.0
6

0.
63

CO
VA

NT
A 

HO
LD

IN
G

1.
87

30
.8

5
0.

58
HI

LL
-R

OM
 H

OL
DI

NG
S

2.
45

19
.7

8
0.

48
LI

TH
IA

 M
OT

OR
S 

'A
'

2.
00

21
.9

2
0.

44
TE

TR
A 

TE
CH

2.
76

15
.3

5
0.

42

La
rg

es
t H

ol
di

ng
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
PO

W
ER

 IN
TE

GR
AT

IO
NS

5.
11

14
.9

6
EN

ER
GI

ZE
R 

HO
LD

IN
GS

4.
27

0.
16

KE
MP

ER
4.

25
15

.0
6

B 
& 

G 
FO

OD
S

3.
77

-1
3.

88
PH

YS
IC

IA
NS

 R
EA

LT
Y 

TS
T.

3.
68

19
.0

7
OU

TF
RO

NT
 M

ED
IA

3.
39

31
.2

2
EV

ER
CO

RE
 A

3.
01

27
.8

6
CH

IL
DR

EN
S 

PL
AC

E
2.

78
7.

98
TA

NG
ER

 F
AC

.O
UT

LE
T 

CN
TR

S.
2.

71
5.

35
HE

RM
AN

 M
IL

LE
R

2.
35

16
.9

2

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

B 
& 

G 
FO

OD
S

4.
09

-1
3.

88
-0

.5
7

GR
EE

NB
RI

ER
 C

OS
.

0.
84

-1
8.

00
-0

.1
5

TU
PP

ER
W

AR
E 

BR
AN

DS
0.

43
-1

8.
14

-0
.0

8
EN

ER
SY

S
0.

35
-1

5.
82

-0
.0

6
HO

RA
CE

 M
AN

N
ED

UC
AT

OR
S

1.
01

-5
.2

6
-0

.0
5

CO
HU

0.
51

-7
.9

2
-0

.0
4

MA
TT

HE
W

S 
IN

TL
.'A

'
0.

46
-8

.5
5

-0
.0

4
CO

MT
EC

H 
TE

LE
CO

M.
0.

71
-4

.2
2

-0
.0

3
HE

CL
A 

MI
NI

NG
0.

49
-2

.4
4

-0
.0

1
RE

SI
DE

O
TE

CH
NO

LO
GI

ES
0.

19
-6

.1
3

-0
.0

1

Do
m
es

tic
eq

uit
ys

m
all

ca
p
va

lue
po

rtf
oli
o
of

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
div

ide
nd

yie
lds

an
d
low

va
lua

tio
ns

.P
rim

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Br
et
tB

ar
ne

ra
nd

Da
vid

M
ay

na
rd
.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

C
er

ed
ex

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
40



C
er

ed
ex

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
41



C
er

ed
ex

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
42



C
er

ed
ex

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ce
re

de
x

6.
9%

14
.3

%
0.

4
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Va

lue
5.

6%
15

.8
%

0.
3

eV
 U

S 
Sm

all
 C

ap
 V

alu
e 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

6.
2%

15
.4

%
0.

4

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ce
re

de
x

9.
7%

14
.2

%
0.

6
Ru

ss
ell

 2
00

0 
Va

lue
10

.9
%

16
.1

%
0.

6
eV

 U
S 

Sm
all

 C
ap

 V
alu

e 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
9.

7%
15

.8
%

0.
6

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
43



   
  I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l E

qu
ity

 M
an

ag
er

s



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
ex

 U
SA

Va
lue

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

74
1,

28
0

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

64
.0

4
51

.2
8

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
23

.0
2

7.
15

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

17
.5

3
11

.6
2

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

2.
46

1.
62

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

1.
47

0.
89

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

16
.5

0
11

.7
2

Yi
eld

 (%
)

3.
83

4.
40

Be
ta

0.
80

1.
00

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
92

.7
%

73
.9

%
Em

er
gin

g*
7.

3%
26

.1
%

Ca
sh

0.
0%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Sw
itz

er
lan

d
14

.7
%

3.
2%

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
13

.6
%

15
.6

%
Au

str
ali

a
11

.3
%

4.
8%

Ja
pa

n
10

.4
%

16
.2

%
Fr

an
ce

8.
6%

7.
0%

Ge
rm

an
y

8.
5%

5.
6%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
5.

2%
2.

7%
Si

ng
ap

or
e

5.
1%

0.
9%

Sw
ed

en
4.

9%
1.

4%
Ne

th
er

lan
ds

4.
6%

1.
2%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

87
.0

%
58

.6
%

_

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
NE

ST
LE

 'R
'

3.
49

17
.7

2
0.

62
RO

CH
E 

HO
LD

IN
G

3.
34

15
.1

4
0.

51
NO

VA
RT

IS
 'R

'
2.

90
16

.4
2

0.
48

BR
AM

BL
ES

2.
32

18
.3

4
0.

43
BR

IT
IS

H 
AM

ER
IC

AN
TO

BA
CC

O
1.

20
32

.8
0

0.
39

RI
O 

TI
NT

O
1.

08
33

.9
7

0.
37

ES
SI

TY
 B

1.
90

17
.7

7
0.

34
QB

E 
IN

SU
RA

NC
E 

GR
OU

P
1.

30
25

.7
2

0.
33

LE
GA

L 
& 

GE
NE

RA
L

1.
46

21
.9

3
0.

32
BR

EN
NT

AG
1.

63
18

.4
6

0.
30

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

BE
ZE

Q 
IS

RA
EL

I
TE

LE
CO

MM
UN

IC
AT

IO
N

1.
18

-2
8.

04
-0

.3
3

KD
DI

1.
90

-8
.0

4
-0

.1
5

NI
HO

N 
KO

HD
EN

1.
67

-8
.1

7
-0

.1
4

VO
DA

FO
NE

 G
RO

UP
1.

45
-6

.4
5

-0
.0

9
CH

UN
GH

W
A 

TE
LE

CO
M

1.
62

-3
.3

6
-0

.0
5

MA
LA

YA
N 

BA
NK

IN
G

2.
04

-1
.2

3
-0

.0
3

PO
W

ER
 A

SS
ET

S
HO

LD
IN

GS
1.

27
-0

.3
5

0.
00

IM
I

0.
44

3.
83

0.
02

SU
MI

TO
MO

 R
UB

BE
R

IN
DS

.
1.

35
1.

26
0.

02

GE
A 

GR
OU

P
1.

00
2.

05
0.

02

In
te
rn
at
ion

al
eq

uit
yv

alu
e
po

rtf
oli
o
of

no
n-
US

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
low

va
lua

tio
ns

at
th
e
co

un
try

an
d
sto

ck
lev

el.
Pr
im

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
To

ny
Co

us
ins

,D
an

iel
M
cD

on
ag

h,
an

d
Pa

ul
Si
m
on

s.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Py
rf

or
d

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
45



Py
rf

or
d

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
46



Py
rf

or
d

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
Ye

ar
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Py
rfo

rd
5.

9%
8.

7%
0.

5
MS

CI
 A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 V
alu

e
7.

7%
10

.9
%

0.
6

eV
 A

CW
I e

x-U
S 

Va
lue

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
7.

1%
11

.2
%

0.
6

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
47



To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
AL

IB
AB

A 
GR

OU
P

HL
DG

.S
PN

. A
DR

 1
:1

1.
53

33
.1

1
0.

51

AI
RB

US
1.

31
37

.9
3

0.
50

AI
A 

GR
OU

P
2.

04
19

.9
1

0.
41

PI
NG

 A
N 

IN
SU

RA
NC

E
(G

RO
UP

) O
F 

CH
IN

A 
'H

'
1.

30
26

.7
8

0.
35

KE
YE

NC
E

1.
32

22
.9

7
0.

30
NO

VA
RT

IS
 'R

'
1.

76
16

.4
2

0.
29

NE
ST

E
0.

74
38

.5
3

0.
29

LO
NZ

A 
GR

OU
P

1.
41

20
.0

1
0.

28
BH

P 
GR

OU
P

1.
35

20
.7

7
0.

28
CH

IN
A 

ME
RC

HA
NT

S
BA

NK
 'H

'
0.

76
32

.5
8

0.
25

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

In
te
rn
at
ion

al
eq

uit
yg

ro
wt
h
po

rtf
oli
o
of

no
n-
US

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
hig

h
gr
ow

th
ra
te
sc

on
str

uc
te
d
fro

m
th
e
se

cu
rit
yl
ev

el.
Pr
im

ar
yp

er
so

nn
el

inc
lud

e
Si
m
on

Fe
nn

ell
an

d
Je

ffr
ey

Ur
bin

a.

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
ex

 U
SA

Gr
ow

th
Nu

mb
er

 o
f H

old
ing

s
17

9
1,

14
1

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

66
.3

2
77

.1
4

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
11

.1
2

8.
23

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

23
.2

7
19

.3
7

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

3.
93

3.
04

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

2.
25

1.
71

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

22
.1

5
19

.4
8

Yi
eld

 (%
)

1.
80

2.
06

Be
ta

1.
09

1.
00

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
84

.0
%

74
.2

%
Em

er
gin

g*
14

.3
%

25
.8

%
To

p 
10

 L
ar

ge
st

 C
ou

nt
rie

s
 

 
Un

ite
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

15
.0

%
7.

6%
Fr

an
ce

13
.3

%
8.

1%
Ja

pa
n

10
.4

%
16

.1
%

Ca
na

da
6.

5%
6.

8%
Sw

itz
er

lan
d

5.
8%

8.
7%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
5.

7%
2.

8%
Ch

ina
*

5.
4%

8.
5%

Ge
rm

an
y

4.
8%

5.
9%

Au
str

ali
a

4.
0%

4.
5%

Ne
th

er
lan

ds
4.

0%
3.

6%
To

ta
l-T

op
 1

0 
La

rg
es

t C
ou

nt
rie

s
74

.9
%

72
.4

%
_

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

W
IR

EC
AR

D
0.

64
-1

7.
61

-0
.1

1
MR

 P
RI

CE
 G

RO
UP

0.
31

-2
3.

20
-0

.0
7

CO
ST

A 
GR

OU
P

HO
LD

IN
GS

0.
15

-2
9.

43
-0

.0
4

MA
RU

TI
 S

UZ
UK

I I
ND

IA
0.

40
-9

.9
2

-0
.0

4
W

EL
CI

A 
HO

LD
IN

GS
0.

16
-2

4.
57

-0
.0

4
AS

TR
A 

IN
TE

RN
AT

IO
NA

L
0.

30
-1

0.
07

-0
.0

3
NM

C 
HE

AL
TH

0.
17

-1
4.

59
-0

.0
3

MO
NO

TA
RO

0.
24

-1
0.

25
-0

.0
2

HI
ND

US
TA

N 
UN

IL
EV

ER
0.

40
-5

.4
7

-0
.0

2
TO

PC
ON

0.
19

-1
0.

73
-0

.0
2

W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
48



W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ri
so

ns
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
49



W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 - 

R
ol

lin
g 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
50



3 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
De

via
tio

n
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
_

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

8.
0%

11
.7

%
0.

6
MS

CI
 A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

wt
h

8.
4%

11
.1

%
0.

6
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-U

S 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
9.

5%
12

.2
%

0.
7

5 
Ye

ar
s

An
lzd

 R
et

ur
n

An
lzd

 S
ta

nd
ar

d
De

via
tio

n
Sh

ar
pe

 R
at

io
_

W
illi

am
 B

lai
r

4.
0%

11
.8

%
0.

3
MS

CI
 A

CW
I e

x U
SA

 G
ro

wt
h

4.
0%

11
.9

%
0.

3
eV

 A
CW

I e
x-U

S 
Gr

ow
th

 E
qu

ity
 G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
5.

3%
12

.3
%

0.
4

W
ill

ia
m

 B
la

ir
R

is
k 

vs
. R

et
ur

n 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
51



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

M
SC

I
Em

er
gin

g
M

ar
ke

ts
Nu

mb
er

 o
f H

old
ing

s
56

2
1,

13
3

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

37
.9

3
84

.8
8

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
3.

59
5.

81
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Ea

rn
ing

s
8.

63
13

.3
0

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

1.
58

2.
41

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

0.
52

1.
25

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

10
.9

5
17

.8
2

Yi
eld

 (%
)

3.
94

2.
68

Be
ta

 
1.

00

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
PJ

SC
 L

UK
OI

L 
SP

ON
 (L

ON
)

AD
R

2.
08

25
.3

5
0.

53

SA
MS

UN
G 

EL
EC

TR
ON

IC
S

3.
05

13
.4

1
0.

41
CN

OO
C

1.
30

21
.1

7
0.

27
LE

NO
VO

 G
RO

UP
0.

74
33

.1
1

0.
25

IM
PA

LA
 P

LA
TI

NU
M

0.
30

65
.8

9
0.

20
PE

TR
OL

EO
 B

RA
SI

LE
IR

O
AD

R 
1:

2
0.

84
22

.3
7

0.
19

PI
NG

 A
N 

IN
SU

RA
NC

E
(G

RO
UP

) O
F 

CH
IN

A 
'H

'
0.

67
26

.7
8

0.
18

JB
S 

ON
0.

43
36

.8
0

0.
16

CH
IN

A 
CO

N.
BA

NK
 'H

'
3.

96
3.

91
0.

15
CH

IN
A 

ME
RC

HA
NT

S
BA

NK
 'H

'
0.

46
32

.5
8

0.
15

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
10

.2
%

0.
0%

Em
er

gin
g*

88
.4

%
10

0.
0%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Ch
ina

*
21

.0
%

32
.8

%
Ko

re
a*

18
.5

%
13

.1
%

Ru
ss

ia*
9.

9%
3.

8%
Ta

iw
an

*
9.

8%
11

.4
%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
9.

8%
0.

0%
Br

az
il*

5.
8%

7.
1%

So
ut

h 
Af

ric
a*

4.
7%

5.
8%

In
dia

*
4.

7%
9.

2%
Tu

rke
y*

3.
0%

0.
6%

Th
ail

an
d*

2.
8%

2.
4%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

90
.0

%
86

.2
%

_

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Th
e
PI
M
CO

RA
E
Em

er
gin

g
M
ar
ke
ts
se
ek
st
o
inv

es
t8

0%
of

its
as
se
ts
in
inv

es
tm

en
ts
th
at

ar
e
ec
on

om
ica

lly
tie
d
to

em
er
gin

g
m
ar
ke
tc
ou

nt
rie

s.
Th

e
po

rtf
oli
o
is
su
b-
ad

vis
ed

by
Re

se
ar
ch

Af
fili
at
es
,L

LC
.

PI
M

C
O

 R
A

E
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
En

d 
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

KO
RE

A 
EL

EC
TR

IC
PO

W
ER

1.
16

-1
1.

20
-0

.1
3

RE
LI

AN
CE

CO
MM

UN
IC

AT
IO

NS
0.

14
-7

0.
96

-0
.1

0

KT
 A

DR
 2

:1
0.

71
-1

2.
52

-0
.0

9
CH

IN
A 

RE
SO

UR
CE

S
PO

W
ER

0.
38

-2
1.

85
-0

.0
8

LO
TT

E 
SH

OP
PI

NG
0.

34
-1

7.
07

-0
.0

6
LG

 U
PL

US
0.

40
-1

3.
95

-0
.0

6
TU

RK
IY

E 
HA

LK
 B

AN
KA

SI
0.

37
-1

4.
42

-0
.0

5
SK

 T
EL

EC
OM

 S
PN

.A
DR

9:
1

0.
62

-8
.6

2
-0

.0
5

DO
OS

AN
 H

VY
.IN

DS
.A

ND
CO

N.
0.

16
-2

3.
01

-0
.0

4

KB
 F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 G
RO

UP
0.

31
-1

1.
53

-0
.0

4

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
52



PI
M

C
O

 R
A

E
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
53



Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s

Po
rtf

oli
o

M
SC

I
Em

er
gin

g
M

ar
ke

ts
Nu

mb
er

 o
f H

old
ing

s
78

1,
13

3
W

eig
ht

ed
 A

vg
. M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
59

.7
9

84
.8

8
M

ed
ian

 M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

10
.2

4
5.

81
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Ea

rn
ing

s
11

.8
6

13
.3

0
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Bo

ok
2.

40
2.

41
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Sa

les
1.

42
1.

25
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

Eq
uit

y (
%

)
21

.3
1

17
.8

2
Yi

eld
 (%

)
2.

37
2.

68
Be

ta
 

1.
00

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
En

d 
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

TU
RK

 H
AV

A 
YO

LL
AR

I
1.

09
-2

4.
42

-0
.2

7
FU

TU
RE

 R
ET

AI
L

1.
40

-8
.8

7
-0

.1
2

PA
MP

A 
EN

ER
GI

A
0.

60
-1

1.
12

-0
.0

7
HA

NA
 F

IN
AN

CI
AL

 G
RO

UP
2.

74
-1

.2
9

-0
.0

4
DP

 W
OR

LD
1.

31
-2

.6
0

-0
.0

3
ME

DI
CL

IN
IC

IN
TE

RN
AT

IO
NA

L
1.

01
-3

.3
0

-0
.0

3

BB
 S

EG
UR

ID
AD

E 
ON

1.
67

-1
.9

3
-0

.0
3

AR
VI

ND
0.

49
-6

.2
8

-0
.0

3
SI

AM
 C

OM
L.

 B
AN

K 
FB

1.
07

-1
.9

1
-0

.0
2

CH
IN

A 
GA

S 
HO

LD
IN

GS
1.

87
-1

.0
3

-0
.0

2

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

En
d 

W
ei

gh
t

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
AL

IB
AB

A 
GR

OU
P

HL
DG

.S
PN

. A
DR

 1
:1

5.
82

33
.1

1
1.

93

NA
SP

ER
S

6.
25

18
.5

2
1.

16
W

UL
IA

NG
YE

 Y
IB

IN
 'A

'
1.

00
90

.7
6

0.
91

CN
OO

C
2.

72
21

.1
7

0.
58

CH
IN

A 
PA

CI
FI

C
IN

SU
RA

NC
E 

(G
RO

UP
) 'H

'
2.

68
21

.1
8

0.
57

HC
L 

TE
CH

NO
LO

GI
ES

3.
72

13
.8

6
0.

52
LE

XI
NF

IN
TE

CH
 H

DG
. A

DR
1:

2
1.

10
44

.8
3

0.
49

PE
TR

OL
EO

 B
RA

SI
LE

IR
O

PN
2.

11
23

.2
1

0.
49

OC
I

1.
34

35
.1

2
0.

47
FI

RS
T 

QU
AN

TU
M 

MR
LS

.
1.

13
40

.3
0

0.
46

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
19

.4
%

0.
0%

Em
er

gin
g*

81
.2

%
10

0.
0%

Fr
on

tie
r**

1.
8%

0.
0%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Ch
ina

*
21

.7
%

32
.8

%
In

dia
*

15
.8

%
9.

2%
Ko

re
a*

11
.6

%
13

.1
%

Ho
ng

 K
on

g
10

.8
%

0.
0%

So
ut

h 
Af

ric
a*

10
.1

%
5.

8%
Br

az
il*

9.
2%

7.
1%

Ru
ss

ia*
6.

1%
3.

8%
Un

ite
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

4.
1%

0.
0%

Un
ite

d 
St

at
es

2.
1%

0.
0%

Ma
lay

sia
*

1.
6%

2.
2%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

93
.0

%
74

.1
%

_

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

TT
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
54

Th
e
Em

er
gin

g
M
ar
ke

ts
Un

co
ns

tra
ine

d
str

at
eg

ya
im

st
o
ou

tp
er
fo
rm

its
be

nc
hm

ar
k,

M
SC

IE
m
er
gin

g
M
ar
ke

ts
In
de

xb
y5

%
pe

ra
nn

um
ov

er
a
th
re
e-
ye

ar
ro
llin

g
pe

rio
d.

It
ta
rg
et
sh

igh
re
tu
rn
sa

nd
lon

g
te
rm

ca
pit

al
gr
ow

th
by

inv
es

tin
g
in

a
fo
cu

se
d
po

rtf
oli
o
of

pr
im

ar
ily

eq
uit

ya
nd

eq
uit

y-
re
lat

ed
se

cu
rit
ies

tra
de

d
in

th
e
Em

er
gin

g
M
ar
ke

ts.



TT
 E

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ke
ts

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
55



   
  G

lo
ba

l E
qu

ity
 M

an
ag

er
s



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Gl
ob

al
eq

uit
yp

or
tfo

lio
of

co
m
pa

nie
st
ha

tis
be

nc
hm

ar
ka

gn
os
tic

wi
th

ac
ce
ler

at
ing

pr
of
itc

yc
les

an
d
a
fo
cu
so

n
ca
pit
al
all
oc
at
ion

.P
rim

ar
yp

er
so
nn

el
inc

lud
e
Ja
m
es

Ha
m
el,

Cr
aig

h
Ce

pu
ke
na

s,
an

d
M
at
th
ew

Ka
m
m
.

 

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
W

OR
LD

PA
Y 

A
2.

11
48

.5
0

1.
02

VI
SA

 'A
'

5.
50

18
.5

9
1.

02
TE

CH
TR

ON
IC

 IN
DS

.
3.

55
26

.4
7

0.
94

IH
S 

MA
RK

IT
6.

98
13

.3
6

0.
93

FE
VE

RT
RE

E 
DR

IN
KS

1.
77

40
.4

6
0.

71
AP

TI
V

2.
14

29
.4

7
0.

63
AT

LA
SS

IA
N 

'A
'

2.
25

26
.3

1
0.

59
PR

OG
RE

SS
IV

E 
OH

IO
2.

46
24

.0
6

0.
59

TE
ME

NO
S 

N
2.

32
23

.2
5

0.
54

PA
GS

EG
UR

O 
DI

GI
TA

L 
A

0.
89

59
.3

7
0.

53

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
Av

g 
W

gt
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

AC
TI

VI
SI

ON
 B

LI
ZZ

AR
D

1.
53

-1
.4

4
-0

.0
2

BO
OK

IN
G 

HO
LD

IN
GS

1.
44

1.
31

0.
02

IN
G 

GR
OE

P
0.

19
12

.5
7

0.
02

TR
EA

SU
RY

 W
IN

E
ES

TA
TE

S
1.

89
2.

95
0.

06

VE
ST

AS
 W

IN
DS

YS
TE

MS
0.

48
11

.7
3

0.
06

UM
IC

OR
E

1.
01

11
.5

5
0.

12
TI

FF
AN

Y 
& 

CO
0.

48
31

.8
4

0.
15

DA
IF

UK
U

1.
04

14
.8

3
0.

15
AM

AZ
ON

.C
OM

0.
84

18
.5

6
0.

16
GE

NM
AB

2.
51

6.
23

0.
16

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s
Po

rtf
oli

o
MS

CI
 A

CW
I

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

46
2,

76
8

W
eig

ht
ed

 A
vg

. M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

10
6.

47
14

0.
13

M
ed

ian
 M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
28

.0
7

9.
41

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Ea
rn

ing
s

31
.4

4
17

.1
2

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Bo
ok

4.
60

2.
82

Pr
ice

 T
o 

Sa
les

2.
96

1.
54

Re
tu

rn
 o

n 
Eq

uit
y (

%
)

22
.2

4
20

.0
8

Yi
eld

 (%
)

0.
96

2.
53

Be
ta

1.
27

1.
00

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
93

.2
%

88
.3

%
Em

er
gin

g*
2.

5%
11

.7
%

To
p 

10
 L

ar
ge

st
 C

ou
nt

rie
s

 
 

Un
ite

d 
St

at
es

54
.7

%
55

.1
%

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
9.

2%
5.

2%
Ho

ng
 K

on
g

8.
1%

1.
2%

Sw
itz

er
lan

d
5.

3%
2.

7%
Ca

sh
4.

3%
0.

0%
De

nm
ar

k
4.

1%
0.

5%
Ja

pa
n

3.
0%

7.
3%

In
dia

*
2.

5%
1.

1%
Ge

rm
an

y
1.

6%
2.

6%
Fr

an
ce

1.
6%

3.
4%

To
ta

l-T
op

 1
0 

La
rg

es
t C

ou
nt

rie
s

94
.6

%
79

.0
%

_

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

.

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
56



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ri
so

ns
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
57



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 - 

R
ol

lin
g 

3 
Ye

ar
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
58



A
rt

is
an

 P
ar

tn
er

s
R

is
k 

vs
. R

et
ur

n 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

14
.8

%
12

.6
%

1.
1

M
SC

I A
CW

I
10

.7
%

10
.0

%
0.

9
eV

 A
ll G

lob
al 

Eq
uit

y G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

10
.3

%
10

.8
%

0.
9

5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Ar
tis

an
 P

ar
tn

er
s

11
.3

%
12

.8
%

0.
8

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
6.

5%
11

.1
%

0.
5

eV
 A

ll G
lob

al 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
7.

1%
11

.5
%

0.
6

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
59



Gl
ob

al
eq

uit
yp

or
tfo

lio
th
at

is
be

nc
hm

ar
ka

gn
os
tic

co
m
pr
ise

d
of

co
m
pa

nie
sw

ith
low

va
lua

tio
ns
.P

rim
ar
yp

er
so
nn

el
inc

lud
e
M
at
tM

cL
en

na
n
an

d
Ki
m
ba

llB
ro
ok
er
.

U
nc

la
ss

ifi
ed

se
ct
or

al
lo
ca

tio
n
in
cl
ud

es
ca

sh
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

an
d
G
ol
d
al
lo
ca

tio
ns

(8
.4
%

as
of

3/
31

/2
01

9)
.

Co
un

try
 A

llo
ca

tio
n Ma

na
ge

r
In

de
x

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

En
din

g 
Al

loc
at

ion
(U

SD
)

_

To
ta

ls
 

 
De

ve
lop

ed
78

.3
%

88
.3

%
Em

er
gin

g*
3.

6%
11

.7
%

Ca
sh

18
.1

%
To

p 
10

 L
ar

ge
st

 C
ou

nt
rie

s
 

 
Un

ite
d 

St
at

es
44

.5
%

55
.1

%
Ca

sh
18

.1
%

0.
0%

Ja
pa

n
11

.1
%

7.
3%

Un
ite

d 
Ki

ng
do

m
5.

8%
5.

2%
Fr

an
ce

5.
4%

3.
4%

Ca
na

da
3.

0%
3.

1%
Sw

itz
er

lan
d

2.
2%

2.
7%

Ko
re

a*
1.

9%
1.

5%
Ho

ng
 K

on
g

1.
3%

1.
2%

Si
ng

ap
or

e
1.

3%
0.

4%
To

ta
l-T

op
 1

0 
La

rg
es

t C
ou

nt
rie

s
94

.7
%

79
.8

%
_

To
p 

Co
nt

rib
ut

or
s

Av
g 

W
gt

Re
tu

rn
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n
OR

AC
LE

2.
28

19
.4

3
0.

44
BR

IT
IS

H 
AM

ER
IC

AN
TO

BA
CC

O
1.

33
32

.8
0

0.
44

PH
IL

IP
 M

OR
RI

S 
IN

TL
.

1.
14

34
.1

1
0.

39
SC

HL
UM

BE
RG

ER
1.

72
22

.1
3

0.
38

EX
XO

N 
MO

BI
L

1.
54

19
.8

1
0.

30
CO

MC
AS

T 
A

1.
72

17
.4

2
0.

30
W

EY
ER

HA
EU

SE
R

1.
35

22
.1

4
0.

30
UN

IO
N 

PA
CI

FI
C

0.
93

21
.5

9
0.

20
LL

OY
DS

 B
AN

KI
NG

 G
RO

UP
0.

87
22

.6
2

0.
20

NE
ST

LE
 'R

'
1.

05
17

.7
2

0.
19

Ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s
Po

rtf
oli

o
MS

CI
 A

CW
I

Nu
mb

er
 o

f H
old

ing
s

13
5

2,
76

8
W

eig
ht

ed
 A

vg
. M

ar
ke

t C
ap

. (
$B

)
70

.7
8

14
0.

13
M

ed
ian

 M
ar

ke
t C

ap
. (

$B
)

17
.9

7
9.

41
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Ea

rn
ing

s
16

.7
8

17
.1

2
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Bo

ok
2.

26
2.

82
Pr

ice
 T

o 
Sa

les
1.

46
1.

54
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

Eq
uit

y (
%

)
14

.4
7

20
.0

8
Yi

eld
 (%

)
2.

39
2.

53
Be

ta
0.

70
1.

00

Bo
tto

m
 C

on
tri

bu
to

rs
En

d 
W

ei
gh

t
Re

tu
rn

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
n

KD
DI

1.
30

-8
.0

4
-0

.1
0

JA
RD

IN
E 

MA
TH

ES
ON

 H
DG

.
0.

91
-8

.6
1

-0
.0

8
VI

ST
A 

OU
TD

OO
R

0.
05

-2
9.

43
-0

.0
1

H&
R 

BL
OC

K
0.

23
-4

.6
7

-0
.0

1
BT

 G
RO

UP
0.

25
-4

.2
0

-0
.0

1
BE

RK
SH

IR
E 

HA
TH

AW
AY

 'B
'

0.
51

-1
.6

1
-0

.0
1

AL
LE

GH
AN

Y
0.

47
-1

.7
5

-0
.0

1
LO

TT
E

0.
07

-7
.8

6
-0

.0
1

W
PP

0.
19

-2
.0

1
0.

00
OR

KL
A

0.
16

-2
.1

7
0.

00

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
60



Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 C

om
pa

ri
so

ns
 (G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
61



Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
M

an
ag

er
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 - 

R
ol

lin
g 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
62



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Fir
st 

Ea
gle

5.
8%

8.
1%

0.
6

MS
CI

 A
CW

I
6.

5%
11

.1
%

0.
5

eV
 A

ll G
lob

al 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
7.

1%
11

.5
%

0.
6

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Fi
rst

 E
ag

le
8.

0%
7.

4%
0.

9
M

SC
I A

CW
I

10
.7

%
10

.0
%

0.
9

eV
 A

ll G
lob

al 
Eq

uit
y G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
10

.3
%

10
.8

%
0.

9

Fi
rs

t E
ag

le
R

is
k 

vs
. R

et
ur

n 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
63



   
  H

ig
h 

Yi
el

d 
Ma

na
ge

rs



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Q
ua

lity
 d

is
tri

bu
tio

n 
ex

cl
ud

es
 c

as
h.

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
65

Al
lia

nz
 G

lo
ba

l I
nv

es
to

rs
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

Do
me

sti
c h

igh
 yi

eld
 fix

ed
 in

co
me

 po
rtf

oli
o w

ith
 a 

foc
us

 on
 se

cu
rity

 se
lec

tio
n. 

Pr
im

ar
y p

er
so

nn
el 

inc
lud

e D
ou

gla
s F

or
sy

th,
 Ju

sti
nK

as
s, 

W
illi

am
 S

tic
kn

ey
, a

nd
 M

ich
ae

l Y
ee

.

0%

48
%

42
%

7%
0%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

60
%

BB
B

BB
B

<B
N

ot
 R

at
ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

12
%

15
%

7%

32
%

10
%

0%

21
%

4%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

En
er

gy
/U

til
iti

es
In

du
st

ria
ls

Fi
na

nc
ia

ls
Te

le
co

m
/M

ed
ia

Co
ns

um
er

 P
ro

du
ct

s
Fo

re
ig

n
O

th
er

Ca
sh

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

A
lli

an
z

IC
E 

B
of

A
M

L 
H

Y 
M

as
te

r 
II

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

3.
80

3.
70

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
it

y
6.

10
6.

70

A
ve

ra
ge

 Q
ua

lit
y

B1
B1

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
ou

po
n

6.
4%

6.
4%

6%

22
%

51
%

21
%

1%
0%10

%
20

%
30

%
40

%
50

%
60

%

<1
 Y

r
1-

3 
Yr

s
3-

5 
Yr

s
5-

7 
Yr

s
>7

 Y
rs

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n



A
lli

an
z 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

to
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
66



A
lli

an
z 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

to
rs

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
67



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

4.
0%

5.
3%

0.
6

IC
E 

Bo
fA

ML
 H

igh
 Y

iel
d 

Ma
ste

r I
I

4.
7%

5.
5%

0.
7

eV
 U

S 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

Fix
ed

 In
c G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
4.

6%
4.

9%
0.

8

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

Al
lia

nz
 G

lob
al 

In
ve

sto
rs

7.
8%

4.
4%

1.
5

IC
E 

Bo
fA

ML
 H

igh
 Y

iel
d 

Ma
ste

r I
I

8.
7%

4.
6%

1.
6

eV
 U

S 
Hi

gh
 Y

iel
d 

Fix
ed

 In
c G

ro
ss

 M
ed

ian
7.

9%
4.

0%
1.

6

A
lli

an
z 

G
lo

ba
l I

nv
es

to
rs

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
68



   
  R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Ma

na
ge

rs



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

3%
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

 C
as

h 
an

d 
C

as
h 

Eq
ui

va
le

nt
s.

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
70

Ad
el

an
te

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Di
ve

rsi
fie

d p
or

tfo
lio

 of
 U

.S
. R

EI
Ts

 w
ith

 a 
foc

us
 on

 th
e u

nd
er

lyi
ng

 re
al 

es
tat

e a
ss

ets

3.
1%

2.
2%

3.
5%

2.
2%

2.
8%

2.
5%

4.
6%

4.
4%

2.
9%

3.
9%

4.
8%

2.
5%

0.
0%

1.
0%

2.
0%

3.
0%

4.
0%

5.
0%

6.
0%

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
Di

ve
rs

ifi
ed

/S
pe

ci
al

ty
St

or
ag

e
Ho

te
ls

In
du

st
ria

l
In

du
st

ria
l M

ix
ed

Re
ta

il-
Lo

ca
l

Re
ta

il-
Re

gi
on

al
O

ffi
ce

Tr
ip

le
-N

et
 L

ea
se

He
al

th
ca

re
M

an
uf

ac
tu

re
d 

Ho
m

es
RE

 S
er

vi
ce

s

D
iv

id
en

d 
Yi

el
d 

by
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Ty
pe

16
.9

%

2.
1%

7.
2%

5.
7%

7.
8%

14
.2

%

5.
9%

9.
5%

13
.9

%

1.
1%

8.
8%

2.
9%

1.
0%

0.
0%

2.
0%

4.
0%

6.
0%

8.
0%

10
.0

%

12
.0

%

14
.0

%

16
.0

%

18
.0

%

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e 
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

Co
m

pa
ny

Pr
op

er
ty

 T
yp

e
Al

lo
ca

tio
n

Si
m

on
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Gr
ou

p
Re

ta
il-

Re
gi

on
al

9.
5%

Eq
ui

ni
x 

In
c

In
du

st
ria

l M
ix

ed
7.

1%

Po
Lo

gi
s I

nc
.

In
du

st
ria

l
6.

4%

Eq
ui

ty
 R

es
id

en
tia

l
Ap

ar
tm

en
ts

5.
8%

Es
se

x 
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ru
st

Ap
ar

tm
en

ts
4.

4%

To
p 

Fi
ve

 H
ol

di
ng

s



   
  D

iv
er

si
fy

in
g 

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e 
Ma

na
ge

rs



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

D
ur

at
io

n 
an

d 
Q

ua
lity

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
ns

 e
xc

lu
de

 c
as

h.

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
72

AF
L-

CI
O

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Do
me

sti
c c

or
e f

ixe
d i

nc
om

e p
or

tfo
lio

 w
ith

 an
 ex

clu
siv

e f
oc

us
 on

 m
or

tga
ge

-re
lat

ed
 se

cu
riti

es
. P

rim
ar

y p
er

so
nn

el 
inc

lud
e S

tep
he

n C
oy

le 
an

d C
ha

ng
 S

u.

95
%

4%
0%

0%
0%

1%

72
%

3%
11

%
14

%
0%

0%
0%25

%
50

%
75

%
10

0%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n
AF

L-
CI

O
BB

gB
ar

c 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e

3%
0%

89
%

0%
0%

6%
0%

1%

42
%

25
%

30
%

1%
2%

1%
0%

0%
0%25

%

50
%

75
%

10
0%

U
ST

re
as

ur
y/

Ag
en

cy
Co

rp
or

at
e

M
BS

AB
S

Fo
re

ig
n

M
un

i
O

th
er

Ca
sh

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

AF
L-

CI
O

BB
gB

ar
c 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e

14
%

8%
21

%
24

%
23

%

8%
0%

24
%

26
%

28
%

7%
15

%

0%10
%

20
%

30
%

40
%

50
%

<1
 Y

r
1-

3 
Yr

s
3-

5 
Yr

s
5-

7 
Yr

s
7-

10
 Y

rs
>1

0 
Yr

s

D
ur

at
io

n 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

AF
L-

CI
O

BB
gB

ar
c 

Ag
gr

eg
at

e

A
FL

-C
IO

B
B

gB
ar

c 
A

gg
re

ga
te

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

5.
59

5.
95

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
it

y
3.

38
3.

15

A
ve

ra
ge

 Q
ua

lit
y

A
A

A
A

A

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
ou

po
n

3.
4%

3.
3%



A
FL

-C
IO

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 C
om

pa
ri

so
ns

 (G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
73



A
FL

-C
IO

M
an

ag
er

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 - 
R

ol
lin

g 
3 

&
 5

 Y
ea

r 
(G

ro
ss

 o
f F

ee
s)

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
74



5 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

AF
L-

CI
O

3.
1%

2.
6%

0.
9

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

TR
2.

7%
2.

9%
0.

7
eV

 U
S 

Co
re

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

3.
0%

2.
8%

0.
8

3 
Ye

ar
s

 
An

lzd
 R

et
ur

n
An

lzd
 S

ta
nd

ar
d

De
via

tio
n

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

_

AF
L-

CI
O

2.
2%

2.
6%

0.
4

BB
gB

ar
c U

S 
Ag

gr
eg

at
e 

TR
2.

0%
3.

0%
0.

3
eV

 U
S 

Co
re

 F
ixe

d 
In

c G
ro

ss
 M

ed
ian

2.
5%

2.
9%

0.
4

A
FL

-C
IO

R
is

k 
vs

. R
et

ur
n 

3 
&

 5
 Y

ea
r 

(G
ro

ss
 o

f F
ee

s)
Pe

ri
od

 E
nd

in
g:

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
75



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
76

W
el

lin
gt

on
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
n

M
an

ag
er

 P
or

tf
ol

io
 O

ve
rv

ie
w

Ta
cti

ca
l m

ult
i‐a

ss
et 

cla
ss

 re
al 

re
tur

n s
tra

teg
y w

ith
 a 

foc
us

 on
 m

an
ag

ing
 ris

k o
f a

cti
ve

 st
ra

teg
ies

 us
ed

 to
 ga

in 
ex

po
su

re
 to

 at
tra

cti
ve

 as
se

ts 
of 

ma
rke

ts.

N
um

be
r o

f E
qu

it
y 

H
ol

di
ng

s

N
um

be
r o

f C
om

m
od

it
y 

H
ol

di
ng

s

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n 

(Y
ea

rs
)

A
ve

ra
ge

 Q
ua

lit
y

W
el

lin
gt

on
 T

ot
al

 R
et

ur
n

11
23

13
9

2.
80 D

83
%

1%
0%

16
%

0%

-5
%

15
%

35
%

55
%

75
%

95
%

Eq
ui

tie
s

Fi
xe

d 
In

co
m

e
Co

m
m

od
iti

es
Ca

sh
 &

Eq
ui

va
le

nt
s

Cu
rr

en
cy

As
se

t A
llo

ca
tio

n

-1
%

2%

9%
14

%

0%
0%

1%
1%

5%
0%

42
%

16
%

10
%

-5
%0%5%10
%

15
%

20
%

25
%

30
%

35
%

40
%

45
%

Co
nt

in
en

ta
l

Eu
ro

pe
N

or
th

Am
er

ic
a

U
ni

te
d

Ki
ng

do
m

Ja
pa

n
As

ia
 P

ac
ifi

c
ex

-Ja
pa

n
M

id
dl

e 
Ea

st
De

ve
lo

pe
d

La
tin

 A
m

er
ic

a
Em

er
gi

ng
Eu

ro
pe

Em
er

gi
ng

 A
sia

Af
ric

a 
M

id
dl

e
Ea

st
U

ni
te

d 
St

at
es

Ca
sh

O
th

er

Re
gi

on
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n



   
  L

iq
ui

di
ty

 M
an

ag
er

s



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
78

D
FA

 S
ho

rt
 C

re
di

t
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

Av
er

ag
e 

Co
up

on

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r 
G

ov
t/

Cr
ed

2.
66

%
2.

78
%

Aa
1

A

2.
54

2.
73

2.
63

2.
31

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

Do
me

sti
c s

ho
rt

ter
m 

US
 cr

ed
it f

ixe
d i

nc
om

e p
or

tfo
lio

 th
at 

ma
xim

ize
st

ota
l re

tur
n t

hr
ou

gh
 in

co
me

 an
d c

ap
ita

l a
pp

re
cia

tio
n. 

Pr
im

ar
y p

er
so

nn
el 

inc
lud

e D
av

e P
lec

ha
 an

d J
os

ep
h K

ole
ric

h.

21
%

79
%

72
%

28
%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

U
ST

re
as

ur
y/

Ag
en

cy
Co

rp
or

at
e

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r G
ov

t/
Cr

ed

18
%

25
%

23
%

27
%

7%
0%

68
%

6%
12

%
10

%
4%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r G
ov

t/
Cr

ed

1%
2%

3%
3%

68
%

23
%

0%
0%

0%
1%

62
%

37
%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

0-
3 

M
on

th
s

3-
6 

M
on

th
s

6-
9 

M
on

th
s

9-
12

 M
on

th
s

1-
3 

Yr
s

3-
5 

Yr
s

D
ur

at
io

n 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

DF
A

IC
E 

Bo
fA

M
L 

1-
5y

r G
ov

t/
Cr

ed



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
79

In
si

gh
t S

ho
rt

 D
ur

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

Hi
gh

qu
ali

ty,
 sh

or
t d

ur
ati

on
 m

ult
i-s

ec
tor

 fix
ed

 in
co

me
 po

rtf
oli

o c
om

pr
ise

d o
f T

re
as

ur
ies

, A
ge

nc
ies

, in
ve

stm
en

t g
ra

de
 co

rp
or

ate
s, 

an
dA

BS
 de

sig
ne

d s
pe

cif
ica

lly
 to

 m
ee

t C
CC

ER
A'

s l
iab

ilit
ies

. K
ey

 
pe

rso
nn

el 
inc

lud
e G

er
ar

d B
er

rig
an

 an
d J

es
se

 F
og

ar
ty.

22
%

14
%

46
%

17
%

0%
1%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n

In
isg

ht

1%
5%

1%
6%

21
%

4%
4%

28
%

3%
8%

7%
9%

3%
0%10

%

20
%

30
%

AB
S 

ot
he

r
Ca

r l
oa

n
Ca

sh
Co

ns
um

er
cy

cl
ic

al
Co

ns
um

er
no

n-
cy

cl
ic

al
Cr

ed
it 

ca
rd

En
er

gy
Fi

na
nc

ia
ls

Fo
re

ig
n

Ag
en

ci
es

In
du

st
ria

ls
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

U
S 

tr
ea

su
ry

 /
ag

en
cy

U
til

iti
es

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

In
isg

ht

11
%

1%

80
%

9%

0%20
%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

AB
S

Ca
sh

 &
 o

th
er

Co
rp

or
at

e
U

S 
tr

ea
su

ry
 / 

ag
en

cy

As
se

t A
llo

ca
tio

n 
Ex

po
su

re

In
is

ig
ht

B
B

gB
ar

c 
1-

3y
r 

G
ov

t

Ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
D

ur
at

io
n

1.
48

1.
91

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
it

y
2.

78
2.

31

A
ve

ra
ge

 Q
ua

lit
y

A
+

A
A

A

A
ve

ra
ge

 C
ou

po
n

2.
4%

2.
1%



Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

C
on

tr
a 

C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s'

 R
et

ire
m

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
80

Si
t S

ho
rt

 D
ur

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 O
ve

rv
ie

w

Ad
ju

st
ed

 D
ur

at
io

n

Yi
el

d 
to

 M
at

ur
ity

Si
t

2.
70

2.
80

BB
gB

ar
c

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

1.
9

6.
8%

2.
1%

Av
er

ag
e 

Co
up

on

2.
3

AA
A

Av
er

ag
e 

Q
ua

lit
y

AA
A

Sh
or

td
ur

ati
on

fix
ed

 in
co

me
 po

rtf
oli

o w
ith

 a 
foc

us
 on

 ea
rn

ing
 hi

gh
 le

ve
ls 

of 
int

er
es

t in
co

me
. P

rim
ar

y p
er

so
nn

el 
inc

lud
e B

ryc
e D

oty
,P

au
l J

un
gq

uis
t a

nd
 M

ich
ae

l B
rill

ey
.

0%

63
%

37
%

0%
0%

0%

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

<1
 Y

r
1-

3 
Yr

s
3-

5 
Yr

s
5-

10
 Y

rs
>1

0 
Yr

s

Du
ra

tio
n 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n

Si
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

AA
A

AA
A

BB
B

<B
BB

N
ot

 R
at

ed

Q
ua

lit
y 

Di
st

rib
ut

io
n

Si
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t

0%
0%

0%

52
%

0%

48
%

0%
0%

10
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%

0%
0%20

%

40
%

60
%

80
%

10
0%

12
0%

U
ST

re
as

ur
y/

Ag
en

cy
Co

rp
or

at
e

AB
S

M
or

tg
ag

e 
pa

ss
-t

hr
ou

gh
M

ut
ua

l f
un

ds
CM

O
's/

CM
BS

M
un

i
Ca

sh

Se
ct

or
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n

Si
t

BB
gB

ar
c 

1-
3y

r G
ov

t



D
at

a 
So

ur
ce

s 
&

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
81



D
at

a 
So

ur
ce

s 
&

 M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Pe
ri

od
 E

nd
in

g:
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Co
nt

ra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s' 
Re

tir
em

en
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n
82



A
llo

ca
ti

on
 E

ff
ec

t:
 A

n 
at

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

 t
ha

t 
de

sc
ri

be
s 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 a

tt
ri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 t

he
 m

an
ag

er
s'

 a
ss

et
 a

llo
ca

ti
on

 d
ec

is
io

ns
, r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 t

he
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k.

A
lp

ha
: T

he
 e

xc
es

s 
re

tu
rn

 o
f a

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 a

ft
er

 a
dj

us
ti

ng
 fo

r 
m

ar
ke

t 
ri

sk
. T

hi
s 

ex
ce

ss
 r

et
ur

n 
is

 a
tt

ri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 s
el

ec
ti

on
 s

ki
ll 

of
 t

he
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 m
an

ag
er

. A
lp

ha
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

as
: P

or
tf

ol
io

 R
et

ur
n 

- [
Ri

sk
-f

re
e 

Ra
te

 +

Po
rt

fo
lio

 B
et

a 
x 

(M
ar

ke
t 

Re
tu

rn
 - 

Ri
sk

-f
re

e 
Ra

te
)]

.

B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

R
-s

qu
ar

ed
: M

ea
su

re
s 

ho
w

 w
el

l t
he

 B
en

ch
m

ar
k 

re
tu

rn
 s

er
ie

s 
fit

s 
th

e 
m

an
ag

er
's

 r
et

ur
n 

se
ri

es
. T

he
 h

ig
he

r 
th

e 
Be

nc
hm

ar
k 

R-
sq

ua
re

d,
 t

he
 m

or
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

th
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
is

 fo
r 

th
e 

m
an

ag
er

.

B
et

a:
 A

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f s

ys
te

m
at

ic
, o

r 
m

ar
ke

t 
ri

sk
; t

he
 p

ar
t 

of
 r

is
k 

in
 a

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 o

r 
se

cu
ri

ty
 t

ha
t 

is
 a

tt
ri

bu
ta

bl
e 

to
 g

en
er

al
 m

ar
ke

t 
m

ov
em

en
ts

. B
et

a 
is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

by
 d

iv
id

in
g 

th
e 

co
va

ri
an

ce
 o

f a
 s

ec
ur

it
y 

by
 t

he

va
ri

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 m

ar
ke

t.

B
oo

k-
to

-M
ar

ke
t:

 T
he

 r
at

io
 o

f b
oo

k 
va

lu
e 

pe
r 

sh
ar

e 
to

 m
ar

ke
t 

pr
ic

e 
pe

r 
sh

ar
e.

 G
ro

w
th

 m
an

ag
er

s 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 h

av
e 

lo
w

 b
oo

k-
to

-m
ar

ke
t 

ra
ti

os
 w

hi
le

 v
al

ue
 m

an
ag

er
s 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 h
av

e 
hi

gh
 b

oo
k-

to
-m

ar
ke

t 
ra

ti
os

.

Ca
pt

ur
e 

Ra
ti

o:
 A

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
al

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f a

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
m

an
ag

er
's

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
 u

p 
or

 d
ow

n 
m

ar
ke

ts
. T

he
 c

ap
tu

re
 r

at
io

 is
 u

se
d 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

ho
w

 w
el

l a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

m
an

ag
er

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 r

el
at

iv
e 

to
 a

n

in
de

x 
du

ri
ng

 p
er

io
ds

 w
he

n 
th

at
 in

de
x 

ha
s 

ri
se

n 
(u

p 
m

ar
ke

t)
 o

r 
fa

lle
n 

(d
ow

n 
m

ar
ke

t)
. T

he
 c

ap
tu

re
 r

at
io

 is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 d
iv

id
in

g 
th

e 
m

an
ag

er
's

 r
et

ur
ns

 b
y 

th
e 

re
tu

rn
s 

of
 t

he
 in

de
x 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 u

p/
do

w
n 

m
ar

ke
t,

an
d 

m
ul

ti
pl

yi
ng

 t
ha

t 
fa

ct
or

 b
y 

10
0.

Co
rr

el
at

io
n:

 A
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f t
he

 r
el

at
iv

e 
m

ov
em

en
t 

of
 r

et
ur

ns
 o

f o
ne

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
or

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

 r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 a
no

th
er

 o
ve

r 
ti

m
e.

 A
 c

or
re

la
ti

on
 o

f 1
 m

ea
ns

 t
he

 r
et

ur
ns

 o
f t

w
o 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
 m

ov
e 

in
 lo

ck
 s

te
p,

 a
 c

or
re

la
ti

on
 o

f

-1
 m

ea
ns

 t
he

 r
et

ur
ns

 o
f t

w
o 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
 m

ov
e 

in
 t

he
 e

xa
ct

 o
pp

os
it

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

ov
er

 t
im

e.
 C

or
re

la
ti

on
 is

 u
se

d 
as

 a
 m

ea
su

re
 t

o 
he

lp
 m

ax
im

iz
e 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
s 

of
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n 
w

he
n 

co
ns

tr
uc

ti
ng

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t

po
rt

fo
lio

.

Ex
ce

ss
 R

et
ur

n:
 A

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f t

he
 d

iff
er

en
ce

 in
 a

pp
re

ci
at

io
n 

or
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

in
 t

he
 p

ri
ce

 o
f a

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 it

s 
be

nc
hm

ar
k,

 o
ve

r 
a 

gi
ve

n 
ti

m
e 

pe
ri

od
. T

hi
s 

is
 u

su
al

ly
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 a
nd

m
ay

 b
e 

an
nu

al
iz

ed
 o

ve
r 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 y
ea

rs
 o

r 
re

pr
es

en
t 

a 
si

ng
le

 p
er

io
d.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

R
at

io
: A

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f a

 m
an

ag
er

's
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 e
ar

n 
ex

ce
ss

 r
et

ur
n 

w
it

ho
ut

 in
cu

rr
in

g 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 r
is

k.
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ra

ti
o 

is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
as

: e
xc

es
s 

re
tu

rn
 d

iv
id

ed
 b

y 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 e

rr
or

.

In
te

ra
ct

io
n 

Ef
fe

ct
: A

n 
at

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

 t
ha

t 
de

sc
ri

be
s 

th
e 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
th

at
 is

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ab

le
 t

o 
th

e 
cr

os
s 

in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

al
lo

ca
ti

on
 a

nd
 s

el
ec

ti
on

 e
ff

ec
t.

 T
hi

s 
ca

n 
al

so
 b

e 
ex

pl
ai

ne
d 

as

an
 e

ff
ec

t 
th

at
 c

an
no

t 
be

 e
as

ily
 t

ra
ce

d 
to

 a
 s

ou
rc

e.

Po
rt

fo
lio

 T
ur

no
ve

r:
 T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 t
ha

t 
is

 s
ol

d 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

ed
 (t

ur
ne

d 
ov

er
) d

ur
in

g 
a 

gi
ve

n 
ti

m
e 

pe
ri

od
. L

ow
 p

or
tf

ol
io

 t
ur

no
ve

r 
is

 in
di

ca
ti

ve
 o

f a
 b

uy
 a

nd
 h

ol
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
hi

le
 h

ig
h 

po
rt

fo
lio

 t
ur

no
ve

r

im
pl

ie
s 

a 
m

or
e 

ac
ti

ve
 fo

rm
 o

f m
an

ag
em

en
t.

Pr
ic

e-
to

-E
ar

ni
ng

s 
R

at
io

 (P
/E

):
 A

ls
o 

ca
lle

d 
th

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
 m

ul
ti

pl
ie

r,
 it

 is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 d
iv

id
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ic
e 

of
 a

 c
om

pa
ny

's
 s

to
ck

 in
to

 e
ar

ni
ng

s 
pe

r 
sh

ar
e.

 G
ro

w
th

 m
an

ag
er

s 
ty

pi
ca

lly
 h

ol
d 

st
oc

ks
 w

it
h 

hi
gh

pr
ic

e-
to

-e
ar

ni
ng

s 
ra

ti
os

 w
he

re
as

 v
al

ue
 m

an
ag

er
s 

ho
ld

 s
to

ck
s 

w
it

h 
lo

w
 p

ri
ce

-t
o-

ea
rn

in
gs

 r
at

io
s.

R
-S

qu
ar

ed
: A

ls
o 

ca
lle

d 
th

e 
co

ef
fic

ie
nt

 o
f d

et
er

m
in

at
io

n,
 it

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f v

ar
ia

ti
on

 in
 o

ne
 v

ar
ia

bl
e 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
by

 v
ar

ia
ti

on
s 

in
 a

no
th

er
, i

.e
., 

th
e 

go
od

ne
ss

 o
f f

it
 t

o 
a 

be
nc

hm
ar

k.
 In

 t
he

 c
as

e 
of

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, t
he

 t
er

m
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 e
xp

la
in

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f v

ar
ia

ti
on

 in
 a

 s
ec

ur
it

y 
or

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 b
y 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 t
he

 m
ar

ke
t 

or
 t

he
 p

or
tf

ol
io

's
 b

en
ch

m
ar

k.

Se
le

ct
io

n 
Ef

fe
ct

: A
n 

at
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

ef
fe

ct
 t

ha
t 

de
sc

ri
be

s 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
tt

ri
bu

ta
bl

e 
to

 t
he

 m
an

ag
er

s'
 s

to
ck

 s
el

ec
ti

on
 d

ec
is

io
ns

, r
el

at
iv

e 
to

 t
he

 b
en

ch
m

ar
k.

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

: A
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f p
or

tf
ol

io
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y.
 T

he
 S

ha
rp

e 
Ra

ti
o 

in
di

ca
te

s 
ex

ce
ss

 p
or

tf
ol

io
 r

et
ur

n 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 u

ni
t 

of
 r

is
k 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

it
h 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
th

e 
ex

ce
ss

 r
et

ur
n.

 T
he

 h
ig

he
r 

th
e 

Sh
ar

pe
 R

at
io

, t
he

 m
or

e

ef
fic

ie
nt

 t
he

 p
or

tf
ol

io
. S

ha
rp

e 
ra

ti
o 

is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
as

: P
or

tf
ol

io
 E

xc
es

s 
Re

tu
rn

 /
 P

or
tf

ol
io

 S
ta

nd
ar

d 
D

ev
ia

ti
on

.

So
rt

in
o 

R
at

io
: M

ea
su

re
s 

th
e 

ri
sk

-a
dj

us
te

d 
re

tu
rn

 o
f a

n 
in

ve
st

m
en

t,
 p

or
tf

ol
io

, o
r 

st
ra

te
gy

. I
t 

is
 a

 m
od

ifi
ca

ti
on

 o
f t

he
 S

ha
rp

e 
Ra

ti
o,

 b
ut

 p
en

al
iz

es
 o

nl
y 

th
os

e 
re

tu
rn

s 
fa

lli
ng

 b
el

ow
 a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
be

nc
hm

ar
k.

 T
he

So
rt

in
o 

Ra
ti

o 
us

es
 d

ow
ns

id
e 

de
vi

at
io

n 
in

 t
he

 d
en

om
in

at
or

 r
at

he
r 

th
an

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
de

vi
at

io
n,

 li
ke

 t
he

 S
ha

rp
e 

Ra
ti

o.

St
an

da
rd

 D
ev

ia
ti

on
: A

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f v

ol
at

ili
ty

, o
r 

ri
sk

, i
nh

er
en

t 
in

 a
 s

ec
ur

it
y 

or
 p

or
tf

ol
io

. T
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
de

vi
at

io
n 

of
 a

 s
er

ie
s 

is
 a

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f t

he
 e

xt
en

t 
to

 w
hi

ch
 o

bs
er

va
ti

on
s 

in
 t

he
 s

er
ie

s 
di

ff
er

 fr
om

 t
he

 a
ri

th
m

et
ic

m
ea

n 
of

 t
he

 s
er

ie
s.

 F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 if

 a
 s

ec
ur

it
y 

ha
s 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

nn
ua

l r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n 

of
 1

0%
 a

nd
 a

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
de

vi
at

io
n 

of
 5

%
, t

he
n 

tw
o-

th
ir

ds
 o

f t
he

 t
im

e,
 o

ne
 w

ou
ld

 e
xp

ec
t 

to
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n

be
tw

ee
n 

5%
 a

nd
 1

5%
.

St
yl

e 
A

na
ly

si
s:

 A
 r

et
ur

n 
ba

se
d 

an
al

ys
is

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 id
en

ti
fy

 c
om

bi
na

ti
on

s 
of

 p
as

si
ve

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 t
o 

cl
os

el
y 

re
pl

ic
at

e 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f f
un

ds

St
yl

e 
M

ap
: A

 s
pe

ci
al

iz
ed

 fo
rm

 o
r 

sc
at

te
r 

pl
ot

 c
ha

rt
 t

yp
ic

al
ly

 u
se

d 
to

 s
ho

w
 w

he
re

 a
 M

an
ag

er
 li

es
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f s
ty

le
 in

di
ce

s 
on

 a
 t

w
o-

di
m

en
si

on
al

 p
la

ne
. T

hi
s 

is
 s

im
pl

y 
a 

w
ay

 o
f v

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

as
se

t 
lo

ad
in

gs

in
 a

 d
iff

er
en

t 
co

nt
ex

t.
 T

he
 c

oo
rd

in
at

es
 a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
by

 r
es

ca
lin

g 
th

e 
as

se
t 

lo
ad

in
gs

 t
o 

ra
ng

e 
fr

om
 -1

 t
o 

1 
on

 e
ac

h 
ax

is
 a

nd
 a

re
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

th
e 

St
yl

e 
In

di
ce

s 
co

m
pr

is
in

g 
th

e 
M

ap
.

G
lo
ss
ar
y



Th
is

 r
ep

or
t 

co
nt

ai
ns

 c
on

fid
en

ti
al

 a
nd

 p
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
th

e 
te

rm
s 

an
d 

co
nd

it
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 C
on

su
lt

in
g 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t.

 It
 is

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

fo
r 

us
e 

so
le

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
cu

st
om

er
. T

he
 r

ep
or

t
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
so

ld
 o

r 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

, i
n 

w
ho

le
 o

r 
in

 p
ar

t,
 t

o 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

pe
rs

on
 o

r 
en

ti
ty

 w
it

ho
ut

 w
ri

tt
en

 p
er

m
is

si
on

 fr
om

 V
er

us
 A

dv
is

or
y,

 In
c.

, (
he

re
in

af
te

r 
V

er
us

) o
r 

as
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 la

w
 o

r 
an

y

re
gu

la
to

ry
 a

ut
ho

ri
ty

. T
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
st

it
ut

e 
a 

re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

 b
y 

V
er

us
 a

nd
 c

an
no

t 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ad

ve
rt

is
in

g 
or

 s
al

es
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
pu

rp
os

es
. T

hi
s 

do
es

 n
ot

 c
on

st
it

ut
e 

an
 o

ff
er

or
 a

 s
ol

ic
it

at
io

n 
of

 a
n 

of
fe

r 
to

 b
uy

 o
r 

se
ll 

se
cu

ri
ti

es
, c

om
m

od
it

ie
s 

or
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l i
ns

tr
um

en
ts

 o
r 

pr
od

uc
ts

.

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

re
pa

re
d 

us
in

g 
da

ta
 fr

om
 t

hi
rd

 p
ar

ty
 s

ou
rc

es
 t

ha
t 

V
er

us
 b

el
ie

ve
s 

to
 b

e 
re

lia
bl

e.
 W

hi
le

 V
er

us
 e

xe
rc

is
ed

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 c
ar

e 
in

 p
re

pa
ri

ng
 t

he
 r

ep
or

t,
 it

ca
nn

ot
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
of

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
ir

d 
pa

rt
y 

so
ur

ce
s.

 T
he

re
fo

re
, V

er
us

 m
ak

es
 n

o 
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
on

s 
or

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s 

as
 t

o 
th

e 
ac

cu
ra

cy
 o

f t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d.
 V

er
us

ta
ke

s 
no

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 o

r 
lia

bi
lit

y 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

da
m

ag
es

) f
or

 a
ny

 e
rr

or
, o

m
is

si
on

, o
r 

in
ac

cu
ra

cy
 in

 t
he

 d
at

a 
su

pp
lie

d 
by

 a
ny

 t
hi

rd
 p

ar
ty

. N
ot

hi
ng

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n 
is

, o
r 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

lie
d 

on
 a

s 
a 

pr
om

is
e,

re
pr

es
en

ta
ti

on
, o

r 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

as
 t

o 
fu

tu
re

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
r 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 o
ut

co
m

e.
 E

ve
n 

w
it

h 
po

rt
fo

lio
 d

iv
er

si
fic

at
io

n,
 a

ss
et

 a
llo

ca
ti

on
, a

nd
 a

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 a

pp
ro

ac
h,

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

vo
lv

es
 r

is
k 

of
 lo

ss
 t

ha
t 

th
e

in
ve

st
or

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

to
 b

ea
r.

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
de

em
ed

 t
o 

co
nt

ai
n 

fo
rw

ar
d-

lo
ok

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 E
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f f
or

w
ar

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

e,
 b

ut
 a

re
 n

ot
 li

m
it

ed
 t

o,
 (a

) p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 o
f o

r 
st

at
em

en
ts

re
ga

rd
in

g 
re

tu
rn

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t,

 fu
tu

re
 e

ar
ni

ng
s,

 in
te

re
st

 in
co

m
e,

 o
th

er
 in

co
m

e,
 g

ro
w

th
 p

ro
sp

ec
ts

, c
ap

it
al

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l t
er

m
s,

 (b
) s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

f p
la

ns
 o

r 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f m

an
ag

em
en

t,

(c
) s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, a
nd

 (d
) s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

f a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, s
uc

h 
as

 e
co

no
m

ic
 c

on
di

ti
on

s 
un

de
rl

yi
ng

 o
th

er
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. S

uc
h 

fo
rw

ar
d-

lo
ok

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
n 

be
 id

en
ti

fie
d

by
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f f
or

w
ar

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
te

rm
in

ol
og

y 
su

ch
 a

s 
be

lie
ve

s,
 e

xp
ec

ts
, m

ay
, w

ill
, s

ho
ul

d,
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

es
, o

r 
th

e 
ne

ga
ti

ve
 o

f a
ny

 o
f t

he
 fo

re
go

in
g 

or
 o

th
er

 v
ar

ia
ti

on
s 

th
er

eo
n 

co
m

pa
ra

bl
e 

te
rm

in
ol

og
y,

 o
r 

by

di
sc

us
si

on
 o

f s
tr

at
eg

y.
 N

o 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

ca
n 

be
 g

iv
en

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 r
es

ul
ts

 d
es

cr
ib

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
fo

rw
ar

d-
lo

ok
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. S

uc
h 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
ri

sk
s,

 u
nc

er
ta

in
ti

es
, a

nd

ot
he

r 
fa

ct
or

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 c

au
se

 t
he

 a
ct

ua
l r

es
ul

ts
 t

o 
di

ff
er

 m
at

er
ia

lly
 fr

om
 fu

tu
re

 r
es

ul
ts

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 o

r 
im

pl
ie

d 
by

 s
uc

h 
fo

rw
ar

d 
lo

ok
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 T

he
 fi

nd
in

gs
, r

an
ki

ng
s,

 a
nd

 o
pi

ni
on

s 
ex

pr
es

se
d

he
re

in
 a

re
 t

he
 in

te
lle

ct
ua

l p
ro

pe
rt

y 
of

 V
er

us
 a

nd
 a

re
 s

ub
je

ct
 t

o 
ch

an
ge

 w
it

ho
ut

 n
ot

ic
e.

 T
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

la
im

 t
o 

be
 a

ll-
in

cl
us

iv
e,

 n
or

 d
oe

s 
it

 c
on

ta
in

 a
ll 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 c
lie

nt
s

m
ay

 d
es

ir
e 

fo
r 

th
ei

r 
pu

rp
os

es
. T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

es
en

te
d 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

ad
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

ti
on

 w
it

h 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

m
at

er
ia

l p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 V
er

us
, i

nv
es

tm
en

t 
m

an
ag

er
s,

 a
nd

 c
us

to
di

an
s.

V
er

us
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

ev
er

y 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
ff

or
t 

to
 o

bt
ai

n 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
es

. H
ow

ev
er

, i
f m

an
ag

er
s 

or
 c

us
to

di
an

s 
ar

e 
un

ab
le

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

ri
od

's
 m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
es

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
th

e
re

po
rt

 is
su

an
ce

, V
er

us
 m

ay
 u

se
 t

he
 la

st
 r

ep
or

te
d 

m
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
or

 m
ak

e 
es

ti
m

at
es

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
m

an
ag

er
's

 s
ta

te
d 

or
 e

st
im

at
ed

 r
et

ur
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 t

he
 t

im
e.

 T
he

se
 e

st
im

at
es

m
ay

 d
iff

er
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 fr
om

 t
he

 a
ct

ua
l v

al
ue

. H
ed

ge
 fu

nd
 m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
es

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 in

 t
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 t
he

 fu
nd

 m
an

ag
er

 o
r 

cu
st

od
ia

n.
 M

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
es

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
pr

iv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 r
ef

le
ct

 t
he

 la
st

 r
ep

or
te

d 
N

A
V

 b
y 

th
e 

cu
st

od
ia

n 
or

 m
an

ag
er

 n
et

 o
f c

ap
it

al
 c

al
ls

 a
nd

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
of

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f t

he
 r

ep
or

ti
ng

 p
er

io
d.

 T
he

se
 v

al
ue

s 
ar

e 
es

ti
m

at
es

 a
nd

 m
ay

 d
iff

er

m
at

er
ia

lly
 fr

om
 t

he
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

ct
ua

l v
al

ue
. P

ri
va

te
 e

qu
it

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

re
po

rt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 u

si
ng

 a
n 

in
te

rn
al

 r
at

e 
of

 r
et

ur
n 

(I
RR

),
 w

hi
ch

 d
iff

er
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 t
im

e-
w

ei
gh

te
d 

ra
te

 o
f r

et
ur

n 
(T

W
RR

)

ca
lc

ul
at

io
n 

do
ne

 b
y 

V
er

us
. I

t 
is

 in
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
to

 c
om

pa
re

 IR
R 

an
d 

TW
RR

 t
o 

ea
ch

 o
th

er
. I

RR
 fi

gu
re

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 t
he

 il
liq

ui
d 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

pa
ge

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

 m
an

ag
er

s,
 a

nd
 V

er
us

 h
as

no
t 

m
ad

e 
an

y 
at

te
m

pt
s 

to
 v

er
ify

 t
he

se
 r

et
ur

ns
. U

nt
il 

a 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
is

 li
qu

id
at

ed
 (t

yp
ic

al
ly

 o
ve

r 
10

-1
2 

ye
ar

s)
, t

he
 IR

R 
is

 o
nl

y 
an

 in
te

ri
m

 e
st

im
at

ed
 r

et
ur

n.
 T

he
 a

ct
ua

l I
RR

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f a

ny
 L

P 
is

 n
ot

kn
ow

n 
un

ti
l t

he
 fi

na
l l

iq
ui

da
ti

on
.

V
er

us
 r

ec
ei

ve
s 

un
iv

er
se

 d
at

a 
fr

om
 In

ve
st

or
Fo

rc
e,

 e
V

es
tm

en
t 

A
lli

an
ce

, a
nd

 M
or

ni
ng

st
ar

. W
e 

be
lie

ve
 t

hi
s 

da
ta

 t
o 

be
 r

ob
us

t 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ri
at

e 
fo

r 
pe

er
 c

om
pa

ri
so

n.
 N

ev
er

th
el

es
s,

 t
he

se
 u

ni
ve

rs
es

 m
ay

no
t 

be
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 o
f a

ll 
pe

er
 in

ve
st

or
s/

m
an

ag
er

s 
bu

t 
ra

th
er

 o
f t

he
 in

ve
st

or
s/

m
an

ag
er

s 
th

at
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
at

 d
at

ab
as

e.
 T

he
 r

es
ul

ti
ng

 u
ni

ve
rs

e 
co

m
po

si
ti

on
 is

 n
ot

 s
ta

ti
c 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e 

ov
er

 t
im

e.

Re
tu

rn
s 

ar
e 

an
nu

al
iz

ed
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 c
ov

er
 m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 y
ea

r.
 In

ve
st

m
en

t 
m

an
ag

er
s 

m
ay

 r
ev

is
e 

th
ei

r 
da

ta
 a

ft
er

 r
ep

or
t 

di
st

ri
bu

ti
on

. V
er

us
 w

ill
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ri

at
e 

co
rr

ec
ti

on
 t

o 
th

e 
cl

ie
nt

 a
cc

ou
nt

bu
t 

m
ay

 o
r 

m
ay

 n
ot

 d
is

cl
os

e 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

 t
o 

th
e 

cl
ie

nt
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

m
at

er
ia

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 c

ha
ng

e.

D
is
cl
ai
m
er



1 

Memorandum 

Date: May 22, 2019    

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer 

Subject: Investment Staff Report – Q1 2019

Overview 
On a quarterly basis CCCERA’s Board receives a report which details critical elements of CCCERA’s 
Functionally Focused Portfolio’s sub-portfolios. The purpose of the report is to highlight elements of 
the sub-portfolios which are good indicators to the Board of the program’s efficient and effective 
operation.  

Summary 
CCCERA’s Total Fund is performing as expected, exhibiting returns above expectations for the amount 
of risk taken. This is measured by the Sharpe Ratio (risk-adjusted return), and a comparison to the 
Simple Target Index. The Simple Target Index is the most basic index which could replicate CCCERA’s 
Total Fund, and is made up of 69% MSCI ACWI, 23% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 8% 3-Month 
Treasury Bills (please see the Total Fund pages in the appendix for additional details). CCCERA’s 
portfolio is much more complex, especially as it relates to allocations to private equity, private credit, 
and real estate.  

CCCERA has been rewarded for implementing a more complex portfolio, and has outperformed the 
Simple Target Index over the trailing five years, while experiencing less risk (volatility). Details on 
performance relative to this index are included in the appendix. It is worth noting that CCCERA’s Total 
Fund return is an aggregate of the performance of the Liquidity, Growth, and Risk Diversifying sub-
portfolios. 

1) Liquidity
The purpose of the liquidity program is to match four years of benefit payments with high
credit quality, low duration assets. The liquidity sub-portfolio is made up of three fixed income
managers, all of whom pursue a high quality, low duration investment approach. Through the
first quarter of 2019, all managers held high quality portfolios (as measured by credit ratings),
low duration portfolios. The average credit quality for the entire liquidity program is AA- (AAA is

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#10b.



2 

the highest rating), and the duration is an aggregate 2.04 years, which is considered short 
duration. Additional details on the liquidity program managers are available in the appendix. 

2) Growth
The Growth portfolio is designed to take advantage of capital appreciation and income
opportunities globally. To achieve this, the Growth portfolio includes a variety of assets, from
stocks and growth oriented bonds to private equity, real estate, and private credit. In the first
quarter, CCCERA’s Growth portfolio returned 8.3% on the strength of a rebound in global public
equity markets.

3) Risk Diversifying
The Risk Diversifying mandate holds assets that are expected to diversify the growth portfolio’s
volatility while offering moderate growth. The mandate as a whole seeks to be highly liquid,
have a low beta to the growth market, and produce positive real returns. In the first quarter,
the Risk Diversifying mandate fulfilled most of these goals. The entire mandate is able to be
liquidated within 30 days, meeting the requirement of high liquidity. The correlation of the
mandate to growth markets is 0.3, which shows good diversification. Trailing real (net of
inflation) returns over the past five years is -1.3%, which is well below expectations. We
continue to explore additional mandates that can strengthen this sub-portfolio.

The Liquidity, Growth, and Risk Diversifying sub-portfolios are largely functioning well and within 
expectations. The product teams and asset managers are stable, and at this time we see few causes of 
organizational concern at our investment managers. CCCERA’s Total Fund in aggregate is performing in 
line with expectations, having a higher return and a lower level of volatility compared to the Simple 
Target Index. Enclosed are additional details on CCCERA’s Total Fund, sub-portfolios, and individual 
investment strategies. 



3 

CCCERA Portfolio Report Card 
Below we have itemized those elements of each of CCCERA’s sub-portfolios and Total Fund which we 
believe the Board should pay particular attention to. Additional details on each of the sub-portfolios 
are available in the appendix.  

Liquidity 

Objective Measurement Current Period Data Status 
High Quality Credit Quality AA- Meeting Expectations 
Low Risk Duration 2.04 years Meeting Expectations 
Appropriately Sized Months of Benefit 

Payments Invested 
40 Months Meeting Expectations 

Growth 

Objective Measurement Current Period Data Status 
Growth of Plan Assets Absolute Returns Trailing 5yr return of 7.5% Meeting Expectations 

Benchmark Relative 
Returns 

1.0% over ACWI over 
trailing 5 years 

Meeting Expectations 

Efficient Capital 
Deployment 

Sharpe Ratio CCCERA: 1.05 
MSCI ACWI: 0.52 
(over trailing 5 years) 

Meeting Expectations 

Risk Diversifying 

Objective Measurement Current Period Data Status 
Offset Volatility in Growth 
Portfolio 

Correlation 0.3 over trailing 5 years Meeting Expectations 

Positive Real Returns Returns Trailing 5yr real return of 
-1.3% 

Below Expectations 

High Liquidity % of Portfolio that can be 
liquidated within 90 days 

100% Meeting Expectations 

Total Fund 

Objective Component/Measurement Status 
Store 4 Years of Benefit Payments Liquidity Sub-portfolio Meeting Expectations 
Participate in Growth Opportunities Growth Sub-portfolio Meeting Expectations 
Provide an offset to Growth volatility Risk Diversifying Sub-portfolio Meeting Expectations 
Produce superior risk adjusted 
returns 

Total Fund Sharpe Ratio Meeting Expectations 



4 

Appendix – Liquidity Sub-Portfolio 

Manager Reviews 

 Organizational Stability 

 

Portfolio 
Management 
Assessment 

1 Year Product 
Asset Growth 

1 Year Firm 
Asset Growth 

Regulatory Action 
in Last Year? 

Insight Good -3% N/A N 
Sit Good -4% -4% N 

DFA Good -1% -2% N 

     
 Performance 

 

Portfolio Average 
Credit Quality 

Portfolio Average 
Duration 

Portfolio 
Average 
Coupon 

1 Year Total 
Return 

Insight A+ 1.5 2.4 3.4% 
Sit AAA 2.7 6.8 4.3% 

DFA A 2.3 2.8 3.8% 
 

 
Manager Notes: 
 
Insight: CCCERA was notified on March 25, 2019 that Jesse Fogarty, Senior Portfolio Manager will be leaving 
Insight.  Jesse was a member of the team that managed CCCERA’s account and focused on the credit exposure in 
the portfolio.  Jesse’s responsibilities have been assigned to Andrew Catalan, who Jesse previously reported to.  
Gerry Berrigan remains our lead portfolio manager. 
 
Manager Theses:  
The Liquidity Portfolio is a combination of three managers which work together to match four years of CCCERA’s 
liabilities. The portfolio is refreshed every year during the annual funding plan.  
  
Insight: Insight plays a completion role in the liquidity program, matching out liabilities with short duration 
government and corporate fixed income securities.  
  
DFA: Dimensional Fund Advisors runs a strategy that focuses on obtaining fixed income exposures via the most 
liquid securities available. DFA contributes to the Liquidity Program by selling securities at regular intervals to 
pay a portion of CCCERA’s monthly benefit payment. 
  
Sit: Sit invests in high yielding government backed mortgages. The cash flow from these securities is harvested 
monthly to make up a portion of CCCERA’s monthly benefit payment.  
 
 

 



5 

Appendix – Growth Sub-Portfolio 

Manager Reviews 

Portfolio Management 
Assessment

1 Year Product Asset 
Growth

1 Year Firm 
Asset Growth

Regulatory Action 
in Last Year?

Boston Partners Good 2% -8% N
Jackson Square Good -11% -5% N

BlackRock Index Fund Good 45% 3% N
Emerald Advisors Good 4% -2% N

Ceredex Good -14% -5% N
Pyrford (BMO) Good 8% 7% N

William Blair Good -15% -14% N
First Eagle Good -12% -13% N

Artisan Global Good 4% -6% N
PIMCO/RAE EM Good 6% -1% N

TT EM Good 26% 13% N
Adelante Good 23% 22% N

Allianz Good 11% N/A N
AQR Good -8% -10% N

PanAgora Good 5% -11% N
Private Equity Good -- -- N
Private Credit Good -- -- N

Real Estate Good -- -- N

Trailing 1 Year Return Trailing 5 Year Return
Performance in 

Line with 
Expectations?

Boston Partners 2% 8% Y
Jackson Square 8% 10% Y

BlackRock Index Fund 9% 11% Y
Emerald Advisors 10% 11% Y

Ceredex 3% 7% Y
Pyrford (BMO) 0% 3% Y

William Blair -6% 4% Y
First Eagle 3% 6% Y

Artisan Global 4% 11% Y
PIMCO/RAE EM -10% 5% Y

TT EM -7% 9% Y
Adelante 19% 10% Y

Allianz 5% 3% Y
AQR 6% 4% Y

PanAgora 5% 7% Y
1Yr Premium 5 Year Premium

Private Equity 11% 5% Y
Private Credit 2% 4% Y

Real Estate 7% 4% Y

Performance

Organizational Stability



6 

Manager Notes: 

Staff completed an on-site with Simon Fennell of William Blair in April 2019 to understand the recent 
performance, portfolio positioning and the impact of leadership changes.  Our dialog with the firm is ongoing, 
but quite constructive. 

Manager Theses: 
The growth portfolio includes all managers in public and private equity, real estate, and private credit. These 
managers grow CCCERA’s assets for future benefit payments (beyond the four years already covered by the 
Liquidity program).  

Boston Partners: Large cap domestic equity which follows a value discipline. Boston Partners will buy out of 
favor companies and sell them when their intrinsic values are reflected in the market. Expected to outperform in 
flat to falling markets.  

Jackson Square: Domestic equity large cap growth portfolio concentrated in companies with sustainable long-
term growth characteristics. This portfolio should outperform in rapidly rising markets.  

BlackRock Index Fund: Large cap domestic equity portfolio which should follow the Russell 1000 Index. 

Emerald Advisors: Small cap growth equity seeking companies with high growth rates. Expected to produce 
strong returns in rising markets, and weak returns in falling markets.  

Ceredex: Domestic equity small cap value portfolio of companies with dividend yields and low valuations. This 
portfolio should outperform flat markets.  

Pyrford (BMO): International equity value portfolio of non-US companies with low valuations at the country and 
stock level. This portfolio should outperform in flat markets.  

William Blair: International equity growth portfolio of non-US companies with high growth rates constructed 
from the security level. This portfolio should outperform in rapidly rising markets.  

First Eagle: Global equity portfolio that is benchmark agnostic comprised of companies with low valuations. 

Artisan Global Opportunities: Global equity portfolio of companies that is benchmark agnostic with accelerating 
profit cycles and a focus on capital allocation. 

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets: Quantitative equity with a value orientation. This portfolio follows the 
fundamental indexing approach (ranking companies by metrics other than market capitalization), resulting in a 
diversified, low turnover portfolio. This portfolio underperforms in momentum driven markets. 

TT International Emerging Markets: Concentrated, growth oriented manager which invests in small and mid-cap 
emerging market companies. TT employs both a top-down and a bottom-up research approach, and seeks to 
outperform by identifying companies that have a catalyst to drive future growth.  

Adelante: Diversified portfolio of U.S. REITs with a focus on the underlying real estate assets. Adelante is a 
public market proxy of the core real estate market. 



7 

Allianz High Yield Fixed Income: Domestic high yield fixed income portfolio with a focus on security selection. 
Allianz will focus on the higher quality segment of the high yield universe. Allianz should provide a steady 
income stream, and provide downside protection in falling markets.  

Private Equity: CCCERA invests in private equity to generate returns above those available in the public equity 
markets.  

Private Credit: CCCERA invests in private credit to generate cash flow streams above those available in the 
public debt markets.  

Real Estate: CCCERA invests in value-add, distressed, and opportunistic real estate to generate returns from the 
capital appreciation and cash flow associated with commercial real estate investment.  

Risk Parity:  Multi-asset approach that strives for balanced contributions to total portfolio risk from multiple 
asset classes. 



8 

Appendix – Risk Diversifying Sub-Portfolio 

Manager Notes: 

Wellington: 

The Real Total Return strategy follows a dual mandate of diversification as well as a sensitivity to inflation.  The 
lack of inflationary pressures in the U.S. has meant that the inflation sensitive strategies have experienced 
negative results over the past several years.  Staff is currently evaluating alternate strategies that we may wish 
to pursue within this portion of the Risk Diversifying Sub-Portfolio 

Manager Theses: 
Managers in the risk diversifying allocation seek to have a low correlation with the growth portfolio, positive 
returns in flat and falling equity markets, and a high degree of liquidity. These managers work together to offset 
some of the risks in the growth portfolio.  

AFL-CIO: Portfolio of domestic, high quality fixed income securities which are backed by commercial and 
residential mortgages.  

Parametric: Portfolio of paired options selling intended to collect insurance premiums by selling puts and calls 
on the S&P 500 with collateral invested in US Treasury portfolio. 

Wellington: Multi-strategy fund which tactically rotates between assets to produce returns. 

Portfolio Management 
Assessment

1 Year Product 
Asset Growth

1 Year Firm 
Asset Growth

Regulatory Action 
in Last Year?

AFL-CIO Good -1% -1% N
Parametric Good 17% 0% N
Wellington Satisfactory -21% -1% N

Trailing 1 Year 
Correlation to Growth

Trailing 3 Year 
Correlation to 

Growth
1 Year Return 5 Year Return

% of Portfolio Liquid in 
30 Days

AFL-CIO 0.0 0.0 5% 3% 100%
Parametric 1.0 0.9 6% 7% 100%
Wellington 0.5 0.4 -1% -2% 100%

Organizational Stability

Performance



9 

Appendix Data – Total Fund 

Rolling 3-Year Total Fund Upside/Downside Market Capture 

*The composition of the Simple Target Index has mirrored changes in CCCERA’s asset allocation over time: from 2008 to
2012 the benchmark was 73% MSCI ACWI, 23% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 4% 3-Month Treasury Bills.  From 2012 
to 2016 the composition was 74% MSCI ACWI, 18% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 9% 3-Month Treasury Bills. From 
2016 to 2017 the composition was 63% MSCI ACWI, 25% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 12% 3-Month Treasury Bills, 
from 2017 to June 2018 the composition was 61% MSCI ACWI, 27% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 12% 3-Month 
Treasury Bills and from July 2018 to present the composition is 69% MSCI ACWI, 23% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 
8% 3-Month Treasury Bills. 

Total Fund Quarterly Attribution 

35

45

55

65

75

85

95

M
ar

ke
t C

ap
tu

re
 %

CCCERA Total Fund
Upside & Downside Market Capture vs. Simple Policy Index

Upside Downside

Allocation Return
Return 

Contribution Allocation Return
Return 

Contribution
Allocation 
Difference

Return 
Difference

Total            
Effect

Liquidity 26% 1.7% 0.4% 23% 1.2% 0.3% 2.6% 0.5% 0.2%
Growth 66% 8.3% 5.5% 69% 12.2% 8.4% -3.0% -3.9% -2.9%
Risk Diversifying 8% 2.5% 0.2% 8% 0.6% 0.0% 0.4% 1.9% 0.2%
Total Fund 100% 6.1% 100% 8.7% 0.0% -2.6%

CCCERA Total Fund Simple Target Index Analysis



10 

CCCERA Total Fund Performance vs. Simple Target Index 

The Simple Target Index is made up of 69% MSCI ACWI, 23% Bloomberg 1-3 Year Gov/Credit, and 8% 3-
Month Treasury Bill. This purpose of this index is to examine whether or not CCCERA is being rewarded 
for pursuing a more nuanced portfolio versus a very simple representative index.  

CCCERA’s Total Fund has produced strong risk adjusted returns over most trailing periods. Additionally, 
the CCCERA Portfolio has exceeded the Simple Target Index over all trailing periods. This would 
indicate that CCCERA has been rewarded for engaging in more complex investments which target 
outperformance versus investing passively in the publicly traded market.  

The Sharpe ratio is a measure of risk adjusted returns which shows the amount of return a portfolio 
earns above the risk free rate per unit of volatility. Over all trailing periods, the Total Fund has 
produced a better Sharpe ratio relative to the Simple Target Index, indicating that CCCERA is being 
favorably rewarded for the risk taken in the portfolio.  

CCCERA STI CCCERA STI CCCERA STI CCCERA STI
Return 3.6 3.0 7.6 7.1 6.3 4.5 10.6 8.9

Volatility 9.7 14.3 5.7 8.1 5.5 7.6 8.3 11.1
Sharpe 0.2 0.1 1.1 0.7 1.0 0.5 1.2 0.8

One Year Three Years Five Years Ten Years



THE PRIVATE EQUITY EXCLUSIVE
P R O D U C E D  B Y :  T H E  P E N S I O N  B R I D G E

TRUMP INTERNATIONAL HOTEL, CHICAGO   |  JULY 22ND & 23RD, 2019

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#11a.



Hear about these vital issues and plenty more important topics as we learn about how to adapt to our Private Equity Industry 
that is on the verge of a major transformation with the next inevitable downturn. 

Our first goal is to provide the highest level of education with the top speaker faculty. Our highly esteemed panel participants 
will discuss the different issues, trends and strategies so that you’re best prepared to navigate through these uncertain market 
conditions.

Our second goal is to help build relationships between the Limited Partners, General Partners and Non-Discretionary 
Consultants in a controlled attendance structure. This event offers the connections necessary for solidifying current relationships 
and meeting contacts for prospective allocations. We have provided the best possible networking atmosphere to accomplish this 
objective. 

We look forward to a strong event and a very productive one from both an educational and relationship perspective. We hope 
that you will join us in Chicago to be amongst the most powerful and elite in the Institutional Private Equity Community!

The Private Equity Exclusive is an event produced by The Pension Bridge. It’s the only private equity conference in the 
institutional investment industry with a controlled attendance structure that is designed to benefit the LPs, GPs and Consultants. 
The most influential investment decision-makers, most closely involved with Pension Plan Private Equity allocations, will come 
together for this exclusive event. Leading LPs from Public Pension Funds, Corporate Funds, Sovereign Wealth Funds, 
Foundations, Endowments, Family Offices, Non-Discretionary Private Equity Consultants, General Partners and Fund of Funds 
will join us in this unique setting.

At The Private Equity Exclusive, we will have better than a 2:1 Ratio of Pension Plan LP/Consultant to GP/Investment Manager 
Firm. The event attracts approximately 200 Pension Funds and Non-Discretionary Consultants. The GP/Manager firms are 
limited to only 75. We will also allow for 10 Placement Agents and only a few service providers. This will be the ONLY conference 
in the Institutional Private Equity Industry that will attract this elite group while benefiting each attendee from both an 
educational and relationship perspective. 

Amid sustained volatility in the public markets and peak cycle uncertainty, we’ll learn from the experts about the most important 
issues, outlooks, challenges, opportunities and trends that will shape the Private Equity Industry for today and the future. Our 
highly regarded speaker faculty will provide in-depth analysis on:

THE PRIVATE EQUITY EXCLUSIVE HAS TWO GOALS IN MIND

Emerging Market Headwinds and Effects of Recent 
Macro Developments

Globalization of Venture Capital

Is Mezzanine an All-Weather Allocation and Does it 
Make Sense Now?

Recent Trends and Most Promising Areas for Impact 
Investing

How do Growth Equity GPs Differentiate Themselves in 
this Competitive Landscape?

Uncertainty in the Energy Markets – What should be an 
LPs Approach?

Where to find Higher Return Potential in Infrastructure 
Projects

How to Minimize Mistakes in Buyouts

Where can we find Good Returns in Credit Without 
Taking Inordinate Risk?

Pension Plan LP Views on GP-Led Restructurings, Fund 
to Fund Sales, Subscription Lines and More

ESG Progression – Framework for Monitoring and 
Reporting

Best Approaches to Managing Private Market Risks

Could the Co-Investment Boom Come Back to Bite?

Most Attractive and Vulnerable Sectors for Distressed 
Investing

Areas of Growth and Creative Ways to Find Deals for 
Secondaries



INFO@PENSIONBRIDGE.COM • FLORIDA OFFICE: (561) 455-2729 • NEW YORK OFFICE: (516) 818-7989

MONDAY, JULY 22ND

Trump International Hotel ,  Chicago

2:45 PM – REGISTRATION, MEET AND GREET

3:45 PM – KEYNOTE SPEAKER

3:30 PM – MID-YEAR INVESTOR OUTLOOK 

Private Equity Returns and Allocations

LP Performance and Remuneration

LP Investments in GP Management Companies

GP-Led Secondary Transactions

ESG Considerations as Investment Criteria

Innovation in Private Equity

Diversity in Private Equity

Highlights from the latest Global Private Equity Barometer

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

4:15 PM – ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE, (ESG)
Do we have Proof that ESG Integration is a Driver for Better Returns?

Do Firms with Good Performance on SASB Topics Outperform Firms with Poor Performance on those Topics?

What are Some Common Myths About ESG?

How should ESG be best Incorporated into the Investment and Due Diligence Process?

How are LPs Currently Monitoring GPs’ Responsible Investment Practices?

What is the Framework for more Consistency on Full Disclosure for GPs Reporting?

Will there come a time when Plan Sponsors Only Invest with UN PRI Investment Manager Signatory Firms?

Financial Stability Board, (FSB) and its Guidelines to Disclose the Risks that Portfolio Companies face from Climate Change – what 
Approach should be Taken? What Climate Change Risk Factors should we be Analyzing?

What are ways you can use UN Sustainable Development Goals, (SDGs) to Help Investing in New Opportunities and Identify Future Areas of Risk?

Have you Required all of your Portfolio Companies to Implement a Cybersecurity Policy, Code of Conduct or Apply Cyber-Risk 
Management Measures?

With Diversity Gaining Traction, will Gender Diversity at the Portfolio Company Level be something that is Monitored? Will it get to the 
point of Setting Diversity Targets?

Understanding Relevant Benchmarks for ESG Risk Measurement and Performance

What are the Pros and Cons of Possible ESG Regulation by the SEC?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

4:50 PM – IMPACT INVESTING
How do you Best Align with UN’s Sustainable Development Goals? How can LPs best Evaluate the SDGs in their Allocation Decisions?

What are the Opportunities for Impact Investing in Emerging Markets vs. Developed Markets?

What are some Recent Trends you’ve seen in this Space? Most Promising Areas?

What does the Future Hold for Impact Investing?

When we have an Inevitable Downturn or Recession, will Investors Abandon this Investment? When and How will it Become Mainstream?

Investing in Technology for Social Impact

With Areas of High Water Stress and a Larger Future Shortfall Between Water Supply and Demand, where are the Most Attractive Opportunities?

What are the Top Challenges of Impact Investing Projects? What are the Biggest Areas of Risk?

What are some Roadblocks for Investors?

Do Larger Firms have an Advantage in this Space?

How should Impact Investors think about Reporting? Have you Embraced the Need for Disclosure with Sustainability Accounting 
Standards Board, (SASB)?

Measuring Social Impact – should you verify that the Funds you Invest in have their Portfolios Independently Measured and Verified by B 
Lab’s GIIRS Impact Rating System?

Cambridge Associates PE/VC Impact Investing Benchmark – any early Conclusions on Returns?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



Macro Overview and Recent Developments – how does that affect your Investments?

With Central Banks Tapering, do you see Weaker EM Returns? What about a Stronger Dollar for a Prolonged Period? Weak Commodity Prices?

How have Emerging Market Headwinds Impacted your Deployment?

Who has Delivered Better Returns – Country-Specific Managers, Region-Specific Managers or Global EM Managers?

How have Emerging Market Returns stacked up vs. Developed Markets over the long run? Given the Current Environment, will EM 
Outperform Developed Markets?

Which EM Region is Most Promising over the Next Cycle?

What is your Expected Outcome for China when considering their Credit and Real Estate Bubbles, Massive Gov’t Stimulus and the 
Ongoing Trade War?

Do you see Opportunities in India with their Attractive Demographics and Urbanization? Have we seen Progress with Reforms for Investors?

Growth and Outlook for Southeast Asia

What is the Proper Approach to Africa Going Forward for Higher Returns? What Sectors will Provide the Greatest Opportunity?

Any Frontier Markets that are showing Strong Growth that you find Attractive?

With Pro-Investment Reforms for Key Markets in Latin America, what is your Outlook for this Region?

How do Valuations look relative to Risk in Various Regions? Do you see Risk being Appropriately Priced?

How should Currency Risks and Hedging be Factored in by GPs and LPs?

What are the Most Common LP Concerns?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

5:20 PM – EMERGING MARKETS

6:00 PM – COCKTAIL RECEPTION

7:15 PM – COCKTAIL RECEPTION CONCLUDES 



INFO@PENSIONBRIDGE.COM • FLORIDA OFFICE: (561) 455-2729 • NEW YORK OFFICE: (516) 818-7989

TUESDAY, JULY 23RD

Trump International Hotel ,  Chicago

7:00 AM – BREAKFAST 

Given the Macro Environment, what if anything are you Doing Differently? Are you Preparing for the next Global Financial Crisis? What are your 
Returns Expectations?

How do you Balance the Concern of the Need to Invest in a Lower Returns Environment with High Valuations?

Which Non-Correlation Strategies to the PE Space have you Allocated to or Favor?

Are you Seeking Investments with a Subscription Model for Greater Visibility of Revenues and Less Volatility? If so, What Recurring Revenue 
Metrics do you look for in SaaS and Other Companies?

Does it Concern you that Subscription Lines have made it Harder to Assess Return Sources? Have you Been Successful in Seeking Greater 
Transparency to Look Past this Fund-Level Financial Engineering?

Have you seen the Pendulum of Power Swing Towards the GPs? If so, will this Change if we see an Extended Downturn?

What Creative Deal Terms have you seen? Do you have the Freedom to Invest in Funds with Non-Traditional Terms?

What are your Views on Fund to Fund Sales?

What are your Views on GP-Led Restructurings?

Is it a Red Flag to you if Managers coming back to Market Earlier than Expected to Raise Capital?

How are you thinking about Gender Diversity at the Manager Level? Could it become a Deal-Breaker in the Future without seeing Meaningful 
Efforts by GPs for Diversity?

Have you gotten More Involved in your GPs Valuation Process? How have you Achieved this Transparency Demand?

From an LP Perspective, what does not work in Fundraising? What does it take to Stand Out? 

What are the Strong Points about your Program? How do you Differentiate yourself as a Good LP?

What are your Top Priorities at the moment? Most Attractive Investments?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

8:00 AM – PENSION PLAN LP PERSPECTIVES

8:40 AM – FEATURED PANEL: CURRENT STATE OF THE PRIVATE EQUITY MARKET

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

(A) INVESTMENT, DEAL AND EXIT ENVIRONMENT

State of the U.S. and Global Economy – what is your Outlook and Expectations for its Effects on Private Equity? What is your Biggest Worry or 
Uncertainty?

Private Market Risk – as a Consultant, what are you telling your Clients about how they should Manage Risk? As an LP, how are you Approaching 
New Investments or Guarding Against your Existing Portfolio?

What can Pension Plans do to Avoid getting involved in Expensive Deals?

Where are your Most Optimistic Returns Going Forward as far as Sector, Geography or Niche Strategy? What’s your Biggest Worry?

What are your Expectations for the Exits Market?

What’s Driving the Interest in Micro-Specialization? Which Recent Specialized Funds had a Successful Fundraise that’s of Interest?

What do Demographic Trends and Population Aging Mean for Growth and Investments? Are there any Less Desirable or Favorable Investments 
as a Result?

Which Technological Disruption will directly affect Private Equity and Create the Best Opportunities? How Prevalent will Blockchain or Artificial 
Intelligence Become for PE Managers?

What are the Reasons why we’ve seen Outperformance of First Time Funds? Any Caution for First Time Funds in the Upcoming Downcycle?

Does the Use of Subscription Lines Concern you with a Rise in Interest Rates and/or a Down Trending Market? Could it Cause an LP Default on a 
Capital Call in a Perfect Storm Scenario?

With Momentum gathering for GP Led-Secondaries, how do you see that Market Developing?

Do you see Reason for Caution in Co-Investments?

With a Slew of Corporate Carve-Outs going on, what sort of Value Creation can one Expect? Is this a Lasting Trend?



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

(B) LP/GP RELATIONSHIP – FEES, TERMS AND ALIGNMENT OF INTERESTS

Will the ILPA Guidelines for Subscription Lines Impede the Use of these Facilities?

Tax Bill Limiting GPs Interest Expense Deductibility – will this Create Negative Consequences for GPs Leveraged Transactions or Credit 
Strategies with a Bias Towards Preferred and Common Equity?

Revenue Recognition Standard – how will New Accounting Standards affect Private Equity Firms’ Portfolio Companies and what Industries will 
be seeing the Most Drastic Changes?

Will the Mandatory Performance Framework, (MPF) and the Certificate in Entity and Intangible Valuation, (CEIV) change the Industry’s Valuation 
Process?

Have you seen Progress with Cyber-Risk Management for PE Firms and their Portfolio Companies? As an Investor, do you Demand to have a 
Policy in place?

What has been the SEC’s Impact on you when it comes to Fees, Expenses or Transparency?

With Direct Investments on the Rise for Large Pensions and Sovereign Wealth Funds doing Direct Investments, do you feel they have the 
Necessary Talent and Skills to Succeed? 

What Effect will the Growing Shadow Capital Space have on the GP/LP Relationship?

Where do you see the LP/GP Relationship in the Future when it comes to Separately Managed Accounts, Strategic Partnerships, Co-Investments, 
LPs Concentrating Portfolios, etc.?

Assess the Health of the Co-Investment Market Amid the Bullish Optimism

Could the Co-Investment Boom Come Back to Bite? What is Highest on the Risk Curve that could Go Wrong?

What will happen to Co-Investments in a Down Market?

Have Co-Investments Outperformed Net Fund Returns?

What do you want out of a Co-Investment Program other than Lower Fees? Better Control of Deployment Pace? Great Way to Deepen a 
Relationship?

What is the GP Perspective? Developing a Process and then Giving it Away for something you Prefer to Charge for?

Working with External Advisors vs. Doing it Yourself

How can an LP go about Distinguishing Themselves in terms of getting Desired Allocations?

Are Smaller LPs at a Disadvantage as far as Deal Opportunities go? If so, why?

Adverse Selection – do GPs sometimes show the Worse Deals to Co-Investors and keep the Most Promising Deals for Themselves? Do GPs 
sometimes do Deals Outside of their Investing Size or Strategy Norm?

What’s the right Balance of the Investment Decision based on the Quality of the GP vs. the Quality of the Deal?

For Co-Investment Deals that Underperform, what are the Reasons Why?

How do you Benchmark Performance of a Co-Investment Portfolio?

Do Investors Target a Ratio of Fund to Co-Investments? 

What are the Advantages and Disadvantages of Sidecar Vehicles or Special Purpose Vehicles?

Understanding the Trends and Performance of Co-Investments in Small, Medium and Large Buyouts. Where do Co-Investments make the most sense?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

9:30 AM – CO-INVESTMENTS

10:10 AM – REFRESHMENT BREAK

10:40 AM – BUYOUTS

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

(A) DEAL FLOW, FINANCING AND AREAS OF OPPORTUNITY

What are the Biggest Macro Issues and Concerns?

Given the Current Environment, how are you Navigating the Competitive Landscape for Deals?

With High Deal Valuations, should LPs Expect Returns to Trend Downward over time? What are your Returns Expectations from Recent Vintages?

How do you Avoid Mistakes? What is the Top Lesson You’ve Learned from Past Experience?

What Sectors or Geographies should you Avoid in this Environment? Which ones do you find Attractive?

Will the Surge in Tech Buyouts Continue? What are the Factors behind the Heightened Tech Interest? 

Do you see Attractive Opportunities in Europe? Which Geographies and Sectors?

How does Underwriting Change for this Environment? Any Trends?

How do you view Credit relative to the Risks in today’s Market?

How do you think about the Use of Leverage?

When you Raise your Next Fund, what Considerations do you make when thinking about your Fund Size?



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

(B) POST-ACQUISITION VALUE-ADD AND EXITS

What are your Expectations for Exits and Distributions over the Next Year and Few Years?

If you focus on Long-Term Value Creation to Generate Stable Cashflow, how Long a Holding Period are you Embracing?

How do you Consider Volatility when Valuing a Private Company?

What Procedures have you Identified and Learned from recent Successful Exits?

What Levers have you seen Pulled to Narrow the Spread Between Gross and Net Returns?

How do you view the Risk/Reward for Quasi-Strategic Buyers to Grow their Portfolio Companies via Add-Ons?

When is a Dividend Recap Appropriate? Can it create a Financial Burden and Future Risk for Portfolio Companies?

•

•

•

•

•

 (C) LP ISSUES

Will we Trend towards LPs Dictating the Format and Usage of Subscription Lines of Credit? Could that Erode the IRR “Head-Start” that Credit 
Lines have Generated for GPs? 

As an LP, should you Decrease Exposure to this Market? Decrease Commitments? Sell through Secondaries?

Which Strategies might Perform Well Independent of the Economy?

What are your Thoughts on GPs Selling Minority Stakes in their Management Companies to Investors?

What are the Problems you see in the GP Space that you would Correct?

What are LPs looking for in a Growth Equity Strategy? What do you Aim to Delver?

How does the Operational Value-Add Differ from Buyouts? Is Sustaining Revenue Growth Most Important?

How do the Risk/Returns of Growth Equity Compare to Buyouts and Venture?

With Ferocious Competition, how does a GP Differentiate Themselves?

How do you think about Companies you’re Making a Deal With? Do you Sway Towards or Away from VC Growth?

Have you Altered your Underwriting with Current Market Conditions?

Operationally Involved Post Investment – do you think it’s Effective as a Minority Investor to Build out Post-Investment Value-Add 
Groups? Do the Best Companies tend to be those with No Shortage of Capital?

How does the Size of the Fund play into Performance?

What is the right way to Benchmark this Strategy?

Any Red Flags for LPs to Avoid when it comes to Growth Equity Managers?

Aside from High Pricing, what are the Biggest Challenges Growth Equity Managers are Facing Today?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

11:25 AM – GROWTH EQUITY

What should Investors expect in terms of Returns for Diversified Secondaries Funds compared with a Diversified PE Portfolio?

What are the Sources of Value-Add for Secondary Funds? Which are more or less Repeatable?

What are the Risk/Return Characteristics of Secondaries vs. Private Equity in general?

How is the Balance today between LPs Looking to Buy vs. Sell their LP Interests?

How are you Sourcing Transactions?

Current Pricing – Pressures/Opportunities

What have you seen recently in regards to Leverage?

How has the Use of Capital Call Facilities Reduced the Need for Secondary Funds in Managing J-Curve Exposure?

Where are the Areas of Growth for you in the Secondary Space? New Categories of LPs, Separately Managed Accounts, Restructurings, etc.

GP Fund Restructurings as a Meaningful Part of Secondary Deal Flow – Have you seen it as a Source of Friction with LPs? What goes on 
Behind the Scenes?

Stapled Secondaries – why is there an Importance of GPs Disclosing both Optionality and their Effect on Pricing to LPs?

What sort of Creative Ways to Find Attractive Deals in this Mature Market have you seen?

With Tail-End Portfolios on the Rise, will this become a Steady and Constant Need? What are they Selling for?

Fundraising – what should LPs look for to Identify Differentiation, Specialization and Diversification?

How is the Current State of Play in the Asia Secondary Market?

What would be your Advice to LPs considering Selling one or more Legacy Partnership Interests?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

11:55 AM – SECONDARIES



12:30 PM – LUNCH

Are we in Extra Innings for the Credit Cycle? Why Does Private Debt Continue to be Attractive for LPs?

What are the Biggest Deterrents to Deploying Capital Today?

What Speculative Excesses or Over-Exuberance have you seen?

Where can we find Good Returns Without Taking Inordinate Risk?

What Range of Returns should Investors Assume for the Various Risk Profiles Across Private Credit?

How should Investors think about Fund Level Leverage? Is there an Optimal Leverage Point for Various Credit Strategies Across the 
Spectrum?

What are the Latest Trends in Deal Structuring? 

What Sub-Sectors are you Favoring and Avoiding in the Middle Market Direct Lending Space?

Do you Believe Non-Sponsored Investing could Grow with Signs of Crowding in the Sponsored Market? What are the Benefits/Risks?

Thoughts on Unitranche? Expectations for Default Rates and Loss Given Default?

Where do Investors see the Illiquidity Premium Available in Today’s Market? How Quickly can Illiquidity Premium and Spreads Move if we 
get a Spike in Volatility? 

How is the Opportunity Set in European Credit? Where is the Best Value? 

How much Transparency should LPs Demand from their Credit Managers during both Initial Underwriting and Ongoing Monitoring?

With the Huge Inflows into Private Credit, how big is the Concern about how those Assets are Valued? Should Firms Outsource the 
Valuation Work?

How should Pension Plans go about Analyzing, Selecting and Implementing the various Credit Funds?

How do you Assess the New Credit Players in this Space when Selecting a Credit Manager?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

1:30 PM – PRIVATE CREDIT

How Severely have other Forms of Financing Hurt Middle-Market Mezzanine? Have you Lowered your Lending Rates and Returns 
Expectations as a Result? 

What type of Value-Add can a Mezz Provider bring to the table? How does it Meet some the of Changes in the Market?

Where does Mezz Fit within a Multi-Strategy Credit Portfolio?

Do you Consider Mezzanine to be an All-Weather Allocation?

Does it Make Sense to Invest in Mezz Right Now?

Market Update: Purchase Price Multiples, Leverage Multiples, Senior Leverage Multiples, Cash Coupons, PIK, etc.

What is the Tradeoff of Sponsored vs. Non-Sponsored Deals?

What are you seeing in terms of Add-Backs and Covenants?

What is your Approach to Equity Co-Investments? Warrants?

How does the Need for an Equity Cushion to come into play for Withstanding a Downturn?

What are the Deal Risks Associated with Mezz?

Fund Level Leverage – what are the Financing Terms? How Much is Too Much?

What are the Market Risks Associated with Mezz in regards to being Late in the Credit Cycle and Interest Rates?

Risk/Reward of Small, Middle and Large Market

What Returns Expectations should LPs have?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

2:15 PM – MEZZANINE

Preferred Equity Explained – Raising Capital/Unlocking Liquidity Without the Constraints of Debt Financing or a Secondary Sale

Benefits of Issuing Evergreen Securities with No Mandatory Redemption Date – does this Trump the Higher Expense to the Borrower?

What are the Advantages and Cautions of this Financing Model?

Which Industry Participants can Benefit and How?

Do you see Seasoned Secondaries Players moving into Preferred Equity? Can this be the Next Evolution of the Market?

How might Increased Competition in this Space affect the Preferred Equity Market?

What is the Skillset Required?

Should Secondaries Buyers be Worried about whether Preferred Equity will Eat Into their Potential Deal Flow?

Where does Preferred Equity Fit Within a Portfolio Allocation?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

2:45 PM – PREFERRED EQUITY



What do you see as a Catalyst for the Next Distressed Cycle?

Where are Default Rates now and how much do you Expect it to Rise in the Coming Years?

How Big a Role do you Expect Corporate Debt to Play and the Huge Growth of BBB- Rated Bonds? 

Which Sectors are most Vulnerable at the End of the Cycle?

How is Liquidity in the Distressed Space and how might that affect Valuations should a Credit Event Occur?

Where are the most Attractive Strategies and Sectors? Any Areas that should be Avoided?

Will Direct Lending Lead to a Distressed Opportunity? If so, why?

How Critical is it to Buy a Distressed Opportunity Well vs. the Ability to Operationally Create Value?

U.S. Distressed Opportunity vs. the European Opportunity Set. Which Countries, Sectors, Types of Deals should be looked at?

Opportunity Set and Risks in Asia. Do you Find it Hard to do Business in this Region?

What Skills are Required for Distressed-for-Control Investments? 

When taking Operating Control of a Company, what Problems/Issues can Arise? What’s the Upside of Getting it Right?

Distressed Debt Vehicles in Hedge Fund Format vs. PE Draw-Down Style Structures – what are the Pros and Cons of each?

What are the Biggest Challenges to Delivering Returns in this Competitive Landscape?

What is the Right Style, Size and Approach for an Investor to Select a Distressed Manager?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

3:25 PM – DISTRESSED INVESTING – OPPORTUNISTIC AND SPECIAL SITUATIONS

State of the Venture Industry – Valuations, Mega Funds and Exit Market

Do you believe Valuations are at a Peak? Could Lower Returns be on the Horizon?

Are Private IPOs replacing Traditional IPOs? Will this Continue to Grow and Flourish?

Venture Capital Winners – Limited Access to the Top Few VCs that Generate the Bulk of the Industry’s Returns? What’s the Best 
Approach to this Challenge?

Is Technology the Platform Behind the Next Big Thing in Venture? Which Specific Technology Stands Out as a Future Return Driver?

Globalization of Venture Capital – which Overseas VC Markets do you view as Attractive? What is the Best way to Gain Exposure?

What are the Biggest Challenges or Headwinds Facing Venture Today?

What are the Dynamics Driving the Liquidity Challenge? What are the Solutions?

Is it Hard to Find a New Venture Capital Investment? How Hard is it to Compete for the Best Companies to Invest?

Thoughts on Seed Stage and Micro Venture Capital Managers? What do you need to know about this Approach?

VC Access via Direct Fund Commitments, Fund of Funds, Co-Investments, Secondaries – Considerations for each, Allocation Issues, 
Internal Resources, etc.

Pension Transparency Impact – what are the Regulatory Issues facing Pension Funds when Investing in Venture Capital?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

4:00 PM – VENTURE CAPITAL

3:00 PM – REFRESHMENT BREAK

4:35 PM – PRIVATE EQUITY ENERGY

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

(A) TRADITIONAL

Is now the Time to be Investing Given the Risk and Uncertainty? What’s been the Recent LP Sentiment and Approach? Have they Backed Off, 
Sold Stakes, Bought Secondaries?

With Energy Private Equity in a Holding Pattern with EBITDA Multiple Offers coming in Lower than Valuation Expectations, what will Spur Exits?

Where do you see the Best Opportunities and Most Attractive Sectors? Appealing Projects on Upstream, Midstream, etc?

Where do you see Opportunities in the Royalty Space?

How Important are the Credit Markets in the Deployment of Private Capital and what Role has it Recently Played?

How much Leverage is Too Much Leverage?

Finding a Common Ground on Risk Protection Between Management and a GP – will Hedging Protect you in a Multi-Year Price Disruption?

How do you think about Supply/Demand in North America due to the Permian?

What does the Future hold for Shale and Natural Gas?

How should we think about the Risk and Approach to this Space in a Climate Change Focused World?

When can we expect Secondary Buyers to Capitalize on GP-Led Restructurings of Energy Funds and Assets? Have we seen these Deals yet?

Will Special Purpose Acquisition Companies, (SPACs) continue to be a Fixture in the Oil and Gas Industry? What’s the Appeal and Potential 
Downside?



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

(B) RENEWABLES

How have Tax Credits of Renewables Impacted the Industry over the Past Decade and how will the Phase-out of Subsidies affect the Industry?

What Advances are Required to Increase the Penetration of Renewable Energy Sources? Thoughts on Battery Storage Technology?

What Sectors within Renewables or Alternative Forms of Energy do you find Attractive? Will the Best Opportunities be in the U.S. or in 
Emerging Markets?

What’s the Most Important Risk Factor for Investors thinking about Deploying Capital in Renewables?

How will Technology and Big Data Play a Role in Renewables?

Thoughts on the Renewable Energy Financing Trend?

What are the Key Characteristics you should look for in a GP Team?

With High Valuations, a Surge in Average Deal Size and High Competition, what does that mean for your Returns Expectations?

With High Competition for Larger Investments, do you believe there could be More Return Potential in Smaller Projects?

Which Sectors and Strategies do you see the Most Attractive Opportunities? Any Emerging Trends/Themes?

Which Geographies are Most Appealing? Developed or Emerging Economies? Greenfield vs. Brownfield in those Regions?

What are the Main Blockers to Investment in Countries outside of the U.S.?

Do you see Infrastructure Debt as Attractive? Will it deliver for Investors Searching for Yield?

What are your Views on the Growing Appetite for Direct Investment from Pension Funds Buying Assets from Infrastructure Money 
Managers?

What are your Expectations for Growth in U.S. Energy and Transportation Related Projects? 

The Demand for Renewable Infrastructure – which Area is the Most Attractive?

How have GPs Adopted ESG Principals and what are the Remaining Challenges?

Implementation Considerations – Primary Partnerships, Direct, Co-Investment, Fund of Funds or Separate Accounts. Any Advantages or 
Limitations that Stand Out?

What are the Advantages of Open-Ended Funds Over Closed-Ended Funds and do you expect a Surge in Open-Ended Funds in the 
Coming Years?

What should you look for in an Infrastructure Manager?

What Threats do Cyberattacks Pose to U.S. Infrastructure, Specifically Energy Infrastructure? Is the Industry Prepared?

What are the Major Technological Trends that will Shape Infrastructure Investing in the Coming Years?

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

5:05 PM – INFRASTRUCTURE

5:40 PM – CONFERENCE CONCLUDES

5:40 PM – WRISTBANDS FOR NETWORKING EVENT HANDED OUT IN CONFERENCE ROOM

9:00 PM – NETWORKING EVENT CONCLUDES 

6:00 PM – TRUMP TERRACE COCKTAIL RECEPTION AND DINNER NETWORKING EVENT

Hosted by The Pension Bridge – Join our group for a cocktail reception and dinner at The Terrace, located on the 16th floor of the Trump 
Tower. Meet many of the most influential decision makers from our industry at this sophisticated outdoor oasis showcasing iconic views of 
Chicago's dramatic cityscape. The Pension Bridge Group will utilize will this glamorous space for meetings and conversation with quality 
contacts while taking in views of the Chicago River, Wrigley Clock Tower and Lake Michigan.



REGISTRATION:
To register or receive more information about The 2019 Private Equity Exclusive:

Please visit www.pensionbridge.com for additional details.  Registration is not available online.

Brett Semel

(561) 455-2729

bsemel@pensionbridge.com 

BOCA RATON OFFICE CONTACT: 

Andrew Blake

(516) 818-7989

ablake@pensionbridge.com

NEW YORK OFFICE CONTACT:

About The Pension Bridge:  We are an innovative company offering educational conferences of the highest quality.  Our 

objective is to provide an education to the institutional investment community while providing an impressive speaker faculty in a 

setting that is conducive to great networking.  We help institutional money managers connect with Pension Funds and 

Consultants across the country in a fun, enjoyable atmosphere. Our events can act as a stepping stone to a successful financial 

relationship or simply help build the investment education.

Our management team’s unique skills, operating experience, and industry relationships help to make our events the main 

attraction in the industry. We pride ourselves on being there to cater to our clients’ wants and needs. Our ratio of plan sponsor to 

investment manager allows our events to be the most desirable and accommodating in the conference industry. The Pension 

Bridge is known for its strength, stability, relationships and operational excellence.

W W W . P E N S I O N B R I D G E . C O M

The Pension Bridge     4504 S Ocean Blvd.     Highland Beach, FL 33487     (561) 455-2729



         Public Funds Forum 
 September 3-5, 2019 // Park City, Utah 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date05/22/19Agenda Item#11b.



 


	Agenda
	Item 3
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8 & 9
	Item 9
	Item 10a
	Item 10b
	Item 11a
	Item 11b



